
Wednesday, March 17, 2021
1:30 PM

Napa Valley Transportation Authority
625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

REFER TO COVID-19 SPECIAL NOTICE

NVTA Board of Directors

******************************************COVID-19 SPECIAL NOTICE*****************************************

PUBLIC MEETING GUIDELINES FOR PARTICIPATING VIA PHONE/VIDEO CONFERENCING

Consistent with Governor’s Executive Orders No. N-25-20 and N-29-20 from the State of California and 

Napa County’s workplace restrictions, the NVTA Board of Directors meeting will be held virtually. To 

maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency, members of the public are invited to 

participate at the noticed meeting time via the methods below, barring technical difficulties:

1)  To join the meeting via Zoom video conference from your PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android: go to 

https://zoom.us/join and enter meeting ID 997 5007 2830

2) To join the Zoom meeting by phone: dial 1-669-900-6833, enter meeting ID: 997 5007 2830 If asked 

for the participant ID or code, press #.

3) Watch live on YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCrpjLcW9uRmA0EE6w-eKZyw?

app=desktop

Public Comments:  Members of the public may comment on matters within the subject matter of the 

Board’s jurisdiction that are not on the meeting agenda during the general public comment item at the 

beginning of the meeting.  Comments related to a specific item on the agenda must be reserved until the 

time the agenda item is considered and the Chair invites public comment. (Members of the public are 

welcome to address the Board, however, under the Brown Act Board members may not deliberate or 

take action on items not on the agenda, and generally may only listen.)

Instructions for submitting a Public Comment are on the next page.

Agenda



Members of the public may submit a public comment in writing by emailing info@nvta .ca.gov by 10:00 

a.m. on the day of the meeting with PUBLIC COMMENT as the subject line (for comments related to an 

agenda item, please include the item number). All written comments should be 350 words or less, which 

corresponds to approximately 3 minutes or less of speaking time. Public comments emailed to 

info@nvta.ca.gov after 10 a.m. the day of the meeting will be entered into the record but not read out 

loud.  If authors of the written correspondence would like to speak, they are free to do so and should 

raise their hand and the Chair will call upon them at the appropriate time.

1.  To comment during a virtual meeting (Zoom), click the “Raise Your Hand” button (click on the 

“Participants” tab) to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on the Agenda item.  You 

must unmute yourself when it is your turn to make your comment for up to 3 minutes.  After the allotted 

time, you will then be re-muted.  Instructions for how to “Raise Your Hand” is available at 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129-Raise-Hand-In-Webinar.

2.  To comment by phone, press “*9” to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on the 

Agenda item.  You must unmute yourself by pressing “*6” when it is your turn to make your comment, 

for up to 3 minutes.  After the allotted time, you will be re-muted. 

I n s t r u c t i o n s  o n  h o w  t o  j o i n  a  v i d e o  c o n f e r e n c e  a r e  a v a i l a b l e  a t : 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting

Ins t ruc t ions  on  how to  jo in  a  meet ing  by  phone a re  ava i lab le  a t : 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663-Joining-a-meeting-by-phone

Note: The methods of observing, listening, or providing public comment to the meeting may be altered 

due to technical difficulties or the meeting may be cancelled, if needed.    

All materials relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the NVTA Board of 

Directors are posted on the NVTA website 72 hours prior to the meeting at : 

https://nctpa.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx  or by emailing  info@nvta.ca.gov to request a copy of the 

agenda. 

Materials distributed to the members of the Board present at the meeting will be available for public 

inspection after the meeting. Availability of materials related to agenda items for public inspection does 

not include materials which are exempt from public disclosure under Government Code sections 6253.5, 

6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22.

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA): This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternate 

formats to persons with a disability.  Persons requesting a disability -related modification or 

accommodation should contact Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary, at (707) 259-8633 during 

regular business hours, at least 48 hours prior to the time of the meeting.

Note: Where times are indicated for agenda items, they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only, and may be shorter or longer as needed.

Acceso y el Titulo VI: La NVTA puede proveer asistencia/facilitar la comunicación a las personas 

discapacitadas y los individuos con conocimiento limitado del ingl és quienes quieran dirigirse a la 

Autoridad.  Para solicitar asistencia, por favor llame al número (707) 259-8633.  Requerimos que solicite 

asistencia con tres días hábiles de anticipación para poderle proveer asistencia.

Ang Accessibility at Title VI: Ang NVTA ay nagkakaloob ng mga serbisyo/akomodasyon kung hilingin 

ang mga ito, ng mga taong may kapansanan at mga indibiduwal na may limitadong kaalaman sa wikang 

Ingles, na nais na matugunan ang mga bagay-bagay na may kinalaman sa NVTA Board.  Para sa mga 

tulong sa akomodasyon o pagsasalin-wika, mangyari lang tumawag sa (707) 259-8633.  Kakailanganin 

namin ng paunang abiso na tatlong araw na may pasok sa trabaho para matugunan ang inyong 

kahilingan.



March 17, 2021NVTA Board of Directors Agenda

1.  Call to Order

3.  Roll Call

4.  Adoption of the Agenda

5.  Public Comment

6.  Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's, 

and Association of Bay Area Governments Update

7.  Director's Update

8.  Caltrans' Update

9.  CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

9.1 Approval of Meeting Minutes of February 17, 2021 (Laura 

Sanderlin) (Pages 12-15)

Board action will approve the meeting minutes of February 17, 2021.

  

Recommendation:

2:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Draft MinutesAttachments:

9.2 Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointments (Laura 

Sanderlin) (Pages 16-18)

Board action will approve the re-appointment of members to the Citizen 

Advisory Committee.

Recommendation:

2:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 3 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/10/2021

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3a6312d1-6660-4548-a517-2b7a03858405.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0ecd3d83-a268-4804-a35c-4ebb2e9a7802.pdf


March 17, 2021NVTA Board of Directors Agenda

9.3 Resolution No. 21-08 Amending Paratransit Coordinating Council 

Bylaws (Libby Payan) (Pages 19-41)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve 

Resolution 21-08 amending the Paratransit Coordinating Council bylaws.

Recommendation:

2:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.4 Resolution No. 21-04 Revised Approving Amendment No. 12 to 

the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Joint Powers 

Agreement (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 42-71)

Board action will approve Resolution 21-04 to adopt revisions to the NVTA 

Joint Powers Agreement (JPA).

Recommendation:

2:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.5 Third Amendment to Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

(NVTA) Agreement No.17-15 with Kimley-Horn Associates Inc. 

(Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 72-76)

2:15 p.m.

 

Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.6 Reimbursement Agreement with and Right of Entry to the City of 

Napa in order to upgrade its Waterline located at Sheehy Court 

Vine Maintenance Facility (Sanjay Mishra) (Pages 77-94)

Authorize the Executive Director to execute, make modifications to and 

take all necessary actions for a reimbursement agreement with the City of 

Napa, and grant right of entry to the City of Napa in order to upgrade its 

waterline located at the Sheehy Court Vine Maintenance facility site. 

Recommendation:

2:15 p.m. Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 4 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/10/2021

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=435ee432-cada-4c18-894a-ce396bc6cf46.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5170a9f6-6ce9-43a2-b7f6-93053b853702.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7d102640-22a4-4ef1-95d9-1d031deeca03.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=80fe05ed-d507-4044-95b7-2ccdaf487efe.pdf


March 17, 2021NVTA Board of Directors Agenda

9.7 Resolution No. 21-09 Authorization for the Execution of the 

Certifications and Assurances and Authorized Agent Forms for 

the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for the 

following project: Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 

Zero Emission Bus Procurement Project (Antonio Onorato) (pages 

95-99)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve 

Resolution No. 21-09 approving the Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 Low Carbon 

Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) project.

Recommendation:

2:15 p.m.

 

Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.8 Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) Call for 

Projects (Diana Meehan) (Pages 100-111)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the 

release of the Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) Call for 

Projects for FY 2021-22 through FY 2023-24 (Three-year cycle).

Recommendation:

2:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.9 Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Overall Work 

Program for Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 and 2021-22 (Antonio 

Onorato) (Pages 112-179)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board adopt the 

Overall Work Program (OWP) for FY2021 and FY2022.

Recommendation:

2:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

Page 5 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/10/2021

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bfb69b7e-0c54-4ce8-9926-5314c87354f0.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9a82b3e4-73a1-40a1-867a-868139d96e7d.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=85ca6586-49f2-48ca-9091-a910c47ac0f3.pdf


March 17, 2021NVTA Board of Directors Agenda

10.1 Proposed Organizational Restructure of the Napa Valley 

Transportation Authority (NVTA) (Laura Sanderlin) (Pages 180-186)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the 

NVTA Proposed Organizational Restructure.

Recommendation:

2:30 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.2 Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP): Advancing Mobility 2045: 

Public Draft Release (Alberto Esqueda) (Pages 187-194)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board release the 

draft of the Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP)--Advancing Mobility 

2045 for public review and comment.

 

Recommendation:

2:40 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.3 Project Priorities for the Metropolitan Transportation 

Commission's (MTC) Safe and Seamless Mobility Quick-Strike 

Program (Danielle Schmitz) (pages 195-217)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve 

Resolutions 21-10 and 21-11 and authorize the Executive Director to 

submit a Nomination Letter and supporting documentation for the 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) Safe and Seamless 

Mobility Quick-Strike Program for the Napa Forward SR 29 Safety and 

Operational Improvements and the Napa County Safe Routes to School 

Program.    

Recommendation:

2:55 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 6 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/10/2021

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=07bc10e3-5f47-4d47-963d-8bad8598eca9.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9221fb09-9cc5-4b73-8332-59f5bad35a73.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d2f7bfba-cc4c-46ea-be4a-10bd19410337.pdf


March 17, 2021NVTA Board of Directors Agenda

10.4 Agreement 21-07 with GMV Synchromatics to Acquire a 

Computer Aided Dispatch/Automatic Vehicle Location (CAD/AVL) 

System (Rebecca Schenck) (pages 218-243)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the 

Executive Director to execute, and make minor modifications for a contract 

with GMV Synchromatics for a period not to exceed 5-years contract for a 

new CAD/AVL System.

Recommendation:

3:05 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.5 Loan Agreement with the Bank of Marin (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 

244-265)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve 

Resolution 21-06 authorizing the Executive Director to negotiate and 

execute a Loan Agreement with the Bank of Marin in the amount of 

$5,000,000.

Recommendation:

3:20 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.6 Federal and State Legislative Update (Kate Miller) (Pages 266-279)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the 

State Legislative update prepared by Platinum Advisors and approve 

board position recommendations for bills on the State Bill Matrix.

Recommendation:

3:35 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

11.  FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

CLOSED SESSION

Page 7 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/10/2021

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d203912d-decf-4fd8-80d1-034cd182f317.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3737eae6-8f80-41ea-8fd0-141c57b77de9.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=43fba93f-88d2-4823-bc0d-e05610d37599.pdf


March 17, 2021NVTA Board of Directors Agenda

11.1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION

Pursuant to of Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2): Claim of 

Mary Elizabeth Jackson vs. City of Napa et al.

Napa Superior Ct. Case No. 20CV000021

3:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

11.2 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Government 

Code Section 54957(B)(1))

Title: Executive Director

4:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

12. ADJOURNMENT

12.1 Approval of the next meeting of April 21, 2021 at 1:30 p.m. and 

Adjournment

I hereby certify that the agenda for the above stated meeting was posted at a location freely

accessible to members of the public at the NVTA Offices, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA by

5:00 p.m. by Friday, March 12, 2021.

____________________________________

Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

Page 8 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/10/2021

3-10-21



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 05/20 

AB 32 Global Warming Solutions Act 

ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments 

ADA American with Disabilities Act 

ATAC Active Transportation Advisory Committee 

ATP Active Transportation Program 

BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

BATA Bay Area Toll Authority 

BRT Bus Rapid Transit 

BUILD Better Utilizing Investments to Leverage 
Development 

CAC Citizen Advisory Committee 

CAP Climate Action Plan  

Caltrans California Department of Transportation 

CASA Committee to House the Bay Area 

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 

CIP Capital Investment Program 

CMA Congestion Management Agency 

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement Program 

CMP Congestion Management Program 

CalSTA California State Transportation Agency 

CTP Countywide Transportation Plan  

COC Communities of Concern 

CTC California Transportation Commission 

DAA Design Alternative Analyst 

DBB Design-Bid-Build 

DBF Design-Build-Finance 

DBFOM Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain 

DED Draft Environmental Document  

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EJ Environmental Justice 

FAS Federal Aid Secondary  

FAST Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act 

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

FY Fiscal Year 

GHG Greenhouse Gas 

GGRF Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund 

GTFS General Transit Feed Specification 

HBP Highway Bridge Program  

HBRR Highway Bridge Replacement and 
Rehabilitation Program  

HIP Housing Incentive Program 

HOT High Occupancy Toll 

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle 

HR3 High Risk Rural Roads  

HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program  

HTF  Highway Trust Fund  

HUTA Highway Users Tax Account 

IFB Invitation for Bid 

ITIP State Interregional Transportation 
Improvement Program 

ITOC Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

IS/MND Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

JARC Job Access and Reverse Commute  

LCTOP Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 

LIFT Low-Income Flexible Transportation 

LOS Level of Service 

LS&R Local Streets & Roads 

MaaS Mobility as a Service 

MAP 21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century 
Act 

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

MTS Metropolitan Transportation System 

ND Negative Declaration   

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NOAH Natural Occurring Affordable Housing  

NOC Notice of Completion 

NOD Notice of Determination 

NOP Notice of Preparation 

NVTA Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

NVTA-TA Napa Valley Transportation Authority-Tax 
Agency 

OBAG One Bay Area Grant  

PA&ED Project Approval Environmental Document 



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 05/20 

P3 or PPP Public-Private Partnership 

PCC Paratransit Coordination Council 

PCI Pavement Condition Index 

PCA Priority Conservation Area 

PDA Priority Development Areas 

PIR Project Initiation Report 

PMS Pavement Management System  

Prop. 42 Statewide Initiative that requires a portion of 
gasoline sales tax revenues be designated to 
transportation purposes 

PSE Plans, Specifications and Estimates 

PSR Project Study Report 

PTA Public Transportation Account  

RACC Regional Agency Coordinating Committee 

RFP Request for Proposal 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

RHNA Regional Housing Needs Allocation  

RM2 Regional Measure 2 (Bridge Toll) 

RM3 Regional Measure 3 

RMRP Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Program 

ROW Right of Way  

RTEP Regional Transit Expansion Program 

RTIP Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program 

RTP Regional Transportation Plan 

SAFE Service Authority for Freeways and 
Expressways 

SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient 
Transportation Equity Act-A Legacy for Users 

SB 375 Sustainable Communities and Climate 
Protection Act 2008 

SB 1 The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017 

SCS Sustainable Community Strategy 

SHA State Highway Account 

SHOPP State Highway Operation and Protection 
Program  

SNTDM Solano Napa Travel Demand Model  

SR State Route 

SRTS Safe Routes to School 

SOV Single-Occupant Vehicle 

STA State Transit Assistance 

STIC Small Transit Intensive Cities 

STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 

STP Surface Transportation Program 

TAC Technical Advisory Committee 

TCM Transportation Control Measure 

TCRP Traffic Congestion Relief Program 

TDA Transportation Development Act 

TDM Transportation Demand Management 
 Transportation Demand Model 

TE Transportation Enhancement  

TEA Transportation Enhancement Activities 

TEA 21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century 

TFCA Transportation Fund for Clean Air 

TIGER Transportation Investments Generation 
Economic Recovery  

TIP Transportation Improvement Program 

TIRCP Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program 

TLC Transportation for Livable Communities 

TLU Transportation and Land Use 

TMP Traffic Management Plan 

TMS Transportation Management System 

TNC Transportation Network Companies 

TOAH Transit Oriented Affordable Housing  

TOD Transit-Oriented Development 

TOS Transportation Operations Systems 

TPA Transit Priority Area  

TPI Transit Performance Initiative 

TPP Transit Priority Project Areas 

VHD Vehicle Hours of Delay 

VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled 



Napa Valley Transportation Authority
625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

Meeting Minutes

NVTA Board of Directors

1:30 PM REFER TO COVID-19 SPECIAL NOTICEWednesday, February 17, 2021

1. Call to Order

Chair Pedroza called the meeting to order at 1:41pm.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited in the preceding NVTA-TA meeting.

3. Roll Call

Attendance was confirmed as presented during Roll Call at the NVTA-TA meeting with the 

absence of one non voting member, Doug Weir.

Leon Garcia 
Chris Canning 
Alfredo Pedroza 
Paul Dohring 
Mark Joseph 
John F. Dunbar 
Kerri Dorman 
Belia Ramos 
Geoff Ellsworth 
Liz Alessio 
Gary Kraus 
Scott Sedgley 

4. Adoption of the Agenda

Motion  MOVED by Board Member Dunbar SECONDED by Board Member Joseph, for approval of 

adopting the agenda. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Garcia, Canning, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Dorman, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, 

Kraus, and Sedgley

24 - 

5. Public Comment

None

6. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's,

and Association of Bay Area Governments Update

ABAG Update

Member Garcia and Ramos provided an update of recent ABAG activities.

MTC Update

Chair Pedroza provided an update of recent MTC activities.

Page 1Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/8/2021

12



February 17, 2021NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes

7. Director's Update

Director Miller reported:

-Announcement that Napa County is prioritizing transit workers over the age of 65 for COVID-19

vaccines.

-Update on Fare Integration Task Force, of which she is one of 12 members, identified 6 areas to

study: zone fares, zones for regional services with common local flat fares, adjustments for

systems with high transfer rates, variable rates among different modes, and fare caps. Director

Miller will present the results from this survey study to the Board upon its completion.

8. Caltrans' Update

Kelly Hirschberg, Caltrans, provided a Caltrans project update.

Byron Lim, Caltrans, presented a PowerPoint on the Director Orders of Emergency Projects.

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS

9.1 Public Hearing to Increase the FY 2020-21 Budget Appropriation to Allow Financing the 

Vine Bus Maintenance Facility (Kate Miller & Antonio Onorato) (Pages 10-40)

Staff ReportAttachments:

Chair Pedroza opened the Public Hearing at 2:04pm.

Motion MOVED by DUNBAR, SECONDED by CANNING to APPROVE the amendment of FY 2020-21 

Budget and increase the appropriations limit to $35,747,000 by adopting Resolution 2105, and

Authorize the negotiations with the Build American Bureau (BAB) and agreements with other 

organizations to complete the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) 

financing agreements, and

CONTINUANCE of item requesting to approve Resolution 21-06,

Motion carried by the following roll call vote: 

Chair Pedroza officially closed the hearing at 2:48pm.

Aye: Garcia, Canning, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Dorman, Ramos, Ellsworth, Alessio, 

Kraus, Sedgley, and Weir

24 - 

10. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

Motion MOVED by DUNBAR, SECONDED by JOSEPH to APPROVE Consent Items 10.1 and 10.2. 

Motion carried by the following roll call vote:

Aye: Garcia, Canning, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dunbar, Dorman, Ramos, Ellsworth, 

Alessio, Kraus, and Sedgley
24 - 

10.1 Approval of Meeting Minutes of January 20, 2021 (Laura Sanderlin) (Pages 41-44)

Meeting MinutesAttachments:

Page 2Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/8/2021

13

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=33956b3c-eff6-410d-9ae9-b937f23bfaaf.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=bcd3237a-36da-4d65-b428-efd53c8aef09.pdf


February 17, 2021NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes

10.2 Resolution No. 21-07 Adopting the Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program 

Manager Expenditure Plan for Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2022 and Authorizing Staff to Issue 

a Call for Projects (Diana Meehan) (Pages 45-82)

Staff ReportAttachments:

11. QUARTERLY PROJECT UPDATE (Sanjay Mishra)

Information only/No action taken

NVTA Staff Member, Sanjay Mishra, provided an update on the major projects.

12. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

12.1 Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Audited Financial Statement Years Ended 

June 30, 2020 and 2019 (Antonio Onorato)  (Pages 83-182)

Attachments: Staff Report

Information only/No action taken

Staff presented an overview of NVTA's financial statement and Independent Auditor's Report.

12.2 Purchase Two- 40’ Zero-Emission, Battery-Electric Buses (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 

183-198)

Staff ReportAttachments:

Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by GARCIA to APPROVE the authorization to purchase 

two-40 ' Zero-Emission, Battery-Electric Buses. Motion carried by the following roll call vote:

Aye: Garcia, Canning, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dorman, Ramos, Alessio, Kraus, and Sedgley22 - 

Absent: Dunbar, and Ellsworth2 - 

12.3 Vine Transit Update (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 199-204)

Staff ReportAttachments:

Information Only/No action taken

Page 3Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/8/2021

14

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d5dbd2fd-7a81-4215-be5f-1eba07b2250a.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c100d244-c16b-47a3-afc9-d5377c2c2eaa.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=464471c8-76c8-4821-82c6-79cb7d219e20.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d0535c7d-469e-42a2-806a-43d5470ac6c5.pdf


February 17, 2021NVTA Board of Directors Meeting Minutes

12.4 Federal and State Legislative Update (Kate Miller) (Pages 205-212)

Staff ReportAttachments:

Information Only/No Action taken 

Director Miller provided an overview of the State and Federal Legoslative information.

Staff recommended that the board take a support position of Assemblywoman Aguilar's 

Assembly Constitutional Amendment (ACA) 1.

Motion MOVED by KRAUS, SECONDED by ALESSIO, to APPROVE board position in support of 

staff recommendation on the State Bill Matrix. Motion carried by the following roll call vote:

Aye: Garcia, Canning, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Dorman, Ramos, Alessio, and Kraus17 - 

Absent: 7 - Dunbar, Ellsworth, and Sedgley

13. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

14. CLOSED SESSION

The closed session was continued to March 17th NVTA Board meeting.

14.1 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION (Government Code Section 

54957(B)(1))

Title: Executive Director

15. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Pedroza adjourned the meeting at 3:35pm.

15.1 Approval of the next meeting of June 2, 2021 at 2 p.m. and Adjournment

____________________________________

Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

Page 4Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 3/8/2021

15

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2b7fe4a9-eeb3-4dbb-8174-d54f8a30c3af.pdf


March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointment 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the reappointments 
of Michael Baldini, Aisha Nasir, Doug Weir, and Matthew Schmitz to the Citizen Advisory 
Committee for renewal of a two (2) year term. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Board action would re-appoint four members to serve on the CAC.  The CAC was formed 
by NVTA to replace a number of ad hoc committees that were convened to advise the 
NVTA Board and NVTA staff on specific modes, projects, and programs.  The CAC make-
up is intended to ensure representation from all aspects of the communities in Napa 
Valley and to retain members to foster expertise and institutional knowledge that was lost 
when committees convened for specific projects or purposes were disbanded.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

16



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda 9.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY:  Laura Sanderlin, Board Secretary (707) 259-8633 / Email: 

lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov 
SUBJECT: Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointment 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the reappointments 
of members Michael Baldini, Aisha Nasir, Doug Weir, and Matthew Schmitz to the Citizen 
Advisory Committee for another two (2) year term. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
 
The CAC by-laws approved by the NVTA Board state that the committee structure and 
representation should strive to represent a diverse cross-section of the community 
including members of underrepresented groups in Napa Valley.  
 
The CAC has 12 members and 7 vacancies.  NVTA staff is actively recruiting to fill vacant 
positions. These include members representing the City of St. Helena, the City of 
Calistoga, the Town of Yountville, Agriculture, Environmental Interest, and Active 
Transportation.   
 
City/Town/County members will be appointed by their respective Councils or Board of 
Supervisors whichever is applicable before being approved by the NVTA Board. If 
representation of a certain faction or jurisdiction cannot be filled after solicitation for that 
position, the vacancy may be filled with a member at-large.  
 
 
 

17

mailto:lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority Agenda Item 9.2 
March 17, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

ALTERNATIVES 

The Board could decide not to approve these reappointments and the positions would 
become vacant at the end of the members’ terms.  

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal 1 – Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, 
income, or ability. 

The CAC is comprised of members from the community representing various interests in 
Napa Valley.  The purpose of the CAC is to advise the NVTA Board on projects and 
programs. 

ATTACHMENTS 

None 

18



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Amendments to the Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) bylaws 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the revised 
Paratransit Coordinating Council bylaws. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In order to be consistent with current agency directives and state and federal law, staff 
periodically reviews NVTA committee bylaws. Staff recently reviewed the PCC bylaws 
and discovered that they were last updated in 2012. The bylaws contained outdated 
language and proposed updates have been made for the Board’s consideration.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

19



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 
Continued From: NEW 

Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Libby Payan, Senior Program Planner/Administrator 

(707) 259-8782 / Email: lpayan@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Resolution 21-08 Amending PCC Bylaws 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 21-08 
amending the Paratransit Coordinating Council bylaws (Attachment 1). 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

The Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) reviewed, revised, and approved the 
proposed changes to the bylaws at its March 4, 2021 meeting. 

BACKGROUND 
The Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) bylaws were last updated in 2012. Staff is 
proposing revisions to the bylaws to to revised outdated provisions and to be consistent 
with current agency directives and state and federal law.  

Staff presented the proposed bylaws amendments to the Paratransit Coordinating 
Council at its March 4, 2021 meeting to receive input, feedback, revisions and approval. 
The PCC members unanimously agreed to include language that the PCC shall consist 
of a minimum of four members. After that one suggested revision, the committee 
members approved the proposed changes to the bylaws (Attachment 2) 

The proposed changes include: 
 Updated the agency name from NCTPA to NVTA
 Established a minimum number members at four members, as recommended by

the PCC at the March 4, 2021 meeting.  The prior bylaws had been silent on this.
 Elaborated on the reasons for possible membership withdrawal
 Added the ability to form ad hoc committees

20

mailto:lpayan@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority PCC  Agenda Item 9.3 
March 17, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 

 Redefined a quorum as “a majority of filled positions present”
 Added information on prohibited activities and disturbances

ALTERNATIVES 
The Board could choose not to approve the updated bylaws, thereby keeping the 
antiquated 2012 bylaws. 

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal 1: Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, income 
or ability.  
The PCC is comprised of members from the community representing the seniors, 
disabled and those with limited means.  The purpose of the PCC is to advise the board 
on projects and programing. Updating the bylaws will make the PCC to work more 
efficiently and allow for continued communicated with the board. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

Attachment 1:  Draft Resolution 21-08 Proposed PCC Bylaws 
Attachment 2:  Redlined Changes of Bylaws 

21



ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

March 17, 2021 
RESOLUTION No. 21-08

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

AMENDING THE BYLAWS OF PARATRANSIT COORDINATING COUNCIL 

WHEREAS, the NVTA Board created the Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) to advise 
the Board on transportation related issues as they impact senior citizens, the disabled, and persons 
of limited means; and 

WHEREAS, NVTA periodically updates its committee bylaws to be consistent with current 
agency directives and state and federal law; and 

WHEREAS, the PCC bylaws require changes to be adopted by the NVTA Board; and 

WHEREAS, NVTA wishes to amend Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC) bylaws to update 
outdated information and soften the language around committee membership allowing for more 
members at-large if specific seats cannot be filled; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Napa Valley Transportation Authority hereby 
amends the bylaws for the Paratransit Coordinating Council to read in full as set forth in Exhibit “A” 
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein and the attached provisions of Exhibit “A” shall 
become effective immediately. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED by the Board 
of Directors of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, at a regular meeting held on March 17, 2021, 
by the following vote: 

_____________________  Ayes: 
Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Chair 

Nays: 

Absent: 
ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED: 

_________________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA General Counsel 

22



 

 

 
 
 

Paratransit Coordinating Council 
 

DRAFT  BYLAWS 
 
 

Article I - NAME 

The name of this committee shall be the Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC).  Establishment of 
the committee is authorized under section 4.4.4 of the Joint Powers Agreement of the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority.  

Article II – DUTIES AND AUTHORITY 

Pursuant to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s policies related to Paratransit 
Coordinating Councils, attached as Attachment A, the PCC shall advise the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board of Directors and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC) regarding setting priorities for transportation services, review and make recommendations 
regarding the submission of claims for certain funds and allocations consistent with its priorities, and 
address coordination of paratransit services within Napa County. 

PCC shall have no independent duties and no authority to take actions that bind NVTA or the Board 
of Directors. No expenditures or requisitions for services and supplies shall be made and no individual 
member thereof shall be entitled to reimbursement for travel or other expenses except as authorized 
by the Board of Directors. 

Article III - MEMBERSHIP 

All PCC members shall be appointed by the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, and shall serve at 
the pleasure of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority. There shall be a minimum of Four (4) voting 
members, with a maximum of Nine (9) voting members of the PCC, representing the following 
categories:  

(1) Consumer/user 60 years of age or older 
(1) Consumer/user persons with disabilities 
(1) Social services provider for seniors 
(2) Social services provider for persons with disabilities  
(1) Social services provider for persons of limited means 
(2) Members of the public residing within an urbanized area  
(1) Member of the public residing within a non-urbanized area 

Representatives of no more than two separate contracted transportation service providers may be 
included as ex-officio, advisory, non-voting members. Members may represent more than one of the 
above categories. 

 
  

23



Initial appointments to the PCC shall be one-third for one year, one-third for two years, and one-third 
for three years. Subsequent appointments shall be for three years. Members shall draw lots to 
determine the term of initial appointment. 

Article IV - MEMBERSHIP WITHDRAWAL 

Membership may be withdrawn for any of the following reasons at the direction of the NVTA Executive 
Director: 

1. Three (3) consecutive unexcused absences or five (5) absences in an eighteen month period.

2. Misrepresentation at time of appointment with respect to personal use of NVTA’s service.

3. If member does not reside in Napa County or ceases to represent the constituency to which
the member was assigned.

Article V - OFFICERS AND DUTIES 

The PCC shall elect from its membership a chairperson and a vice chairperson. Nominations for 
officers shall be made at the September meeting with elections held at the November meeting, 
annually. New officers shall take office at the January meeting and hold office for one year. 

The chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the PCC and represent the Committee before the 
Board of Directors. The Committee may appoint a designee to serve as the Committee 
representative on the Board of Directors in place of the chair.  The vice chairperson shall perform 
the duties of the chairperson when the chairperson is absent. In the event of a vacancy in the 
chairperson’s position, the vice chairperson shall succeed as chairperson for the balance of the 
chairperson’s term, and the Committee shall elect a successor to fill the vacancy in the vice 
chairperson’s position as provided below. If both officers are absent from a meeting, the remaining 
members shall select one member to preside at the meeting. 

The Chair may appoint ad hoc committees on an as-needed, non-scheduled basis to accomplish a 
specific task and report back to the full PCC.  Ad hoc committees must have less than a quorum of PCC 
members and are exempt from the requirements of the Brown Act.  The PCC may not direct the ad hoc 
committee on how to fulfill its function or when it should meet. 

NVTA staff shall furnish clerical services to prepare and distribute PCC agendas, notices, minutes, 
correspondence and other documents and shall assign an employee to attend each meeting. NVTA 
shall maintain a record of all proceedings of the PCC as required by law and shall perform other 
duties as provided in these Bylaws. 

Article VI - MEETINGS 

The PCC shall meet at least bi-monthly. A meeting calendar shall be adopted at the first meeting in 
January each year. 

A special meeting may be called by the chairperson. The meeting may be called, noticed, and 

24



conducted in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (commencing 
with Section 54950 of the Government Code). The Executive Director and General Counsel shall be 
given notice of all meetings. 

Each member shall have one (1) vote and a quorum shall consist of a majority of filled positions 
present.  A majority vote of the quorum shall be necessary to present an issue to the Executive 
Director and to the NVTA Board of Directors. 

All actions of the committee shall require the approval of a majority of the quorum present. 

Article VII – ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 

These Bylaws shall be adopted and amended by the PCC by the affirmative vote of a majority of its 
total membership and with the approval of the NVTA Board of Directors. 

Article VIII - PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE 

The rules contained in "Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure", by A. Sturgis, shall govern the 
Council in all cases to which they are applicable, and not inconsistent with the Bylaws of the Council. 

Public Notice of all meetings shall be given pursuant to the Brown Act in compliance with the 72-hour 
posting deadline for regular meetings and the 24-hour deadline for special meetings. 

Article IX - PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES 

No individual member shall represent the PCC to the general public or at a NVTA Board meeting 
without majority vote of a quorum at a PCC meeting prior to the representation. 

No PCC member will represent NVTA to the general public without consent of the Executive Director 
(or designee) prior to the representation. 

Article X.  IMPERTINENCE-DISTURBANCE AND MEETING 

Any person, including committee members, who commits disorderly or disruptive behavior which 
substantially delays, interrupts, impedes, disrupts or disturbs the proceedings of the  Committee 
may be barred by the chairperson from further appearance before the Committee at that meeting, 
unless permission to continue is granted by an affirmative vote of the Committee.   The chairperson 
may order any person, including committee members, removed from the Committee meeting who 
cause a disturbance or interferes with the conduct of the meeting, and the chairperson may direct 
the meeting room cleared when deemed necessary to maintain order. 

25



Attachment A:  MTC Policies Related to Paratransit Coordinating Councils 

The following provisions shall be applicable for TDA Article 4.5 claimants (PUC Sections 99275 et 
seq.) and Article 8 transit claimants (PUC Sections 99400(c) and (d)) effective immediately: 

Role and Responsibilities of Paratransit Coordinating Councils: 

A. Membership: Membership on the PCCs shall include representatives of paratransit providers,
relevant public agencies including public transit operators, and paratransit users, including, but not
limited to, the elderly, handicapped, minority and low-income, as well as representatives of
urbanized and non-urbanized areas of the county. The executive committee of the PCCs, where
they exist, shall reflect the diverse membership of the PCCs.

MTC staff will review the charter and organizational structure of each county's PCC to determine that 
appropriate groups are represented on the PCC and its executive committee. 

B. Setting Priorities for Transportation Services: Priorities for transportation services (funded under
Article 4.5 or Article 8) shall be developed by the PCCs for their respective counties and their
communities. The PCC shall consider the local and regional AB 120 Action Plans and the transit
service recommendations of the Minority Transit Needs Assessment Project (MTNAP) as they
develop priorities for transportation needs in their counties. MTC's policy is to encourage the use of
Article 4.5 and Article 8 transit funds for coordinated services to meet the general transportation
needs of persons eligible for service.

C. Submission of Claims to Paratransit Coordinating Councils: All claimants for Article

4.5 and Article 8 transit funds shall participate in their county Paratransit Coordinating Council. Copies
of all claims for TDA Article 4.5 or Article 8 transit funds and the quarterly and annual reports that
claimants are required to submit to MTC shall also be submitted by the claimants to the appropriate
PCC for their review and recommendations to MTC. Copies of all applications for UMTA Section
16(b)(2) and Section 18 funds and any other requests for funds for paratransit services shall also be
forwarded to the appropriate PCC(s) for their review and recommendations to MTC.

D. Review of Claims by Paratransit Coordinating Councils: Each PCC shall review all applications for
TDA Article 4.5 and Article 8-transit funds according to its priorities for service. Each PCC shall
present to MTC its recommendations for the allocation of Article 4.5 and Article 8 transit monies.
These recommendations are advisory and not binding on MTC. MTC staff shall include the PCC
recommendations with the staff evaluations presented to MTC's Grant Review and Allocations
Committee.

26



Each PCC shall also review and make recommendations regarding priorities for UMTA Section 
16(b)(2) applications and requests for UMTA Section 18 funds and any other requests for funds for 
paratransit services. 

E. Coordination of Paratransit Services: Each Paratransit Coordinating Council shall address
coordination of paratransit services within the county. Such coordination shall, to the maximum
extent possible, involve the coordination of TDA-funded services with non-TDA-funded paratransit
services. Coordination efforts shall include, but not be limited to, those activities described in the
Social Service Transportation Improvement Act, Government Code Sections 15950 et seq. Each
PCC shall develop definitions and policies regarding comparable fares and comparable services.

F. Coordination with Transit Services: Paratransit services shall complement and interface with transit
services whenever possible. This coordination of paratransit services with fixed-route, public transit
is especially important in areas where paratransit can provide transfers to regional trunkline transit
service. Each Paratransit Coordinating Council shall address coordination between paratransit
services and fixed-route services as part of their planning effort.

27



Attachment B 

Resolution No. 1209, Revised Page 1 of 4 

The following provisions shall be applicable for TDA Article 4.5 claimants (PUC Sections 99275 et 
seq.,) and Article 8 transit claimants (PUC Sections 99400(c) and (d)), effective with claims for FY 
1983-84. 

I. Definitions:

A. "Special Transportation Services" are intended to serve those population groups who cannot use
existing conventional fixed-route, public transit services and facilities for any of the following
reasons:

● The traveler, because of age or disability (as determined by the local PCC priority process) cannot
use existing public transit.

● Local public transit service is not otherwise available in the area or for the trip required. 

● The majority of route miles are within the nonurbanized area of a nonurbanized county, as determined
by the 1980 federal census.

Standards and definitions for determining whether a program qualifies as a "special transportation 
service" shall be adopted by each county's PCC, subject to review by MTC's Grant Review and 
Allocations Committee at the time claims are considered for approval. 

B. "Operating Cost" means all costs in the operating expense object classes exclusive of the costs in
the depreciation and amortization expense object class of the Uniform System of Accounts and
Records adopted by the State Controller pursuant to PUC Section 99243 and exclusive of all direct
costs for providing charter services and exclusive of all vehicle lease costs and exclusive of the
costs of the following, for which, notwithstanding 2l Cal. Admin. Code Section 6634(e), MTC may
allocate Article 4.5 and Article 8-transit funding:

a) a performance audit;

b) special planning studies or demonstration projects, including those funded with

28



 

 

State Transit Assistance (STA) funds); and 

c) Paratransit Coordinating Council staffing for purposes such as planning and 
administration: however, other planning and administration costs funded under 
PUC Section 99275 and 99400(d) shall not be excluded. 

 

For the purpose of determining a transit service claimant's compliance with its local match 
requirement, "operating cost" shall also exclude liability and casualty insurance premiums and 
payments in settlement of claims arising out of the transit service claimant's liability. This exclusion 
shall remain effective only until June 30, 1991 and shall not apply for purposes of determining a 
claimant's maximum eligibility for TDA/STA funds. 

 

In the case of a transit service claimant that is allocated funds for payment to an entity which is under 
contract with it to provide transportation services, "operating cost" also includes the amount of the 
fare revenues that are received by the entity providing the services and not transferred to the 
claimant. 

 

The above definition shall apply in lieu of PUC Section 99247(a) and 99268.17 and 21 Cal. Admin. 
Code 6611.1. 

 

C. "Local Match" means the revenue object classes 401, 402, and 403 as specified in Section 630.12 
of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations, as now or as may hereafter be amended, and private 
contributions, funds available under the Older Americans Act of 1965 (as amended) or through 
agreement with a Regional Center for persons with developmental disabilities (referenced in Welfare 
and Institutions Code Sections 4620 et seq.), and local support revenues in revenue account object 
classes 406, 408, 409 (exluding funds allocated under the Transportation Development Act or the 
State Transit Assistance Program), 410, 413.991, 430 and 440 of the Uniform System of Accounts 
and Records adopted by the Controller pursuant to PUC Section 99243, as now or as hereafter may 
be amended. 

 

Contributed services reported under revenue object class 430 shall be considered local match only 
to the extent that the value of these services is reported as a contra account for expense. Contributed 
services of a paid employee of the transit service claimant or another entity shall be valued at a rate 
not to exceed the hourly wage of that employee for the number of hours that can be verified by the 
annual independent audit. Contributed services of a volunteer shall be valued at a rate not to exceed 
the federal minimum wage for the number of hours that can be verified by the annual independent 
fiscal audit. 

 

The above definition shall apply in lieu of PUC Section 99205.7.

29



 

 

 

D. Service Extensions: The required ratio of local match to operating cost prescribed by this resolution 
shall not apply to an extension of transportation services until two years after the end of the fiscal 
year in which the extension of services was put into operation. As used in this section, "extension 
of transportation services" shall includes additions of geographical areas or route miles, or 
improvements in service frequency or hours of service greater than 25 percent of the route total, or 
the addition of new days of service, and for transit service claimants also includes the addition of a 
new type of service, such as van, taxi, or bus. Within 90 days after the end of each year of 
implementation, the claimant shall submit to MTC a report on the extension of public transportation 
services, including, but not limited to, the area served, the revenues generated, and the cost to 
provide the extended services. 

 

In addition, for a claimant that is designated a consolidated transportation service agency (CTSA), 
coordination activities undertaken to implement an action plan to meet the legislative intent expressed 
in Section 15951 of the Government Code shall be considered an extension of public transportation 
services. Such coordination activities are limited to activities initiated after designation as a CTSA 
which include ongoing coordination with non-TDA-funded social service transportation services as 
well as TDA claimants. Any questions concerning whether an activity falls within the above limits shall 
be resolved by MTC. 

 

The above definition shall apply in lieu of PUC Section 99268.8. 

 

E. "Community" is defined as a population group sharing common interests within a geographic area. 

 

II. General Rules: 

 

A. For Special Transportation Service Claimants: The maximum contribution of TDA and STA funds to 
a special transportation service (as defined above) claimant shall be 90% of total operating costs 
(as defined above). For any fiscal year, at least 10% of the operating cost of a special transportation 
service shall be provided with local match revenues (as defined above). 

B. Other Claimants: All claimants for TDA Article 4.5 or Article 8 transit funds that are determined by 
MTC to not qualify as special transportation services shall be considered as providers of general 
transportation. The maximum contribution of TDA and STA funds for such general transportation 
shall be 80% of total operating costs (as defined above). For any fiscal year, at least 20% of the 
operating cost of a general transportation service shall be provided with local match revenues (as 
defined above). 

 

30



However, for a transit service claimant providing general transportation in a county with a population 
of 500,000 or less and serving an urbanized area, MTC may set the maximum contribution of TDA 
and STA funds for the service at no more than 85% and the local match requirement at not less than 
15% if a finding is made pursuant to PUC Section 99268.12. 

C. Noncompliance with Local Match Requirements: Noncompliance with the above stated local match
provisions during Fiscal Year 1983-84 1986-87 or future fiscal years shall result in a reduction in the
claimant's eligibility to receive TDA and STA by the amount of the difference between the required
local match and the actual local match, as prescribed by PUC Section 99268.9 and 21 Cal. Admin.
Code Section 6633.9.

D. Fare Coordination: Comparable fares shall be charged for comparable services throughout each
county. 

E. Separability: If a claimant is responsible for more than one type or area of service, the claimant may
request that these rules may be applied separately or collectively to the services provided by the
claimant. However, quarterly and annual reports shall be submitted for each service.

F. Maximum Allocation of TDA Article 4.5 Funds: It is MTC policy that, pursuant to PUC Code Section
99233.7, 5 percent of the funds available shall be allocated, in those counties with eligible
claimant(s), for community transit purposes. Unused funds made available for Article 4.5 purposes
in one year shall be reserved in the Local Transportation Fund for use in subsequent years for Article
4.5 purpose.

31



BYLAWS FOR THE PARATRANSIT COORDINATING COUNCILParatransit 
Coordinating Council 

BYLAWS 
 

 
Article I -  
GENERAL PROVISIONSNAME 
 
1.1 Purpose 
 
 These Bylaws govern the proceedings of the Paratransit Coordinating Council 
(PCC), an advisory committee established by the Board of Directors of the Napa County 
Transportation and Planning Agency (NCTPA). The name of this committee shall be the 
Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC). Establishment of the committee is authorized 
under section 4.4.4 of the Joint Powers Agreement of the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority. 
 
Article II -  
DUTIES AND AUTHORITY 
 
2.1 Duties 
 
 Pursuant to Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s policies related to 
Paratransit Coordinating Councils, attached as Attachment A, the PCC shall advise the 
NCTPA Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board of Directors and the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) regarding setting priorities for 
transportation services, review and make recommendations regarding the submission of 
claims for certain TDA and UMTA funds and allocations consistent with its priorities, and 
address coordination of paratransit services within Napa County. 
 
2.2 Limitations on Authority 
 
 PCC shall have no independent duties and no authority to take actions that bind 
NCTPA NVTA or the Board of Directors.  No expenditures or requisitions for services and 
supplies shall be made and no individual member thereof shall be entitled to 
reimbursement for travel or other expenses except as authorized by the Board of 
Directors. 
 
Article III -  
MEMBERSHIP 
3.1 Membership 
  
All PCC members  Members shall be appointed by the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority, and serve at the pleasure of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, NCTPA. 
There shall be a minimum of Four (4) voting members, with a maximum of  There shall 
be Nine (9) voting members of the PCC, representing the following categories: 
 
 (1) Consumer/user 60 years of age or older 
 (1) Consumer/user persons with disabilities 

32



(1) Social services provider for seniors
(2) Social services providers for persons with disabilities
(1) Social services provider for persons of limited means.
(2) Members of the public residing within an urbanized area
(1) Member of the public residing within a nonurbanized area

Representatives of no more than two separated contracted transportation service 
providers may be included as ex-officio, advisory, non-voting members.  

Members may represent more than one of the above categories. 

3.2 Member Terms 

Initial appointments to the PCC shall be one-third for one year, one-third for two 
years, and one-third for three years.  Subsequent appointments shall be for three years. 
Members shall draw lots to determine the term of initial appointment. 

Non-attendance at three consecutive meetings without excuse may result in 
termination. 

Article IV –  
OFFICERSMEMBERSHIP WITHDRAWAL 
Membership may be withdrawn for any of the following reasons at the direction of the 
NVTA Executive Director: 

1. Three (3) consecutive unexcused absences or five (5) absences in an eighteen
month period 

2. Misrepresentation at time of appointment with respect to personal use of NVTA’s
service 

1.3. If a member does not reside in Napa County or ceases to represent the 
constituency to which the member was assigned 

4.1 Chairperson and Vice ChairpersonArticle V – OFFICERS AND DUTIES 

The PCC shall elect from its membership a chairperson and a vice chairperson.  
Nominations for officers shall be made at the September meeting with elections held at 
the November meeting, annually.  New officers shall take office at the January meeting 
and hold office for one year. 

The chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Committee and represent the 
Committee before the Board of Directors.  The vice chairperson shall perform the duties 
of the chairperson when the chairperson is absent.  In the event of a vacancy in the 
chairperson’s position, the vice chairperson shall succeed as chairperson for the balance 
of the chairperson’s term, and the Committee shall elect a successor to fill the vacancy in 
the vice chairperson’s position as provided below.    If both officers are absent from a 
meeting, the remaining members shall select one member to preside at the meeting. 

33



  
 
The Chair may appoint ad hoc committees on an as-needed, non-scheduled basis to 
accomplish a specific task and report back to the full PCC. Ad hoc committees must have 
less than a quorum of PCC members and are exempt from the requirements of the Brown 
Act. The PCC may not direct the ad hoc committee on how to fulfill its function or when it 
should meet.  
 
 4.2 Staff Resources 
 
 The NCTPANVTA staff shall furnish clerical services to prepare and distribute PCC 
agendas, notices, minutes, correspondence and other documents and shall assign an 
employee to attend each meeting.  The NCTPANVTA shall maintain a record of all 
proceedings of the PCC as required by law and shall perform other duties as provided in 
these Bylaws. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Article VI -  
MEETINGS 
 
 5.1 Regular Meetings 
 
 The PCC shall meet at least bimonthly.  A meeting calendar shall be adopted the 
first meeting in January each year.  
 
 5.2 Special Meetings 
 
 A special meeting may be called by the chairperson. The meeting may be called,  
and noticed, and conducted as provided in Section 5.3 below.  (For a general description 
of the noticing procedures, see the Rules of Procedure of the Board of Directors.)in 
accordance with the applicable provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (commencing with 
Section 54950 of the Government Code). The Executive Director and General Counsel 
shall be given notice of all meetings. 
 
 5.3 Calling and Noticing of Meetings 
 
 All meetings shall be called, noticed and conducted in accordance with the 
applicable provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (commencing with Section 54950 of the 
Government Code).  The Executive Director and General Counsel shall be given notice 
of all meetings.    
 
 5.4 Quorum; Vote 

34



A quorum of the PCC shall consist of four members. All acts of the Committee shall 
require the presence of a quorum and the affirmative vote of a majority of the total 
membership present.  Each member shall have one (1) vote and a quorum shall consist 
of a majority of filled positions present. A majority vote of the quorum shall be necessary 
to present an issue to the Executive Director and to the NVTA Board of Directors.  

All actions of the committee shall require the approval of a majority of the quorum present. 

Article VII –  
MISCELLANEOUSADOPTION AND AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 

6.1 Adoption and Amendment of Bylaws 

These Bylaws shall be adopted and amended by the PCC by the affirmative vote 
of a majority of its total membership and with the approval of the NCTPA NVTA Board of 
Directors. 

6.2 Article VIII - Parliamentary Procedure 

The rules contained in the “Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure”, by A. 
Sturgis, shall govern the PCC Council in all cases to which they are applicable and not 
inconsistent with the bylaws of the Councilse bylaws. 

Public Notice of all meetings shall be given pursuant to the Brown Act in compliance 
with the 72-hour posting deadline for regular meetings and the 24-hour deadline for 
special meetings. 

Article IX – Prohibited Activities 
No individual member shall represent the PCC to the general public or at a NVTA Board 
meeting without majority vote of a quorum at a PCC meeting prior to the representation. 

No PCC member will represent NVTA to the general public without consent of the 
Executive Director (or designee) prior to the representation.  

Article X – DISTURBANCE AND MEETING 
Any person, including committee members, who commits disorderly or disruptive 
behavior which substantially delays, interrupts, impedes, disrupts or disturbs the 
proceedings of the  Committee may be barred by the chairperson from further 
appearance before the Committee at that meeting, unless permission to continue is 
granted by an affirmative vote of the Committee. The chairperson may order any 
person, including committee members, removed from the Committee meeting who 
causes a disturbance or interferences with the conduct of the meeting, and the 
chairperson may direct the meeting room cleared when deemed necessary to maintain 
order. 

35



  
 
 
  

36



MTC Policies Related to Paratransit Coordinating Councils 

The following provisions shall be applicable for TDA Article 4.5 claimants (PUC Sections 
99275 et seq.) and Article 8 transit claimants (PUC Sections 99400(c) and (d)) effective 
immediately: 

Role and Responsibilities of Paratransit Coordinating Councils: 

A. Membership:  Membership on the PCCs shall include representatives of paratransit
providers, relevant public agencies including public transit operators, and paratransit users,
including, but not limited to, the elderly, handicapped, minority and low-income, as well as
representatives of urbanized and nonurbanized areas of the county.  The executive committees of
the PCCs, where they exist, shall reflect the diverse membership of the PCCs.

MTC staff will review the charter and organizational structure of each county's PCC to 
determine that appropriate groups are represented on the PCC and its executive committee. 

B. Setting Priorities for Transportation Services:  Priorities for transportation services
(funded under Article 4.5 or Article 8) shall be developed by the PCCs for their respective
counties and their communities.  The PCCs shall consider the local and regional AB 120 Action
Plans and the transit service recommendations of the Minority Transit Needs Assessment Project
(MTNAP) as they develop priorities for transportation needs in their counties.  MTC's policy is
to encourage the use of Article 4.5 and Article 8 transit funds for coordinated services to meet
the general transportation needs of persons eligible for service.

C. Submission of Claims to Paratransit Coordinating Councils:  All claimants for Article 4.5
and Article 8 transit funds shall participate in their county Paratransit Coordinating Council.
Copies of all claims for TDA Article 4.5 or Article 8 transit funds and the quarterly and annual
reports that claimants are required to submit to MTC shall also be submitted by the claimants to
the appropriate PCC for their review and recommendations to MTC.  Copies of all applications
for UMTA Section 16(b)(2) and Section 18 funds and any other requests for funds for paratransit
services shall also be forwarded to the appropriate PCC(s) for their review and recommendations
to MTC.

D. Review of Claims by Paratransit Coordinating Councils:  Each PCC shall review all
applications for TDA Article 4.5 and Article 8-transit funds according to its priorities for service.
Each PCC shall present to MTC its recommendations for the allocation of Article 4.5 and Article
8 transit monies.  These recommendations are advisory and not binding on MTC.  MTC staff
shall include the PCC recommendations with the staff evaluations presented to MTC's Grant
Review and Allocations Committee.

Each PCC shall also review and make recommendations regarding priorities for UMTA 
Section 16(b)(2) applications and requests for UMTA Section 18 funds and any other requests 
for funds for paratransit services. 

37



  
 
E. Coordination of Paratransit Services:  Each Paratransit Coordinating Council shall 
address coordination of paratransit services within the county.  Such coordination shall, to the 
maximum extent possible, involve the coordination of TDA-funded services with non-TDA-
funded paratransit services.  Coordination efforts shall include, but not be limited to, those 
activities described in the Social Service Transportation Improvement Act, Government Code 
Sections 15950 et seq.  Each PCC shall develop definitions and policies regarding comparable 
fares and comparable services. 
 
F. Coordination with Transit Services:  Paratransit services shall complement and interface 
with transit services whenever possible.  This coordination of paratransit services with fixed-
route, public transit is especially important in areas where paratransit can provide transfers to 
regional trunkline transit service.  Each Paratransit Coordinating Council shall address 
coordination between paratransit services and fixed-route services as part of their planning effort. 
 
 

38



  
 

1 
Approved January 2012 

Attachment B 
Resolution No. 1209, Revised 
Page 1 of 4 
 
The following provisions shall be applicable for TDA Article 4.5 claimants (PUC Sections 
99275 et seq.,) and Article 8 transit claimants (PUC Sections 99400(c) and (d)), effective with 
claims for FY 1983-84. 
 
I. Definitions: 
 
 A. "Special Transportation Services" are intended to serve those population groups 
who cannot use existing conventional fixed-route, public transit services and facilities for any of 
the following reasons: 
 
  ● The traveler, because of age or disability (as determined by the local PCC 
priority process) cannot use existing public transit. 
 
  ● Local public transit service is not otherwise available in the area or for the 
trip required. 
 
  ● The majority of route miles are within the nonurbanized area of a 
nonurbanized county, as determined by the 1980 federal census. 
 
  Standards and definitions for determining whether a program qualifies as a 
"special transportation service" shall be adopted by each county's PCC, subject to review by 
MTC's Grant Review and Allocations Commitee at the time claims are considered for approval. 
 
 B. "Operating Cost" means all costs in the operating expense object classes exclusive 
of the costs in the depreciation and amortization expense object class of the Uniform System of 
Accounts and Records adopted by the State Controller pursuant to PUC Section 99243 and 
exclusive of all direct costs for providing charter services and exclusive of all vehicle lease costs 
and exclusive of the costs of the following, for which, notwithstanding 2l Cal. Admin. Code 
Section 6634(e), MTC may allocate Article 4.5 and Article 8-transit funding: 
 
  a) a performance audit; 
  b) special planning studies or demonstration projects, including those funded 

with State Transit Assistance (STA) funds); and 
  c) Paratransit Coordinating Council staffing for purposes such as planning and 

administration:  however, other planning and administration costs funded 
under PUC Section  99275 and 99400(d) shall not be excluded. 

 
  For the purpose of determining a transit service claimant's compliance with its 
local match requirement, "operating cost" shall also exclude liability and casualty insurance 
premiums and payments in settlement of claims arising out of the transit service claimant's 
liability.  This exclusion shall remain effective only until June 30, 1991 and shall not apply for 
purposes of determining a claimant's maximum eligibility for TDA/STA funds. 

39



  
 

2 
Approved January 2012 

  In the case of a transit service claimant that is allocated funds for payment to an 
entity which is under contract with it to provide transportation services, "operating cost" also 
includes the amount of the fare revenues that are received by the entity providing the services 
and not transferred to the claimant. 
 
  The above definition shall apply in lieu of PUC Section 99247(a) and 99268.17 
and 21 Cal. Admin. Code 6611.1. 
 
 C. "Local Match" means the revenue object classes 401, 402, and 403 as specified in 
Section 630.12 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations, as now or as may hereafter be 
amended, and private contributions, funds available under the Older Americans Act of 1965 (as 
amended) or through agreement with a Regional Center for persons with developmental 
disabilities (referenced in Welfare and Institutions Code Sections 4620 et seq.), and local support 
revenues in revenue account object classes 406, 408, 409 (exluding funds allocated under the 
Transportation Development Act or the State Transit Assistance Program), 410, 413.991, 430 
and 440 of the Uniform System of Accounts and Records adopted by the Controller pursuant to 
PUC Section 99243, as now or as hereafter may be amended. 
 
  Contributed services reported under revenue object class 430 shall be considered 
local match only to the extent that the value of these services is reported as a contra account for 
expense.  Contributed services of a paid employee of the transit service claimant or another 
entity shall be valued at a rate not to exceed the hourly wage of that employee for the number of 
hours that can be verified by the annual independent audit.  Contributed services of a volunteer 
shall be valued at a rate not to exceed the federal minimum wage for the number of hours that 
can be verified by the annual independent fiscal audit. 
 
  The above definition shall apply in lieu of PUC Section 99205.7. 
 
 D. Service Extensions:   The required ratio of local match to operating cost 
prescribed by this resolution shall not apply to an extension of transportation services until two 
years after the end of the fiscal year in which the extension of services was put into operation.  
As used in this section, "extension of transportation services" shall includes additions of 
geographical areas or route miles, or improvements in service frequency or hours of service 
greater than 25 percent of the route total, or the addition of new days of service, and for transit 
service claimants also includes the addition of a new type of service, such as van, taxi, or bus.  
Within 90 days after the end of each year of implementation, the claimant shall submit to MTC a 
report on the extension of public transportation services, including, but not limited to, the area 
served, the revenues generated, and the cost to provide the extended services. 
 
  In addition, for a claimant that is designated a consolidated transportation service 
agency (CTSA), coordination activities undertaken to implement an action plan to meet the 
legislative intent expressed in Section 15951 of the Government Code shall be considered an 
extension of public transportation services.  Such coordination activities are limited to activities 
initiated after designation as a CTSA which include ongoing coordination with non-TDA-funded 
social service transportation services as well as TDA claimants.  Any questions concerning 
whether an activity falls within the above limits shall be resolved by MTC. 

40



3 
Approved January 2012 

The above definition shall apply in lieu of PUC Section 99268.8. 

E. "Community" is defined as a population group sharing common interests within a
geographic area. 

II. General Rules:

A. For Special Transportation Service Claimants:  The maximum contribution of
TDA and STA funds to a special transportation service (as defined above) claimant shall be 90% 
of total operating costs (as defined above).  For any fiscal year, at least 10% of the operating cost 
of a special transportation service shall be provided with local match revenues (as defined 
above). 

B. Other Claimants:  All claimants for TDA Article 4.5 or Article 8 transit funds that
are determined by MTC to not qualify as special transportation services shall be considered as 
providers of general transportation.  The maximum contribution of TDA and STA funds for such 
general transportation shall be 80% of total operating costs (as defined above).  For any fiscal 
year, at least 20% of the operating cost of a general transportation service shall be provided with 
local match revenues (as defined above). 

However, for a transit service claimant providing general transportation in a 
county with a population of 500,000 or less and serving an urbanized area, MTC may set the 
maximum contribution of TDA and STA funds for the service at no more than 85% and the local 
match requirement at not less than 15% if a finding is made pursuant to PUC Section 99268.12. 

C. Noncompliance with Local Match Requirements:  Noncompliance with the above
stated local match provisions during Fiscal Year 1983-84 1986-87 or future fiscal years shall 
result in a reduction in the claimant's eligibility to receive TDA and STA by the amount of the 
difference between the required local match and the actual local match, as prescribed by PUC 
Section 99268.9 and 21 Cal. Admin. Code Section 6633.9. 

D. Fare Coordination:  Comparable fares shall be charged for comparable services
throughout each county. 

E. Separability:  If a claimant is responsible for more than one type or area of
service, the claimant may request that these rules may be applied separately or collectively to the 
services provided by the claimant.  However, quarterly and annual reports shall be submitted for 
each service. 

F. Maximum Allocation of TDA Article 4.5 Funds:  It is MTC policy that, pursuant
to PUC Code Section 99233.7, 5 percent of the funds available shall be allocated, in those 
counties with eligible claimant(s), for community transit purposes.  Unused funds made available 
for Article 4.5 purposes in one year shall be reserved in the Local Transportation Fund for use in 
subsequent years for Article 4.5 purpose 

41



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
Resolution 21-04, Revised, approving Amendment No. 12 to the NVTA Joint Power 
Agreement 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 21-04, 
Revised (Attachment 1) approving Amendment No. 12 to the NVTA Joint Power 
Agreement (JPA) (Attachment 2).  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The NVTA Board approved releasing modifications for circulation to the JPA member 
agencies at its November 18th, 2020 meeting. The Board initially approved the ratified 
changes at its January 20, 2021 meeting.  Subsequent to that meeting, staff learned that 
the County of Napa had not yet approved Amendment No. 12 the JPA.  The County of 
Napa originally sought to approve the Amendment on December 20, 2020, but County 
counsel pulled the item from the Board of Supervisor’s agenda requesting clarification.  
Subsequently, the Board of Supervisors approved the Amendment at its February 23, 
2021 meeting.  Resolution 21-04, Revised, addresses this oversight.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None  
  

42



 

March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director of Administration, Finance and Policy 

(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 21-04, Revised, Approving Amendment No. 12 to the 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Joint Powers Authority  

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 21-04, 
Revised, (Attachment 1) approving Amendment No. 12 to the NVTA Joint Power 
Agreement (JPA) (Attachment 2)  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The NVTA board unanimously approved modifications in Amendment No. 12 at its 
November Board meeting, and released it for circulation among the JPA member 
agencies.  Since then, the proposed JPA amendment modifications have been approved 
by JPA member agency governing boards.  The NVTA Board subsequently approved 
JPA Amendment 12 at its January 20, 2021 meeting.   
 
Staff incorrectly assumed all member jurisdictions approved the Amendment prior to the 
January 20t, 2021 Board of Directors meeting.  The County of Napa originally sought to 
approve the Amendment on December 20, 2020, but county counsel pulled the item from 
the Board of Supervisors’ (BOS) agenda requesting additional information.  
Subsequently, the BOS approved the Amendment at the February 23, 2021 meeting.  
Resolution 21-04, Revised corrects the approval dates.    
 
 
 

43

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA Agenda Letter                    Wednesday, March 17, 2021 
Agenda Item 9.4 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The board could reject Amendment 12, however, Amendment 12, in part, clarifies the 
language to allow NVTA to use Transportation Development Act funds to underwrite debt 
and memorializes JPA member contributions.  These changes are required to move 
forward on the Vine Transit Maintenance Facility financing.  
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently.   Refinements to the JPA will provide assurances 
to financial institutions that the agency’s structure is sound and assets are adequate to 
meet its debt obligations.    
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Resolution No. 21-04, Revised 
(2) Amendment No. 12 to Joint Powers Agreement of the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority (clean copy) 
 
 

44



 
 

RESOLUTION No. 21-04, REVISED 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 12 TO THE JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (the “NVTA”) is a joint 
powers agency created by the Member Jurisdictions to provide coordinated transportation 
planning and transportation services within the County of Napa; and  
 

WHEREAS, the NVTA wishes to clarify matters of financial solvency if the agency 
elects to pursue indebtedness obligations; and 

  
WHEREAS, the NVTA approved the release of Amendment No. 12 to its members 

on November 18th 2020; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Calistoga approved Amendment No. 12 on December 1st, 

2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Napa approved Amendment No. 12 on December 15th, 

2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of St. Helena approved Amendment No. 12 on December 8th, 

2020; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Yountville approved Amendment No. 12 on December 
1st, 2020; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Napa approved Amendment No. 12 on February 15, 

2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of American Canyon approved Amendment No. 12 on 
January 19th 2021; and 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the NVTA Board approves, and authorizes 

the NVTA Board Chair to execute, Amendment No. 12 to the Joint Powers Agreement, 
approving the modifications of Napa Valley Transportation Authority Joint Powers 
Agreement,  
 
Passed and Adopted the 17th day of March, 2021. 
 
 
________________________ 
Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Chair        Ayes 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 

March 17, 2021 

45



 
Resolution No. 21-04, Revised 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 
                  Nays: 
 
 
 
                  Absent: 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 

46



 

JPA- Amendment No. 12 1 

AMENDMENT NO.  12 
TO THE JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 

FOR THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 
(ALSO KNOWN AS NAPA COUNTY AGREEMENT NO. 3061; CITY OF NAPA 

AGREEMENT NO. 6147;  CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON RESOLUTION NO. 92-
33/AGREEMENT NO. 95-15;  TOWN OF YOUNTVILLE RESOLUTION. NO. 868; 

CITY OF ST. HELENA RESOLUTION NO. 91-32; CITY OF CALISTOGA 
RESOLUTION NO. 91-19) 

 
 

 THIS AMENDMENT NO.  12 TO THE JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY(the “Agreement”) is entered into as 
of the effective date determined under  Section 3, below, by and between the COUNTY 
OF NAPA, CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON, CITY OF NAPA, TOWN OF YOUNTVILLE, 
CITY OF ST. HELENA, and CITY OF CALISTOGA (“Member Jurisdictions”); 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (“NVTA”) is a joint powers 
agency created by the Member Jurisdictions to provide coordinated transportation 
planning and transportation services, among other duties, within the County of Napa; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Member Jurisdictions desire to amend the Agreement to update 
its provisions, including but not limited to  clarifying certain provisions concerning bonding 
and other types of debt financing, updating the powers to be exercised by the NVTA,  
providing for Member Jurisdiction membership fees and making other minor corrections: 
 

TERMS 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE MEMBER JURISDICTIONS agree as follows: 
 
 1. The foregoing Recitals are true and correct. 
 
 2. The terms of the Agreement are hereby amended to read in full as set forth 
in Attachment “A”, attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. 
 
 3. This Amendment No. 12 and the attached provisions of Attachment “A” shall 
become effective on the date the documents have been ratified by all of the Member 
Jurisdictions.  This Amendment may be signed in counterparts by the parties hereto and 
shall be valid and binding as if fully executed all on one copy. 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 

March 17, 2021 

47



 

JPA- Amendment No. 12 1 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment No. 12 to the Joint Powers Agreement 
creating the Napa Valley Transportation Authority was executed by the Member 
Jurisdictions through their duly-authorized representatives as noted below: 
 
COUNTY OF NAPA 
 
 
By:  __________________________  Date:  ___________________________ 
ALFREDO PEDROZA, Chair 
Napa County Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
JOSE LOUIE VALDEZ    Thomas Zeleny 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors   Deputy Napa County Counsel 
 
 
By:  __________________________  By:  ____________________________ 
 
 
 
CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  Date: ___________________________ 
LEON GARCIA, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
CHERRI WALTON     WILLIAM D. ROSS 
American Canyon Interim City Clerk  American Canyon City Attorney 
 
 
By:  _________________________  By:  _________________________ 

48



 

JPA- Amendment No. 12 1 

CITY OF NAPA 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  Date: _________________________ 
SCOTT SEDGLEY, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
TIFFANY CARRANZA    DAVID C. 
Napa City Clerk     Napa Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  By:  ____________________________ 
 
 
 
TOWN OF YOUNTVILLE 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  Date: ___________________________ 
JOHN F. DUNBAR, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
MICHELLE DAHME     GARY BELL 
Yountville Town Clerk    Yountville Town Attorney 
 
 
By: ___________________________  By:  ____________________________ 
 
 
 
CITY OF ST. HELENA 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  Date: ___________________________ 
GEOFF ELLSWORTH, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
CINDY TZAFOPOULOS    ETHAN WALSH 
St. Helena City Clerk    St. Helena City Attorney 
 
 
By:  __________________________  By:  ____________________________ 

49



 

JPA- Amendment No. 12 1 

CITY OF CALISTOGA 
 
 
By:  ___________________________  Date: _________________________ 
CHRIS CANNING, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
MARNI RITTBURG     MICHELLE KENYON 
Calistoga City Clerk     Calistoga City Attorney 
 
 
By:  _________________________  By:  _________________________ 
 
 
 

50



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 iii 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, A JOINT POWERS AGENCY 
JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
SECTION 1.  FORMATION 
 1.1 Creation and Name.  
 
SECTION 2.  PURPOSE 
 2.1 General.  
 2.2 Chapter 2.6 Compliance Not Included in Purpose. 
 2.3 Intentionally omitted. 
 2.4 Preparation of County Transportation Plan. 
 2.5 Exercise of Common and Additional Powers.  
  
 
SECTION 3.  ASSUMPTION OF CMA CONTRACTS 
 3.1 Assumption of CMA and NCTPA Contracts. 
 3.2 Delegation of Contract Responsibilities of CMA Manager and NCTPA 

Manager. 
 
SECTION 4.  ORGANIZATION 
 4.1 Composition. 
 4.2 Principal Office. 
 4.3 Governing Board. 
  4.3.1 Appointment, Replacement and Voting Power of NVTA Board 

 Members (“Members”).  
   (a) Voting Members. 
   (b) Non-Voting Member Representing the PCC. 
   (c) Vacancies. 
   (d) Composition of Members. 
   (e) Voting Power of Members. 
   (f) Alternate Members. 
  4.3.2 Compensation. 
 4.4 Advisory Committees. 
  4.4.1 Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). 
  4.4.2 Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC). 
 4.4.3 Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC). 
  4.4.4 Other Advisory Committees. 
 4.4.5 Compliance with Maddy Act. 
 4.4.6 Compliance with Brown Act. 

51



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 iii 

SECTION 5.  POWERS 
 5.1 General.  

5.2 Approved Powers. 
 
SECTION 6. PERSONNEL AND ADMINISTRATION 
 6.1   Employees. 
 6.2 Executive Director.   
  6.2.1 General. 
 6.2.2 Filings with Secretary of State. 
 6.3 Treasurer.  
 6.3.1 General. 
 6.3.2 Bond. 
 6.3.3 Compensation. 
 6.4 Auditor-Controller.  
 6.4.1 General. 
 6.4.2 Custodian of Property; Bond. 
 6.4.3 Compensation. 
 
SECTION 7.  DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 7.1 Intentionally omitted. 
 7.2 Coordination of Transportation Systems.  
 7.3 Coordination of Transportation and Land Use Management.  
 7.4 Countywide Transportation Plans.  
 7.5 Submission of Funding Applications and Claims.  
 7.6 Intermodal Policies and Programs. 
 7.7 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Claims for Transit and 
Paratransit Services.  
 7.8 Consolidated Transit Services Agency. 
 7.9 Overall Program Manager (AB 434).  
 7.10 Deliberative Body.   
 7.11 Other Duties and Responsibilities. 
 
SECTION 8.  FINANCE 
 8.1 Fiscal Year.  
 8.2 Budget. 
 8.3 Revenues.  
  8.3.1 General. 
  8.3.2 Approval Required for Member Jurisdiction Contributions. 
  8.3.3 Transportation Funds.  
  8.3.4 Standards for Use of TDA Funds. 
 8.4 Accountability.  
  8.4.1 Accountable to Member Jurisdictions. 
 8.4.2 Annual Financial Audit.  
 8.5 Debts, Liabilities and Obligations.   
 8.5.1 General. 

52



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 iii 

 8.5.2 Liability.  
   (a) Primary Liability.  

(b) Insurance. 
   (c) Contribution by Member Jurisdictions. 
 
SECTION 9.  RULES OF CONDUCT 
 9.1 Bylaws. 
 9.2 Quorum. 
 9.3 Adjournment of Meetings 
 9.4 Brown Act.  
 
SECTION 10.  NOTICES 
 10.1 Method. 
 10.2 Addresses for Notice. 
 
SECTION 11.  ASSIGNMENT, WITHDRAWAL AND TERMINATION 
 11.1 Assignment. 
 11.2 Withdrawal. 
 11.3 Termination. 
 11.4 Disposition of Assets. 
 
SECTION 12.  AMENDMENTS 
 12.1 Method of Amendment.  
 
SECTION 13.  WAIVER 
 13.1 Limitation. 
 
SECTION 14.  SEVERABILITY 
 14.1 General. 
 
SECTION 15.  SECTION HEADINGS 
 15.1 Effect.  
 
SECTION 16.  APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE 
 16.1 Applicable Law. 
 16.2 Venue for Disputes. 
 
SECTION 17.  NO RIGHTS CREATED IN THIRD PARTIES 
 
SECTION 18.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

53



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

 
NAPA VALLEY TRANPORTATION AUTHORITY, A JOINT POWERS AGENCY 

JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT 
 

SECTION 1.  FORMATION 
 
1.1 Creation and Name.  The County of Napa, the Cities of Napa, St. Helena, 

Calistoga, American Canyon, and the Town of Yountville (hereinafter referred to 
as “Member Jurisdictions”), pursuant to Article 2 of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 
1 (commencing with section 6500) of the California Government Code, do hereby 
form, establish and create a joint powers agency to be known as ”Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority,” hereinafter referred to as “NVTA” which shall constitute 
a public entity separate and distinct from the Member Jurisdictions, and the new 
name of which shall supersede and replace the prior name of the agency, the Napa 
County Transportation and Planning Agency (“NCTPA”) and any other prior name 
by which the agency was known in the past, including Congestion Management 
Agency (“CMA”). 

 
SECTION 2.  PURPOSE 
 
2.1 General.  NVTA is formed to serve as the countywide transportation planning body 

for the incorporated and unincorporated areas within Napa County, and as an 
advisory body for countywide deliberations on land-use, demographics, economic 
development, community development, and environmental issues, which 
purposes shall include conducting in a coordinated and more simplified way 
countywide: 

 
(a) Transportation policy development and planning activities, including those 
relating to transit on both a short-term and long-term basis and within an intermodal 
policy framework; improving transit services; providing coordinated and more 
competitive input to the region’s transportation planning and funding programs; 
and performing such other transportation related duties and responsibilities as the 
Member Jurisdictions may delegate to NVTA by this Agreement or amendment 
thereto; and 

 
(b) Advisory deliberations on land-use, demographics, economic development, 
community development, and environmental issues. Any such deliberations may 
result in advisory recommendations only, and such recommendations shall not be 
binding on any Member Jurisdiction. 

 
2.2 Chapter 2.6 Compliance Not Included in Purpose.  It is the intention of the 

Member Jurisdictions in executing the Agreement to exempt Napa County and the 
Member Jurisdictions from the requirements of Chapter 2.6 of Division 1 of Title 7 
(commencing with Government Code section 65088) pertaining to congestion 
management planning, as permitted by Government Code section 65088.3.  For 

54



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

this reason, compliance with Chapter 2.6 shall not be deemed to be a purpose of 
NVTA. 

 
2.3 Intentionally omitted.   
 
2.4 Preparation of County Transportation Plan.  The purposes of NVTA shall 

include delegation by the County of Napa to NVTA of the County’s authority under 
Government Code section 66531 to prepare and submit to the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) a county transportation plan for the 
incorporated and unincorporated territory of Napa County which shall include 
consideration of the planning factors included in Section 134 of the federal 
Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991, as such may be 
amended from time to time. 

 
2.5 Exercise of Common and Additional Powers.  The purposes of NVTA shall 

include establishment of NVTA as an independent joint powers entity to enable the 
Member Jurisdictions not only to exercise jointly the common powers of the 
Member Jurisdictions set forth in Section 2.1 but also to exercise such additional 
powers as are conferred by Section 5 of this Agreement or by the Government 
Code upon all joint powers agencies. 

 
SECTION 3.  ASSUMPTION OF CMA AND NCTPA CONTRACTS 
 
3.1 Assumption of CMA and NCTPA Contracts.  All contracts entered into by the 

agency in the name of CMA or in the name of NCTPA, which were in effect as of 
[,February 17, 2016 shall be assigned to and assumed in the name of NVTA on 
and after that date and all references therein to “CMA,” “Congestion Management 
Agency,” “Napa County Congestion Management Agency,” “NCTPA,” or “Napa 
County Transportation and Planning Authority” shall be deemed to refer to NVTA. 

 
3.2 Delegation of Contract Responsibilities of CMA Manager or NCTPA Manager.  

All references in any CMA or NCTPA contracts assumed by NVTA under Section 
3.1 delegating contract responsibilities to the CMA Manager or to the NCTPA 
Manager shall be deemed to refer, on and after February 17, 2016, to the 
Executive Director of NVTA. 

 
SECTION 4.  ORGANIZATION 
 
4.1 Composition.  NVTA shall be composed of the Member Jurisdictions, to-wit: the 

County of Napa, the Cities of American Canyon, Napa, St. Helena, and Calistoga, 
and the Town of Yountville. 

 
4.2 Principal Office.  The principal office of NVTA shall be established by resolution 

of the NVTA Board. 
 

55



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

4.3 Governing Board.  The powers of NVTA shall be vested in its governing board 
(hereinafter referred to as “NVTA Board”). 

 
4.3.1 Appointment, Replacement and Voting Power of NVTA Board 

Members (“Members”).  
 

(a) Voting Members.  Each voting Member of the NVTA Board shall be 
an elected official of the governing board of the appointing Member 
Jurisdiction. One voting Member from each appointing Member Jurisdiction 
which is a city or town shall be that Member Jurisdiction’s mayor.  Any 
elected official serving as the Napa County representative to the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission shall be one of the voting 
Members appointed by that Member Jurisdiction.  Members shall continue 
to serve as such until they cease to hold their elected positions, are 
removed in the sole discretion of their respective Member Jurisdiction, 
resign or are otherwise removed from or disqualified from holding their 
elected positions as a matter of law or by judgment of a court of competent 
jurisdiction. 

 
(b) Non-Voting Member Representing the PCC.  The non-voting 
Member appointed by NVTA Board upon nomination by the Paratransit 
Coordinating Council (PCC) shall also be a member or alternate member of 
the PCC, selected by and serving at the pleasure of the PCC. 

 
(c) Vacancies.  Except for a vacancy in the non-voting position 
appointed by the NVTA Board under subsection (b), vacancies on the NVTA 
Board shall be filled, to the extent practicable, by the respective Member 
Jurisdictions within sixty (60) days of the occurrence thereof.  NVTA and the 
NVTA Board shall be entitled to rely upon written notice from the clerk of 
the governing board of the Member Jurisdiction as conclusive evidence of 
the appointment and removal of all Members and their alternates. 

 
(d) Composition of Members.  The composition of the Members of 
the NVTA Board shall be as follows: 

 
Appointing Entity   Number of Members 
 
City of American Canyon   2 
 
City of Calistoga    2 
 
City of Napa     2 
 
City of St. Helena    2 
 

56



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

Town of Yountville    2 
 
County of Napa    2 
 
NVTA Board (nominated by   1 
Paratransit Coordinating Council) 
 

 
(e) Voting Power of Members.  The voting power of the Members of 
the NVTA Board shall be as follows: 
 

(1) On all matters concerning powers under Section 5.2 
subsections (a) through (q), inclusive: 

 
Appointing Entity   Voting Power 

 
City of American Canyon  4 (each Member has two votes) 
 
City of Calistoga   2 (each Member has one vote) 
 
City of Napa 10 (each Member has five votes) 
 
City of St. Helena   2 (each Member has one vote) 
 
Town of Yountville   2 (each Member has one vote) 
 
County of Napa 4 (each Member has 2 votes) 

 
NVTA Board (nominated by  0 (non-voting) 
Paratransit Coordinating Council) 

 
(2) On all matters concerning powers under Section 5.2 
subsection (r), each voting Member shall have one vote. 

 
(f) Alternate Members.  Each Member Jurisdiction may, in its 
discretion, appoint alternate(s) for its Members of the NVTA Board.  An 
alternate shall be an elected official of the governing board of the appointing 
Member Jurisdiction.  Any appointed alternate Members may attend in 
place of that jurisdiction’s Member and participate in discussions of the 
NVTA Board in the same manner as the Members, but an alternate of a 
voting Member shall vote only when the Member for whom he or she is an 
alternate is physically absent or cannot vote due to a conflict of interest. 

 

57



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

4.3.2 Compensation.  No compensation shall be received by any Member of the 
NVTA Board unless expressly authorized by unanimous resolution of all of 
the voting Members of the NVTA Board.  

 
4.4 Advisory Committees. 
 

4.4.1 Technical Advisory Committee (TAC).  A single Technical Advisory 
Committee (TAC) shall be appointed by the NVTA Board to advise the 
NVTA Board regarding transit and roadway issues, including planning, 
project, and policy aspects.  The TAC members shall include the Executive 
Director of NVTA, serving ex-officio; a member nominated by the PCC and 
appointed by the NVTA Board; and two members and two alternate 
members from the technical staffs of each of the Member Jurisdictions, 
serving ex-officio as designated by the chief administrative officers of the 
respective Member Jurisdictions. 

 
4.4.2 Active Transportation Advisory Committee.  The Active Transportation 

Advisory Committee (ATAC) shall be appointed by and serve in an advisory 
capacity to the NVTA Board on matters of bicycling and pedestrian issues. 
By-laws and amendments thereto for the ATAC shall be approved by the 
NVTA Board.     

 
4.4.3 Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC).  The Paratransit Coordinating 

Council (PCC) shall be an advisory committee to the NVTA Board and serve 
as the social services transportation advisory council for Napa County 
provided for under Public Utilities Code section 99238.  The PCC shall serve 
as the primary means of advice to the NVTA Board regarding, and 
representation of, the special transportation interests of the disabled and 
elderly, in order to carry out the intent of the State Legislature expressed in 
Public Utilities Code section 99238(d) to avoid duplicative transit advisory 
councils whenever possible. By-laws and amendments thereto for the PCC 
shall be approved by the NVTA Board. 

 
4.4.4 Other Advisory Committees.  The NVTA Board may create such other 

advisory committees, both ad-hoc and standing, as it sees fit.  
 
4.4.5 Compliance with Maddy Act.  When appointing members to the 

committees the NVTA Board shall comply with the provisions of the Maddy 
Local Appointive List Act of 1975, Government Code section 54970 et seq., 
as such has been and may be amended from time to time.   

 
4.4.6 Compliance with Brown Act.  Except for ad hoc committees, all advisory 

committees created pursuant to this Section 4.4 shall be subject to the 
requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code section 54950 
et seq. 

58



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

 
SECTION 5.  POWERS 
 
5.1 General.  NVTA shall have all powers necessary to carry out the purpose of this 

Agreement.  Such powers shall be subject only to the limitations set forth in this 
Agreement, applicable laws and regulations, and such restrictions upon the 
manner of exercising such powers as are imposed by law upon the County of Napa 
in the exercise of similar powers except where specifically authorized otherwise by 
the Joint Exercise of Powers Act, Government Code section 6500 et seq. 

 
5.2 Approved Powers.  The powers of NVTA specifically include but are not limited 

to the following: 
 

(a) To sue and be sued in its own name; 
 

(b) To incur debts, liabilities and obligations; 
 

(c) To employ agents, employees and to contract with third parties for goods 
and services, including but not limited to the services of engineers, planners, 
attorneys, accountants, fiscal agents (including auditors, controllers, and 
treasurers), and providers of transit services; 
 
(d) To acquire, improve, hold, lease and dispose of real and personal property 
of all types; 
 
(e) To undertake the acquisition of real property through the exercise of 
eminent domain in furtherance of transportation and transit related projects in 
accordance with State and Federal laws; 
 
(f) To enact an ordinance for the purpose of adopting the California Uniform 
Construction Cost Accounting Act procedures and establishing an alternative 
method of procuring small construction contracts pursuant to California Public 
Contracts Code sections 22000, et seq, as amended from time to time. 

 
(g) To make and enter into any contracts with any of the Member Jurisdictions 
for goods, services, equipment, or real property; 

 
(h) To assume contracts made by any Member Jurisdiction or made pursuant 
to joint powers agreement between any of the Member Jurisdictions; 

 
(i) To apply for and accept grants, donations, advances and contributions; 

 
(j) To make plans and conduct studies; 

 

59



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

(k) To coordinate efforts with local, regional, state and federal agencies having 
jurisdiction over matters pertaining to transportation (including roads) and transit; 

 
(l) To engage in all activities necessary for NVTA to act as the Abandoned 
Vehicle Abatement Authority for Napa County; 

 
(m) To operate, directly or by contract with any person or entity including any 
Member Jurisdiction, any transit and paratransit services within Napa County in 
whole or in part and, if so, to submit any corresponding claims for funds or 
reimbursement under the Transportation Development Act (TDA), Section 29530 
et seq. of the Government Code, as such may be amended from time to time; 

 
(n) To act as the overall program manager within Napa County for the purpose 
of receiving and reallocating the county’s proportionate share of vehicle 
registration fees collected by the Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
(BAAQMD) under AB 434 (Chapter 807, Statutes of 1991, set forth in Health and 
Safety Code  section 44241 et seq.); 

 
(o) To act as, exercise the powers conferred upon, and fulfill the responsibilities 
of the Consolidated Transportation Service Agency (CTSA) for Napa County as 
that term is defined in Public Utilities Code section 99204.5 as amended from time 
to time, if and when appointed as CTSA by the MTC, such appointment being 
deemed to supersede the appointment of the County of Napa as CTSA; 

 
(p) To invest any funds in the treasury of NVTA that are not required for the 
immediate necessities of NVTA in such manner as the NVTA Board deems 
advisable, in the same manner and upon the same conditions as local agencies 
pursuant to Section 53601, except where otherwise restricted for particular funds 
by conditions imposed by the person or agency which is the source of those funds; 

 
(q) To apply for, expend and allocate all funds related to Transportation 
Development Act Article Three purposes, as set forth in Public Utilities Code 
section 99234, et seq., as amended from time to time. 

 
(r) To act as a countywide advisory deliberative body on issues of land-use, 
demographics, economic development, community development, and 
environmental issues.  Any such deliberations may result in advisory 
recommendations only, and such recommendations shall not be binding on any 
Member Jurisdiction. 
 
(s) To design, construct and operate buildings and facilities of any kind, 
including, without limitation, transit facilities. 

 

60



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

SECTION 6.  PERSONNEL AND ADMINISTRATION 
 
6.1 Employees.  NVTA may appoint, retain and compensate as a charge against the 

funds of NVTA, employees, whether temporary, probationary, limited term or 
permanent and/or may contract with any person or entity, including a Member 
Jurisdiction, for the furnishing of any services, including but not limited to legal, 
financial, accounting, data processing, secretarial, purchasing, and personnel 
services, which are necessary to fulfill the powers, duties and responsibilities of 
NVTA under this Agreement or as necessary to comply with the laws applicable to 
joint powers agencies within the State of California, including but not  limited to the 
services described in Sections 6.2 through 6.4, below.  Where such services are 
provided by employees of a Member Jurisdiction by contract between such 
Member Jurisdiction and NVTA or pursuant to Section 6.3 or 6.4 of this Agreement, 
NVTA and the employing Member Jurisdiction hereby expressly waive any conflict 
of interest or incompatibility of employment created thereby. 

 
6.2 Executive Director.   
 

6.2.1 General.  NVTA shall hire or contract for the provision of the services of an 
Executive Director to serve as the chief administrative officer of NVTA, 
performing management and other duties which shall be described in a job 
description/scope of services approved by resolution of the NVTA Board.  

 
6.2.2 Filings with Secretary of State.  In addition to any other duties assigned 

to the Executive Director or otherwise required by law, the Executive 
Director is hereby authorized to and shall be responsible for filing on behalf 
of NVTA and the NVTA Board all notices required by Government Code 
sections 6503.5 and 53051. 

 
6.3 Treasurer.  
 

6.3.1 General.  The Napa County Treasurer-Tax Collector shall serve as the 
NVTA Treasurer and in that capacity shall be the depository and have 
custody of the funds of NVTA, from whatever source, and shall perform the 
functions described in Government Code section 6505.5 (a) through (e). 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the NVTA Board may retain a certified public 
accountant to serve as NVTA Treasurer in lieu of the Napa County 
Treasurer-Tax Collector. 

 
6.3.2 Bond.  The NVTA Treasurer shall post an official bond in an amount to be 

fixed by the NVTA Board.  The cost of such bond shall be a charge against 
NVTA funds, except that if the NVTA Treasurer is the Napa County 
Treasurer-Tax Collector, the cost of the bond to be borne by NVTA shall be 
that amount which is in excess of the cost of the official bond posted by the 
Napa County Treasurer-Tax Collector for functions unrelated to NVTA. 

61



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

 
6.3.3 Compensation.  Pursuant to Government Code section 6505.5, the Napa 

County Board of Supervisors shall determine the charges to be made 
against NVTA for the services performed by the Napa County Treasurer-
Tax Collector for NVTA which shall be a charge against NVTA funds.  If the 
NVTA Board retains a certified public accountant to be NVTA Treasurer, the 
compensation of the NVTA Treasurer shall be determined by the NVTA 
Board and shall be a charge against NVTA funds. 

 
6.4 Auditor-Controller.  
 

6.4.1 General.  The Napa County Auditor-Controller shall serve as the auditor-
controller of NVTA and shall be responsible for drawing warrants to pay 
demands against NVTA when the demands have been approved by the 
NVTA Board or, upon delegation by the NVTA Board, by the Executive 
Director, or designee when acting as purchasing agent for NVTA.   

 
6.4.2 Custodian of Property; Bond.  With the exception of NVTA funds which 

shall be in the custody of the NVTA Treasurer, the Napa County Auditor-
Controller shall, acting as NVTA Auditor-Controller, be the public officer 
designated pursuant to Government Code section 6505.1 to have charge 
of, handle, have access to, and maintain inventory any property of NVTA 
and shall post an official bond in an amount to be fixed by the NVTA Board.  
The cost of such bond, to the extent in excess of the cost of the official bond 
posted by the Napa County Auditor-Controller in connection with functions 
unrelated to NVTA, shall be a charge against NVTA funds. 

 
6.4.3 Compensation.  Pursuant to Government Code section 6505.5, the Napa 

County Board of Supervisors shall determine the charges to be made 
against the NVTA for the services performed by the Napa County Auditor-
Controller for NVTA, which shall constitute a charge against the funds of 
NVTA. 

 
SECTION 7.  DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
7.1 Intentionally omitted. 
 
7.2 Coordination of Transportation Systems.  NVTA shall facilitate the coordination 

of transportation systems operated by or on behalf of the Member Jurisdictions 
with Napa County and adjacent counties. 

 
7.3 Coordination of Transportation and Land Use Management.  NVTA shall 

develop and implement programs and policies for the coordination of 
transportation and related land use management by the Member Jurisdictions.  
Such programs may include, but shall not be limited to, providing analysis of the 

62



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

impacts of land use decisions by the Member Jurisdictions on regional 
transportation systems and the costs associated with mitigating those impacts.  In 
carrying out this responsibility, NVTA shall review and comment on all 
discretionary projects related to transportation under consideration by any of the 
Member Jurisdictions and may review and comment on such discretionary projects 
under consideration by any other public entity which are submitted to NVTA for 
review and comment. 

 
7.4 Countywide Transportation Plans.  NVTA shall develop, adopt, implement, 

update as necessary, and submit to MTC a county transportation plan under 
Government Code section 66531 for the incorporated and unincorporated territory 
of Napa County which shall include consideration of the planning factors included 
in Section 134 of the federal Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 
1991, as such may be amended from time to time. 

 
7.5 Submission of Funding Applications and Claims.  NVTA may submit 

applications and funding claims for transportation related purposes to local 
government, MTC, the State of California, the Federal Government and other 
entities supporting transportation. 

 
7.6 Intermodal Policies and Programs.  NVTA may consider and adopt policies and 

programs for all modes of transportation including but not limited to, transit, 
paratransit, streets and roads, bicycle and pedestrian facilities, airports, marinas, 
harbors, and railroads. 

 
7.7 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Claims for Transit and Paratransit 

Services.  If NVTA operates directly or by contract with any person or entity 
including any Member Jurisdiction the operation of any transit and paratransit 
services within Napa County in whole or in part, NVTA shall be deemed authorized 
by this Agreement to submit any corresponding claims for funds or reimbursement 
under the Transportation Development Act (TDA), Section 29530 et seq. of the 
Government Code, as such may be amended from time to time.   

 
7.8 Consolidated Transit Services Agency.  If, in the future and with the consent of 

all of the Member Jurisdictions and MTC, NVTA is appointed in place of the Napa 
County Board of Supervisors as the consolidated transportation service agency 
(CTSA) for Napa County as that term is defined in Public Utilities Code section 
99204.5, as such may be amended from time to time, then and only then may 
NVTA make claims pursuant to the procedure set forth in Article 7 of Chapter 3 of 
Title 21 of the California Code of Regulations, commencing with 6680. 

 
7.9 Overall Program Manager (AB 434).  NVTA shall act as the overall program 

manager within Napa County for the purpose of receiving and reallocating the 
county’s proportionate share of vehicle registration fees collected by the Bay Area 

63



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) under AB 434 (Chapter 807, Statutes 
of 1991, set forth in Health and Safety Code section 44241 et seq.). 

 
7.10 Deliberative Body.  NVTA shall act as the countywide deliberative body for 

discussions of inter-jurisdictional issues relating to land use, infrastructure, the 
economy and economic development, community development, and 
environmental issues.  No subject may be deliberated unless a majority of votes, 
as determined by Section 4.3.1 (e) (2) of this Agreement, of the Board has 
approved such deliberations.  The NVTA may adopt decisions on such matters, 
but its decisions shall constitute recommendations to the Member Jurisdictions 
only, and shall have no binding effect.  Final decision making on all matters 
affecting Member Jurisdictions shall remain with the governing body of each 
Member, except as provided by Sections 5.2 (a) through (p) inclusive, of this Joint 
Powers Agreement, state or federal law, and applicable regulations. 

 
7.11 Other Duties and Responsibilities.  NVTA shall carry out such other  duties and 

responsibilities as the Member Jurisdictions, by unanimous approval expressed 
through amendment of this Agreement or resolutions of their respective governing 
boards, may delegate to NVTA. 

 
SECTION 8.  FINANCE 
 
8.1 Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year for NVTA shall begin on July 1 and end on June 30. 
 
8.2 Budget.  A budget for NVTA shall be adopted by the NVTA Board for each fiscal 

year prior to June 30 of the preceding fiscal year.  The budget shall include 
sufficient detail to constitute an operating guideline.  It shall also include the 
anticipated sources of funds and the anticipated expenditures to be made for the 
operations of NVTA.  Approval of the budget by the NVTA Board shall constitute 
authority for the Executive Director to expend funds for the purposes outlined in 
the approved budget, subject to the availability of funds on hand as determined by 
the NVTA Auditor-Controller and subject to the constraints imposed upon general 
law counties pertaining to execution of contracts by purchasing agents.  Nothing 
in this Section 8.2 shall be construed to limit the power of the NVTA Board to 
modify the budget in whatever manner it deems appropriate and to instruct the 
Executive Director accordingly. 

 
8.3 Revenues.  
 

8.3.1 Membership Fees.  The Member Jurisdictions shall pay to NVTA an 
annual membership fee (the “Membership Fee”) based on (a) the relative 
populations of the Member Jurisdictions and (b) the relative number of 
road miles served by NVTA in each Member Jurisdiction.  The 
Membership Fee shall be due and payable on or before June 30 of the 
current  fiscal year.  The fees for fiscal year 2021-2022 are shown in the 

64



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

chart below.  NVTA shall adjust the Membership Fees based on changes 
to the Bay Area Consumer Price Index every two years concurrently with 
NVTA’s biennial budget cycle, provided that the total Membership Fees 
assessed to the Member Jurisdictions shall not be reduced below 
$250,000 until all bonds or other instruments of indebtedness issued or 
entered into by NVTA, if any, have been paid in full. 

 
Member Jurisdiction 

 
Membership Fee 
(FY 2021-2022) 

 

Weighted Average 

City of Napa $109,480 43.79% 
Napa County $91,841 36.74% 
City of American Canyon $27,820 11.13% 
Town of Yountville $3,905 1.56% 
City of St. Helena $9,666 3.87% 
City of Calistoga $7,288 2.92% 

Total $250,000 100% 
   

 
8.3.2 Approval Required for Changes to Membership Fee Apportionment.  

No change shall be made to the apportionment of Membership Fees among 
the Member Jurisdictions (as set forth in the “Weighted Average” column of 
the Membership Fee chart shown in Section 8.3.1, above) unless such 
change in apportionment has been first approved by the legislative bodies 
of all of the Member Jurisdictions. 

 
8.3.3 Transportation Funds.  In order to carry out the transportation duties and 

responsibilities of this Agreement, NVTA shall be empowered to claim all 
TDA funds under Articles 4, 4.5 and/or 8 of Chapter 4 of the Public Utilities 
Code apportioned within Napa County by the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission. All TDA funds will be used for purposes allowed under TDA 
regulations with the exception of those funds for streets and roads, Section 
99400(a) of the Public Utilities Code.  All TDA funds claimed by NVTA shall 
be used at the sole discretion of the NVTA Board of Directors only for 
transportation, transit, paratransit services, related capital improvements 
and payment of related debt obligations.  TDA funds apportioned or 
allocated under Section 99233.3 are not subject to this agreement.  Member 
Jurisdictions endorse a single apportionment by MTC under Sections 
99233.8 and 99233.9 of the Public Utilities Code to the NVTA on behalf of 
the jurisdictions of Napa County.  If apportionment under Sections 99233.8 
and 99233.9 of the Public Utilities Code are made to any Member 
Jurisdiction, the NVTA is authorized to claim all such apportionments for 
transit purposes without further action by the Member Jurisdiction.  Funds 
available pursuant to Section 99313.6, excluding funds apportioned or 
allocated under Section 99314.3, shall be claimed solely by the NVTA for 

65



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

transit purposes.  No Member Jurisdiction shall claim funds apportioned or 
allocated under Section 99313.6, excluding funds apportioned or allocated 
under Section 99314.3. 

 
8.3.4 Standards For Use of TDA Funds.  Every two years, the NVTA will 

prepare and adopt a Short Range Transit Plan (“SRTP”).  As warranted, at 
the discretion of the NVTA Board, the SRTP may be updated annually.  The 
NVTA Board will adopt the SRTP and any updated SRTP.  The SRTP shall 
provide the basis for evaluating what services are necessary and where 
services will be provided.   

 
8.4 Accountability.  
 

8.4.1 Accountable to Member Jurisdictions.  NVTA shall be strictly 
accountable to the Member Jurisdictions for all receipts and disbursements 
of NVTA. 

 
8.4.2 Annual Financial Audit.  The NVTA Board shall cause an annual financial 

audit to be prepared and filed to the extent required by Government Code 
section 6505. 

 
8.5 Debts, Liabilities and Obligations. 
 

8.5.1 General.   
 

 (a) Obligation and Assignment of Debt.  The debts, liabilities, and 
obligations of NVTA shall be solely the obligation of NVTA and not the 
debts, liabilities, and obligations of the Member Jurisdictions or their 
respective officers or employees. However, nothing in this Agreement shall 
prevent any Member Jurisdiction from separately contracting for, or 
assuming responsibility for, specific debts, liabilities, or obligations of NVTA, 
provided that both the NVTA Board and that Member Jurisdiction give prior 
approval of such contract or assumption. 

 
 (b) Advance Notice of Debts.  NVTA will provide notice to the NVTA Board 

of Directors at their next regular or special meeting prior to submission of a 
formal application for long term debt where debt payments are expected to 
exceed one year.  This notice provision shall not apply to applications for or 
extensions to lines of credit. 

 
8.5.2 Liability. 

 
(a) Primary Liability.  If liability is imposed upon NVTA by a court of 
competent jurisdiction by reason of negligent or willful acts or omissions of 
NVTA or any of its officers, employees, agents, volunteers, or contractors, 

66



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

any resulting monetary judgment against NVTA shall be paid first from the 
discretionary funds of NVTA or, if the liability arose from the actions of a 
contractor, contribution shall be sought from the contractor. 

 
(b) Insurance.  To comply with subsection (a), above, NVTA shall obtain 
and maintain in force during the life of this Agreement insurance for errors 
and omissions, general liability, and vehicle liability in amounts deemed by 
the NVTA Board to be sufficient to fully cover NVTA, its officers, employees, 
board members, and agents, and the Member Jurisdictions for any 
reasonably foreseeable losses. Where services are provided by contract to 
NVTA, the contract shall require the contractor to obtain insurance sufficient 
to hold NVTA and the Member Jurisdictions harmless and indemnify them 
against any claims for liability arising from the provision of the services. The 
cost of such coverage, whether obtained directly by NVTA or as any 
increased in the contract price for services obtained under contract, shall 
be a charge against NVTA funds. 

 
SECTION 9.  RULES OF CONDUCT 
 
9.1 Bylaws.  The NVTA Board may from time to time adopt bylaws for the conduct of 

the affairs of NVTA and the NVTA Board, provided such Rules of Conduct are not 
inconsistent with this Agreement. 

 
9.2 Quorum.  A majority of the voting power and seven (7) of the twelve (12) voting 

members (or their alternates) of the NVTA Board shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business at any meeting of the NVTA Board.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, if a quorum is present at the commencement of the meeting, the 
affirmative vote of a majority of the voting power of the NVTA Board shall constitute 
the act of the NVTA Board even if, at the time of such vote, less than seven voting 
members (or their alternates) are present. 

 
9.3 Adjournment of Meetings.  Any meeting of the NVTA Board, whether or not a 

quorum is present, may be adjourned \by a vote of the majority of the voting 
members (or their alternates) present or, if no voting members or their alternates 
are present, may be adjourned by the person appointed to serve as Clerk or 
Secretary of the NVTA Board. 

 
9.4 Brown Act.  All meetings of the NVTA Board shall comply with the requirements 

of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code section 54950 et seq.). 
 
SECTION 10.  NOTICES 
 
10.1 Method.  All notices which any Member Jurisdiction or NVTA may wish to give in 

connection with this Agreement shall be in writing and served by personal delivery 
during business hours at the principal office of the Member Jurisdiction or NVTA 

67



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

to an officer or person apparently in charge of that office, or by deposit in the United 
States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to the Member Jurisdiction or NVTA 
at its principal office or to such other address as the Member Jurisdiction or NVTA 
may designate from time to time by written notice to NVTA and each of the parties.  
Service of notice shall be deemed complete on the day of personal delivery (or 24 
hours after such delivery for notice of special meetings) or three (3) days after 
mailing if deposited in the United States mail. 

 
10.2 Addresses for Notice.  Until changed by written notice to NVTA and the Member 

Jurisdictions, notices under this Agreement shall be delivered to the following 
addresses: 

 
 NVTA:     Executive Director 
       Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
       625 Burnell Street 
       Napa, California  94559-3420 
 
 COUNTY OF NAPA:   Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
       County Administration Building 
       1195 Third Street, Room 310 
       Napa, California 94559 
 
 CITY OF AMERICAN CANYON:  American Canyon City Clerk 
       4381 Broadway Street, Suite 201 
       American Canyon, California 94503 
 
 CITY OF NAPA:    Napa City Clerk 
       955 School Street 
       Napa, California 94559 
 
 TOWN OF YOUNTVILLE:   Yountville Town Clerk 
       6550 Yount Street 
       Yountville, California 94599 
 
 CITY OF ST. HELENA:   St. Helena City Clerk 
       1480 Main Street 
       St. Helena, California  94574 
 
 CITY OF CALISTOGA:   Calistoga City Clerk 
       1232 Washington Street 
       Calistoga, California 94515 
 

68



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

SECTION 11.  ASSIGNMENT, WITHDRAWAL AND TERMINATION 
 
11.1 Assignment.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 

the permitted successors and assigns of the Member Jurisdictions, except that no 
Member Jurisdiction shall assign any of its rights under this Agreement except to 
a duly-formed public entity organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
California and then only when approved by amendment of this Agreement. 

 
11.2 Withdrawal.  A Member Jurisdiction may withdraw from NVTA without the consent 

of the other Member Jurisdictions by giving no less than ninety (90) days prior 
written notice to the NVTA Board.  A Member Jurisdiction may withdraw from NVTA 
at any time with the written consent of all of the other Member Jurisdictions 
contained in an amendment of this Agreement.  A Member Jurisdiction electing to 
withdraw prior to termination of the Agreement pursuant to Section 11.3 shall not 
be entitled to share in the distribution of assets provided for in Section 11.3.  This 
provision shall not be effective and no Member Jurisdiction may withdraw from 
NVTA until all bonds or other instruments of indebtedness issued or entered into 
by NVTA, if any, have been paid in full. 

 
11.3 Termination.  The Agreement shall continue in effect until terminated.  The 

Agreement may be terminated at any time and NVTA dissolved with the written 
consent of the majority of the then-existing Member Jurisdictions representing a 
majority of the votes on the NVTA Board.  Such consent shall be expressed in 
duly-authorized resolutions of the Member Jurisdictions.  This provision shall not 
be effective so long as any bonds or other indebtedness of NVTA are outstanding 
and unpaid, or funds are not otherwise set aside for the payment or redemption 
thereof in accordance with the terms of the bonds or other indebtedness and the 
documentation relating thereto.   

 
11.4 Disposition of Assets.  In the event of termination of the Agreement and 

dissolution of NVTA, any remaining assets of NVTA shall be sold or, if sale is 
prohibited under the terms of original acquisition, returned to or otherwise disposed 
of at the direction of the party or persons from whom they were obtained.  After all 
liabilities, encumbrances and liens have been paid, the proceeds of such sales 
shall be allocated proportionately to the Member Jurisdictions based upon their 
respective populations as determined by the latest California State Department of 
Finance population figures.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in accordance with 
Government Code section 6512, any funds remaining at the time of termination 
which were contributed by the Member Jurisdictions shall be returned to the 
Member Jurisdictions in proportion to the contributions made. 

 
SECTION 12.  AMENDMENTS 
 
12.1 Method of Amendment.  Amendments to this Agreement shall be made only with 

the written consent of all then-existing Member Jurisdictions without regard to 

69



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

voting power on the NVTA Board.  So long as any bonds or other indebtedness of 
NVTA are outstanding and unpaid, or funds are not otherwise set aside for the 
payment or redemption thereof in accordance with the terms of the bonds or other 
indebtedness and the documentation relating thereto, this Joint Powers 
Agreement shall not be amended, modified or otherwise revised, changed or 
rescinded, unless the NVTA and Member Jurisdictions have first complied with (i) 
the procedures required to amend any indenture for existing Bonds, or (ii) the 
terms of other indebtedness, as applicable. 

 
SECTION 13.  WAIVER 
 
13.1 Limitation.  Waiver by any Member Jurisdiction of breach of any provision of this 

Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other breach of such provision or 
of any other provision of this Agreement, nor shall failure to enforce any provision 
hereof operate as a waiver of such provision or of any other provision. 

 
SECTION 14.  SEVERABILITY 
 
14.1 General.  Should any part, term or provision of this Agreement be decided by a 

final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any 
State or federal law or regulation or any applicable local ordinance or otherwise be 
unenforceable or ineffectual, the validity of the remaining parts, terms and 
provisions shall not be affected. 

 
SECTION 15.  SECTION HEADINGS 
 
15.1 Effect.  All section numbers and headings contained in this Agreement are for 

convenience and reference only and are not intended to define or limit the scope 
of any provision of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 16.  APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE 
 
16.1 Applicable Law.  The rights, obligations, duties and liabilities of NVTA and of the 

Member Jurisdictions under this Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with 
and governed by the law of the State of California. 

 
16.2 Venue for Disputes.  Venue for any action filed by any Member Jurisdiction under 

state law to enforce this Agreement or any provision thereof shall be in the courts 
of Napa County.  Venue for any action filed by any Member Jurisdiction under 
federal law or as a federal action shall be in the federal courts for the Northern 
District of California. 

 

70



 

JPA Amendment No. 12 17 

SECTION 17.  NO RIGHTS CREATED IN THIRD PARTIES 
 
17.1 No Rights for Third Parties.  The parties to this Agreement hereby expressly 

agree that it is not the intent of the parties to create, and this Agreement shall not 
be deemed or construed to create any third party beneficiaries or otherwise inure 
to the benefit of any third parties. 

 
SECTION 18.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
18.1 Integrated Agreement.  The terms and provisions of this Agreement constitute 

the full and entire agreement between the Member Jurisdictions with respect to the 
matters covered herein.  This Agreement supersedes any and all other 
communications, representations, proposals, understandings or agreements, 
either written or oral, between the Member Jurisdictions with respect to such 
subject matter, including any prior agreement or amendment thereto relating to the 
CMA. 

 

71



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
Third Amendment to Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Agreement No. 17-15 
with Kimley-Horn Associates Inc.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director to execute, and make minor modifications, to the Third Amendment to NVTA 
Agreement No. 17-15 with Kimley-Horn Associates Inc. to extend the term. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The NVTA Board of Directors approved Agreement 17-15 at its July 19, 2017 meeting 
for professional services with Kimley-Horn Associates for the Vine Transit Maintenance 
Facility Architecture & Engineering Design Services.  
  
The maintenance facility is 100% designed, but NVTA did not construct the project on the 
original schedule because of project financing delays.  Amendment three will make the 
contract current and enable Kimley-Horn to complete the remaining tasks including 
construction phase services. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None, there is still $581,304 remaining under the contract for continued service 
performance.   

72



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenck, Program Manager – Public Transit 

(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Third Amendment to Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 
Agreement No. 17-15 with Kimley-Horn Associates Inc. 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director to execute, and make minor modifications, to the Third Amendment to NVTA 
Agreement No. 17-15 with Kimley-Horn Associates Inc. to extend the term. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The NVTA Board of Directors approved Agreement 17-15 at its July 19, 2017 meeting 
for professional services with Kimley-Horn Associates for the Vine Transit Maintenance 
Facility Architecture & Engineering Design Services. The first amendment to this 
contract extended the term of the contract to October 31, 2019. The second amendment 
for $19,622 was to obtain additional services to modify construction documents and 
redesign of the power supply plan to meet current incentive and reimbursement program 
requirements established by the utility provider, Pacific Gas and Electric. 
  
The maintenance facility is 100% designed, but NVTA did not construct the project on the 
original schedule due to financing delays.  The third amendment will make the contract 
current and enable Kimley Horn to complete the remaining tasks including construction 
phase services. 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES 

73

mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov


 
The agency could not extend the term of the Kimley-Horn contract, but NVTA would still 
need to have Architecture and Engineering Services during construction to make sure 
that the facility is built according to the plans. If NVTA ended the Kimley-Horn contract, 
the agency would have to issue an RFP to obtain these services from another firm.  
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 1:  Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, income 
or ability.   
 
Constructing the facility is needed to ensure fueling facilities are ready for electric buses 
currently on order and to ensure public transit services are provided in a safe and effective 
way. 
 
Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently. 
 
Retaining Architecture and Engineering Services during construction is necessary to 
respond to clarifying questions from contractors and make changes in the design if 
necessary during the construction phase.   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Draft Third Amendment to NVTA Agreement No. 17-15 

74



THIRD AMENDMENT TO 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (“NVTA”) 

AGREEMENT NO. 17-15 

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT TO NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
(“NVTA”) AGREEMENT NO. 17-15  hereinafter referred to as “Third Amendment” is made 
and entered into as of this 17th day of March, 2021 between the NAPA VALLEY 
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY  (hereinafter referred to as “NVTA”), and Kimley-Horn 
and Associates, Inc. whose mailing address is 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 300, Sacramento, 
CA 95814, hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR"; 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, in August 2017 NVTA and CONTRACTOR entered into NVTA 
Agreement No. 17-15 (“Agreement”) for architectural and engineering design services for 
the future construction of the Transit Maintenance Facility, Sheehy Court, Napa, 
California; and 

WHEREAS, the First Amendment to Agreement No. 17-15 (“First Amendment”) 
dated October 31, 2018 amended Section 1.(a), Term of the Agreement.  

WHEREAS, the Second Amendment to Agreement No. 17-15 (“Second 
Amendment”) dated January 8, 2019 amended Section 2, Scope of Services, and Section 
3, Compensation, of the Agreement.   

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR stopped performing services under the Agreement as 
the project financing was being established and the Agreement’s term inadvertently lapsed. 

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR services are still necessary to complete the Transit 
Maintenance Facility consistent with the Scope of Services set forth in Exhibit A of the 
Agreement and consistent with the established rates set forth in Exhibit B of the Agreement. 

WHEREAS, NVTA and CONTRACTOR desire to amend the Agreement to further 
extend the term of the Agreement in order for the CONTRACTOR to fulfill and complete the 
scope of services as set forth in the Agreement.   

TERMS 

NOW, THEREFORE, the NVTA and CONTRACTOR agree to amend the Agreement 
as follows: 

1. Section 2, Scope of Service, is amended to extend the term of the Agreement
through October 31, 2023.

75



2. Except as set forth above, the terms and conditions of the Agreement, as amended 
in the First Amendment and the Second Amendment, remain in full force and effect 
as previously approved.    

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment was executed by the parties hereto 
as of the date first above written. 
 
 
“NVTA”      "CONTRACTOR" 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority  KImley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 
 
 
 
By_____________________________  By____________________________  
    KATE MILLER, Executive Director        PETER MEYERHOFER, P.E. 
           Vice President     
                                                                                
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By_____________________________  By____________________________ 
LAURA SANDERLIN 
NVTA Board Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
By____________________________ 
DEEANNE GILLICK 
Sloan Sakai Yeung & Wong LLP 
NVTA General Counsel   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

76



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.6 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Sanjay Mishra, Program Manager – Engineer 

(707) 259-5951 / Email: smishra@nvta.ca.gov  

SUBJECT: Reimbursement Agreement with and Right of Entry to the City of Napa in  
                      order to upgrade its Waterline located at the Sheehy Court Vine 
                      Maintenance Facility site 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director to execute, make modifications to,  and take all actions necessary for a 
reimbursement agreement with the City of Napa (Attachment 1) and grant right of entry 
(Attachment 2) to the City of Napa to upgrade an existing on the planned Vine Bus 
Maintenance Facility site. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
NVTA owns parcels 057-250-025-000 and 057-250-036-000 within the Napa County for 
building the Vine Bus Maintenance Facility. City of Napa has a utility easement across 
the northern edge of parcel 057-250-025-000 which was in existence when NVTA 
purchased the property. The existing 36 inch waterline is old and has a history of failure. 
NVTA and City of Napa are working cooperatively to upgrade a portion of the existing 
waterline facility as a risk avoidance measure. The City of Napa has requested that NVTA 
share 40% or not to exceed $250,000 of the project cost based upon original engineering 
estimates. In addition, NVTA desires to grant a Right of entry to City of Napa and its 
contractors to facilitate construction. 
  
 
 
 

77

mailto:smishra@nvta.ca.gov


FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? Yes, $250,000. It is budgeted as part of the Vine Maintenance 
Facility Construction. 

78



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.6 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Sanjay Mishra, Program Manager – Engineer 

(707) 259-5951 / Email: smishra@nvta.ca.gov 
 

SUBJECT: Reimbursement Agreement with and Right of Entry to the City of 
Napa in order to upgrade its Waterline located at the Sheehy 
Court Vine Maintenance facility site 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director to execute, make modifications to, and take all actions necessary for a 
reimbursement agreement with the City of Napa (Attachment 1) and grant right of entry 
(Attachment 2) to the City of Napa to upgrade an existing waterline located at the planned 
Sheehy Court Vine Bus Maintenance facility site. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
In September of 2016, NVTA purchased two parcels (057-250-036-000 and 057-250-025-
000) in Napa County in the Napa Valley Gateway Business Park.  City of Napa had an 
existing 20 ft. wide water easement across the northern edge of parcel 057-250-025-000 
when NVTA purchased the property. The existing 36 inch waterline is old and has a 
history of failure throughout the system. These failures have resulted in flooding of roads 
and properties.  
As a risk avoidance measure, NVTA and City of Napa are working cooperatively to 
upgrade approximately 868 linear feet (LF) of the waterline located at the northern edge 
of the proposed Sheehy Court Bus maintenance facility site. The City of Napa is 
requesting that NVTA share 40% of this upgrade cost.  The City of Napa has completed 
design and expected to advertise the project for construction this month. The engineers 
cost estimate for this 868LF of waterline upgrade is $800,000.  

79

mailto:smishra@nvta.ca.gov


 
NVTA staff have tentatively agreed, pending Board approval, to fund the project at 40% 
or a not to exceed amount of $250,000 based on the City’s original estimate.   
.  
NVTA will need to grant a Right of Entry to City of Napa and its contractors to facilitate 
construction of this upgrade. 
 
If NVTA and the City execute the agreement, the City of Napa Water Department will 
move forward with the construction of the waterline upgrade which is expected to be 
completed by July 2021. Construction of the Bus Maintenance facility is expected to begin 
in July / Aug 2021. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 

1. The agency could decide not to agree to the Reimbursement Agreement.  This 
action will significantly delay the waterline upgrade work due to City of Napa’s 
budget constraints and priorities.  
 

2. The agency could decide to delay the approval of Reimbursement Agreement. This 
action will delay the available construction window for the waterline upgrade work 
and will result in conflict with the Vine Maintenance Facility construction work. 

 
3. The agency could also decide not to grant the Right of Entry for construction work. 

This action will run the risk of exponentially higher construction cost than current 
estimates. NVTA could also be found at fault during the construction phase of the 
Vine Maintenance Facility which could result in NVTA having to fully fund the entire 
pipe replacement project. 

 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 1:  Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, income 
or ability.   
 
Constructing the facility is needed to ensure maintenance and fueling facilities are ready 
for electric buses currently on order and to ensure public transit services are provided in 
a safe and effective way. 
 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 
 
Attachments:  (1) Reimbursement Agreement 

(2) Right of Entry Permit to City of Napa and its contractors  
 

80



    REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Maintenance Facility Project 

City of Napa Project WTR2018-0014 
Water Pipeline Project in Conjunction with Construction of a new Transit Maintenance Facility 

This Reimbursement Agreement (“Agreement”) by and between the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority, a joint powers authority (“NVTA”) and the City of Napa, a California Charter City and municipal 
corporation (“City”) (each a “ Party” and collectively, the “Parties”) is effective on the Effective Date identified 
on the signature page. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, NVTA has obtained encroachment permits from the City to construct the Vine Transit 
Maintenance Facility (“Maintenance Facility”) on two NVTA-owned parcels (APN 057-250-025 and 057-
250-036) (“NVTA Property”) at the terminus of Sheehy Court (approximately 900 feet west of its intersection
with Devlin Road), in the Napa Valley Gateway Business Park within the unincorporated portion of Napa
County (Encroachment Permits EP19XX-00XX) (the “NVTA Project”); and

WHEREAS, City intends to rehabilitate or replace the City’s water transmission pipeline (“Pipeline”) 
located along and adjacent to the northern perimeter of the Maintenance Facility as detailed on Exhibit A 
attached hereto and incorporated herein, in order to coordinate with NVTA’s construction of the 
Maintenance Facility and extend the useful life of the Pipeline, thereby reducing the likelihood that the 
Pipeline will catastrophically fail in the future (“City Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the City Project will benefit NVTA’s Maintenance Facility by reducing the likelihood of 
catastrophic failure of the City’s pipeline in the immediate vicinity; and 

WHEREAS, as a result of the benefits that NVTA will receive from the City Project, NVTA has 
agreed to pay for its fair-share proportionate cost of the City Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to memorialize the terms and conditions of NVTA’s agreement to 
reimburse the City for its fair-share proportionate cost of the City Project. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, NVTA and City hereby enter into this Agreement on the following terms and 
conditions: 

1. NVTA Reimbursement for City Project Costs.

A. As consideration for the benefits that NVTA will receive from the City Project,
NVTA shall reimburse the City for its fair share proportionate cost of the City Project, which is equal to forty 
percent (40%) of the actual construction costs for the City Project in accordance with the requirements of 
this Section 1. However, in no event shall the amount reimbursed by NVTA to the City pursuant to this 
Agreement exceed $250,000.  

B. Upon completion of the City Project, City shall submit an invoice to NVTA for
reimbursement of NVTA’s fair share proportionate cost of the City Project calculated in accordance with 
Subsection 1.A.  Upon request, City shall provide documentation to NVTA reasonably substantiating the 
construction cost of the City Project. 

C. NVTA shall pay to City the amount set forth in the invoice within sixty (60) days of
the date of the invoice. 

2. Construction and Completion of City Project by City.

81



A. City shall use good faith efforts to complete the City Project no later than  Aug
31,2021 or such later date as agreed to by the parties.   In the event that the City Project is not 
completed by Aug 31, 2021 or such later date agreed to by the parties, City will coordinate with 
NVTA and its contractor to assure that the City Project does not conflict with the construction 
grading work planned on the NVTA Project.  

B. During the construction of the City Project, the City will reasonably coordinate with
NVTA regarding access to the existing City of Napa Water Easement and the NVTA Property. 

3. No Joint Venture.  This Agreement shall not constitute nor create any form of association,
joint venture, partnership or cooperative activity of any nature between NVTA and the City. 

4. Ownership of Project. NVTA and City acknowledge that the Pipeline rehabilitated as part
of the City Project is and will remain the property of the City. 

5. Term. This Agreement shall remain in effect until NVTA pays City for NVTA’s fair share proportionate
cost of the City Project in accordance with this Agreement

6. Notice.  Formal notices, invoice submittals, and communications between NVTA and City
shall be sufficiently given if dispatched by electronic mail correspondence or reputable overnight delivery 
service or delivered personally, to the principal offices of the City and NVTA as set forth below. 

Courier service, including but not limited to Federal Express, shall be considered personal delivery. 

US Postal Service 
City of Napa 
P.O. Box 660 
Napa, California     94559-0660 
Attn:  Victor Gonzalez, Assistant Civil Engineer (Water Division) 

Federal Express 
City of Napa 
1700 Second Street, Suite 100 
Napa, California     94559 
Attn:  Victor Gonzalez, Assistant Civil Engineer (Water Division) 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
625 Burnell Street 
Napa, California     94559 
Attn:  Sanjay Mishra, Project Manager 

Any Notice shall be deemed to have been given on the date of delivery or the date that delivery is refused 
by the addressee, as shown on the return receipt. 

Such written notices, demands, and communications may be sent in the same manner to such other 
addresses as the affected party may from time to time designate by mail as provided in this Section 5. 

City’s Authorized Representative for purposes of this Agreement shall be Phil Brun, Utilities Director.  
NVTA’s Authorized Representative for purposes of this Agreement shall be Kate Miller, Executive Director. 

7. Assignability.  Neither Party to this Agreement shall assign or transfer any interest in this
Agreement, nor the performance of any duties or obligations hereunder, without the prior written consent 
of the other Party, and any attempt by either Party to so assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights, 
duties or obligations arising hereunder shall be void and of no effect. 

82



8. Governing Law and Venue.   The law governing this Agreement shall be that of the State
of California.  In the event that suit shall be brought by either Party to this Agreement, the Parties agree 
that venue shall be exclusively vested in the Superior Court of the County of Napa. 

9. Attorney’s Fees.  If any litigation is commenced to enforce or interpret this Agreement, the
prevailing party is entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses incurred. 

10. Modifications.  This Agreement may not be amended or modified orally. No amendment or
modification of this Agreement is binding unless it is in a writing signed by both parties. 

11. Interpretation.  Each Party has reviewed this Agreement and any question of doubtful
interpretation shall not be resolved by any rule or interpretation providing for interpretation against the 
drafting Party. This Agreement shall be construed as if both Parties drafted it.  The captions and headings 
contained herein are for convenience only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this 
Agreement. 

12. Force Majeure.  Neither Party shall be liable or deemed to be in default for any delay or
failure in performance under this Agreement or for any interruption of services, directly or indirectly, from 
acts of god, civil or military authority, acts of public enemy, war, strikes, labor disputes, shortages of suitable 
parts, materials, labor or transportation, or any similar cause beyond the reasonable control of the Parties. 

13. Prior Agreements and Amendments.  This Agreement, including Exhibit A hereto,
represents the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject matter described in this 
Agreement, and no representation, warranties, inducements or oral agreements have been made by any 
of the Parties except as expressly set forth herein. This Agreement may only be modified by a written 
amendment duly executed by the parties hereto. 

14. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement, or any portion thereof, is found by any
court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable or invalid for any reason, such provision shall be 
severable and shall not in any way impair the enforceability of any other provision of this Agreement. 

15. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each one of which is
deemed an original, but all of which together constitute a single instrument. 

16. Signatures.  The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they
have the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this Agreement on behalf 
of the respective legal entities of NVTA and the City. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

83



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day and 
year first above written. 

CITY OF NAPA,  
a California Charter City: NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION 

AUTHORITY, 
a joint powers authority: 

_________________________________  
(Signature) 

Phil Brun Utilities Director 
(Type name and title) 

ATTEST: By: ___________________________________ 
(Signature) 

_________________________________ 
(Signature) Kate Miller, Executive Director_________ 

(Type name and title) 
Tiffany Carranza, City Clerk 
(Type name and title) By: ___________________________________ 

(Signature) 

COUNTERSIGNED: ___________________________________ 
(Type name and title) 

_________________________________ 
(Signature) 

Annette Heun, Deputy Auditor 
(Type name and title) 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_________________________________ 
(Signature) 

Michael W. Barrett, City Attorney 
(Type name and title) 

84



Exhibit A 
 Location of City Project 

85



RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT 

THIS RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the ______ day of 

_________________________, 2020,by and between NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY, a 

joint powers authority (“NVTA”) and the City of Napa, a California charter city (“City”) (each a “ Party” and 
collectively, the “Parties”). 

RECITALS: 

A. NVTA is the owner of that certain right-of-way located at Sheehy Ct consisting of Napa County
Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 057‐250‐025 and APN 057‐250‐ 036 in the County of Napa, State of
California, depicted in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (“Property”).

B. City intends to repair a section of the City’s water main that was damaged during the 2014 earthquake
(“Work”) and seeks to have temporary access to the approximately 25’ x 868’ section of NVTA’s
Property depicted in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (“Premises”) for
the purpose of establishing a construction laydown area for the Work.

C. City intends to perform the Work during the hours of 9 pm and 6 am.
D. NVTA is agreeable to granting a right-of-entry to the City, City's contractors, subcontractors, officers,

agents and employees, and others acting under its or their authority for those purposes under the
terms and conditions of this Agreement.

AGREEMENT: 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by and between NVTA and City, as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITION OF (NAME). 

For purposes of this Agreement, all references in this agreement to City shall include City, City's contractors, 
subcontractors, officers, agents and employees, and others acting under its or their authority. 

ARTICLE 2 - RIGHT GRANTED; PURPOSE. 

NVTA hereby grants to City the right, during the term hereinafter stated and upon and subject to each and all of 
the terms, provisions and conditions herein contained, to enter upon and have ingress to and egress from the 
Premises for the purpose of performing the Work.   

ARTICLE 3 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED IN EXHIBITS C, D AND E. 

The terms and conditions contained in Exhibit C, Exhibit D and Exhibit E, attached hereto, are hereby made 
a part of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 4 - ALL EXPENSES TO BE BORNE BY CITY; NVTA REPRESENTATIVE. 

A. City shall bear any and all costs and expenses associated with any Work performed by City.

B. City, shall coordinate all of the Work with the following NVTA representative or his or her duly
authorized representative (the "NVTA Representative"):

Kate Miller
Executive Director
Napa Valley Transportation Authority
625 Burnell St.,  Napa, California 94559
kmiller@nvta.ca.gov

86



C. City, at its own expense, shall adequately police and supervise all Work to be performed by City and

shall ensure that the Work is performed in a safe manner as set forth in Section 7 of Exhibit B.  The
responsibility of City for safe conduct and adequate policing and supervision of City's Work shall not be
lessened or otherwise affected by NVTA's approval of plans and specifications involving the Work, or
by NVTA's collaboration in performance of any Work, or by the presence at the Premises of a NVTA
Representative, or by compliance by City with any requests or recommendations made by a NVTA
Representative.

ARTICLE 5 - TERM; TERMINATION. 

A. The grant of right herein made to City shall commence on the date of this Agreement and continue
through the earlier of June 30, 2022 or such time as City has completed the Work on the Premises,
unless sooner terminated as herein provided.  City agrees to notify the NVTA Representative when it
has completed its work on the Premises.

B. This Agreement may be terminated by either party on ten (10) days written notice to the other party.

ARTICLE 6 - CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 

A. Upon request, City will provide NVTA with evidence of self-insurance coverage in the amounts required

by Exhibit C of this Agreement.

B. All insurance correspondence, binders, policies, certificates and/or endorsements shall be sent to the
following address, and shall make reference to this Agreement:

Kate Miller 
Executive Director  
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
625 Burnell St.,  Napa, California 94559 
kmiller@nvta.ca.gov 

ARTICLE 7 - DISMISSAL OF (NAME)'s EMPLOYEE. 

At the request of NVTA, City shall remove from the Premises any employee of City who fails to 
conform to the instructions of the NVTA Representative in connection with the Work on the Premises, 
and any right of City shall be suspended until such removal has occurred.  City shall indemnify NVTA 
against any claims arising from the removal of any such employee from the Premises. 

ARTICLE 9 - CROSSINGS. 

No additional vehicular crossings (including temporary haul roads) or pedestrian crossings over 
NVTA's property shall be installed or used by City without the prior written permission of NVTA. 

ARTICLE 10 - EXPLOSIVES. 

Explosives or other highly flammable substances shall not be stored on the Premises without the prior 
written approval of NVTA. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this agreement in duplicate as of the date first 
herein written. 

87



CITY: 
CITY OF NAPA, a California charter city  

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION 

AUTHORITY 

Joy Eldridge, Utilities Director Kate Miller, Executive Director 

Title 

ATTEST: 

Tiffany Carranza, City Clerk 

(“Effective Date”) 

COUNTERSIGNED: 

Joy Riesenberg, City Auditor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Michael W. Barrett, City Attorney 

88



EXHIBIT A 

TO 

CITY’S RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT 

89



EXHIBIT B 

TO 

CITY'S RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT 

Section 1 NOTICE OF COMMENCEMENT OF WORK 

A. City agrees to notify the NVTA Representative at least ten (10) working days in advance of City commencing
the Work and at least ten (10) working days in advance of proposed performance of any Work by City in which
any person or equipment will be beyond twenty-five (25) feet of existing easement, or will be near enough to
creek and /or adjacent property that any equipment extension (such as, but not limited to, a crane boom) may
extend over. NVTA property is in the flight path of City of Napa airport. City and it’s contractors are required to
abide by all equipment height limitations, noise limitations, light pollution limitations and FAA regulations and
will obtain & maintain permits as needed for the duration of the work.

Section 2 LIMITATIONS AND SUBORDINATION OF RIGHTS GRANTED 

A. The foregoing grant of right is subject and subordinate to the prior and continuing right and obligation of the
NVTA to use and maintain the Premises including the right and power of NVTA to construct, maintain, repair,
renew, use, operate, change, modify or relocate buildings, roadways, signals, communication, fiber optics, or
other wirelines, pipelines and other facilities upon, along or across any or all parts of the Premises, all or any
of which may be freely done at any time or times by NVTA without liability to City or to any other party for
compensation or damages.

B. The foregoing grant is also subject to all outstanding superior rights (including those in favor of licensees and
lessees of the Premises, and others) and the right of NVTA to renew and extend the same, and is made
without covenant of title or for quiet enjoyment.

Section 3 NO INTERFERENCE WITH OPERATIONS OF NVTA AND ITS TENANTS 

A. City shall conduct its operations so as not to interfere with NVTA’s operations, including without limitation, the
operations of NVTA's lessees, licensees or others, unless specifically authorized in advance by the NVTA
Representative.  Nothing shall be done or permitted to be done by City at any time that would in any manner
impair the safety of such operations.  When not in use, City's machinery and materials shall be kept within a
fenced area.

B. NVTA property is in the flight path of City of Napa airport. City and it’s contractors are required to abide by all
equipment height limitations, noise limitations, light pollution limitations and FAA regulations and will obtain &
maintain permits as needed for the duration of the work.

C. Operations of NVTA and work performed by NVTA personnel and delays in the work to be performed by City
caused by such NVTA operations and work are expected by City, and City agrees that NVTA shall have no
liability to City, or any other person or entity for any such delays.  The City shall coordinate its activities with
those of NVTA and third parties so as to avoid interference with NVTA operations.

Section 4 LIENS 

City shall pay in full all persons who perform labor or provide materials for the Work to be performed by City.  
City shall not create, permit or suffer any mechanic's or materialmen's liens of any kind or nature to be created 
or enforced against the Premises for any such work performed.  City shall indemnify and hold harmless NVTA 
from and against any and all liens, claims, demands, costs or expenses of whatsoever nature in any way 
connected with or growing out of such work done, labor performed, or materials furnished.  If City fails to 
promptly cause any lien to be released of record, NVTA may, at its election, discharge the lien or claim of lien 
at City's expense. 

90



Section 5 PERMITS - COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

In the prosecution of the Work, City shall secure any and all necessary permits and shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations and enactments affecting the Work including, without 
limitation, all applicable Federal Transit Administration and Federal Aviation Administration regulations. 

Section 6 SAFETY 

A. Safety of personnel, property and the public is of paramount importance in the prosecution of the Work
performed by City.  City shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety, operations
and programs in connection with the Work.  City shall at a minimum comply with NVTA's safety standards

listed in Exhibit C, hereto attached, to ensure uniformity with the safety standards followed by NVTA's own
forces.  As a part of City's safety responsibilities, City shall notify NVTA if City determines that any of NVTA's

safety standards are contrary to good safety practices.  City shall furnish copies of Exhibit C to each and
every employee before they enter the Premises.

B. Without limitation of the provisions of paragraph A above, City shall keep the Premises free from safety and
health hazards and ensure that employees are competent and adequately trained in all safety and health
aspects of the Work.

C. City shall have proper first aid supplies available on the Premises so that prompt first aid services may be
provided to any person injured on the Premises.  City shall promptly notify NVTA of any U.S. Occupational
Safety and Health Administration reportable injuries.  City shall have a nondelegable duty to control its
employees while they are on the Premises, and to be certain they do not use, be under the influence of, or
have in their possession any alcoholic beverage, drug or other substance that may inhibit the safe
performance of the Work.

Section 7 INDEMNITY 

A. To the extent not prohibited by applicable statute, City shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless NVTA, its
affiliates, and its and their officers, agents and employees ("Indemnified Parties") from and against any and all
loss, damage, injury, liability, claim, demand, cost or expense (including, without limitation, attorney's,
consultant's and expert's fees, and court costs), fine or penalty (collectively, "Loss") incurred by any person
(including, without limitation, any Indemnified Party, City, or any employee of City or of any Indemnified Party)
arising out of or in any manner connected with (i) any Work performed by City, or (ii) any act or omission of
City, City's contractors, subcontractors, officers, agents and employees, and others acting under its or their
authority, or (iii) any breach of this Agreement by City.

B. The right to indemnity under this Section 8 shall accrue upon occurrence of the event giving rise to the Loss,
and shall apply regardless of any negligence or strict liability of any Indemnified Party, except where the Loss
is caused by the sole or active negligence of an Indemnified Party as established by the final judgment of a
court of competent jurisdiction. The sole or active negligence of any Indemnified Party shall not bar the
recovery of any other Indemnified Party.

C. City expressly and specifically assumes potential liability under this Section 8 for claims or actions brought by
City's own employees.  City waives any immunity it may have under worker's compensation or industrial
insurance acts to indemnify NVTA under this Section 8.  City acknowledges that this waiver was mutually
negotiated by the parties hereto.

D. No court or jury findings in any employee's suit pursuant to any worker's compensation act or the Federal
Employers' Liability Act against a party to this Agreement may be relied upon or used by City in any attempt to
assert liability against NVTA.

E. The provisions of this Section 8 shall survive the completion of the Work or the termination or expiration of this
Agreement.

91



Section 8 RESTORATION OF PROPERTY 

In the event NVTA authorizes City to take down any fence of NVTA or in any manner move or disturb any of 
the other property of NVTA in connection with the Work to be performed by City, then in that event City shall, as soon 
as possible and at City's sole expense, restore such fence and other property to the same condition as the same were 
in before such fence was taken down or such other property was moved or disturbed.  City shall remove all of City's 
tools, equipment, rubbish and other materials from the Premises promptly upon completion of the Work, restoring the 
Premises to the same state and condition as when City entered thereon.  Should City fail to do so, within thirty (30) 
days of a request to do so, NVTA shall have the right to do so at the sole cost and expense of City. 

Section 10 WAIVER OF DEFAULT 

Waiver by NVTA of any breach or default of any condition, covenant or agreement herein contained to be kept, 
observed and performed by City shall in no way impair the right of NVTA to avail itself of any remedy for any 
subsequent breach or default. 

Section 11 MODIFICATION - ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

No modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless made in writing and signed by City and NVTA. This 
Agreement and the exhibits attached hereto and made a part hereof constitute the entire understanding between City 
and NVTA and cancel and supersede any prior negotiations, understandings or agreements, whether written or oral, 
with respect to the Work to be performed by City, except as expressly stated otherwise. 

Section 2 ASSIGNMENT – CONTRACTING AND SUBCONTRACTING 

City shall not assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any interest therein, without the written consent of the 
NVTA.  City shall be responsible for the acts and omissions of all its contractors and subcontractors, and shall require 
all its contractors and subcontractors to maintain the insurance coverage required to be maintained by City as provided 
in this Agreement, and to indemnify City and NVTA to the same extent as NVTA is indemnified by City under this 
Agreement. 

92



 

 

EXHIBIT C 

TO 

CITY’S 

RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT 

 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Insurance Provisions For 

 

CITY’s Right of Entry Agreement 

 

 

City shall, at its sole cost and expense, procure and maintain during the course of the Work 

and until the Work on the Premises has been completed and the City has removed all 

equipment and materials from the Premises and has cleaned and restored the Premises to 

NVTA’s satisfaction, the following insurance coverage: 

 

A. Commercial General Liability insurance.  Commercial general liability (CGL) with a limit of 

not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence and a per project aggregate limit of not less than 

$2,000,000.  CGL insurance must  be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 12 04 (or a 

substitute form providing equivalent coverage). 

 

 The policy must also contain the following endorsement, which must be stated on the 

certificate of insurance: 

 Contractual Liability showing “Napa Valley Transportation Authority Property” as the 

Designated Job Site. 

 

B. Business Automobile Coverage insurance.  Business auto coverage written on ISO form 

CA 00 01 (or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage) with a combined single 

limit of not less $1,000,000 for each accident. 

 

 The policy must contain the following endorsements, which must be stated on the certificate 

of insurance: 

 Coverage For NVTA operations showing “Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Property” as the Designated Job Site. 

 

C. Workers Compensation and Employers Liability insurance.  Coverage must include but 

not be limited to: 

 City’s statutory liability under the workers’ compensation laws of the state(s) affected 

by this Agreement. 

 

D. Umbrella or Excess Insurance.  If City utilizes umbrella or excess policies, these policies 

must “follow form” and afford no less coverage than the primary policy. 
 

93



 

EXHIBIT D 

TO 

CITY'S RIGHT OF ENTRY AGREEMENT 

 
 

MINIMUM SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
The term "employees" as used herein refer to all employees of City as well as all employees of any contractor, subcontractor or 
agent of City. 
 

I. Clothing 

 
A. All employees of City will be suitably dressed to perform their duties safely and in a manner that will not 

interfere with their vision, hearing, or free use of their hands or feet. 
 
Specifically, City’s employees must wear: 
 
(i) Waist-length shirts with sleeves. 
(ii) Trousers that cover the entire leg.  If flare-legged trousers are worn, the trouser bottoms must be tied 

to prevent catching. 
(iii) Footwear that covers their ankles and has a defined heel.  Employees working on bridges are 

required to wear safety-toed footwear that conforms to the American National Standards Institute 
(ANSI) and FRA footwear requirements. 

 
B. Employees shall not wear boots (other than work boots), sandals, canvas-type shoes, or other shoes that 

have thin soles or heels that are higher than normal. 
 
C. Employees must not wear loose or ragged clothing, neckties, finger rings, or other loose jewelry while 

operating or working on machinery. 
 

II. General Safety Requirements 
 

A. City shall ensure that all waste is properly disposed of in accordance with applicable federal and state 
regulations. 
 

B. City shall ensure that all employees participate in and comply with a job briefing conducted by the NVTA 
Representative, if applicable.  If any employee has any questions or concerns about the Work, the employee 
must voice them during the job briefing.  Additional job briefings will be conducted during the work as 
conditions, work procedures, or personnel change. 
 

C. All employees must comply with all federal and state regulations concerning workplace safety. 

94



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.7 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for the Following Project: Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority (NVTA) Zero Emission Bus Procurement Project 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 21-
09 (Attachment 1) approving the Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 Low Carbon Transit 
Operations Program (LCTOP) project.   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is eligible to receive funds totaling $167,040 
in FY 2020-21 for the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP).  These funds 
are disbursed on a formula basis by the California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), and are generated 
from Assembly Bill 32 Cap & Trade proceeds. Caltrans requires that recipients provide a 
board approved resolution annually to receive the funds. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

NVTA will receive $167,040 to acquire zero emission buses upon Board approval the 
attached Resolution. 

95



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.7 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director of Administration, Finance and Policy 

(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 21-09 Authorization for the Execution of the 
Certifications and Assurances and Authorized Agent Forms for the 
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for the Following 
Project: Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Zero Emission 
Bus Procurement Project  

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 21-
09 (Attachment 1) approving the Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 Low Carbon Transit 
Operations Program (LCTOP) project.   

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

BACKGROUND 

The Air Resources Board (ARB) approved a new regulation that requires public transit 
providers, like NVTA, with fewer than 100 buses to transition to zero emission buses 
beginning in June of 2023. Early acquisition of zero emission buses prior to the regulation 
going into effect allows NVTA to use certain fund sources to replace its existing fleet with 
zero emission buses that would otherwise be unavailable due to policy restrictions. Those 
funds sources include LCTOP and Hybrid Voucher Incentive Program (HVIP) funds.  This 
approach will significantly reduce the cost to the agency to electrify the Vine Transit fleet.  

The cost of electric buses is roughly 40% more than standard diesel buses, as such, 
competitive fund sources and creative financing are essential to accomplish this unfunded 
mandate.   

96

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


Using the FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 LCTOP grant funds for fleet electrification reduces 
the amount of local Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds that NVTA needs to 
commit to the project.  Table 1 provides a summary of the funding plan and Table 2 shows 
the expenditure plan. 

Table 1:  Funding Plan 
Fund Source Amount 

    LCTOP FY2019-20   299,061 

LCTOP FY2020-21 167,040 

    ARB Hybrid Voucher Incentive Program   150,000 

 TDA   483,899 

Total Funding   $1,100,000 

Table 2:  Expenditure Plan 
Capital Project Amount 
    40’ Battery Electric Bus   $900,000 
    Upgrades & Charging Equipment  200,000 
Total Expenses   $1,100,000 

ALTERNATIVES 

The Board could decide not to adopt the Resolution which would result in not receiving 
the LCTOP funds, slow the fleet electrification and put additional impacts on the agency’s 
other fund sources.   

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently.    

LCTOP funding supplements the budget for zero emission bus purchases.  Without this 
funding source, NVTA would need to use TDA funds as a local match -  funding that could 
be used for other projects.  

ATTACHMENTS 

(1) Resolution No. 21-09

97



RESOLUTION No. 21-09 

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTION OF THE 
CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES AND AUTHORIZED AGENT FORMS 

FOR THE LOW CARBON TRANSIT OPERATIONS PROGRAM (LCTOP) 
FOR THE FOLLOWING PROJECT: 

NVTA ZERO EMISSION BUS PROCUREMENT PROJECT; $167,040 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority is an eligible project sponsor 
and may receive state funding from the Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) for 
transit projects; and 

WHEREAS, the statutes related to state-funded transit projects require a local or 
regional implementing agency to abide by various regulations; and 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 862 (2014) named the Department of Transportation 
(Department) as the administrative agency for the LCTOP; and  

WHEREAS, the Department has developed guidelines for the purpose of administering 
and distributing LCTOP funds to eligible project sponsors (local agencies); and 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority wishes to delegate 
authorization to execute these documents and any amendments thereto to Kate Miller, 
Executive Director; and 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority wishes to implement the LCTOP 
project(s) listed above, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority that the fund recipient agrees to comply with all conditions and 
requirements set forth in the Certification and Assurances and the Authorized Agent 
documents and applicable statutes, regulations and guidelines for all LCTOP funded transit 
projects. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Kate Miller, Executive Director 
be authorized to execute all required documents of the LCTOP program and any 
Amendments thereto with the California Department of Transportation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley 
Transportation Authority that it hereby authorizes the submittal of the following project 
nomination(s) and allocation request(s) to the Department in FY 2020-21 LCTOP funds: 

98



Project Name: NVTA Zero Emission Bus Procurement Project 
Amount of LCTOP funds requested: $167,040 
Short description of project: NVTA will purchase one (1) new forty-foot zero-emission battery 
electric transit bus and procure and install related charging infrastructure. 
Benefit to a Priority Population:  AB 1550 Census Tracts – 6055202000, 6055201601, 
6055201200, 6055200704, 6055200501, 6055200505, 6055200503 & 6055200301 
Contributing Sponsors:  Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) 

Passed and adopted the 17th day of March, 2021. 

________________________ 
Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Chair Ayes: 

    Nays: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED: 

_______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 

99



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.8 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 

SUBJECT 

Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) Call for Projects 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the release of the 
Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) Call for Projects for FY 2021-22 
through FY 2023-24 (Three-year cycle). 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The TDA-3 program is funded by approximately 2% of the ¼ cent Statewide Sales Tax. 
NVTA receives the sales tax revenues generated in Napa which is approximately 
$150,000 per year in revenues.  All of Napa jurisdictions are eligible to apply for these 
funds.  Unused funds are accumulated and rolled over for programming in future cycles. 
The TDA-3 program provides grants for local bicycle and pedestrian projects.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

No, the funds will be passed through to project sponsors and will not be retained by 
NVTA. 

100



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.8 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Diana Meehan, Senior Planner 

(707) 259-9832 / Email: dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Transportation Development Act, Article 3 (TDA-3) Call for Projects 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the release of the 
Transportation Development Act Article 3 (TDA-3) Call for Projects for FY 2021-22 
through FY 2023-24 (Three-year cycle). 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

The Technical Advisory Committee recommended that the NVTA Board release the Call 
for Projects. 

BACKGROUND 

The purpose of the TDA-3 program is to provide grants for local bicycle and pedestrian 
projects. The TDA-3 program is a grant program funded by approximately 2% of the ¼ 
cent Statewide Sales Tax. NVTA receives the sales tax generated in Napa which is 
approximately $150,000 per year.  All jurisdictions in Napa County are eligible to apply 
for these grant funds.  Unused funds are accumulated and rolled over for programming 
in future cycles.  

TDA funds may be used for both capital and maintenance purposes but during the last 
three-year cycle, the NVTA Board requested a change to the policy that would prioritize 
TDA-3 program funds solely for capital projects. NVTA updated the TDA program 
guidelines to reflect the requested policy change.  In addition, a new project category is 
allowed under TDA-3 for Quick Build project types (Attachment 1). 

101

mailto:dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov


The TDA-3 program funds a wide range of projects including: 

• capital construction and design engineering of bicycle and pedestrian projects
• restriping on-street bicycle lanes
• development or support of a bicycle safety education program (not more than 5%

of County allocation)
• development of a comprehensive bicycle and/or pedestrian facilities plan (once

every 5 years)

The FY 2021-22 TDA-3 fund estimate is $209,745 (Attachment 2).  for the  FY 2022-23 
and 2023-24 is estimate to be  an additional $300,000 bringing the total fund estimate for 
the three-year program to $509,745 dollars. 

  Table 1. Three-Year TDA-3 Fund Estimate 

FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 TOTAL 
REVENUES $209,745 $150,000* $150,000* $509,745 

*FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24 are estimates for programming purposes only.  When actual
revenues are known, the estimates will be updated.

Table 2. Timeline 

ITEM DATE 

Board Approval/Issue Call for Projects March 17, 2021 
Applications - due to NVTA by 5:00 PM April 23, 2021 

Project Review and Recommendation by ATAC May 24, 2021 

Project Review and Recommendation by TAC June 3, 2021 

Board Approval June 16, 2021 

Resolutions of Local Support due to NVTA July 15, 2021 

Submit Countywide Claim to MTC July 30, 2021 

ALTERNATIVES 

The Board may choose to postpone the call for projects. Revenue would be carried over 
until a call for projects is opened. 

102



STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal 1 – Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, 
income, or ability 

Funding through TDA-3 is reserved for bicycle and pedestrian projects and/or planning. 
This funding has provided for a wide variety of projects in this category countywide to 
serve the needs of many community members. 

Goal 5 – Minimize the energy and other resources required to move people and goods 

Bicycle and pedestrian projects can significantly reduce the adverse effects of automobile 
use, including reducing harmful auto emission and traffic congestion by encouraging 
walking and cycling. 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

Attachment 1: Guide and Application for Transportation Development Act – Article 3 
    Funds for Napa County Three-Year Program 

Attachment 2: FY 2021-22 Fund Estimate Transportation Development Act 
 Funds Napa County Feb. 2021 

103



ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.8 

March 17, 2021 

Guide and Application for 

Transportation Development Act – Article 3 (TDA-3) 
Funds for Napa County 

FY 2021-22 through FY 2023-24  
Applications Due to NVTA:  

Friday April 23, 2021 by 5:00 p.m.   

NVTA 
625 Burnell Street  
Napa, CA 94559 

Phone: 707-259-8631 
Fax: 707-259-8638  
www.nvta.ca.gov 

104

http://www.nvta.ca.gov/


The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is pleased to announce a Call for 
Projects for Transportation Development Act, Article 3 (TDA-3) funds available to Napa 
County jurisdictions.   

The TDA-3 program is a grant program, funded by approximately 2% of the ¼ cent 
Statewide Sales Tax. This generates approximately $150,000 per year in revenues for 
Napa jurisdictions.  The purpose of the TDA-3 program is to provide grants for local 
bicycle and pedestrian projects. 

The TDA-3 program can fund a wide range of project types including: 
• Construction and/or engineering of a bicycle or pedestrian capital project
• Maintenance of a multi-purpose path which is closed to motorized traffic
• Restriping Class II bicycle lanes
• Bicycle safety education programs (no more than  5% of county total)
• Development of a comprehensive bicycle and/or pedestrian facilities plan (once

every 5 years)
• Quick Build Projects

NVTA is pleased that your agency or organization has chosen the TDA-3  program as 
a potential funding source to complete your eligible project.  This packet has been created 
to help guide you in submitting a successful application for funding.   

The available funding for Napa County TDA-3 projects for FY 2021-22 through FY 2023-
24 will be approximately $509,745 dollars.  The TDA-3 Applications will be due to NVTA 
by 5:00 PM on Friday, April 23, 2021.   

If you have any questions, you may contact Diana Meehan, TDA-3 Program Manager at: 
 NVTA 
 625 Burnell Street 

     Napa, CA 94559  
     Phone: 707-259-8631 

Sincerely, 

Kate Miller  
Executive Director  
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

105



 
 
The TDA-3 Program 
 
The State Legislature passed the Transportation Development Act (TDA) in 1971.  The TDA 
provides one of the major funding sources for public transportation in California.  
Transportation Development Act (TDA) funds are generated from a statewide ¼ cent sales 
tax. Article 3 of TDA is a set-aside of approximately 2% of those monies. Under Article 3 of 
the TDA, funds are also used by local jurisdictions for bicycle and pedestrian projects.  
 
The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) administers TDA3, which is distributed 
based on population. Each year, an annual fund estimate or “entitlement” is developed for 
each jurisdiction. Unused “entitlement” is accumulated as credit. A jurisdiction’s claim in any 
given year cannot exceed the sum of their accumulated credit plus their projected entitlement 
for the following two years. 
 
Funds are obtained by local jurisdictions via a three-step process: (1) apportionment, (2) 
allocation, and (3) payment (reimbursement). Apportionment in the San Francisco Bay Area 
follows a Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) formula based upon population. 
Allocation is the discretionary action by MTC that designates funds for a specific claimant for 
a specific purpose. NVTA submits TDA allocation requests to MTC on a regular basis, and 
unused TDA funds allocated to any project may be rolled over from one fiscal year to the 
next. No matching funds are required, but the project must meet the funding objectives and 
be developed in cooperation with the community. The basic objectives of the grant source 
are to fund projects that increase the safety, security, and efficiency of bicycle and pedestrian 
travel, and to provide for a coordinated system. MTC requires supporting resolutions from the 
sponsoring Council. 
 
There are no matching requirements with this funding source. TDA 3 projects are required to 
meet Caltrans safety design criteria and CEQA requirements; be completed within three 
years; be maintained; be consistent with adopted active transportation plans; and be 
authorized by a governing council or board. 
 
This “Call for Projects” will be issued on March 17, 2021 upon approval by the NVTA Board 
of Directors. In addition to the application, project sponsors must deliver documentation of 
environmental clearance and maps/documents showing project locations and design 
parameters. Projects must be approved by MTC.  
 
As part of the grant process, MTC also requires project sponsor submits a resolution of its 
governing board that addresses the following six points: 

1. There are no legal impediments regarding the project 
2. Jurisdictional or agency staffing resources are adequate to complete the project 
3. There is no pending or threatened litigation that might adversely affect the project or 

the ability of the project sponsor to carry out the projects 
4. Environmental and right-of-way issues have been reviewed and found to be in such a 

state that fun obligation deadlines will not be jeopardized 
5. Adequate local funding is available to complete the project 
6. The project has been conceptually reviewed to the point that all contingent issues have 

been considered. 

106



 
Basic Eligibility for TDA-3 Funding 
 
TDA Article 3 funds may be used for the following activities relating to pedestrian and 
bicycle facilities (including sidewalk wheelchair ramps):  

• Construction and/or engineering of a bicycle or pedestrian capital or quick build 
projects 

• Right-of-way acquisition.  
• Construction and reconstruction.  
• Retrofitting existing bicycle and pedestrian facilities, including installation of 

signage, to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  
• Route improvements such as signal controls for cyclists, bicycle loop detectors, 

rubberized rail crossings and bicycle-friendly drainage grates.  
• Purchase and installation of bicycle amenities such as:  

o secure bicycle parking,  
o benches, drinking fountains, changing rooms, rest rooms and showers 

which are adjacent to bicycle trails, employment centers, park-and-ride lots, 
and/or transit terminals and are accessible to the general public.  

• Maintenance of Class I shared-use path and Class IV separated bikeways (Capital 
projects will be prioritized over maintenance-routine maintenance is not eligible) 

• Restriping Class II bicycle lanes and buffered bicycle lanes. Countywide, the total 
funds allocated to Class II bikeway maintenance cannot exceed 20% of the total 
countywide TDA estimate 

• Bicycle and/or pedestrian safety education programs (and not more 5% of the 
countywide TDA Article 3 funds)  

• Comprehensive Bicycle & Pedestrian Facilities Plans (not more than once per 
jurisdiction every 5 years)  

• Projects identified in a recent (within 5 years) comprehensive local bicycle or 
pedestrian plan  

• Annual TDA Article 3 Audits (Only in fiscal years funds are disbursed.  Can be part 
of annual audit program, but must comply with these additional TDA-3 audit 
requirements: 

o All claimants that have received a disbursement of TDA funds are required 
to submit an annual certified fiscal and compliance audit for that fiscal year 
to MTC and to the Secretary of Business and Transportation Agency within 
180 days after the close of the fiscal year, in accordance with PUC Section 
99245. Article 3 applicants need not file a fiscal audit if TDA funds were not 
disbursed (that is, reimbursed by MTC) during a given fiscal year. 
Reimbursement may cover eligible expenditures from a previous fiscal year. 
Failure to submit the required audit for any TDA article will preclude MTC 
from making a new Article 3 allocation. For example, a delinquent Article 
4.5 fiscal audit will delay any other TDA allocation to the city/county with an 
outstanding audit. Until the audit requirement is met, no new Article 3 
allocations will be made 

 
. 

107



TDA Article 3 funds may be used to pay for the fiscal audit required for this funding. 

TDA Article 3 funds may not be used to fully fund the salary of any one person working 
on these programs.  

Active Transportation Advisory Committee Requirement 
Cities and counties may not receive TDA Article 3 funds for projects unless the jurisdiction 
has established a Active Transportation Advisory Committee (ATAC) and the project is 
included in an adopted plan as stipulated in the MTC TDA Article 3 Rules and Procedures. 
For Napa County, the NVTA Active Transportation Advisory Committee fulfills this 
requirement.  However, for those jurisdictions with additional local Active Transportation 
Advisory Committees, the approval of that committee is also required.  

Recent Project Examples in Napa County  

Project Name Sponsor TDA-3 Funds   Total Project $  

Pioneer Park Pedestrian Bridge Calistoga $200,000 $420,000 
Napa Valley Vine Trail-Calistoga 
to St. Helena 

NVTA $89,928 $8,516,229 

Eucalyptus Dr. Sidewalk Gap 
Closure 

American 
Canyon 

$53,000 $113,000 

Pratt/Elmhurst Crosswalk 
Improvements on Main St./SR29 

St. Helena $50,000 $80,000 

Project Selection Process 

The project selection process is as follows:   
• NVTA staff will run the prospective projects through an initial qualification process

based on project eligibility, and present their findings to the NVTA Active
Transportation Advisory Committee (ATAC) which will serve as the initial selection
and prioritization committee.

• The ATAC recommendations will be forwarded to the NVTA Technical Advisory
Committee (TAC) for their review and recommendation.

• The recommendation from both Committees will be forwarded to the NVTA Board
for their decision.

Projects will be evaluated on cost-effectiveness and project readiness. 

TDA-3 Project Selection Criteria for Napa County 

For Bicycle Projects 
• The project is listed in the jurisdiction’s adopted Bicycle Plan
• The project provides a gap closure

108



• The project addresses a bicycle safety concern on a high-injury network 
• Environmental Clearance is secured 

 
For Pedestrian Projects 

• The project is listed in the jurisdiction’s adopted Pedestrian Plan 
• The project provides a gap closure 
• The project provides safer crossing or traffic calming 
• Environmental Clearance is secured 

 
Additional credit will be given to projects that 

• provides a safe route to school and/or transit 
• provide additional local matching funds (not required) 

 
Application Instructions:  
 
TDA-3 project applications for FY 2021-22 through FY 2023-24 must be submitted to 
NVTA no later than 5:00 pm on Friday April 23, 2021.  Applications may be emailed to 
Diana Meehan at dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov 
 
  Applications must include: 

• MTC project application (attached) 
• Resolution of local support following MTC requirements (attached) 

 
What Happens After Submission of the TDA-3 application?  
 
After applications are submitted to NVTA the evaluation process will begin.  NVTA plans 
on the following action timeline:  
 

ITEM DATE 

Board Approval –  Issue Call For Projects March 17, 2021 
TDA-3 Applications - due to NVTA by 5:00 PM April 23, 2021 

Draft Program Review by ATAC May 24, 2021 

Draft Program Review by TAC June 3, 2021 

Board Approval – Program of Projects June 16, 2021 

Contact Information 
 
Napa County TDA-3 Program Manager: 
Diana Meehan 
625 Burnell Street  
Napa, CA 94559  
Phone: (707) 259-8327  

109

mailto:dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov


dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov 

NVTA Main Office   
625 Burnell Street  
Napa, CA 94559  
Phone: (707) 259-8631 
Fax: (707) 259-8638  
www.nvta.ca.gov 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
375 Beale St. 
San Francisco, CA  94105 
Cheryl Chi, AICP 
Transit Funding Manager 
MTC, Funding Policy and Programs 
Phone: (415) 778-5339   
cchi@bayareametro.gov 

110

mailto:dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov
http://www.nvta.ca.gov/
mailto:cchi@bayareametro.gov


Attachment A
Res No. 4450
Page 5 of 20
2/24/2021

FY2020 21 TDA Revenue Estimate FY2021 22 TDA Revenue Estimate
FY2020 21 Generation Estimate Adjustment FY2021 22 County Auditor's Generation Estimate
1. Original County Auditor Estimate (Feb, 20) 9,885,444 13. County Auditor Estimate 8,979,207
2. Revised Revenue (Feb, 21) 8,973,457 FY2021 22 Planning and Administration Charges
3. Revenue Adjustment (Lines 2 1) 911,987 14. MTC Administration (0.5% of Line 13) 44,896

FY2020 21 Planning and Administration Charges Adjustment 15. County Administration (0.5% of Line 13) 44,896
4. MTC Administration (0.5% of Line 3) (4,560) 16. MTC Planning (3.0% of Line 13) 269,376
5. County Administration (Up to 0.5% of Line 3) (4,560) 17. Total Charges (Lines 14+15+16) 359,168
6. MTC Planning (3.0% of Line 3) (27,360) 18. TDA Generations Less Charges (Lines 13 17) 8,620,039
7. Total Charges (Lines 4+5+6) (36,480) FY2021 22 TDA Apportionment By Article
8. Adjusted Generations Less Charges (Lines 3 7) (875,507) 19. Article 3.0 (2.0% of Line 18) 172,401

FY2020 21 TDA Adjustment By Article 20. Funds Remaining (Lines 18 19) 8,447,638
9. Article 3 Adjustment (2.0% of line 8) (17,510) 21. Article 4.5 (5.0% of Line 20) 422,382
10. Funds Remaining (Lines 8 9) (857,997) 22. TDA Article 4 (Lines 20 21) 8,025,256
11. Article 4.5 Adjustment (5.0% of Line 10) (42,900)
12. Article 4 Adjustment (Lines 10 11) (815,097)

Column A B C=Sum(A:B) D E F G H=Sum(C:G) I J=Sum(H:I)
6/30/2020 FY2019 20 6/30/2020 FY2019 21 FY2020 21 FY2020 21 FY2020 21 6/30/2021 FY2021 22 FY2021 22

Apportionment
Jurisdictions

Balance
(w/o interest)

Interest
Balance

(w/ interest) 1
Outstanding

Commitments2
Transfers/
Refunds

Original
Estimate

Revenue
Adjustment

Projected
Carryover

Revenue
Estimate

Available for
Allocation

Article 3 249,948 8,033 257,981 (392,928) 0 189,801 (17,510) 37,344 172,401 209,745
Article 4.5 33,783 126 33,909 (382,540) 0 465,011 (42,900) 73,480 422,382 495,862
SUBTOTAL 283,731 8,159 291,891 (775,468) 0 654,812 (60,410) 110,824 594,783 705,607

Article 4/8
NVTA3 2,283,067 73,033 2,356,100 (7,192,201) 2,486,395 8,835,215 (815,097) 5,670,412 8,025,256 13,695,668

SUBTOTAL 2,283,067 73,033 2,356,100 (7,192,201) 2,486,395 8,835,215 (815,097) 5,670,412 8,025,256 13,695,668
GRAND TOTAL $2,566,799 $81,192 $2,647,991 ($7,967,669) $2,486,395 $9,490,027 ($875,507) $5,781,236 $8,620,039 $14,401,275
1. Balance as of 6/30/20 is from the MTC FY2019 20 Audit, and it contains both funds available for allocation and funds that have been allocated but not disbursed.
2. The outstanding commitments figure includes all unpaid allocations as of 6/30/20, and FY2020 21 allocations as of 1/31/21.
3. NVTA is authorized to claim 100% of the apporionment to Napa County.

FY 2021 22 FUND ESTIMATE
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FUNDS
NAPA COUNTY

TDA APPORTIONMENT BY JURISDICTION

         
ATTACHMENT 2 
Agenda Item 9.8 

March 17,2021

111

dmeehan
Highlight



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.9 
Continued From: New 

Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Overall Work Program (OWP) for Fiscal Year 2020-21 and Fiscal Year 2021-22 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board adopt the Overall Work 
Program (OWP) (Attachment 1) for FY2021 and FY2022. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The OWP is a comprehensive inventory of ongoing and proposed agency activities during 
the two fiscal years.  The OWP serves as the guide for scheduling and distributing work, 
including the allocation of resources needed to address the tasks in each work element. 
In effect, this work program constitutes a set of instructions for the administration, project 
management and planning work to be carried out by staff or consultants. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

112



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.9 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director of Administration, Finance and Policy 

(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Overall Work Program for Fiscal Year 2020-21 and Fiscal Year 
2021-22 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board adopt the agency’s Overall 
Work Program (OWP) (Attachment 1) for FY2021 and FY2022. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The OWP seeks two main purposes: 1) describes and programs planning studies (along 
with any defined objectives, tasks, and deliverables), and 2) describes and programs the 
staffing requirements for NVTA. The OWP is a requirement for transportation planning 
activities performed with Federal funds. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

Agency staff prepares and the Board adopts an Overall Work program (OWP) that guides 
the workload and activities of the agency for the fiscal year.  The plan: 

• Describes the comprehensive planning and agency activities to be conducted by
NVTA;

• Provides an opportunity for an open review of the planning process and activities
of the agency;

113

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


• Serves as a reference to be used by citizens, planners and elected officials
throughout the year to understand NVTA’s objectives and how these will be met
through the regional comprehensive planning process and agency efforts;

• Serves as a management tool for comprehensive planning and workload
management;

• Serves as documentation to support the various federal, state and regional
grants that finance the planning program.

Given much of NVTA’s work is on-going, most of the work elements included in the OWP 
remain from prior OWP editions.  Its contents, task and deadlines have been updated to 
reflect the current objectives and work plan.   

ALTERNATIVES 

The Board could decide not to approve the OWP, however, the OWP provides a 
contextual “roadmap” of budgetary expenditures by defining strategic goals for the agency 
with measureable and quantifiable targets, and without the OWP, agency priorities would 
be difficult to perform in a comprehensive fashion. 

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently.    

The OWP establishes the transportation planning objectives to be achieved and assigns 
the institutional responsibility and funding to complete the work for the agency. 

ATTACHMENTS 

(1) Overall Work Program Fiscal Years 2021 & 2022

114



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Overall Work Program 
Fiscal Years 2021 & 2022 

115



As a recipient of numerous federal grants for various planning activities, NVTA must comply with the 
provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. The Civil Rights Act of 1964 states that “No person in 
the United States shall, on the ground of race, color or national origin, be excluded from participation in, 
be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving 
Federal financial assistance.” The Environmental Justice (EJ) Executive Order (EO 12989) further 
amplifies Title VI by specifically addressing minority and low-income populations, early and continuously 
in the transportation planning process, so the values and interests of all segments of our communities 
are equally reflected in investment decisions.

NVTA embraces these tenets and has incorporated into its organizational structure and planning 
processes procedures to reinforce compliance with federal statute and regulations. 

Alfredo Pedroza, Chair Kate Miller, Executive Director 
Board of Supervisors NVTA 

County of Napa 625 Burnell St. 
1195 Third St. Napa, CA 94559-3420 

Napa, CA 94559 www.nvta.ca.gov 
www.countyofnapa.org www.vinetransit.com 

116



Table of Contents 

PAGE 
I. Profile -4-

II. How to Read this Document -7-

III. Work Elements -8-

Agency Administration -9-
Overall Work Program AA – 01 -10-
Agency Administration AA – 02 -11-
Human Resources AA – 03 -12-
Grants and Capital Projects Administration AA – 04 -13-
Finance Administration AA – 05 -15-
Transportation Development Act Administration AA – 06 -16-
Audits and Reviews AA – 07 -17-
Policy Development AA – 08 -18-
Measure T Administration AA – 09 -19-

Transportation Planning and Programs -20-
Regional Transportation Improvement Plan  TP – 03 -21-
Countywide Strategic Transportation Planning TP – 04  -25-
Transit System Studies and Updates  TP – 05  -27-
Active Transportation Plan  TP – 06  -28-
Vine Transit Bus Maintenance Facility  TP – 07  -30-
Performance/ Compliance Monitoring  TP – 08  -32-
Vine Trail  TP – 09  -33-
Census and Geographic Information System  Development TP – 11  -34-

  Transportation for Clean Air  TP – 12  -36-
State Route 37 Policy Committee TP – 13 -37-
Soscol Junction Improvements TP – 14 -38-
State Route 29 Corridor Improvements        TP – 15   -39-

Multimodal Mobility Management -42-
V-Commute Rideshare MM – 01 -43-
Mobility Management Programs MM – 02 -45-
Transportation Network Companies MM – 03 -46-

117



Transit Program Administration       -47- 
 

Transit Administration & Operations     PT – 01   -48- 
Public Transit Projects List      PT – 02               -49- 
Transit Asset Management      PT – 03   -50- 
Intelligent Transportation System     PT—04   -51- 
 
Communication and Representation               -52- 

 Legislative Advocacy       CR – 01  -53- 
Regional/ Sub-regional Coordination & Assistance   CR – 02  -54- 

 Public Participation, Information, and Support   CR – 03  -55- 
 Marketing        CR – 04  -57- 
  

 
Appendices                    -58- 

OWP Annual Staff Hours Matrix                -59- 

Glossary of Acronyms                   -60- 
 
 

 
 

 
  

118



I. Profile
Formed in 1988, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) serves as the county transportation 
agency and public transit provider for Napa County. In this capacity NVTA is responsible, for developing 
transportation plans and programs for the county in cooperation with federal, state, regional, and local 
agencies.   

In addition to local and regional transportation planning, NVTA offers a variety of public transportation 
services to most effectively serve the residents of Napa County. Fixed-route transit and paratransit 
services are offered in the City of Napa with major intercity and commuter bus lines serving American 
Canyon, Napa, Yountville, St. Helena, Calistoga, and destinations in Contra Costa, and Solano Counties.  
Local services are also provided in each of the communities within Napa. 

The actions of the NVTA are governed by a Joint Powers Agreement with the County of Napa and 
jurisdictions within thin the county.  NVTA also has agreements with California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), which agreements 
identify the responsibilities of NVTA and provide the administrative structure to implement these 
responsibilities. 

Each year NVTA prepares an Overall Work Program (OWP) describing the comprehensive planning 
activities proposed to be undertaken during the next fiscal year using state and federal, and local funds. 
In addition, major non-planning initiatives undertaken by the agency are also included. This document 
provides detailed information on each activity, including a description of the work to be performed, the 
products of the effort, and funding information.  Ultimately, the document serves three (3) important 
objectives: 

• The OWP serves as a reference to be used by citizens, planners and elected officials
throughout the year to understand the agency’s objectives and how these will be met
through the regional comprehensive planning process and agency efforts.  As a public
document, the OWP provides an opportunity for an open review of the planning process and
activities of the Agency by the NVTA board, its partnering agencies and the general public.

• The OWP is used as a management tool for the comprehensive planning program and
workload management. The division of the program into sections and individual work
elements facilitates program review and management throughout the year to ensure that the 
planned activities are accomplished both on time and within budget.

• The OWP serves as documentation to support the various federal and state grants that
finance the planning program.  The preparation of the current OWP assumes financing in part
through grants from the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA), Caltrans, MTC, as well as local funds from and other agencies and
private organizations providing revenues for transportation-related plans and projects.

119



 

Transportation Funding Sources  

 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)  
Federal Metropolitan Planning Funds (MPL)  
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Funds (CMAQ)  
Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) 
Transportation, Community, and System Preservation (TCSP) 

    Surface Transportation Program (STP) 
 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA)  
Section 5303 Planning Funds 
Section 5307 Urbanized Area Formula 
Section 5311 Rural Transit 
Section 5311f Intercity Bus Program 
Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities  
 
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)  
Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) Funds  
Planning, Monitoring and Maintenance (PPM) Funds  
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) 
Senate Bill 1: Local Partnership Program (LPP) Formula Funds 
Senate Bill 1:  Solutions for Congested Corridors Program (SCCP) 
 

    Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) 
    Regional Measure 2 (RM2) 
Re    Regional Measure 3 (RM3) 
    Transportation Development Act (TDA) 
    State Transit Assistance (STA) Funds 

One Bay Area Grant (OBAG)  
 

    Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) 
    Transportation For Clean Air (TFCA) 
 

Member Agencies: County of Napa, City of Napa, Town of Yountville, City 
of Calistoga, City of Saint Helena 

 Member Contributions 
Passenger Fares  
 

    Vine Trail Coalition 
    Vine Trail Contributions 
 

  Measure T  
  Measure T funds 
 
 

120



 

121



II. How to Read this Document 
 

The comprehensive work program is divided into five (5) distinct sections, each with its own introduction, 
that reflect the primary functions of the agency.  The primary program sections are: 
 

1. Agency Administration       (AA series) 
2. Transportation Planning and Programs  (TP series) 
3. Multimodal Mobility Management   (MM series) 
4. Transit Program Administration   (TP series) 
5. Communication & Representation   (CR series) 
 

Within each section are detailed explanations for each program or initiative of the agency called Work 
Elements (WE).  Work Elements usually list specific tasks to be undertaken to advance the particular 
work element objective, products and deliverables, and the estimated cumulative staff hours over the 
course of the fiscal year dedicated to those tasks.   
 

Each work element has a unique reference number that conforms to an established convention. As 
indicated above, agency administrative elements are in the AA series, planning elements can be found 
in the PL series, and so on. 
 

At its core, NVTA derives its existence, authority and the scope of its activities from the Joint Powers 
Agreement (JPA). The JPA identifies areas of “Purpose” and specific duties, responsibilities and approved 
powers. Together these define the mission of the agency and the range of activities within which its 
member agencies have authorized it to engage. 

122



III. Work Elements

Most work elements within this OWP recur annually. They represent ongoing tasks and planning 
processes that are essential to NVTA’s ability to complete its mission of continuing, cooperative, and 
comprehensive transportation planning.  Some work elements are being carried over from previous 
OWPs and have been analyzed in those documents.

Many of the work elements included in the OWP are designed to support NVTA's responsibilities as the 
region's transportation planning agency. Since transportation planning and programming functions 
dominate the scope of NVTA's work program, most work elements reflect NVTA's responsibilities for 
meeting federal requirements under the most recent federal transportation legislation and Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act.  Other work elements may be shaped by needs and changes in the region, including 
growth in population, jobs and motor vehicle travel.  The work program outlines a unified approach 
regardless of funding source.  

The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) established "Planning Emphasis Areas" in 1998 as part of 
the Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century (TEA-21). These emphasis areas were largely left intact 
under SAFETEA-LU, the transportation authorization bill which succeeded TEA-21 in 2005.  MAP-21 and 
Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) have continued these eight (8) themes, and they continue 
to guide planning efforts by MPOs and state planning agencies.  

1. Support the economic vitality of the metropolitan area, especially by enabling global
competitiveness, and efficiency.

2. Increase the safety of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users.

3. Increase the security of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users.

4. Increase the accessibility and mobility of people and for freight.

5. Protect and enhance the environment, promote energy conservation, improve the quality
of life, and promote consistency between transportation improvements and state and local
planned growth and economic development patterns.

6. Enhance the integration and connectivity of the transportation system, across and between
modes, for people and freight.

7. Promote efficient system management and operation.

8. Emphasize the preservation of the existing transportation system.

123



Agency Administration                                        Introduction 
 
From human resources to accounting, NVTA undertakes initiatives to maintain government 
accountability, effectiveness and transparency to ensure compliance with Federal, State and local 
regulations and to be accountable to the public. 
 
While capturing every administrative task of the organization is impractical, work elements in this section 
focus on the major operations, logistics, initiatives and areas of focus essential to the effective 
functioning of the organization. 
 
 
Work Elements in this Section: 
              Work Element            Page 

Overall Work Program       AA – 01  -10- 
 Agency Administration      AA – 02  -11- 
 Human Resources Management     AA – 03              -12- 
 Grants and Capital Projects Administration    AA – 04              -13- 
 Finance Administration      AA – 05              -15- 
 Transportation Development Act Administration   AA – 06              -16- 
 Reviews and Audits       AA – 07              -17- 
 Policy Development       AA – 08              -18- 

Measure T Administration      AA – 09              -19- 
 
Timesheet/Payroll Information:  CMA Administration 
Project/Grant: CMA_Admin   

 
Timesheet/Payroll Codes Description 
LEAVE_830 Leave Time 
AGENCY_ADMIN General Support 
AUDITS Audits 
FINANCE Finance Administration 
FIN_ANALYSIS Financial Analysis 
GRANTS_ADMIN Grants Administration 
HR HR Management 
MEASURE_T Measure T Admin 
OWP_ADMIN OWP Admin 
POLICY Policy Admin 
PROJECT_MGMT Project Management 
TDA TDA and STA Admin 
TRANSIT_ADMIN Transit Administration   

124



Overall Work Program                                                                                              NEW           ANNUAL  
Work Element AA-01       

 
ABSTRACT 
To manage, support, coordinate and implement the Overall Work Program in accordance with the 
requirements of the state and federal transportation planning and programming regulations. 
 
TASKS 
1. Provide program and fiscal management for OWP. 
2. Prepare quarterly progress and financial reports. 
3. Coordinate with federal and state agencies. 
4. Develop, present and monitor annual OWP budget. 
5. Administer existing OWP. 
6. Prepare the next Overall Work Program. 
7. Revise and monitor work program to address federal fiscal year planning certification review 

recommendations, revising or amending OWP as necessary and appropriate incorporate these 
recommendations. 

8. Conduct administration of State and Federal grants. 
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Draft OWP As needed  
Final OWP Ongoing/As needed  
Monitoring Quarterly  

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 20 
 

Fund Source(s) 
 Transportation Development Act 

 
Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_ADMIN 
Activity ID OWP Admin 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

 
  

125



Agency Administration                                                                                              NEW           ANNUAL  
Work Element AA-02       

 
ABSTRACT 
This program element identifies core efforts and initiatives undertaken to provide effective ongoing 
management and staff support for the Agency. 
 
TASKS 
1. Support NVTA Board and advisory committees.   
2. Prepare and distribute agendas, minutes, staff reports to the board and committees 
3. Maintain and post documents, reports, agendas, and minutes on the NVTA website for member 

agency, Board, and public consideration. 
4. Provide governing board with adequate information for decision-making and program 

management.  Orient all new Board and Committee members. 
5. Manage and assist in contract administration, including funding agreements.  
6. Provide general reception, support staff services, and staff training.  
7. Maintain office filing systems, facility access and key control, and office computer network.  
8. Oversight of office facility operations and maintenance. 
9. Maintain, monitor, track and replenish equipment/office supplies. 
10. Maintain, review and streamline all NVTA publications and the publication archive. 
11. Maintain, inventory, replenish and issue transportation passes to authorized agencies. 
12. Review, track and disseminate all incoming correspondence. 
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Agendas, minutes, and staff reports Monthly  
Correspondence/Publishing As needed  
Progress reports As needed  
Manage funding agreements Ongoing/As needed  
Staff Training Ongoing  
Update bylaws, administrative, operating and office 
procedures, and personnel policies 

As needed  

Maintain and update computer system and equipment, 
including all information technology related tasks 

As needed  

Soscol Gate Transit Center operations and facilities 
maintenance 

As needed  

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 9,260 
 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
One Bay Area Grant 

 

 
 
 

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_ADMIN   
Activity ID (various) 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

126



 
ABSTRACT 
The Human Resources management function employs people, develops their capacities, and ensures 
that their services and compensation are consistent with the job and organizational requirements.  
NVTA’s human resource activities include on-going support functions and periodic initiatives. 
 
TASKS 
1. Interpret, apply and ensure compliance with general human resource administration practices as 

well as state and federal personnel laws and regulations such as drug free workplace, harassment, 
and OSHA requirements. 

2. Maintain all personnel records. 
3. Conduct personnel recruitments and provide orientation to new hires. 
4. Maintain and update employees’ benefits (457a plan, medical, dental, vision, Long Term Disability 

(LTD), Short Term Disability (STD), Employee Assistance Program (EAP), flexible benefits, and life 
insurance). 

5. Manage personnel issues. 
6. Revise and distribute Employee Handbook and update policies and procedures as required and 

monitor compliance. 
7. Facilitate performance assessment process.  
8. Facilitate on-going staff training. 
9. Payroll and benefit processing and analysis. 
10. Assess employee and organizational needs, implement training and development program 
11. General staff supervision. 
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Staff Training and Development Ongoing  
Employee performance reviews Annually  
Maintain all personnel records Ongoing  
Administer employee compensation and benefits program As needed  
Revise Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual and 
Office Procedures Guide. 

As needed  

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 1,400 
 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Human Resources                                                                                                          NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element AA-03      

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_ADMIN   
Activity ID HR 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

127



 
Grants & Capital Projects Administration                                                            NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element AA-04       

 
ABSTRACT 
The agency acquires grant funds from a variety of sources. Grants, whether formula based or secured 
through a competitive process, have rigorous application, monitoring and reporting requirements. 
 
TASKS 
1. Identify capital needs. 
2. Identify appropriate capital funding sources.  
3. Seek grant funding opportunities to meet agency and countywide transportation needs, and monitor 

grant regulations for new or revised requirements.  
4. Prepare grant applications, scopes of studies or pilot projects and requests for proposals. 
5. Review and respond to local and regional highway and transit proposals and plans; attend regional 

and local advisory committee and board meetings to ensure consistency with Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP) and Long Range Transit Plan (LRTP) policies. 

6. Manage capital procurement and related RFPs/RFQs/IFBs. Manage contracts for capital projects. 
7. Maintain and update agency resource files and/or databases for project tracking. 
8. File required state and federal financial and milestone reports. 
9. Track project revenues and expenses. 
10. Strategically match grant funding opportunities to applicable projects.  
11. Administer agency grants in accordance with sound management/financial principles to ensure 

compliance. 
12. Submit all required reports within scheduled due dates. 
13. Conduct liaison with federal, state and local funding agencies. 
14. Track progress of grant funded projects to assure milestones are achieved. 
15. Provide notification of funding availability; assist grant applicants in developing project proposals; 

participate, prioritize and adopt programs; and monitor project delivery. 
16. Monitor progress in the implementation of adopted Short Range Transit Plans, Countywide 

Transportation Plan, and capital improvement programs. 
17. Provide notification of funding availability; assist grant applicants in developing projects, proposals, 

and facilitate process for the FTA Sections, 5310 and 5339 competitive grants, Lifeline 
Transportation Program. 

18. Establish agency annual goals for the participation by Disadvantage Business Enterprises (DBE). 
19. Monitor requests for bids and contract solicitations to assure DBE conformity. 
20. Prepare periodic reporting to state and federal agencies on DBE compliance. 
21. Assure DBE goals met for outstanding contracts. 
22. Work collaboratively with the County, Town and Cities, and Chamber to host an instructional DBE 

forum to assist local business become registered DBEs. 
 
 
  

128



 
Products 

Beginning Date Ending Date 

FTA 5307 Grant Application Process Annual  
FTA TrAMS-web Reporting Quarterly On-going 
State Planning, Programming, and Monitoring Annual On-going 
FTA 5339, 5310, 5311, grants reporting and call for 
projects 

Annual/Quarterly On-going 

One-time grant opportunities As available  
TFCA grants, reporting and call for projects Annual/Quarterly Ongoing 
CMA block grant call for projects Annual Ongoing 
LCTOP reporting Semi-Annual Ongoing 
National Transit Database Quarterly/ Annual Ongoing 
Caltrans DBE Semi-Annual Reports Apr and Oct On-going 
Federal Six Month DBE Reports Dec and Jun On-going 
Contract/RFP/RFB compliance monitoring Ongoing On-going 
DBE outreach and public information Ongoing On-going 
DBE contract goal setting Ongoing On-going 

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 1,280  
 

Fund Source(s) Funding Sources (cont’d), Loans  
Transportation Development Act DOT Build America Bureau TIFIA  
State Transit Assistance, State of Good 
Repair 

Private Bank Loan(s) 

Senate Bill 1   
Federal Transit Administration  
Transportation for Clean Air  
Federal Highway Administration (STP)  
Planning, Programming, and Monitoring 
(PPM) 

 

Transportation, Community, and 
Preservation 

 

Special or one-time grant funds  
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 
(LCTOP) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_ADMIN 
Activity ID GRANTS_ADMIN 
Resource Cat OFUND; FED; STATE 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

129



Finance Administration                                                                                              NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element AA-05       

 
ABSTRACT 
As a steward of public funds, NVTA has the fiduciary responsibility to adhere to the highest standards of 
financial accountability. 
 
TASKS 
1. Monitor, develop and adopt biennial budgets for submission to Board of Director’s. 
2. Provide program and fiscal strategic management. 
3. Prepare monthly/quarterly progress and financial reports. 
4. Manage finances consistent with generally accepted standard accounting practices and prepare, 

review and present regular financial reports to the Board. 
5. Manage accounts payable; ensure all vendors are paid regularly and consistently. 
6. Manage accounts receivables; ensure invoicing is completed according to contracts and deposit 

revenues received timely.  
7. Ensure proper cash management. 
8. Forecast short and long term financial capabilities under various funding scenarios. 
9. Review and update financial management policies, procedures and manuals as needed, and 

conduct an internal review for process re-engineering. 
10. Coordinate development of line item budgets by funding source for financial monitoring 
11. Process cash receipts and disbursements. 
12. Assist in contract administration. 
13. Provide financial analysis as necessary. 
  

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Prepare and distribute financial statements and financial reports Quarterly  
Prepare budget in advance of Board meetings  Feb 2021 Mar 2021 
Finalize budget for upcoming fiscal year May 2021 May 2021 
Administer NVTA annual operating budget Ongoing  
Administer day-to-day finance functions such as routing of 
invoice approval and accounts payable. 

Ongoing  

Accounts receivable, journal entries, and other tasks. Monthly  
Monitor and manage NVTA’s general ledger for all funds and 
subdivisions.  

Ongoing  

 
ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 2,290 

    
 
 
 

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_ADMIN 
Activity ID FINANCE 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
Federal Highway Administration 
Federal Transit Administration 
Local Sources 
State Sources 

130



Transportation Development Act Administration                                              NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element AA-06      

 
ABSTRACT 
The Transportation Development Act (TDA) provides two (2) major sources of funding for public 
transportation: the Local Transportation Fund (LTF) and the State Transit Assistance fund (STA). These 
funds are for the development and support of public transportation needs that exist in California and 
are allocated to areas of each county based on population, taxable sales and transit performance.  NVTA 
is responsible for effectively administering all aspects of the Transportation Development Act (TDA) in 
Napa County. 
 
TASKS 
1. Administer TDA funds in full compliance with laws and regulations. 
2. Complete and submit annual reports and fiscal/compliance audits. 
3. Update Transportation Development Act (TDA) claim manual as necessary. 
4. Monitor proposed changes in TDA statues and regulations. Update policies governing, review, 

approval, and process of all TDA claims to ensure timely compliance with TDA laws. 
5. Apportion TDA funds, prepare and internally-approve claims, allocate funds, and submit annual 

reports (Art. 3, 4, 4.5, and 8) in accordance with state regulations, MTC policies, and local claims.  
6. Receive and file State Controller’s reports of transit entities (PUC Sec. 99243.5). 
7. Perform Transit Needs Assessment of transit dependent groups (PUC Sec 99401.5b1). 
8. Conduct unmet transit and bikeway needs public hearings and evaluate requests from the public 

(PUC Sec. 9238.5) pursuant to adopted policy to maximize public participation. 
9. Gather and review quarterly statistics on each transit operator as part of the TDA claim approval 

and to monitor trends from year to year by operator and by mode. 
10. Development productivity improvement program in response to performance recommendations. 

 
Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
State Controller’s Report Sep 1 Jan 31  
TDA Allocation instructions and application Apr 202X  
TDA-3 Project Programming July 1, 202X June 30,202X 
Triennial Audit Schedule FY20, FY19, FY18:  Dec 2020 April 2021 
Productivity Improvement Program Annual Ongoing 

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 90 
 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 

 
  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_ADMIN 
Activity ID TDA 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

131



Audits & Reviews                                                                                                     NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element AA-07      

 
ABSTRACT 
In compliance with state and federal requirements and in adhering to the highest standards of fiduciary 
responsibility, the agency undergoes a variety of fiscal, compliance and performance audits. 
 
External Audits 
External auditors will annually audit NVTA's financial statements of governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information in accordance 
with generally accepted auditing standards, the standards set forth for financial audits in the General 
Accounting Office’s (GAO) Government Auditing Standards (1994).  Additional audits that comply with 
the Single Audit Act of 1984 and Uniform Guidance (formerly OMB Circular A-133), as well as a fiscal and 
compliance audit of Transportation Development Act funds which has been expanded to include State 
of Good Repair (SGR) Funds. 
 
TASKS 
1. Submit audits to County Auditor, MTC, and State Controller, and other oversight organizations. 
2. Submit annual “Reports of Financial Transactions” to State Controller. 
3. Administer contract to prepare NVTA fiscal and compliance audits. 
4. Contract with independent auditor and submit scheduled performance audits. 
5. Submit performance audit schedule to Caltrans for future years. 
6. Assess progress made in implementing triennial performance audit recommendations, especially 

the most recent audits for the NVTA, the Transit Authority. 
7. Seek strategies to streamline the number of Performance Audits through consolidation where 

appropriate. 
8. Complete and submit scheduled triennial performance audits and performance reviews 
9. Monitor implementation of prior triennial performance audit recommendations. 
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Preparation of external audit July  Dec 31 
Financial auditors field work September  Sept 
Completion of external and single audit Dec 31  
State Controller’s reports  Jan 31 202X 
TDA Triennial Performance Audit Dec 2020 April 2021 
Prior Performance Audits follow-up As Needed  

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 350 
 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 

 
  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_ADMIN 
Activity ID AUDITS 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

132



Policy Development                                                                                                    NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element AA-08     

 
ABSTRACT 

 
NVTA serves as a policy body for transportation issues in Napa County.  Staff supports this effort by 
development of draft policies.  The draft polices are often an outcome of legislative or regulatory action 
or are generated with the interest of NVTA member jurisdictions and its funding partners. The member 
jurisdictions include the County Board of Supervisors and the city/town councils. Funding partners 
include MTC, Caltrans, and DOT.  Policies are established as part of a long-term planning process but are 
particularly critical for operating the Vine transit system and ancillary services. Since the NVTA Board 
includes an elected official from each of the jurisdictions within the county, its policies and decisions 
directly reflect the concerns and needs of the region within the constraints of federal, state, and the 
MTC region. Conversely, the participation of local elected officials on the Board helps to ensure that 
decisions at the city and county level are informed by an understanding of federal, state, and regional 
considerations.  Current policy considerations include: 
 
TASKS 
1. Development draft polices for board consideration. 
2. Adoption of Policies 
3. Implementation of Policies 
4. Monitor outcome of policies 
 

Products (Stop/Shelter Policy) Beginning Date Ending Date 
Develop draft policy TBD TBD 
Committee presentations (TAC/CAC/PCC) TBD TBD 
Implement policy TBD  
Monitor outcomes Ongoing  

 
ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 170 

 
 
  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_ADMIN 
Activity ID POLICY 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 

133



Measure T Administration                                                                                       NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element AA-09    

Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is the agency that oversees the Transportation Sales Tax 
Expenditure Plan.  NVTA may enter into contract, enact ordinances, issue bonds, and may impose retail 
transactions and use tax ordinances to accomplish its goals as the “Local Transportation Authority and 
Improvement Act” agency.   

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is comprised of twelve voting members, two from each 
member jurisdiction, with each member having one vote (cities of American Canyon, Calistoga, Napa 
and St. Helena, the Town of Yountville and the County of Napa).  NVTA duties include three levels of 
responsibility: (1) day to day operational decisions, (2) amending the Transportation Sales Tax and (3) to 
add/change projects to the Transportation Sales Tax Expenditure Plan. 

On November 26, 2012, Napa County voters approved Measure T, the ½ cent sales tax dedicated 
exclusively to repairing and maintain Napa County’s local streets and roads. Measure T will upgrade, 
pave, and maintain our local roads, as well as fix potholes, improve sidewalks and make our roads safer 
for pedestrians, cars and motorists.  

NVTA DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES and APPROVED POWERS 
1. Sales Tax Authority 
2. Administer Measure T Expenditure Plan 

 
TASKS 
1. Support NVTA Board, Oversight and Advisory committees.  Prepare and distribute agendas, minutes, 

staff reports.  Provide committee meeting minutes to the full board and integrate into staff 
recommendations. 

2. Provide governing board with adequate information for decision-making and program 
management.  Orient all new Board and Committee members. 

 
Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Provide Administrative Support to ITOC Ongoing Ongoing 
Prepare and distribute relevant documents  As needed  Ongoing 
Work with Jurisdictions on MOE, project updates, and 
financial, compliance, or performance audits 

Ongoing Ongoing 

 
 

Fund Source(s) 
General Fund 

 
 
  
 
 
  

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 2,630 

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_ADMIN 
Activity ID MEASURE_T 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

134



Transportation Planning and Programs                          Introduction  
 
NVTA is the principal agency for regional transportation planning in Napa County. In this capacity the 
agency undertakes a host of statutorily required planning initiatives.  In addition, the agency identifies 
needs, scopes service design, initiates and maintains programming and identifies and secures resources 
for addressing the transportation related challenges faced by our jurisdictions along with regional 
partners. 
 
Work Elements Included in this Section: 
            Work Element                   Page 

Regional Transportation Program       TP – 03             -21- 
Countywide Strategic Transportation Planning   TP – 04             -25- 
Transit System Studies and Updates     TP – 05             -27- 
Active Transportation Plan      TP – 06             -28- 
Vine Bus Maintenance Facility     TP – 07             -30- 
Performance/ Compliance Monitoring       TP – 08             -32- 
Vine Trail         TP – 09             -33- 
Census and Graphical Information System Development  TP – 11             -34- 
Transportation for Clean Air      TP – 12             -35- 
State Route 37 Policy Committee     TP – 13             -37- 
Soscol Junction        TP – 14             -38- 
SR29 Improvements Corridor Improvements    TP – 15             -39- 
 

Timesheet/Payroll Information:  CMA Planning and Programs 
Project/Grant: CMA_PLAN_PROG   

Timesheet/Payroll Codes Description 
BIKE_PLAN Bike Plan 
CALTRANS_PLAN Caltrans Planning 
CBTP Community Based Transport Plan 
CENSUS Census/Global Infosys 
COA Comp Operational Analysis 
COUNTYWIDE Countywide Plan 
EXPRESS Express Bus Study 
HIGHWAY_PROG Highway Programming 
MONITORING Subrecipient Monitoring 
NAPA_FORWARD Napa Forward 
PED_PLAN Pedestrian Plan 
PPM Plan Prog Monitoring 
RHNA Regional Housing Needs Allocation 
SR29_AMCAN SR29 American Canyon 
SR29_SR221 SR29-SR221 Soscol Junction 
SRTP Short Range Transit Plan 
TFCA TFCA Admin 
TRANSIT_YARD Transit Yard Planning 
TRANS_PLAN Transportation Planning 
TRAVEL_BEHAV_ST Travel Behavior Study 
VINE_TRAIL Vine Trail 

  

135



Regional Transportation Program                                                                               NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element TP-03     

 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) - Plan Bay Area 2050 
Regional Transportation Planning entails county-level participation to develop and contribute to the RTP, 
which is long-range (usually a 25-year planning horizon), comprehensive and financially constrained, air 
quality conformed and updated every four years. It must include a Sustainable Communities Strategy 
(SCS), be responsive to air quality issues and provide for adequate citizen participation in its 
development. The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) adopted Plan Bay Area 2040 in 2017, 
and NVTA was actively involved in the development of that plan. MTC updates this long-range plan every 
four years.  In 2019, MTC began work on the next plan, Plan Bay Area 2050, and issued a call for 
regionally-significant projects.  In response, NVTA coordinated and submitted regionally-significant 
projects to MTC for review. 
 
As of December 2020, Plan Bay Area 2050 now has a Final Blueprint that seeks to bring affordability 
and accessibility to regional housing and transportation as well as job-creation to boost the regional 
economy and increased investments in environment.  This plan is in part a response to the California 
Air Resources Board greenhouse gas emission reduction of 19%.  MTC and the Association of Bay Area 
Governments (ABAG) will adopt the Plan Bay Area 2050 in 2021.   

The RTP, long-range planning effort grew out of the California Sustainable Communities and Climate 
Protection Act of 2008 (California Senate Bill 375, Steinberg), which requires each of the state’s 18 
metropolitan areas – including the Bay Area – to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from cars and light 
trucks. Plan Bay Area 2040 is a limited and focused update of the region’s previous integrated 
transportation and land use plan, Plan Bay Area, adopted in 2013.  
 
Regional Transportation Planning 
1. Assist in implementing the regional vision through establishing countywide priorities for proposals 

of projects for MTC's RTP. 
2. Partner with regional agencies to implement “Plan Bay Area 2050” and other long-range plans.  
3. Assist in the development and implementation of regional, countywide and local actions to address 

the goals and targets established in SB 375 and AB 32, in coordination with MTC and ABAG. 
4. Develop and maintain prioritized countywide project lists. 
5. Oversee administration of the One Bay Area Grant 1 (OBAG) and 2 Programs.  
6. Update the Priority Development Area (PDA) Investment and Growth Strategy and assist local 

jurisdictions in PDA planning efforts  
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Administer OBAG1 Program  Ongoing  
Administer OBAG 2 Program Ongoing  
Update PDA Investment and Growth Strategy  Periodically  

 
  Fund Source(s) 

Surface Transportation Program 
Federal Highway Administration 
Congestion Management Air Quality 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 310 

136

http://mtc.ca.gov/our-work/plans-projects/plan-bay-area-2040/plan-bay-area


Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) 
NVTA is responsible for preparing, adopting and submitting a RTIP to the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission for consideration and adoption by the California Transportation Commission (CTC) every 
odd year. The RTIP identifies the region’s transportation programming recommendations for the State 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) that is adopted by the CTC for the five (5) fiscal year period 
beginning July 1st of every even year. NVTA’s most recent RTIP was adopted in 2019.  
 
As part of the management of the RTIP, NVTA may need to make programming amendments to the 
RTIP and the STIP. These amendments will need to be reviewed with the public prior to adoption by 
the Board. Amendments to the RTIP will be done in consultation with the cities, town, county, Caltrans, 
and the public through the NVTA Technical Advisory Committee. Providing noticed public meetings of 
the advisory committees and NVTA Board will also provide opportunity for public participation. 
 
In addition, NVTA will develop the next RTP in consultation with the cities, town, county, Caltrans, the 
public, and the NVTA Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC). Public noticed meetings of the advisory 
committee and NVTA Board will also provide public participation opportunities throughout the planning 
process. Projects identified in the 2018 RTIP will be consistent with Plan Bay Area 2040 and 2017 Federal 
Transportation Improvement Program. 
 
TASKS 

1. Work with Caltrans District IV, MTC, CTC, and member jurisdictions on the current RTIP and 
amendments. 

2. Ensure consistency between RTIP, FTIP, and RTP. 
3. Work with TAC, Caltrans, MTC, and Board of Directors on development of 2018 RTIP list of 

projects. 
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Amend and monitor the 2020 RTIP and projects As needed  

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  

Fund Source(s) 
Surface Transportation Program 
Federal Highway Administration 
Congestion Management Air Quality 

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_PLAN_PRGMS 
Activity ID HIGHWAY_PROG 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

137



Transportation Improvement Plan (TIP) 
The TIP is a four-year multi-modal program of transportation projects that is consistent with the 
statewide transportation plan and planning processes, the metropolitan plans, and the Federal 
Transportation Improvement Programs (TIP). For the Bay Area, the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission is the responsible agency for developing the TIP.  It contains all federally funded projects 
and projects that are deemed regionally significant.  The MTC TIP is submitted to Caltrans, the Federal 
Transit Administration, and the Federal Highway Administration and forms a part of the Federal State 
Transportation Improvement Program (FSTIP).   
 
NVTA also ensures that the general public has full opportunity to participate in the regional planning 
process, through hearings, meetings and project-specific outreach activities. NVTA conducts a 
continuous, cooperative, coordinated, and comprehensive planning process with the general public, 
member agencies, MTC, Caltrans, and affected parties. A key dimension of this is to meet the 
requirements of MTC’s public participation plan. In addition, NVTA evaluates local project planning 
documents for system-wide implications, including future traffic levels and alternatives for potential cost 
savings for integration into the RTP. 
 
Surface Transportation Improvement Plan 
The STIP is a multi-year capital improvement program of transportation projects on and off the State 
Highway System, funded with revenues from the Transportation Investment Fund and other funding 
sources. STIP programming generally occurs every two years. The programming cycle begins with the 
release of a proposed fund estimate in July of odd-numbered years, followed by California 
Transportation Commission (CTC) adoption of the fund estimate in August (odd years). The fund 
estimate serves to identify the amount of new funds available for the programming of transportation 
projects. Once the fund estimate is adopted, Caltrans and the regional planning agencies prepare 
transportation improvement plans for submittal by December 15th (odd years). Caltrans prepare the 
Interregional Transportation Improvement Plan (ITIP) and regional agencies prepare Regional 
Transportation Improvement Plans (RTIPs).  Public hearings are held in January (even years) in both 
northern and southern California. The STIP is adopted by the CTC by April (even years).  
 
TASKS 
Transportation Improvement Plan 
1. Submit necessary amendments to the 2020 TIP through a public hearing process; manage and file 

TIP amendments as necessary. 
2. Assure projects are fiscally constrained and reflect accurate cost information to reflect the latest 

available information and include an estimate of the total project costs. 
3. Monitor programmed project progress, review schedules and monitor costs; participate in 

interagency meetings to facilitate project delivery; reprogram funding, if necessary. 
4. Prepare status of projects report for NVTA board review. 

 
State Transportation Improvement Program 
1. Work with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), as appropriate, to nominate projects 

for inclusion or exclusion in the STIP. 
2. Once projects are programmed, begin the project implementation process to insure timely use of 

funds. 
 
 

138



 
Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Continue to Monitor RTP Projects in the TIP  Ongoing  
Administer the local 2020 STIP process through the RTIP 
call for projects.  

May 2020            

 

 

 
Surface Transportation Program 
Approximately every six years, the U.S. Congress adopts a surface transportation act - Congress’s 
authorization to spend tax dollars on highways, streets, roads, transit and other transportation related 
projects. The majority of Surface Transportation Authorization Act funding flows to the states, and in 
California these funds are administered by Caltrans. However, Caltrans assigns a significant portion of 
two of the programs, the Surface Transportation Program (STP) and the Congestion Mitigation & Air 
Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), and 
other regional planning agencies to be used at their own discretion, subject to federal regulations. MTC 
develops and administers its own funding programs using STP and CMAQ funds to target Bay Area 
transportation needs according to the priorities of our Regional Transportation Plan.  
 
Adoption of the legislation and its related funding programs and apportionments triggers a re-evaluation 
and realignment and prioritization of local projects programmed for our jurisdiction. 
 
TASKS 
1. Evaluate implications of new legislation. 
2. Collaborate with local jurisdictions to identify and prioritize projects. 
3. Update TIP and related plans and documents. 
4. Administer STP and CMAQ call for projects under OBAG.  
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Update TIP and related plans and documents Ongoing  
Monitor the OBAG 2 projects and assist local 
jurisdictions in meeting project delivery deadlines 

Ongoing  

 

 
Fund Source(s) 
Surface Transportation Program 
Federal Highway Administration 
Congestion Management Air Quality 

 
 

  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_PLAN_PRGMS 
Activity ID HIGHWAY_PROG 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
Surface Transportation Program 
Congestion Management Air Quality 
Federal Highway Administration 

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_PLAN_PRGMS 
Activity ID HIGHWAY_PROG 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

139



Countywide Strategic Transportation Planning                                           NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element TP-04     

 
NVTA conducts specific planning and programming activities to identify and prioritize transportation 
projects throughout Napa County and to assist the MTC in meeting the requirements of federal 
legislation and related State and regional planning and programming policies and guidelines. This 
includes coordination of local interests and ongoing participation in the regional Partnership. 
 
The Countywide Strategic Transportation Plan (CTP) contains specific policies, strategies and 
improvements to reduce traffic congestion and improve the performance of countywide multi-modal 
transportation systems. Examples of strategies include increased emphasis on public transportation and 
rideshare programs, mitigating the impacts of new development, and better coordinating land use and 
transportation planning decisions.  NVTA maintains this program in an effort to improve air quality and 
maximize the use of existing transportation systems. 
 
TASKS 
1. Maintain and update the Countywide Strategic Transportation Plan – “Advancing Mobility 2045.” 
2. Conduct special studies and/or plans such as a Local Freight Study, Corridor Management Plan, etc. 
3. Conduct multi-modal studies of travel behavior. 
4. Coordinate with ABAG, MTC, and other jurisdictions on regional ridesharing and alternative 

transportation efforts. 
5. Coordinate with local and regional air districts on alternative transportation programs 
6. Develop and maintain Countywide prioritized project list consistent with the region's goals, including 

reduction in vehicle miles traveled (VMT) and greenhouse gases (GHGs), including multi-modal 
priorities, as input to the RTP/SCS, Transportation Improvement Program, Regional Transportation 
Improvement Program/State Transportation Improvement Program, and sales tax expenditure 
plans. Solicit input from the full range of transportation stakeholders, including local jurisdictions, 
transit operators and users, bicycle and pedestrian interests, and community organizations and 
members. 

7. Provide marketing and support of alternative transportation programs throughout Napa County. 
8. Play an active role in planning and programming State and federal funds. 
9. In cooperation with local jurisdictions, monitor traffic counts, levels of service, land use impacts, 

mitigation measures, transportation demand management activities, and capital improvements to 
evaluate their impact on congestion. 

10. Develop the update of planning documents with input from local agencies. Incorporate new data 
collected and revise as appropriate. Evaluate potential new performance measures 

11. Develop fund estimates. 
12. Identify issues and develop policies to address challenges. 
13. Maintain and update the Napa-Solano Travel Demand Model. 
14. Assess traffic count data, implementation of amended CEQA review process, and adopted TDM 

programs. 
15. Review, comment on, and approve transportation models used by local jurisdictions for traffic 

analyses. 
  

140



16. As needed, provide model-based analysis of proposed transportation system projects. 
17. Attend MTC committee meetings including Transit Finance Working Group, Programming 

Development Working Group, Regional Advisory Working Group, and Partnership Technical Advisory 
Committee meetings. 

 
Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Development of “Advancing Mobility 2045” CTP Ongoing April 2021 
Staff report with recommendations Ongoing  
Maintenance update to the Napa Solano Travel 
Demand Model 

Ongoing   

Participate in Hwy 37 Discussions with North Bay 
Group 

Current  Ongoing 

Conduct Special Transportation Studies or Plans  Ongoing  
Countywide Pedestrian Master Plan  Pending Pending 

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 520 
 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
Federal Transportation Administration 
Federal Highway Administration- State 
Transportation Program 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_PLAN_PRGMS 
Activity ID COUNTYWIDE; CBTP 
Resource Cat OFUND; FED 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

141



Transit  System Studies and Updates                                                                       NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element TP-05    

 
ABSTRACT 
NVTA is responsible for the provision of fixed route, paratransit and specialized transit services within 
Napa County. Studies of the current system will be used to conduct an analysis of the system and 
recommend feasible route and schedule changes to improve service levels. 
 
TASKS 
1. Identify areas not currently served by public transit where the public has expressed a desire to have 

access to this service. 
2. Identify areas served by the current transit system that are underutilized.  As well, consider extending 

routes to enhance the transit services.   
3. Analysis should include a review of (1) planned development (housing, schools and 

commercial/retail) for future demand; (2) travel times; (3) employment centers or annual/seasonal 
events that depend upon public transit; and (4) driver scheduling. 

4. Conduct ridership surveys to capture boarding’s and alighting’s, and passenger opinions (routing, 
scheduling, ITS improvements, ride experience, bus stop amenities, fares, convenience, etc.). 

5. Seek input from community groups and organizations whose clients may be transit dependent. 
6. Identify service reductions due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  
 
Project studies may include but are not limited to: 
 

• Express Bus Study Update 
• Peak Load and Capacity/growth estimates  
• Shelter priority list 
• Emergency and Safety Plan 
• Short Range Transit Plan updates 
• Computer Aided Dispatch/Automatic Vehicle Locator RFP 

 
Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Conduct Ridership Surveys Ongoing  
   

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 1,250 

 
 
  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_PLAN_PRGMS 
Activity ID COUNTYWIDE; CBTP 
Resource Cat OFUND; FED 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
Federal Highway Administration 
Special one-time grants 

142



Active Transportation Planning                                                                                  NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element TP-06     

 
ABSTRACT 
Bicycle and pedestrian planning is increasing in saliency not only because of improved funding capacity 
through various Federal and State programs, but also as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic as residents 
seek alternative fitness outlets due to the shelter-in-place and closures and limited capacities of fitness 
facilities.  There is renewed State emphasis on funding bicycle and pedestrian facilities through the Active 
Transportation Program (ATP) which consolidated the Federal Transportation Alternatives Program 
(TAP), State Bicycle Transportation Account (BTA), Federal Safe Routes to School (SRTS), and State Safe 
Routes to School (SR2S) into one program. Local agencies are encouraged to update their individually 
adopted bicycle plans to remain eligible for bicycle and pedestrian grant funding opportunities. 
 
In September 2008, the Governor signed into law AB 1358, the California Complete Streets Act of 2008. 
This new mandate requires local agencies to plan for a balanced, multimodal transportation network 
that meets the needs of all users of streets, roads, and highways upon any substantive revision of the 
circulation elements of the general plan. In addition to assisting in the reduction of greenhouse gas 
emissions pursuant to the requirements of AB 32, the complete streets program is intended to make the 
most efficient use of urban land and transportation infrastructure, and improve public health by 
encouraging physical activity through the planning and construction of additional bicycle and pedestrian 
facilities transportation demand management and air quality. 
  
NVTA is committed to VMT reduction by increasing active transportation mode share throughout Napa 
County.  NVTA’s most recent Bike Plan was published in September 2019.   
 
TASKS 

1. Serve as the regional active transportation coordinator for Napa County.  
2. Create, maintain and facilitate the development of a comprehensive, safe and interconnected 

surface transportation system (roadway, bikeway, trail and pedestrian system). 
3. Develop finance strategies and identify priority transportation projects for ATP funding. 
4. Improve pedestrian and bicycle safety around schools and senior facilities and transit by 

coordinating through safe routes programming. 
5. Identify best practices for all modes and disseminate information to member agencies.  

 
Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Update Countywide Pedestrian Master Plan  July 2021  
Conduct planning activities (including corridor studies, and 
other bicycle and pedestrian planning studies) to identify 
and develop candidate projects for future Transportation 
Improvement Programs. 

Ongoing 
 

 

Provide input to Caltrans and local jurisdictions on bike and 
pedestrian plans and projects: review for consistency with 
local jurisdictions and State Complete Streets 
requirements, recommend changes if inconsistent, require 
changes/ collaborate on changes if projects are to be 
funded with regional funds, consistent with projects listed 
in Information Elements; attend technical meetings to 

Ongoing 
 

 

143



ensure consistency during project development and across 
regional boundaries. Examples of plans/projects to 
comment on: Circulation elements, bike plans, Napa Vine 
trail, etc. 
Work with Caltrans, Amtrak, and applicable jurisdictions to 
promote bicycle accommodations on trains and at stations. 

Ongoing  

Send announcements to local jurisdictions and agencies on 
the availability of grants: Active Transportation, 
Transportation Alternatives. 

Ongoing  

 
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Coordinate and participate with bicycle and 
pedestrian advisory groups. 

Ongoing  

Maintain and update inventory of bike routes, bike 
facilities/pathways, including data on pedestrian, and 
bike access to transit, and bikeway conditions around 
schools, transit and senior facilities. 

Ongoing  

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 900 
 

Fund Source(s) 
Surface Transportation Program 
General Funds 
Transportation Development Act 

 
 
 
  
 
  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_PLAN_PRGMS 
Activity ID PED_PLAN 
Resource Cat OFUND; FED 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

144



Vine Bus Maintenance Facility                                                                      NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element TP-07     

 
ABSTRACT 
NVTA’s Vine bus system has purchased undeveloped property to construct a new operations and 
maintenance facility.  At current growth trends, NVTA’s revenue fleet is expected to grow from 80 to 100 
vehicles in the next 20 years, and the space deficiency for bus parking and operations will soon affect 
NVTA’s ability to adequately maintain and operate its fleet.   In addition to space deficiency for fleet 
parking and operations is will soon affect NVTA’s ability to adequately maintain and operate its fleet.  
The two parcels were purchased in September 2016 and has completed the environmental process. 
Kimley-Horn, the Architectural and Engineering (A&E) consultants was hired to complete the design 
plans, and the Invitation for Bid (IFB) will be posted in February 2021. The Maintenance Facility is 
expected to be in service in the Winter of 2023. 
 
The proposed design includes a quality 31,504 sq. ft. facility to be built with LEED principles with at least 
a 40 year design life.  It will also include six service bays, a chassis wash, a paint and body bay, a modern 
bus wash, driver training center with meeting space, ample parking for transit vehicles (up to 90 buses), 
ample parking for employees and visitors, battery storage, EV charging stations, and a 141kW 
photovoltaic power generation system. In addition, the facility will also include a new Transit Emergency 
Operations Center, which includes backup power for essential services for 72 hours.  This is essential 
given the recent evacuations performed by the Vine bus fleet during the fires of 2017 and 2020.  The 
Vine bus fleet is also actively participates in COVID-19 relief services such as food and laundry transport 
for essential workers and food banks.  
 
The funding plan for this project leverages the cooperation and financial assistance of multiple agencies 
at federal, regional, state and local levels.  NVTA is in the process of obtaining a Transportation 
Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act (TIFIA) loan through which NVTA qualifies for additional 
beneficial loan terms under the Rural Project Initiative program.  Because there is continued legal 
challenges with Regional Measure 3 funding, NVTA is also in the process of obtaining private loan gap-
funding until the California Supreme Court rules on the case.   
TASKS 

1. Obtain TIFIA Loan through the Build America Bureau. . 
2. Obtain private bank loan.  
3. Secure FTA-FHWA Flex approval 
4. Approve Construction Company and begin construction.  

 
Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Finalize Financing and Funding Plan  Feb 2021 
Contract with financial and legal consultants for 
TIFIA  

2018 August 2020 

Construction Bid IFB March 2021 March 2021 
Construction Summer 2021 Winter 2022 
In-Service/Occupancy Winter 2022  

 
 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 1,440 

145



 
Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
Federal Transit Administration 
U.S. Department of Transportation, Build 
America Bureau (TIFIA) 
STA State of Good Repair 
SB1 LPP 
Private Financing 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_PLAN_PRGMS, 

CMA_Admin 
Activity ID TRANSIT_YARD, 

FINANCE 
Resource Cat OFUND; FED 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

146



Performance/Compliance Monitoring                                                                   NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element TP-08     

 
ABSTRACT 
Monitor performance and compliance of NVTA grant funded programs administered by subrecipients.  
Continuous monitoring of all State and Federal programming documents is necessary to ensure that all 
projects can move smoothly towards implementation. Staff will work with project sponsors or other 
appropriate agencies to make certain these documents to reflect the most current information and that 
no funding is lost. 
 
TASKS 

1. Prepare subrecipient funding agreements. 
2. Review and approve as needed subrecipient invoices and quarterly reports. 
3. Monitor subrecipient compliance with federal requirements. 
4. Submit reports as required. 
5. Conduct program and compliance audits. 

 
Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Tasks 1-5 Ongoing  

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 340 
 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
Safe Routes to Schools grant (Federal) 
Special grant funds 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_PLAN_PRGMS 
Activity ID SRTS 
Resource Cat OFUND; FED 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

147



Vine Trail                                                                                                                   NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element TP-09      

 
The multi-phase, multi-year project would consist of a bike and pedestrian use trail that will eventually 
traverse the County from Calistoga in the north to the San Francisco Ferry Terminal in Vallejo at its 
southern terminus. The multi-use trail would provide access to bucolic winery and river views and add 
an important recreational amenity for residents and visitors.  
 
St. Helena to Calistoga segment 
Completion of the project initiation documents (PID) on the Calistoga to St. Helena segment. This 
segment will construct an additional 9.4 miles of Class I bicycle and pedestrian facility in the Napa Valley.  
The portion of the trail that will be constructed will be within Napa County from Pratt Ave in St. Helena 
to Lincoln Ave. in Calistoga, along the State Route 29 corridor.  
 
TASKS 
1. Manage Vine Trail St. Helena to Calistoga segment construction project and closeout. 
2. Support efforts for St. Helena to Calistoga segment. 
3. Support efforts for other segments of Vine Trail. 
4. Coordinate and meet with Vine Trail Coalition, member jurisdictions, TAC, and other stakeholders..  
5. Create and submit expenditure reimbursement requests for funding agencies. 
4.   Monitor contractor performance and DBE compliance. 
5.   Identify new funding sources. 
 

Products  Ending Date 
Approve CEQA Mitigated Negative Declaration 
of St. Helena to Calistoga segment 

August 2020 

Complete Technical Studies  
Complete Cultural and Tribal Consultations  
Construction Progress reports Ongoing 
Stakeholder meetings Ongoing 
Site scoping for other segments Ongoing 

 
 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 1,070 
 

Fund Source(s) 
County of Napa 
TFCA 
TDA-3 
ATP 
OBAG 2 
Bay Area 
City of Calistoga, St. Helena 
Vine Trail Coalition 

  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_PLAN_PRGMS 
Activity ID VINE_TRAIL 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

148



Census and Geographic Information System Development                              NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element TP-11     

 
Census and Geographical Information System 
Acting in its capacity as a planning organization, the agency is called upon to maintain, update and 
disseminate statistical data and information. 
 
TASKS 
1. Provide Census data and related support to staff, member jurisdictions, news media, and the general 

public. 
2. Compile, analyze and disseminate socioeconomic and demographic data from US Census and other 

data, including: Census American Community Survey (ACS) products, Regional Profile(s), Census 
reports, State Department of Finance (DOF) population estimates and projections and other available 
data to the public and other agencies as necessary. 

3. Work with local agencies to implement a comprehensive program for the analysis, geo-coding, and 
incorporation of data available from the US Census, including the latest multi-year American 
Community Survey (ACS) data series release, and the final address match list data for the 2010 
Census to improve local and regional planning efforts, including the Regional Traffic Model, Regional 
Transportation Plan and local General Plans. 

4. Data research and analysis for draft plans, studies, and projects. 
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Tasks 1-6 above As needed/ on-going  

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 20 
 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_PLAN_PRGMS 
Activity ID CENSUS 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

149



Geographical Information System (GIS) Development 
ABSTRACT 
This sub-program aims establish and improve integration of various data and information related to 
Napa County planning and transit. The purpose of GIS is to provide comprehensive information and 
visualization tools to members of the community and policy makers in order to gain a better 
understanding of County’s transportation characteristics, issues and challenges.  Enhancing mapping 
capabilities will significantly improve agency decision tools and enhance agency communications and 
public outreach capabilities. This new capability will also foster data sharing opportunities with other 
public agencies throughout the region, state, and country and maximize data capabilities while 
improving agency efficiencies. The means to accomplish this objective include: coordinating 
development and sharing of planning data and information within and throughout the region, state, 
nation and integrating GIS applications with data and other modeling tools, and generating useful GIS 
automation for mapping and analysis. 
 
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Input into draft plans, studies, and projects Ongoing  
Document outreach meetings and outreach efforts Ongoing  
Develop consensus regional growth estimates and 
forecasts 

Ongoing  

Develop data models based upon population growth, 
employment, transit usage 

Ongoing  

Collaborate with MPO’s/state agencies to improve 
forecasting data sources, methodology, assumptions, 
and general approach 

Ongoing  

 

 
Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_PLAN_PRGMS 
Activity ID MODELING 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

150



Transportation for Clean Air (TFCA)                                                                          NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element TP-12      

 
ABSTRACT 
NVTA annually allocates funds generated under AB 434. The funding is generated from a $4 vehicle 
license fee imposed by the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) and is known as 
Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA).  40% of these funds are returned to the NVTA for distribution 
to local projects.  TFCA funds are awarded to projects that achieve emission reductions from motor 
vehicles.  NVTA is the Program Manager for this portion of funding.  
 
NVTA coordinates with the County and its jurisdictions on transportation-related air quality planning, 
analysis, documentation and policy implementation conducted on a local and regional level.  Agency 
staff facilitates interagency consultation, holds annual call-for-projects on the TFCA Program and 
provides support to local project sponsors in submitting timely and cost-effective projects to the Air 
District.   
 
TASKS 
1. Administer program in accordance with sound management/financial principles and in compliance 

with Air District regulations and provisions. 
2. Review participant’s project information forms, cost effectiveness sheets, and reporting forms.   
2. Submit all required reports within scheduled due dates. 
3. Develop, adopt, submit, and adhere to policies, procedures, budgets, and audits. 
4. Submit eligible projects by due dates provided by BAAQMD. 
5. Encumber and expend funds within two years of receipt of funds.  
6. Review and evaluate TFCA programs for effectiveness and planning purposes. 
7. Develop and adopt local criteria for the expenditure of TFCA funds. 
8. Hold one or more public meetings each year for the purpose of adopting criteria for expenditure of 

the funds and to review expenditure of revenues received.  
9. Attend/Participate in Air District TFCA Program Manager Workshops.   
10. Program eligible projects by due dates provided by BAAQMD. 
 

Products Beginning 
Date 

Ending Date 

Attend TFCA Program Manager Workshops Ongoing  
Submit claim forms for reimbursement of expenses Ongoing  
NVTA Board Approval Projects  July  
Submit semi-annual and annual report(s)   May/October 
Project allocation list due to BAAQMD  November  
NVTA Board approval of FY Expenditure Plan  February  
Biennial Audits Spring  

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 200 
                                                                                                    

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation for Clean Air 

 

151



State Route 37 Policy Committee                                                                                NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element TP-13     

 
The SR37 Policy Committee seeks to obtain funding to address sea level rise and congestion issues that 
plague the current corridor. Collectively, all four (4) North Bay County Transportation Authorities, 
Caltrans and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) are working together on planning, 
environmental and design activities on the corridor.  
 
TASKS 
1. Improve SR37 between I-80 in Solano County to address sea level rise and 

reduce congestion. 
2. Collaborate on SR37 Project Leadership Team 
3. Collaborate on SR37 Executive Steering Committee 
4. Collaborate on SR37 Policy Committee 
5. Collaborate with MTC on a Comprehensive Multimodal Corridor Plan (CMCP) 

and Environmental Document  
6. Work on the Segment B Environmental and Design  
7. Work on Corridor Planning and Environmental Linkages (PEL) document  
8. Seek legislation for tolling on the corridor  
 
Products Beginning 

Date 
Ending Date 

Attend SR37 Policy Committee Meetings Quarterly  
SR37 CMCP  Monthly   
SR37 Corridor Financial Opportunities Analysis   
SR 37 Interim Segment B Environmental Document    
   
SR37 Corridor Planning and Environmental Linkages (PEL)     
SR37 Legislation    

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 350 

Fund Source(s) 
 

  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_PLAN_PRGMS 
Activity ID  
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 
  

152



Soscol Junction Improvements                                                                                  NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element TP-14      

 

The purpose of the Soscol Junction Project is to alleviate congestion and improve traffic operations at 
the Soscol Junction (SR 29/221/Soscol Ferry Road) Intersection. The signalized intersection of SR 221 and 
SR 29 is currently experiencing traffic congestion during am and pm daily peak periods and is operating 
at or near capacity. Traffic projections indicate that peak hour traffic volumes would increase by 29% 
and 32% on SR 29 and SR 221, respectively, by the year 2039. These projected traffic volumes would be 
significantly higher than the capacity of this intersection. The project is anticipated to reduce peak hour 
queue times by 90% by removing the traffic signal and replacing it with a north-south free flowing 
overpass on SR 29 and double roundabouts underneath SR29 to allow for continuous movement of 
vehicles.  The two roundabouts will be located on SR221 north of SR29 and Soscol Ferry Rd south of 
SR29.  The roundabouts will accommodate turning movements on and off the highways.  Vine Transit 
regional routes that connect to Vallejo Ferry, El Cerrito Del Norte BART and Amtrak/Capitol Corridor in 
Suisun City all use this intersection and the improvements will save an average of 2.6 hours in daily 
running times. 
 

The project will also include a class I shared-use path around the intersection to accommodate bicycles 
and pedestrians. These actions will also reduce head-on collisions by 90%, reduce all collisions types by 
66%, and reduce CO2 emissions. The class I path will connect to a class II facility on Devlin Road, south 
of the intersection, and eventually align with the planned Vine Trail class I facility to be constructed 
adjacent to Devlin Road.   
 

In December 2020, NVTA was awarded $25 million under the competitive SB 1 Solutions for Congested 
Corridor (SCC) grant by the California Transportation Commission (CTC). This award completes the 
project funding plan, totaling $64 million.  It is anticipated that the project design will be fully completed 
by summer 2021 and construction will commence in summer 2022.  
 
Project Status – The environmental document was certified in February 2020; the project is currently in 
design at 65% plans complete with anticipated 100% design by spring 2021.  The agency is currently 
working on PS&E which is scheduled to be completed in spring 2021.  The project is on schedule to 
start construction in summer 2022.  
 
NVTA is coordinating efforts with the County of Napa to accelerate improvements at Soscol Ferry and 
Devlin Roads so that this intersection can be delivered by Caltrans on a similar timeline as Soscol 
Junction (SR 29/SR 221). 
 
TASKS 

1. Project coordination and collaboration with Caltrans. 
2. Administer design consultant contract. 
3. Submit all required grant reports within scheduled due dates. 
4. Develop, adopt, submit, and adhere to policies. 

 
  

153



Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Provide project oversight. Staff will provide oversight as the 
grant recipient and participate in the project development 
team. 

Ongoing  

Design Phase April 2019 Summer 2021 
Construction Phase Summer 2022 Fall 2023 

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 740 
 

 
 

  
Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_PLAN_PRGMS 
Activity ID SR29_SR221 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

Fund Source(s) 
STIP 
Local Developer 
SB1 SCC 
LPP Formula 

154

javascript:doUpdateParent(document.win0,'#ICRow14');


State Route 29 Corridor Improvements                                                               NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element TP-15      

 
As a major rural highway, SR 29 provides circulation between the cities of American Canyon, Napa, St. 
Helena, Calistoga and the Town of Yountville. It also provides access to Oakville and Rutherford which 
are noteworthy destinations within Napa Valley’s renowned Wine Country.  SR 29 also serves as a 
major east/west corridor for the four North Bay counties.  The SR 29 projects will provide congestion 
relief, economic growth, multimodal operational and safety improvements to the stretch of SR 29 
between American Canyon Road to the south and SR 12 (Carneros Highway) to the north.  
Improvements include: 
 

Soscol Junction – SR 29/SR221/Soscol Ferry Road Intersection and operational improvements at SR 
29/SR 221/ Soscol Ferry Road to include removal of the traffic signal and construction of a grade 
separated SR 29 which will provide free flow north-south movement on SR 29 via elevated structure; 
SR 221 will remain at-grade; two roundabouts will accommodate turning movements north and south 
of SR 29 at SR 221 and Soscol Ferry Road.  The project will also improve bicycle and pedestrian 
movements at this intersection by providing 1,200 linear feet of class I facilities around the 
intersection.       

 
Carneros – SR 29/SR121/SR12 Channelization of north SR 29 free-flow through movement; traffic 
turning left from SR 12 onto SR 29 merges via slip lane; free right hand turn from south SR 29 onto 
westbound SR 121.  

Project Status – preliminary design work has been completed; next step is to move into Caltrans PEER 
process   
 
Airport – SR 29/SR12/Jameson & Airport Blvd Phase I 
Intersection improvements include lengthening of northbound and southbound left-hand turn lanes on 
SR 29; additional queue lane on southbound SR 29 (HOV peak period queue jumps); free right hand 
turn lanes from Airport to southbound SR 29, from SR 12 onto northbound SR 29, from SR 29 to 
eastbound SR 12-Jamieson; and from south SR 29 onto Airport Blvd.  Signal improvements and 
connectivity between the signal at Airport SR29/SR12 and the SR 12/Kelly Road Signal.  
Project Status – preliminary design work to qualify for Caltrans PEER review process  
 
Airport – SR 29/SR 12/Jameson & Airport Blvd Phase II  
The intersection of SR 29 & Airport Blvd/SR 12 would be transformed from an at-grade signalized 
intersection into a grade-separate roundabout interchange. It is still to be determined if SR 29 would 
be improved to either an overcrossing structure or depressed (sunk into the ground) design. The 
Airport Boulevard / SR 12 roadway would become a double roundabout “dogbone” with a single 
westbound lane and two eastbound lanes. Roundabouts are also proposed at Airport Boulevard & 
Devlin Road, and SR 29 & North/South Kelly Road. 
Project Status – need to complete preliminary design work and environmental document  
 
  

155



American Canyon Multimodal and Operational Improvements  
Project would include transit, bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure on SR 29 from Napa Junction Road 
to American Canyon Road.  Work to include signal operational improvements and adaptive technology, 
possible intersection operational improvements (roundabouts) removal of traffic signals, queue jumps, 
auxiliary lanes, etc; street beautification and pedestrian refuge; signage and wayfinding improvements.   
Project Status – CMCP completed on the corridor in May 2020 and Project Initiation Documents (PID) 
work to be completed by spring 2021. 
 
Napa Forward 
In coordination with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and Caltrans, make 
improvements on SR 29/Madison, SR 29/Oakville, and SR 29/Rutherford.  The projects include 
removing signals and identifying approaches to make multimodal safety improvements, reduce speeds, 
and improve turning operations. 
 
TASKS 
1. Coordinate with Caltrans and partnering agencies to improve SR 29 corridor operations and safety, 

and implement complete street improvements at major highway intersections throughout Napa 
Valley. 

2. Improve corridor aesthetics to conform to Napa County’s design context, including landscaping and 
roadway improvements. 

3. Enhance safety and implement complete street improvements.  
4. Coordinate with Caltrans on State Highway Operations and Protection Program maintenance 

priorities and litter control. 
5. Promote private sector involvement and encourage involvement in programs designed to 

encourage private participation in the beautification of the highway. 
6. Seek state and federal funding and develop other techniques to finance improvements. 

 
Products  Ending Date 
Project oversight.  Staff will provide oversight as the grant recipient and 
participate in the project development team.  

Ongoing 

Multimodal Project SR29/American Canyon – PID phase October 2021 
Coordinate with Caltrans and MTC on Napa Forward improvements Ongoing 
SR 29/SR 12 Sonoma Highway – PS&E  

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 685 

 
  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_PLAN_PRGMS 
Activity ID SR29_AMCAN 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

156



Multimodal Mobility Management                                              Introduction 
 
Both the natural geography and desire to preserve agricultural lands has allowed Napa County to retain 
its mostly rural character and limit expanding its transportation highway infrastructure.  At the same 
time, growth in the southern portion of the county and the county’s expanding tourist economy have 
contributed to traffic congestion on the County’s roadway system. While an expanded roadway is cost 
prohibitive given funding constraints, it is also not desired in many parts of the county.  A large portion 
of our community either cannot drive (youth, some disabled and elderly, and low-income populations) 
or choose not to drive.  These two factors create additional opportunities to encourage non-auto use 
and provide additional resources for individuals that cannot drive.    
 
Travel Demand primarily focuses on encouraging individuals to switch from single occupancy auto mode 
to another mode.  In that endeavor, NVTA partners with other organizations to disseminate information 
about other modes such as transit and van pools. Internally, NVTA has employed demand management 
by expanding the Vine and creating promotional opportunities to encourage greater transit ridership.  
NVTA rebranded the Solano/Napa Commuter Information (SNCI) to V-Commute, to encourage 
alternative commuter options such as transit, vanpools, carpools, biking and walking.  Likewise, NVTA 
works with its partnering jurisdictions and a number of Napa Valley’s non-profit organizations to 
encourage alternative forms of transportation.    
 
Travel demand may also involve employing certain technologies to improve system operations.  This 
could include corridor management which employs signal timing, traffic alerts, changeable message 
signs, metering and other techniques that improve traffic flow or minimize congestion. 
 
Mobility Management programs are intended to improve mobility for members of the community that 
cannot drive by pairing an individual with the right solution.  NVTA partners with its jurisdictions and a 
number of non-profit organizations to provide a number of mobility options including fixed route transit, 
paratransit, shared vehicle program and subsidized taxi scrip.   
Combined, NVTA’s travel demand programs: 
 

• Facilitate the transportation choices for travelers and commuters 
• Encourage mode shift from auto to other modes 
• Improve system operations (through alternative modes) 
• Enhance emergency response by public safety officials 
• Support investment decisions 

 
Work Elements Included in this Section:          Work Element             Page 
 

V-Commute Ride Share      MM – 01  -43- 
Mobility Management Programs For Special Need Populations MM – 02  -45- 
Transportation Network Companies                               MM – 03  -46- 

 
 
 
  

157



V-Commute Regional Rideshare                                                                                NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element MM-01     

 
ABSTRACT 
In an effort to promote residents and visitors to use alternative transportation modes, NVTA places an 
emphasis on promoting single occupancy vehicle alternatives. NVTA will offer resources and incentives 
that encourage a modal shift from single occupancy to other modes. NVTA is committed to reducing 
travel demand through rideshare coordination, employer commute solutions education, and public 
awareness of alternative modes of transportation. 
 
NVTA contracts with RideAmigos, a premier Mobility as a Service (MaaS) platform provider to provide 
the Napa region rideshare program, V-Commute. This includes rideshare matching for vanpool and 
carpool, guaranteed ride home, and other programs to encourage alternative commute modes.  NVTA 
also provides two Commuter express bus routes offer single occupancy vehicle alternatives for riders 
commuting south into the Bay Area (Express Route 29), and east into Solano County (Napa-Solano 
Express Route 21). 
 
Tasks 
The V-Commute Work Element includes the following major elements: 
 
1. Expand employer outreach in a targeted marketing effort. 
2. Provide the general public with personalized rideshare, transit, and other non-drive alone trip 

planning through teleservices, internet and through other means.  Continue to incorporate regional 
customer service tools such as MTC MERGE (formerly 511.or rideshare) program. 

3. Market directly to commuters – with outreach campaigns at the worksite. (Including Regional 
Routes 21 & 29):  

• Coordination between the local chambers of commerce and other business 
organizations. 

• Develop and implement countywide Napa Commute Challenges through the larger 
employers in Napa County.  

• Campaign with regional vanpool programs and rideshare resources in a collaborative 
support system that provides assistance with vanpool and carpool formations and 
retention.  

• Provide customers with alternative modes of transportation information.  
4. Work cooperatively with other NVTA programs to provide information and materials about the 

Agency’s services. 
5. Provide technical assistance and review local project planning documents to ensure best bicycle, 

pedestrian and transportation demand management practices are being followed. 
6. Review and incorporate new federal and state policies and emerging design concepts on bikeway 

and pedestrian planning, focusing on their safe integration into the surface transportation system. 
7. Facilitate implementation of the Regional Transportation Plan Regional Active Transportation Plan 

through our local plans, proposed projects and proposed capital improvement programs and grants. 
8. Coordinate and review applications for bicycle and pedestrian funding. 
9. Cooperate with jurisdictions to monitor system completion and maintain a current GIS version of the 

system, accessible on the internet. 
 

158



10. Coordinate with Caltrans, the MTC and local jurisdictions to ensure that planning of roadways, 
highways (particularly interchanges and intersections) and transit facilities consider the needs of all 
travelers, especially via use of the regional “Complete Streets Checklist” administered by MTC. 

11. Coordinate and participate with bicycle and pedestrian advisory groups including the NVTA Active 
Transportation Advisory Committee, local Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committees, the Napa 
County Bicycle Coalition and the Regional Active Transportation and Travel Demand Working Groups,  
The Napa Vine Trail Coalition, and the Regional Pedestrian Committee to remain informed regarding 
issues of interest to local bicyclists and pedestrians and keep them informed of proposed plans and 
projects. 

12. Provide technical assistance to jurisdictions in preparing active transportation plans. 
13. Prepare bikeway priorities for integration into Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), grant programs 

and the Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP). 
14. Collaborate with other bicycle groups to identify impediments to bicycle commuting, including 

bike/transit trips. 
15. Coordinate with other agencies’ bicycle promotions. 
16. Maintain County-wide bike maps in print. 
17. Partner with other organizations to highlight non-auto transportation, including MTC on Napa 

Forward, and MERGE (Bay Area Carpool) travel demand management programs.  
18. Work with organizations and major employers in Napa County to promote vanpooling and 

Carpooling. 
19. Serve as project sponsor for selected active transportation (bicycle and pedestrian) projects, such as 

the Calistoga to St Helena segment of the Napa Valley Vine Trail. 
20. Work closely with Chambers of Commerce, Downtown Associations, vanpool agencies, other transit 

agencies, bicycle organizations and other related organizations on common projects, including 
strategic planning, events, promotions and program implementation. 

21. Through programs, public outreach and advocacy, reduce the number of single occupant vehicles 
and vehicle miles traveled to keep our air clean, roads clear and reduce demand on limited resources. 

22. Encourage more effective use of the entire transportation system and promote the reduction in total 
vehicle miles traveled by encouraging ridesharing, vanpooling, transit, active transportation and 
other TDM strategies. 

 
Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Quarterly progress reports, invoice and billings  As needed  
Alternative Transportation Programs above As needed  
Rideshare Programs above As needed  

 
 

 
 
  

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 380 

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_MULTI_MOBIL 
Activity ID  
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
FTA Section 5316 JARC 
Surface Transportation Program 
Special Grant Funds 

159



Mobility Management for Special Needs Populations                                    NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element MM-02       

 
ABSTRACT 
The agency provides five specific mobility management programs design to serve special needs 
populations.  These are ADA Paratransit, Shared Vehicle Program, Taxi Scrip Program, and the Transit 
Ambassador Program. 
 
TASKS 
1. Respond to program inquiries 
2. Provide assistance and oversight of contract when performing: 

• ADA enrollments and renewals through the third party contractor 
• Shared Vehicle enrollments and scheduling 
• Taxi program enrollments 
• Provide, update and maintain program applications, records, contracts and data bases 
• Perform background checks as appropriate 
• Provide training for program participants as appropriate 
• Produce program materials 
• Maintain records & provide all required reports 
• Coordinate travel training assignments 
• Coordinate and facilitate vehicle maintenance and assignments 

3. Process invoices for payment as appropriate 
 
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Tasks above Ongoing  

 
 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 120 
 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
Federal Transit Administration Section 5307 
Federal Transit Administration Section 5310 
Federal Transit Administration Section 5317 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_MULTI_MOBIL 
Activity ID ALT_TRANS, VINE_GO 
Resource Cat FED 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

160



Transportation Network Companies                                                                  NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element MM-03       

 
NVTA recognizes that transit systems need to embrace change in the face of new mobility expectations. 
Transit systems can use TNCs and other partnerships to reinforce the strength that public transportation 
provides. Increased coordination between transit systems and TNCs and other partners can improve 
access to transit for community members who select transit as their primary mode or for other members 
of the community who rely on transit because they either do not have access to a vehicle or because 
they cannot drive, including members of our community that may be eligible for American with 
Disabilities (ADA) paratransit services.  The existence of TNCs and other shared mobility options can 
reduce auto use and lead to greater transit use in the longer term.  Staff is particularly interested in 
improving coordinating with TNCs and Paratransit partners to improve access to transit with the Vine 
System is otherwise not able to do so due to lack of vehicles, drivers, or when TNCs/Paratransit partners 
can be provided more cost effectively. 
 

The addition of TNCs can present opportunities for transit systems to coordinate services or partner with 
TNCs to enhance mobility choices. This can provide an opportunity for transit systems to expand their 
traditional role as transportation providers to include overseeing/organizing mobility in a city or region. 
 

Opportunities to coordinate or partner with TNCs include:  
• Provide first-mile/last mile services connecting to existing transit routes  
• Connect outlying communities to existing urban transit services  
• Substitute TNCs for low volume or late-night transit services  
• Use TNCs to provide on-demand services in rural areas  
• Use TNCs to replace or supplement some existing paratransit services  
• Provide mobile technology (apps) that allows customers to seamlessly use TNC and transit  
• Assist in providing service to special events 
• Study TNCs to provide some paratransit type services 

 
Tasks 
1. Pursue grants and pilot programs to test and demonstrate partnerships with TNCs. 
2. Share best practices and TNC model agreements with other transit systems and create a working list 
of lessons learned. 
3. Identify legislative and regulatory barriers that can improve the delivery of mobility options and 
suggest workable solutions. 
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Participate in TNC related workshops  As scheduled  
Develop guiding principles policy for TNCs TBD  
Open a dialogue with TNCs TBD  
Develop/create a joint mobility app with TNCs TBD  

 
 
 

 
 
  

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 120 Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_MULTI_MOBIL 
Activity ID ALT_TRANS 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
Special Grant Funds 

161



Transit Administration                        Introduction 
 
The provision of efficient, affordable and accessible public transit is an integral part of NVTA’s vision to 
improve traffic congestion. NVTA will maintain a continuing public transportation planning process 
pursuant to requirements of the Alquist-Ingalls Act (AB-402, 1977); the Social Service Improvement Act 
(AB-120, 1979); the Mello Act (SB-157, 1985); the Social Service Transportation Act (SB-498, 1987), and 
the Specialized Transportation Services: unmet transit needs Act (SB-826, 1988 and SB 807, 1989). 
  
From customized community shuttles to more traditional fixed-route public bus service, NVTA plans and 
operates a number of public transit services throughout the county. Elements in this section encompass 
on-going transit activities, one-time focused initiatives, and unique transportation programs of the 
agency. 
 
Elements Included in this Section:       Work Element                     Page 

 

Transit Administration & Operations     PT - 01   -48- 
Public Transit Projects List      PT - 02               -49- 
Transit Asset Management      PT - 03   -50- 
Intelligent Transportation System     PT - 04   -51- 
 

 
  
Timesheet/Payroll Information:  Public Transit 
Project/Grant: PUB_TRANSIT   

 
Timesheet/Payroll Codes Description 
AMERICAN_CANYON American Canyon Transit 
CALISTOGA Calistoga 
ST_HELENA St Helena Shuttle 
TAXI_SCRIP Taxi Scrip 
TRANS_CAPITAL Transit Capital Projects 
VINE Vine 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

162



Transit Administration & Operations   NEW    ANNUAL 
Work Element PT-01  

ABSTRACT 
NVTA is responsible for the provision of fixed route, paratransit and specialized transit services within 
Napa County.  On-going activities associated with the administration of these programs appear below.   

TASKS 
1. Manage the transit service contract according to the executed contract.
2. Monitor the performance standards for Vine, Vine Go and shuttles.
3. Facilitate resolution of transit related concerns and accrue liquidated damages.
4. Provide managerial oversight of independent contractor for taxi scrip, shared vehicle, transit

ambassador, mileage reimbursement program and other mobility services.
5. Provide oversight of ADA certification process, database, and service policies and implementation.
6. Comply with all federal, state and local regulations.
7. Staff support to advisory groups.
8. Facilitate improving fixed-route bus stop amenities.
9. Facilitate transit-related Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) improvements.
10. Attend transportation program workshops and training seminars.
11. Identify ways to minimize operational costs and improve the overall efficiency.
12. Incorporate transit planning statistics and performance data updates into regional transportation

planning studies and plans.
13. Increase access, usability, efficiency, effectiveness, safety and security of transit services.
14. Implement system and service improvements.

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
See project listing in Element PT-02 Ongoing 
Complete RFP process for Transit Provider September 2020 July 2021 
COVID-19 Service Reductions Monitoring Ongoing 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 1,920 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
Federal Transit Administration 
Section 5303  Federal Transit Administration (SRTP) 

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant PUB_TRANSIT 
Activity ID AMERICAN_CANYON; 

CALISTOGA; 
ST_HELENA; 
TAXI_SCRIP;  
VINE;  
VINE_GO;  
YOUNTVILLE; 
SRTP 

Resource Cat OFUND; FED 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

163



Public Transit Project List                                                                                         NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element PT-02     

 
ABSTRACT 
In 2019-20, progress on the following major transit related projects is anticipated. 
 

Projects Beginning Date Ending Date 
CAD/AVL Upgrade   
Point of Sale System TBD  
TNC engagement TBD  
2 Proterra Electric Buses & Chargers Acquisition  Fall 2021 
5 BYD Buses  Fall 2021 
Additional ZEB Rolling Stock Acquisitions Ongoing  
Vine Bus Maintenance Facility  2018 2023 
15 Bus Shelters on Routes 10 and 11 January 2021  
Imola Park and Ride 2020 2022 
ADA Bus Stop Upgrades Ongoing  

 
 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 100 
 

  Future Imola Park and Ride 

 
  
 

 
 
  

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
Federal Transit Administration 
State Transit Administration 
LCTOP 
TDA 
Prob. 1B PTMISEA 
Prob. 1B CHSG 

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant PUB_TRANSIT 
Activity ID TRANS_CAPITAL 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

164



Transit Asset Management                                                                                       NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element PT-03                 

 
ABSTRACT 
The Vine transit system owns almost $36.5 million in assets.  These assets were procured using public 
funding mechanisms.  As part of NVTA’s fiduciary responsibility to protect these investments, NVTA 
maintains a State of Good Repair program that utilizes technology to manage schedule maintenance, in 
order to extend and/or optimize each asset’s useful life in order to reduce the agency’s maintenance 
and recapitalization costs.  
 
FTA’s final rule on TAM and NTD Reporting contains a requirement for all public transit operators to 
develop a TAM plan by Oct. 1, 2018.   The TAM/NTD rule allows Tier II operators—non-rail operators 
with 100 or fewer revenue vehicles to participate in the group plan.  
  
MTC staff met with all the Tier II operators in the region to discuss using funding set aside for SRTPs in 
the current fiscal year to develop a group plan. All the Tier II operators were interested in participating 
in a group TAM plan and MTC staff proceeded with the procurement process for a TAM consultant after 
soliciting and receiving input from the operators on the scope of work. After evaluation of the proposals 
received, the panel (of Tier II agencies and MTC staff) selected WSP USA for this project and entered into 
a two (2) year contract with them mainly for developing a group TAM plan(s) for the Tier II operators in 
the region. 
TASKS 
1. Attend and collaborate with MTC on a group regional TAM Tier II operators.  
2. Transportation Asset Management Policy. 
2. Transportation Asset Management Plan. 
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
NTD Report Updates Annually  
Meet with MTC regarding updates to the TAM  Ongoing  
   
   

 
 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 10 
 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 

  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant PUB_TRANSIT 
Activity ID TRANS_CAPITAL 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

165



Intelligent Transportation System                                                                       NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element PT-04                 

 
Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) includes a broad range of solutions aimed at taking the 
transportation infrastructure currently in place and striving to make it more effective and efficient by 
generating information to refine planning processes and improving system operations.  ITS also means 
improving communications to make it easier for public to navigate throughout the County and region 
using various modes. 
    
The most common applications are the coordination of interconnected signals in cities and towns, 
changeable message signs along the roadway informing the traveling public of pending roadway delays 
or detours as a result of natural disasters, weather or construction.  Other common, yet equally 
functional applications are closed circuit television to monitor flow at intersections, automatic vehicle 
location for transit vehicles and signal pre-emption.  ITS are also deployed in the transit system and 
include a new dispatch system, vehicle location, and security system.  
 
TASKS 

1. Work with current contractor- Avail Technologies to maintain Computer Aided Dispatch/ 
Automatic Vehicle Locator (CAD-AVL) system. 

2. Work with City of American Canyon on SR29 signal prioritization project. 
3. Continue discussions with City of Napa on signal prioritization at strategic areas in city to increase 

transit efficiency. 
4. Support the use of technology to improve transit services through tracking vehicles, maintaining 

schedules, predicting demand, facilitating fare payment, and operating fleets more efficiently. 
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
American Canyon Signal Prioritization Project Pending 2022 
City of Napa Signal Prioritization TBD  
Upgrade CAD/AVL system 2020 2021 

 
 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 200 

 
  Payroll Code(s) 

Project/Grant PUB_TRANSIT 
Activity ID TRANS_CAPITAL 
Resource Cat OFUND; FED; STATE 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
Federal Transit Administration  
Proposition 1B  Homeland Security Grant 
Low Carbon Transit Operating Program 

166



Communication and Representation                    Introduction 
 
As a Joint Powers Agency (JPA), NVTA is responsibility to inform and engage its member agencies and 
the public in the development of policies, programs, plans and services and to represent the interests of 
the jurisdictions and residents of Napa   
 
As part of this responsibility, NVTA engages a number of funding agencies and industry groups.  The 
common threads that link these activities are communication, public participation, consensus 
development, due process, and advocacy.  Elements in this section represent how NVTA informs, 
supports, represents and connects with the public and other agencies and associations integral to 
successfully achieving the goals and meeting the responsibilities of the organization.  
 
Pursuant to the roles and powers assigned in its Joint Powers Agreement (JPA), NVTA plays an important 
role in providing leadership and programming designed to meet statutory requirements and move our 
jurisdiction forward in addressing issues of sustainability. 
 
Elements Included in this Section:        Work Element              Page 
 Legislative Advocacy       CR – 01  -53- 

Regional/ Sub-regional Coordination & Assistance   CR – 02  -54- 
 Public Participation, Information, and Support   CR – 03  -55- 
 Marketing        CR – 04  -57- 
 
Timesheet/Payroll Information:  CMA Communications and Representation 
Project/Grant: CMA_COMMS_REPS   

 
Timesheet/Payroll Codes Description 
LEGISLATIVE Legislative Advocacy 
MARKETING Marketing 
OUTREACH Public Outreach 
REGIONAL Reg/Sub-reg Coordination 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

167



Legislative Advocacy                                                                                                 NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element CR-01       

 
ABSTRACT 
 
NVTA develops and implements a legislative program related to a full range of issues under consideration 
by U.S. Congress or the California Legislature related to the roles and responsibilities of the NVTA to 
assure that the best interests of all of the people of the region are addressed, including the General 
Public, local government agencies and interest organizations.  
 
NVTA’s primary responsibility is to the citizens of Napa County.  NVTA staff relies heavily on the media 
to provide information agency activities through press releases and media articles. 
 
 
TASKS 
1. Attend intergovernmental meetings and participate in industry organizations. 
2. Foster relationships with regional, state, and federal funding partners. 
3. Formulate and communicate positions of legislative proposals when appropriate.            

Note: State and federal funds will not be used for contracted lobbying efforts. 
4. Develop annual State and Federal Legislative programs. 
5. Review legislation, adopt positions and provide information to State and Federal legislators. 
6. Prepare monthly legislative status reports. 
7. Monitor and evaluate legislative proposals on issues of regional and local impact. 
8. Provide information to the public about NVTA activities working with members of the press. 
 
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Annual Legislative programs Ongoing  
Review draft legislation Ongoing  
Year-end Legislative Report Ongoing  
Press releases and published reports as needed Ongoing  
COVID-19 Relief, Stimulus, and Monitoring   

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 260 
 

Fund Source(s) 
General Fund 

 
  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_COMMS_REP 
Activity ID LEGISLATIVE 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

168



Regional/Sub-regional Coordination                                                                        NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element CR-02       

 

ABSTRACT 
NVTA provides its member jurisdictions with ongoing technical assistance in various areas which aide 
them in their planning and funding of transportation improvement and programs.  This includes, but is 
not limited to monitoring and tracking project submittals to the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission, California State Transportation Agency (CalSTA), Federal Highway Administration, 
California Transportation Commission (CTC), Caltrans, and Bay Area Air Quality Management District. 
 

TASKS 
1. Data generation, procurement and dissemination that are needed by member governments in 

preparing grant applications, developing specific studies, or local projects. 
2. Grant preparation assistance either in securing information on various grant programs, developing 

the grant information requirements, or preparing, submitting and following up on grant review and 
progress. 

3. Staff training of and assistance to local agencies in meeting federal requirements by holding 
workshops and briefing sessions. 

4. Legislative assistance. This can include securing information on various pieces of legislation 
appearing before legislative committees, or working with legislators in preparing and developing 
specific pieces of legislation that would benefit the member jurisdictions; however, this should not 
be construed as engaging in lobbying activities. 

5. Upon request provide information to State and Federal agencies on transportation policy issues, 
continue to monitor, evaluate and comment upon State and Federal legislation dealing with 
transportation that is of concern and importance to this region. 

6. Assist monitor agencies to complete procedural and administrative requirements and assist with 
issue resolution with Caltrans, CTC, FHWA, FTA and resource agencies. 

7. Participate in Bay Area County Transportation Agencies (BACTA), North Bay Transportation Agencies 
meetings, COG Directors Association of California (CDAC), California Transportation Commission 
(CTC), California Transit Association (CTA), the California Association of Coordinated Transit (CalACT), 
and MTC’s Blue Ribbon Task Force.  

8. Coordinate with Caltrans, Bay Area County Transportation Agencies (BACTA), COG statewide 
committees, other statewide addressing issues of state and regional interest including State and 
Federal legislation. Federal funding implementation and reauthorization, state and federal 
transportation finance, Project Development, Project Programming, and Environmental and Project 
Delivery Streamlining. 

 
Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
MTC Blue Ribbon Task Force Meetings Ongoing  
Variable – depends on meetings As needed  

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 590 

 
 

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_COMMS_REP 
Activity ID REGIONAL 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
General Fund 
Local Contributions 

169



Public Participation, Information, & Support                                                          NEW           ANNUAL 
Work Element CR-03      
 
To enhance public knowledge, NVTA hold public meetings, issues press releases, and invites public 
participation in the state and regional transportation planning process. NVTA acknowledges the 
particular needs of Napa’s communities of concern.  These communities include low income, minorities 
and disabled populations.  NVTA has enhanced its capabilities in recent years to ensure that the agency 
is adequately communicating opportunities to provide input on NVTA plans, programs, and policy 
discussion and to make a concerted effort to understand, acknowledge, and address the transportation 
needs of these populations.  Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, NVTA has engaged with the public and 
conduced committee and board meetings virtually.  NVTA makes every effort to be transparent and 
accessible in this change of format.  
 
Title VI 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 is the Federal Law that protects individuals from discrimination on 
the basis of their race, color, or national origin in programs that receive Federal financial assistance. 
 
NVTA’s Title VI Program ensures that no person is excluded from participation in, denied the benefit of, 
or subjected to discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin under any programs that 
receive federal funding (as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the Civil Rights 
Restoration Act of 1987). 
 
Every effort is made to ensure all of NVTA’s programs and activities take under consideration the needs 
of all of its constituents.   
 
TASKS 
1. Prepare media releases, public hearing notices and Rider Alerts. Identifying agency activities and 

proposals. Assure special attention is granted in news releases, notices, etc. for minority, low income, 
disabled, and other under-represented or special needs groups. 

2. Publicize opportunities for local and state funding/grants via web-site, produce newsletter, advisory 
committee meeting dates and agendas, staff reports and notifications. 

3. Maintain active citizen advisory committee reviewing and providing comments on any decision 
making or changes to the local transit system. 

4. Facilitate project and corridor study reviews with interested groups and member agencies. 
5. Include outreach to school districts and local agencies and non-profits.  
6. Participate in public speaking engagements to provide community outreach and education regarding 

agency activities. 
7. Support the provision of public access to NVTA Board meetings through public access television. 

Prepare Annual summary of the activities and accomplishments of the agency. 
8. Meet with traditionally under-represented communities/leaders and hearing and speech impaired. 
9. Develop effective public participation strategies. As appropriate, acknowledge and seek to overcome 

linguistic, cultural, institutional, geographic, and other barriers to meaningful participation, and 
incorporate active outreach to affected groups.  

10. When developing a project consider the composition of the affected area to determine whether 
minority populations, low-income populations, or Indian tribes are present in the area affected by 
the proposed action, and, if so, whether there may be disproportionately high and adverse human 
health or environmental effects on minority populations, low-income populations, or Indian tribes. 

170



11. Create awareness of statutory non-discriminatory requirements. 
12. Maintain a systematic and ongoing public involvement process that engages communities affected 

by transportation projects. 
13. Identify potential discriminatory impacts early.  Early detection can often minimize and reduce 

negative impacts to minority and low-income populations and delays to project delivery. 
14. Avoid, eliminate or minimize adverse impacts. 
15. Make required revisions in Public Participation Plan. 
16. Provide a safe, accessible, and well publicized forum for communicating and responding to Title VI 

complaints. 
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
Newsletters, press releases, public hearing 
notices, outreach activities, maintain website 

Ongoing  

Comments and position statements on draft 
plans, and documents 

Ongoing  

Public Access to Board meetings Ongoing  
Document meetings with traditionally 
underrepresented communities/leaders 

Ongoing  

Inform and involve stakeholders in 
environmental planning processes 

Ongoing 
 

 

Hold periodic workshops on environmental 
justice and environmental mitigation as it 
relates to the RTP 

Ongoing 
 

 

Stakeholder and community forums/ 
presentations 

Ongoing  

Update environmental compliance procedures Ongoing  
Prepare appropriate environmental 
documentation for Regional Transportation 
Plan amendments 

Ongoing  

Environmental documentation As needed  
Engage in public outreach opportunities at 
community events 

Ongoing  

 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 1,230 
 

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
General Fund 

 
 
 
 
  

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_COMMS_REP 
Activity ID OUTREACH 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

171



Marketing                                                                                                           NEW           CONTINUED 
Work Element CR-04       

 
ABSTRACT 
Public awareness regarding the role and activities of the agency is paramount to community 
participation, collaboration, and support required fulfilling our organizational purpose.  In addition, as it 
relates to transit services, specific marketing activities are essential to enhancing the utilization of public 
transit. 
 
TASKS 
1. Develop, implement, and monitor marketing campaigns for transit services, mobility programs,  

and Travel Demand Management Programs 
 
 

Products Beginning Date Ending Date 
On-going marketing activities Ongoing Ongoing 
NVTA Annual Report   
Measure T Biennial Report   

 
 
 

ESTIMATED STAFF HOURS: 860 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 

 
  

Fund Source(s) 
Transportation Development Act 
General Fund 
Regional Measure 2 

Payroll Code(s) 
Project/Grant CMA_COMMS_REP 
Activity ID MARKETING 
Resource Cat OFUND 
Resource Sub-Cat GENRL 

172



Appendix A: OWP Annual Staff Hours 
 

 AGENCY ADMINISTRATION HOURS 
AA – 01 Overall Work Program  20 
AA – 02 Agency Administration and Support 9,260 
AA – 03 Human Resources Management 1,400 
AA – 04 Grants and Capital Projects Administration                     1,280 
AA – 05 Finance Administration 2,290 
AA – 06 Transportation Development Act Administration 90 
AA – 07 Audits 350 
AA – 08 Policy Development 170 
AA – 09 Measure T Planning  2,630 

 
 

SECTION TOTAL 17,490 
 
 
 TRANSPORATION PLANNING AND PROGRAMS 

 
 

TP – 03 Regional Transportation Program 310 
TP – 04 Countywide Strategic Transportation Planning 520 
TP – 05 Transit System Studies 1,250 
TP – 06 Active Transportation Planning 900 
TP -  07 Vine Transit Yard Real Estate Acquisition  1,440 
TP -  08 Performance/ Compliance Monitoring 340 
TP -  09 Vine Trail 1,070 
TP – 11  Census and Geographic Information Systems Development 20 
TP – 12 Transportation for Clean Air 200 
TP – 13 State Route 37 Policy Committee 350 
TP – 14 Soscol Junction Improvements 740 
TP – 15 State Route 29 Corridor Improvements 780 

 
 

SECTION TOTAL 7,920 
 
  

173



 

 MULTIMODAL MOBILITY MANAGEMENT 

 
ANNUAL STAFF 

HOURS 
MM – 01  V Commute Regional Rideshare 380 
MM – 02 Mobility Management for Special Needs Populations 120 
MM – 03 Transportation Network Companies 120 
 

SECTION TOTAL 620 
 

 TRANSIT PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION 
 
 

PT – 01  Transit Administration & Operations 1,920 
PT – 02 Public Transit Projects List 100 
PT – 03 Transit Asset Management 10 
PT – 04 Intelligent Transportation System 200 

 
 

SECTION TOTAL 2,230 
 

 COMMUNICATION AND REPRESENTATION  
CR – 01  Legislative Advocacy 260 
CR – 02 Regional/ Sub-regional Coordination 590 
CR – 03 Public Participation 1,230 
CR – 04 Marketing 860 

 
 

SECTION TOTAL 2,940 
 

OWP TOTAL 31,200 
 
 
  

174



OWP Staff Hours Matrix 

 
 
 

Executive 
Director

Finance 
Director

Planning 
Director

Transportation 
Engineer

Senior 
Financial 
Analyst

Board Sec/ 
Office Mgr.

Principal 
Planner

Transit 
Manager

Snr. 
Planner

Snr. 
Planner

Snr. Planner 
(Transit)

Sr. Admin 
Tech

Sr. Admin 
Tech/ 

DBELO Comm Officer Acct Tech (A/P)

Total 
Employee 

Hours WORK ELEMENT
% age of total 

hours FTE Total Hours

            1.00           1.00               1.00                  1.00           1.00            1.00                1.00            1.00           1.00            1.00             1.00           1.00              1.00                    1.00                   1.00         15.00 

20 20             AA – 01 Overall Work Program 0.06% 0.01        
300 200 200 200 400 1010 300 300 300 400 840 2080 1530 400 800 9,260        AA – 02 Agency Administration 29.68% 4.45        
200 100 100 1000 1,400        AA – 03 Human Resources 4.49% 0.67        
100 200 310 340 80 100 150 1,280        AA – 04 Grants and Capital Projects Administration 4.10% 0.62        

400 690 400 800 2,290        AA – 05 Finance Administration 7.34% 1.10        
40 50 90             AA – 06 Transportation Development Act Administration 0.29% 0.04        

200 100 50 350           AA – 07 Audits and Reviews 1.12% 0.17        
100 70 170           AA – 08 Policy Development 0.54% 0.08        

270 230 400 200 700 50 300 480 2,630        AA – 09 Measure T Administration 8.43% 1.26        
17,490            Total Work Element Hours 56.06% 8.41        17,490       

50 20 100 0 140 0 310           TP – 03 Regional Transportation Program 0.99% 0.15        
60 40 100 200 120 520           TP – 04 Countywide Strategic Transportation Planning 1.67% 0.25        

250 100 280 100 100 420 1,250        TP – 05 Transit System Studies and Updates 4.01% 0.60        
40 100 760 900           TP - 06 Active Transportation Program 2.88% 0.43        

200 400 340 200 300 1,440        TP – 07 Vine Bus Maintenance Facility 4.62% 0.69        
40 40 40 60 100 60 340           TP – 08 Performance/ Compliance Monitoring 1.09% 0.16        

10 800 200 40 20 1,070        TP – 09 Vine Trail 3.43% 0.51        
20 20             TP – 11 Census and Geographic Information Systems Development 0.06% 0.01        

0 200 200           TP – 12 Transportation for Clean Air 0.64% 0.10        
130 120 100 350           TP – 13 SR37 (State Route) Policy Committee (NEW) 1.12% 0.17        
240 200 200 100 740           TP – 14 Soscol Junction Improvements (NEW) 2.37% 0.36        
130 200 0 210 120 120 780           TP – 15 State Route 29 Corridor Improvements (NEW) 2.50% 0.38        

7,920              Total Work Element Hours 25.38% 3.81        7,920         

100 200 0 20 60 380           MM – 01 V Commute Regional Rideshare 1.22% 0.18        
40 40 40 0 120           MM – 02 Mobility Management for Special Needs Populations 0.38% 0.06        
50 0 20 50 120           MM - 03 Transportation Network Companies 0.38% 0.06        

620                 Total Work Element Hours 1.99% 0.30        7,920         

200 1200 520 1,920        PT – 01 Transit Administration & Operations 6.15% 0.92        
20 20 30 30 100           PT – 02 Public Transit Projects List 0.32% 0.05        

10 10             PT – 03 Transit Asset Management 0.03% 0.00        
50 0 70 40 40 200           PT - 04 Intelligent Transportation System 0.64% 0.10        

2,230              Total Work Element Hours 7.15% 1.07        2,230         

100 80 80 0 260           CR – 01 Legislative Advocacy 0.83% 0.13        
200 100 100 90 40 40 20 590           CR – 02 Regional/ Sub-regional Coordination 1.89% 0.28        
50 40 0 200 100 20 20 100 700 1,230        CR – 03 Public Participation, Information, & Support 3.94% 0.59        

0 200 660 860           CR – 04 Marketing 2.76% 0.41        
2,940              Total Work Element Hours 9.42% 1.41        2,940         

2,080    2,080   2,080      2,080        2,080   2,080    2,080      2,080    2,080   2,080    2,080     2,080   2,080     2,080          2,080         31,200      100.00% 15.00      38,500       

ANNUAL HOURS

TRANSIT PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION

COMMUNICATION AND REPRESENTATION

AGENCY ADMINISTRATION

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND PROGRAMS

MULTIMODAL MOBILITY MANAGEMENT

175



 
Glossary of Acronyms 

 

AB 32 Global Warming Solutions Act 
ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments 
ADA American with Disabilities Act 

BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

AVAA Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Authority 

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

BATA Bay Area Toll Authority 

BRT Bus Rapid Transit 

Caltrans California Department of Transportation 

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 

CIP Capital Investment Program 

CMA’s Congestion Management Agencies 

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program 

CMP Congestion Management Program 

CTC California Transportation Commission 

DOT Federal Department of Transportation 
EIR Environmental Impact Report 

FAS   Federal Aid Secondary   
FAST Fixing America’s Surface Transportation 

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

FY Fiscal Year 

GHG Greenhouse Gas 

HBP Highway Bridge Program  

HBRR Highway Bridge Replacement and Rehabilitation Program  
HIP Housing Incentive Program 

HOT High Occupancy Toll 

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle 

HR3 High Risk Rural Roads  
HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program  
HTF  Highway Trust Fund  
IFB Invitation for Bid 

ITIP State Interregional Transportation Improvement Program 

JARC Job Access and Reverse Commute  
LIFT Low-Income Flexible Transportation 

LOS Level of Service 

176



MaaS Mobility as a Service 

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

MTS Metropolitan Transportation System 

MMLOS Multimodal Level of Service 

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NOC Notice of Completion 

NOD Notice of Determination 

NOP Notice of Preparation 

NVTA Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

OBAG One Bay Area Grant  

PCI Pavement Condition Index 

PDA Priority Development Areas 

PID Project Initiation Document 

PMS Pavement Management System  
PPM Planning, Programming & Monitoring 

Prop. 42 Statewide Initiative that requires a portion of gasoline sales tax revenues be designated to 
transportation purposes 

PSE Plan, Specification & Estimate 

PSR Project Study Report 

PTA Public Transportation Account  

RACC Regional Agency Coordinating Committee 

RFP Request for Proposal 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

RHNA Regional Housing Needs Allocation  
RM2 Regional Measure 2 (Bridge Toll) 

RTEP Regional Transit Expansion Program 

RTIP Regional Transportation Improvement Program 

RTP Regional Transportation Plan 

SAFE Service Authority for Freeways and Expressways 

SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient Transportation Equity Act-A Legacy for Users 

SCS Sustainable Community Strategy 

SHOPP State Highway Operation and Protection Program  

SR State Route 

SRTS Safe Routes to School 

SOV Single-Occupant Vehicle 

STA State Transit Assistance 

STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 

STP Surface Transportation Program 

TCM Transportation Control measure 

177



TCRP Traffic Congestion Relief Program 

TDA Transportation Development Act 

TDM Transportation Demand Management or Transportation Demand Model 
TE Transportation Enhancement  

TEA Transportation Enhancement Activities 

TEA 21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century 

TFCA Transportation Fund for Clean Air 

TIP Transportation Improvement Program 

TLC Transportation for Livable Communities 

TLU Transportation Land Use 

TMP Traffic Management Plan 

TMS Transportation Management System 

TNC Transportation Network Companies 

TOD Transit-Oriented Development 

TOS Transportation Operations Systems 

TPI Transit Performance Initiative 

TPP Transit Priority Project Areas 

VHD Vehicle Hours of Delay 

VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled 

178



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

nvta.ca.gov 
vinetransit.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    

179



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Proposed Changes to the NVTA Organizational Chart 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve changes to the 
NVTA Organizational Chart. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Refinement of organizational responsibilities to include the new Administrative Analyst 
for Measure T position are being proposed to better serve the needs of the Agency. 
NVTA currently has equivalent of a 1.26 FTE completing administrative work on 
Measure T.  Administrative duties are divided amongst several staff members who are 
already overburdened with other projects and program priorities.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Yes, board approval will result in the increase of up to $85,035 in salary plus benefits and 
would be funded by the Measure T 1% Admin Fund. 

180



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Letter 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Laura Sanderlin, Office Manager/Board Secretary 

(707) 259-8633 / Email: lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Proposed Changes to the NVTA Organizational Chart 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve changes to the 
NVTA Organizational Chart (Attachment 1). 

OTHER OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 

Alternative option #1:  That the board reject the proposed changes and retain the currently 
adopted organizational chart. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

None 

BACKGROUND 

Refinement of organizational responsibilities, the new Administrative Analyst for 
Measure T position are being proposed to better serve the needs of the Agency 
(Attachment 2). 

NVTA currently has equivalent of a 1.26 FTE completing administrative work on 
Measure T.  Administrative duties are divided among several staff members who are 
already overburdened with significant project and program assignments.  The demand 
for staff time has been exacerbated both by the growing activity of the Measure T 
program, the development and oversight of major capital projects, the additional 
requirements associated with accessing and managing federal and state competitive 
funding, and pursuit and adoption of emerging technologies. The table below provides 
an overview of various Bay Area agencies administrative allowance and the 

181

mailto:lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


administrative oversight on measures of similar size for comparison. 

Ca. Self-Help Counties FTE and Administrative Allowance  
Agency Measure Admin. 

Allowance 
Staff 
FTE 

Annual 
Revenues 

NVTA Measure T 1% 0.5 $20,000,000 
SCTA Measure M 1% 1.5 26,000,000 
Santa Cruz Regional 
Transportation Commission Measure D 1% 2.5 21,600,000 
TAM Measure 

A/AA 
1% 2 27,000,000 

Fresno County Transportation 
Authority Measure C 1.5% 3 82,000,000 
CCTA Measure J 1% 20 92,000,000 
ACTC Measure 

B/BB 
4.5% 35 158,000,000 

Imperial County Local 
Transportation Authority Measure D 1% 1 $15,000,000 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact?  Yes, board approval will result in the increase of up to 
$85,035 in salary plus benefits. 

Is it currently budgeted?  No, a budget increase in FY20-21 for wages plus benefits is 
necessary and will be presented to the Board for their review in their next quarterly 
update.  

Where will it be budgeted? Congestion Management Agency- Measure T 1% Admin 
Fund (Measure T Admin Budget for FY20: $174,500 and FY21: $195,509) 

Future fiscal impact: Yes 

ALTERNATIVES: 

The Board could deny this request. Administrative oversight will continue to be hampered 
due to staffing shortages, including project record maintenance, conducting field audits, 
website maintenance, securing and reviewing jurisdictions’ correspondence for accuracy. 

182



STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal 3 – Use taxpayer dollars efficiently. 

Human resources is the single most import asset that the agency provides to the public. 
Inadequate staffing results in overworked employees and potentially results in mediocre 
oversight of projects and programs.  

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS 

Attachments:  (1) Proposed Organizational Chart 
(2) Proposed Administrative Analyst Job Description

183



Program Manager 
Engineering and Projects 

Sr. Administrative Technician 
(Procurement & Contract 
Compliance ) & DBELO 

Program Manager 
Public Transit 

Director,  
Capital Development and Planning 

Office Manager/ 
Board Secretary 

Administrative Technician 
(Office Coordinator) 

Senior Financial/ Policy Analyst 

Senior Program Planner/
Administrator 

Senior Program Planner/ 
Administrator 

Senior Program Planner/ 
Administrator 

Legal Counsel 

Draft NVTA Organizational Chart 

Executive Director 

NVTA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Vacant— 
Project Manager/ 

Construction Manager 
Special Projects 

Marketing and  
Communications Officer 

Accounting Technician 

Director,  
Administration, Finance and Policy 

Vacant 
Measure T  

Planner/Assistant Planner 

ATTACHMENT 1 
Agenda Item 10.1 
March 17, 2021 

184



Job Description For: 
Administrative Analyst- Special Projects 

On November 6, 2012, the voters in Napa County approved Measure T, the Napa Countywide 
Road Maintenance Act. Measure T is a ½ cent sales tax expected to generate over $400 million 
over a 25-year period which began on July 1, 2018. Measure T is to be used for the 
rehabilitation of local streets and roads. 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority is seeking an Administrative Analyst for Measure T and 
other special projects as assigned. 

Measure T Duties to include: 
• Working under the general supervision of the Measure T Program Manager to perform

various administrative duties such as data entry and analysis, developing financial and
ad-hoc reports for the public, jurisdictions, committees and NVTA-TA Board of Directors.

• Collaborate with jurisdictions to compile and organize Measure T project data, follow-up
with Measure T point of contacts for needed information

• Maintain detailed Measure T files and reports
• Perform Quality Control (QC) and review various Measure T documents such as five-year

project lists, semi-annual progress reports and Maintenance of Effort reports for
complete and accurate information

• Work with Measure T auditors in compiling data for various Measure T financial,
compliance and performance audits

• Assist in the creation and reporting for various Measure T publications such as the
annual report, fact sheets, newspaper articles, committee reports, press releases, social
media posts, and other public literature

• Disseminate Measure T information and reminders to jurisdictions in a timely manner
• Update and maintain the Measure T website, ensure project information and photos are

current and accurate
• Perform field reviews and take photos of various countywide Measure T projects
• Act as the administrative liaison between NVTA, Independent Taxpayers Oversight

Committee and jurisdictions
• Support the Executive Director’s engagement with the ITOC or NVTA-TA by assisting

with meeting material preparation, as appropriate; by working collaboratively with
those who assist and support the ITOC or NVTA-TA; and by attending selected meetings
for notetaking and follow-up purposes

Other Special Project Duties Include: 
• Work with NVTA’s Engineer, Construction Manager, Project Manager and other staff

members on administrative support work for invoicing and reporting on various projects

185



• Assist Construction Manager with inspection of transportation projects like Vine
Maintenance Facility, Imola Park & Ride and Calistoga to St. Helena Vine Trail segment
and keep records of inspections

• Coordinate project meetings for various highway projects with Caltrans and the NVTA
project team, prepare reports and PowerPoints, agendas and meeting notes

• Assist in creating materials for public outreach and education on various NVTA projects
• Work closely with project teams and coordinate meetings with design, field contractors,

subcontractors and NVTA staff
• Review and analyze construction claims, notices, and Disadvantage Business Enterprise

(DBE) reporting
• Prepare project files and reports and maintain good records for various NVTA projects
• Other duties as assigned

186



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.2 

Continued From: June 17, 2020 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Countywide Transportation Plan – Advancing Mobility 2045: Public Draft Release 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board release the draft of the 
Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP)--Advancing Mobility 2045 for public review and 
comment. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

A draft of the Countywide Transportation Plan is available for public review and comment. 
At the January 15, 2020 Board meeting the NVTA Board adopted the performance 
metrics, goals and objectives for the Plan.  Subsequently, at the June 17, 2020 meeting 
the Board adopted baseline thresholds and targets for the Plan. The jurisdictions have 
reviewed the Administrative Draft Plan and have provided comments and feedback.  The 
plan is now available for the community to review and provide input.  

NVTA will be conducting virtual engagement events to elicit comments from the public on 
the Draft Plan through an interactive online video, live Question & Answer (Q&A) session 
on April 8, 2021 at 5:30 PM and a Spanish Facebook Live event on April 7, 2021 at 5:00 
PM.  Public comments on the Plan will be due back to NVTA by Friday, April 23.  The 
final Plan with comments received will be brought back to the NVTA Board in May.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

187



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.2 

Continued From: June 17, 2020 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Alberto Esqueda, Senior Planner/Program Administrator 

(707) 259-5976 / Email: aesqueda@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Countywide Transportation Plan – Advancing Mobility 2045: Public 
Draft Release 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board release the public draft of 
the Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP)—Advancing Mobility 2045 for public review 
and comment. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

At its March 3, 2021 meeting, the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) recommended 
that the NVTA Board of Directors release the draft Countywide Transportation Plan for 
public review and comment.   

BACKGROUND 

NVTA began its work on the CTP: Advancing Mobility 2045 in the fall of 2019.  The CTP 
is a vision for the future transportation network in Napa County and includes all projects 
and programs for the next 25 years.  The Plan will align its future 25-year transportation 
project list with anticipated revenues to meet the Plan’s vision, goals and objectives.  

NVTA is required by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) to follow the new 
guidelines for CTPs. The guidelines require Countywide Transportation Agencies (CTAs) 
to include performance goals and measures in their CTPs. NVTA is also responding to 
comments made by the Napa County Civil Grand Jury which recommended that NVTA 
include performance metrics and targets in its long-term planning. Therefore, for the first 
time, performance metrics have been included in the Plan. 

188

mailto:aesqueda@nvta.ca.gov


 
Plan Goals, Measures, and Targets 
Staff evaluated performance metrics used by NVTA’s Bay Area counterparts as well as 
the identified needs in the current CTP and outreach conducted in fall 2019 and winter 
2020, before the COVID-19 Pandemic. The outreach was instrumental for developing a 
short list of proposed performance metrics to analyze progress towards meeting the goals 
and objectives in the CTP.  These performance metrics provide NVTA a means to assess 
performance changes of the transportation system over the life of the plan.  The NVTA 
Board approved these performance metrics developed by staff in January 2020. 
 
The adopted goals and objectives act as the Plan’s framework and are the foundation to 
the project evaluation criteria. Jurisdictions submitted over 100 projects totaling $1.5 
billion for inclusion in the Plan, however the projected revenue is an estimated $704 
million dollars, leaving a shortfall of approximately $754 million dollars over the 25-year 
planning horizon.  Figure 1 illustrates the projected revenues against project submittals. 
 
 
Projected Revenues and Project Costs 
 
Figure 1. Transportation Revenues and Projected Need 

 
 
 
 
 

$211 

$493 

$849 

$609 

$0

$100

$200

$300

$400

$500

$600

$700

$800

$900

Roadway+Active Transportation Projects Transit Operations & Capital Projects

$M
ill

io
n Revenue

Projected Need

$6
38

 M
sh

or
tf

al
l

$117 M 

189



Figure 2 shows the revenues by source.  It should be noted that NVTA and Napa 
County’s jurisdictions receive a number of funding sources and plan provides greater 
detail of sources.  For simplicity, Figures 2 shows the revenues by Federal, State, 
Regional and local sources. 

Figure 2. Total Revenues by Source 

162,266, 11%

100,892, 7%

596,450, 39%

643,163, 43%

FEDERAL REGIONAL  LOCAL STATE

190



 
 
Figure 3 shows the total cost of projects by jurisdiction and by mode.  NVTA’s totals reflect 
both transit and highway improvements which is why it is so much greater than the other 
agencies.  Also, things like Senate Bill 1 Local Streets and Roads and Measure T 
revenues, as an example, are captured in the plan as  program and therefore not included 
in the project costs.   
 
Figure 3. Unconstrained Project Cost by Jurisdiction and Mode  

 
 
Activity Based Modeling and Plan Priorities 
 
The Plan also identifies four potential future transportation scenarios.  The scenarios were 
run through NVTA’s Activity-Based Model to understand which scenario results best 
meets the plans long range goals.   The model is not granular enough to be able model 
individual projects so projects were grouped by mode  in order to model them and to 
demonstrate how various groupings improve outcomes specifically associated with 
reducing single occupancy vehicle mode. Four different scenarios were analyzed:   

1. Scenario 1. Basic Plan Projects (Basic Plan) - This scenario includes all the 
projects in the draft Plan that can be modeled except express bus frequencies of 
30 minutes. 

2. Scenario 2. Investment Plan with Improved Express Bus Service (Proposed Plan) 
- This scenario includes all the projects in the draft plan that can be modeled 
including express bus frequencies of 30 minutes and Enhanced Express Bus 
Route Frequency. Under this scenario, regional Route 10 and Route 11 buses 

 $-

 $50,000,000

 $100,000,000

 $150,000,000

 $200,000,000

 $250,000,000

 $300,000,000

 $350,000,000

 $400,000,000

 $450,000,000

American
Canyon

Calistoga City of
Napa

Napa
County

NVTA St Helena Yountville

Unconstrained Project Cost by Jurisdiction and Mode

Transit

Multimodal

Bike/Ped

Auto

191



would run every 30 minutes during the morning and afternoon commute peak 
periods (currently these routes run approximately every hour). 

3. Scenario 3. Investment Plan with Enhanced Express Bus Service and Free Local 
Transit  (Transit +) - This scenario includes all the projects in the draft plan that 
can be modeled. It also includes running regional bus routes 10 and 11 every 15 
minutes and providing free fares on local bus service.  

4. Scenario 4. Investment Plan with SR – 29 Capacity Expansion (Lanes +) - This 
scenario includes all the projects in the draft Plan that can be modeled except 
express bus frequency to 30 minutes. This scenario also includes a project to 
widen SR-29 from 2 lanes to 3 lanes in each direction between American Canyon 
Road and South Kelly Road. 

The key findings from project modeling found Scenario 2 (the Proposed Plan) 
investments in active transportation in combination with key transit enhancement 
projects have the potential to significantly increase the share of trips made by 
bicycling and walking. These shifts will move transportation in Napa County towards 
a more sustainable and healthy future. The model also forecasted that enhanced 
transit service will not only retain transit’s share of overall travel, but will result in a 
significant number of new transit trips that shift from the auto modes. Concentrated 
in the long-distance commute market, these new transit trips (above and beyond 
those expected due to population growth) have the greatest potential to reduce VMT 
and person hours of delay in Napa County. 

 
Plan Sections 
The Plan includes 6 sections.  The sections help build the story for the Valley’s 
transportation system by prescribing a direction to optimize mobility over the next 25 
years, considers its impact on climate change and option for introducing emerging 
technologies to improve performance and efficiencies.  It also delves into Napa Valley’s 
changing demographics and economics to plan for needed infrastructure that will best 
serve the community in the future. The Plan includes the following sections:  
 

• Executive Summary  

 
• Foundation – This section sets the stage of what is a Countywide Transportation 

Plan, how it is implemented and how the public is engaged on the Plan.  

 
• Vision – This section reviews current conditions of Napa County and sets goals 

and objectives for the future through performance metrics as well as targets.  

 

192



• Napa Valley Today – This section describes Napa Valley’s characteristics today,
how we live, work, and travel and highlights current transportation and travel
conditions and provides an outlook on changing demographics in the future.

• Napa Valley Tomorrow – This section explores transportation challenges and
strategies, from climate change to rapidly changing technology, sustainability,
travel demand management and health and safety.

• Investing in the Future – This section reviews project needs and evaluations, travel
forecasting and modeling scenarios, and current and future transportation
revenues and forecasts.

Plan Public Outreach 

Advancing Mobility 2045 employed numerous public engagement strategies to 
understand community needs and priorities throughout the development of the Plan.  This 
required that the agency shift engagement strategies to respond to the COVID-19 
Pandemic in March 2020.  The Plan’s online platform allowed the public to safely engage 
with staff and consultants to identify what the community both needs and wants to improve 
transportation in Napa.  The online engagement captured 3,261 total site visits from 529 
unique participants and received 1,037 comments.  NVTA will also engage the public 
using digital tools for the Draft Plan by providing an interactive commenting platform, 
online video, a live Q&A session and a Spanish Facebook Live event in early April.  Staff 
will bring back the plan in May with input from the community, gathered at the outreach 
events, for the NVTA Board to consider its adoption.  

NVTA Board leadership and participation is important to members of the public who want 
to be heard.  Staff will send invitations to board members so that they can actively 
participate in public engagement opportunities. 

ALTERNATIVES 

The Board may choose to not release the CTP’s public draft and request additional data 
and analysis, which could affect the CTP contract and schedule ultimately resulting in a 
fiscal impact to the Agency.  

STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 

Goal 1 – Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, 
income, or ability 

193



The plan seeks to elevate projects to a position where they can roll up into the RTP and 
eventually receive funding. This includes all projects in the plans, which benefit the entire 
community. 

Goal 5 – Minimize the energy and other resources required to move people and goods 

Bicycle and pedestrian projects can significantly benefit air quality and reduce congestion 
by providing an alternative to transport using vehicles. 

ATTACHMENT 

(1) Draft Countywide Transportation Plan: Advancing Mobility 2045 – due to file size,
the link below is being provided. (Please note:  a window may pop up requesting
that you sign in or register, that is not required – click on the “X” in the upper right
hand corner to close the window and then the document will be accessible)
http://bit.ly/Draft_NVTA_CTP

194

http://bit.ly/Draft_NVTA_CTP


March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
Project Priorities for the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s (MTC) Safe and 
Seamless Mobility Quick-Strike Program.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolutions 21-10 
and 21-11 and authorize the Executive Director to submit a Nomination Letter and 
supporting documentation for the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s (MTC) Safe 
and Seamless Mobility Quick-Strike Program for the Napa Forward SR 29 Safety and 
Operational Improvements and the Napa County Safe Routes to School Program.  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Safe and Seamless Mobility Quick-Strike program is a one-time, competitive grant 
program within the One Bay Area Grant program (OBAG 2) framework. Federal funding 
is available to support local and regional projects that can be implemented quickly to 
support economic activity and job growth in communities impacted by the COVID-19 
Pandemic. Quick strike projects are multimodal projects focused on safety that can be 
delivered quickly.  
 
NVTA staff is proposing to request $11 million to fund two roundabouts at the 
intersections of SR 29/Oakville Crossroad and SR 29/Rutherford Road (SR 128) and 
$100,000 to fund Napa Bike’s Fiscal Years 2021-2023 Safe Routes to School (SRTS) 
Program activities. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None  

195



                                                                                                                   March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Danielle Schmitz, Director, Capital Development and Planning   

(707) 259-5968 / Email: dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Project Priorities for the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s 
(MTC) Safe and Seamless Quick-Strike Program 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolutions 21-10 
and 21-11 and authorize the Executive Director to submit a Nomination Letter and 
supporting documentation for the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s (MTC) Safe 
and Seamless Mobility Quick-Strike Program for the Napa Forward SR 29 Safety and 
Operational Improvements and the Napa County Safe Routes to School Program.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) has $55 million in a one-time grant 
program for the purpose of funding quick-strike projects with federal Surface 
Transportation Block Grant Program (STP), Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement (CMAQ) and Federal Highway Infrastructure Program (FHIP) funds.  Five 
million dollars from this program has been set aside for Blue Ribbon Transit Recovery 
Task Force efforts.   
 
MTC cannot distribute the remaining funds on formula, but have established targets 
loosely based on the One Bay Area Grant (OBAG) formula with a minimum of $1 million 
to any one county.  Napa’s target, as the smallest county in the region, would be $1 
million dollars.  However, projects that demonstrate regional coordination are a high 
priority and may garner additional funds.   
 

196

mailto:dschmitz@nvta.ca.gov


NVTA is working with MTC on mini roundabouts at intersections on SR 29 at Oakville 
Cross Road and Rutherford (SR 128) that would address safety and traffic operations 
concerns under the Napa Forward umbrella.  MTC has already set aside $2 million in 
capital funds for Napa Forward projects; of which $1 million is for Napa Forward 
Commute Program. The roundabouts would greatly improve traffic operations, slow 
traffic to allow for cross traffic to safely turn left onto SR 29 and improve bicycle and 
pedestrian movements.  NVTA, in coordination with Chair Pedroza, have met with many 
of the property owners at the two intersections and so far, they have indicated support 
for the improvements. NVTA is requesting $9 million for the two roundabouts but, the 
project is scalable and if awarded less funding, a portion of the project can be 
completed.   
  
In addition, NVTA is applying for $100,000 in partnership with the Napa County Bicycle 
Coalition to fund the Safe Routes to School Program (SRTS) for Fiscal Years 2021 to 
2023. Napa Bike is requesting $100,000 to: 

• Conduct targeted education and encouragement programming at elementary and 
middle schools in American Canyon, Napa, and St. Helena (16 school sites). 

• Build a network of Parent Champions at targeted schools to continue and expand 
engagement around youth walking and biking safety (safety summits at 7 
schools). 

• Conduct broad-based community encouragement and safety education 
programming, including Community Rides and Family Biking Workshops, with 
specific focus on Spanish-speaking populations and locally identified 
communities of concern. 

 
Both the Napa Forward and SRTS projects meet the eligibility criteria and the 
connected mobility framework, values and goals outlined in Attachment 6.  Due to the 
regional partnership with MTC on the Napa Forward program, NVTA is hopeful that the 
proposed project will garner additional funds above the Quick-Strike Program target 
threshold.   
 
Nomination Letters and supporting documents are due to MTC by March 30th.  MTC is 
moving quickly with this program and will notify County Transportation Agencies and 
project sponsors of staff’s funding recommendation by May 3, 2021. Project sponsors 
recommended for funding must submit the final application materials to MTC by May 21, 
2021. 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 

197



The Board could decide not to authorize staff to submit the Safe and Seamless Mobility 
Quick Strike Projects and the projects would be delayed and staff would need to seek 
other funding .  
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 1 – Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, 
income, or ability.  
 
The Quick-Strike projects serve multimodal transportation needs for Napa County’s 
residents, visitors and workers.  The projects would better serve bicyclists and 
pedestrians. 
 
Goal 2 – Improve system safety in order to support all modes and serve all users 
 
The Quick-Strike projects improve multimodal connectivity and operations for all modes. 
Roundabouts have been shown to reduce fatalities by over 90% as compared to 
traditional intersections. 
 
Goal 3 – Use taxpayer dollars efficiently  
 
The Quick-Strike projects would be funded using regional funding minimizing impacts on 
scarce local funds. 
 
Goal 4 – Support Napa County’s economic vitality. 
 
The Quick-Strike projects will improve a key goods movement route and improve access 
to employment centers up valley.   
 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Resolution 21-10 
(2) Resolution 21-11  
(3) Draft Nomination Letter for Napa Quick Strike Projects   
(4) Napa Forward Roundabout Renderings  
(5) Napa County SRTS Memo  
(6) Safe and Seamless Mobility Quick Strike Guidance  
 
 

198



ATTACHMENT 1 
Agenda Item 10.3 

March 17, 2021 
RESOLUTION No. 21-10 

 
Resolution of Local Support 

 
Authorizing the filing of an application for funding assigned to MTC and 

Committing any necessary matching funds and stating assurance to complete the 
project 

 
WHEREAS,  NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (herein referred 

to as APPLICANT) is submitting an application to the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) for $11,000,000 in funding assigned to MTC for programming 
discretion, which includes federal funding administered by the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) and federal or state funding administered by the California 
Transportation Commission (CTC) such as Surface Transportation Block Grant 
Program (STP) funding, Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program 
(CMAQ) funding, Transportation Alternatives (TA) set-aside/Active Transportation 
Program (ATP) funding, and Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) 
funding (herein collectively referred to as REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING) for 
the NAPA FORWARD SR 29 SAFETY AND OPERATIONAL IMPROVEMENTS  (herein 
referred to as PROJECT) for the SEAMLESS MOBILITY QUICK STRIKE 
PROGRAM(herein referred to as PROGRAM); and 

WHEREAS, the United States Congress from time to time enacts and amends 
legislation to provide funding for various transportation needs and programs, 
(collectively, the FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ACT) including, but not limited to the 
Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STP) (23 U.S.C. § 133), the Congestion 
Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) (23 U.S.C. § 149) and the 
Transportation Alternatives (TA) set-aside (23 U.S.C. § 133); and 

WHEREAS, state statutes, including California Streets and Highways Code 
§182.6, §182.7, and §2381(a)(1), and California Government Code §14527, provide 
various funding programs for the programming discretion of the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) and the Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ACT, and any 
regulations promulgated thereunder, eligible project sponsors wishing to receive federal 
or state funds for a regionally-significant project shall submit an application first with the 
appropriate MPO, or RTPA, as applicable, for review and inclusion in the federal 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and 

WHEREAS, MTC is the MPO and RTPA for the nine counties of the 
San Francisco Bay region; and 
 WHEREAS, MTC has adopted a Regional Project Funding Delivery Policy (MTC 
Resolution No. 3606, revised) that sets out procedures governing the application and 
use of REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and 

WHEREAS, APPLICANT is an eligible sponsor for REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and 
 WHEREAS, as part of the application for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY 
FUNDING, MTC requires a resolution adopted by the responsible implementing agency 
stating the following: 

199



• the commitment of any required matching funds; and 
• that the sponsor understands that the REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY 

FUNDING is fixed at the programmed amount, and therefore any cost 
increase cannot be expected to be funded with additional REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and 

• that the PROJECT will comply with the procedures, delivery milestones and 
funding deadlines specified in the Regional Project Funding Delivery Policy 
(MTC Resolution No. 3606, revised); and 

• the assurance of the sponsor to complete the PROJECT as described in the 
application, subject to environmental clearance, and if approved, as included 
in MTC's federal Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and 

• that the PROJECT will have adequate staffing resources to deliver and 
complete the PROJECT within the schedule submitted with the project 
application; and 

• that the PROJECT will comply with all project-specific requirements as set 
forth in the PROGRAM; and 

• that APPLICANT has assigned, and will maintain a single point of contact for 
all FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation projects to coordinate within the 
agency and with the respective Congestion Management Agency (CMA), 
MTC, Caltrans, FHWA, and CTC on all communications, inquires or issues 
that may arise during the federal programming and delivery process for all 
FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation and transit projects implemented by 
APPLICANT; and 

• in the case of a transit project, the PROJECT will comply with MTC 
Resolution No. 3866, revised, which sets forth the requirements of MTC’s 
Transit Coordination Implementation Plan to more efficiently deliver transit 
projects in the region; and 

• in the case of a highway project, the PROJECT will comply with MTC 
Resolution No. 4104, which sets forth MTC’s Traffic Operations System 
(TOS) Policy to install and activate TOS elements on new major freeway 
projects; and 

• in the case of an RTIP project, state law requires PROJECT be included in a 
local congestion management plan, or be consistent with the capital 
improvement program adopted pursuant to MTC’s funding agreement with the 
countywide transportation agency; and 

 WHEREAS, that APPLICANT is authorized to submit an application for 
REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT; and 
 WHEREAS, there is no legal impediment to APPLICANT making applications for 
the funds; and 
 WHEREAS, there is no pending or threatened litigation that might in any way 
adversely affect the proposed PROJECT, or the ability of APPLICANT to deliver such 
PROJECT; and 
 WHEREAS, APPLICANT authorizes its Executive Director, General Manager, or 
designee to execute and file an application with MTC for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY 
FUNDING for the PROJECT as referenced in this resolution; and 

WHEREAS, MTC requires that a copy of this resolution be transmitted to the 
MTC in conjunction with the filing of the application. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the APPLICANT is authorized to 

200



execute and file an application for funding for the PROJECT for REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING under the FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ACT or 
continued funding; and be it further  

RESOLVED that APPLICANT will provide any required matching funds; and be it 
further 

RESOLVED that APPLICANT understands that the REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the project is fixed at the MTC approved programmed 
amount, and that any cost increases must be funded by the APPLICANT from other 
funds, and that APPLICANT does not expect any cost increases to be funded with 
additional REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and be it further 

RESOLVED that APPLICANT understands the funding deadlines associated with 
these funds and will comply with the provisions and requirements of the Regional 
Project Funding Delivery Policy (MTC Resolution No. 3606, revised) and APPLICANT 
has, and will retain the expertise, knowledge and resources necessary to deliver 
federally-funded transportation and transit projects, and has assigned, and will maintain 
a single point of contact for all FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation projects to 
coordinate within the agency and with the respective Congestion Management Agency 
(CMA), MTC, Caltrans, FHWA, and CTC on all communications, inquires or issues that 
may arise during the federal programming and delivery process for all FHWA- and CTC-
funded transportation and transit projects implemented by APPLICANT; and be it further 

RESOLVED that PROJECT will be implemented as described in the complete 
application and in this resolution, subject to environmental clearance, and, if approved, 
for the amount approved by MTC and programmed in the federal TIP; and be it further 

RESOLVED that APPLICANT has reviewed the PROJECT and has adequate 
staffing resources to deliver and complete the PROJECT within the schedule submitted 
with the project application; and be it further 

RESOLVED that PROJECT will comply with the requirements as set forth in 
MTC programming guidelines and project selection procedures for the PROGRAM; and 
be it further 

RESOLVED that, in the case of a transit project, APPLICANT agrees to comply 
with the requirements of MTC’s Transit Coordination Implementation Plan as set forth in 
MTC Resolution No. 3866, revised; and be it further 

RESOLVED that, in the case of a highway project, APPLICANT agrees to 
comply with the requirements of MTC’s Traffic Operations System (TOS) Policy as set 
forth in MTC Resolution No. 4104; and be it further 

RESOLVED that, in the case of an RTIP project, PROJECT is included in a local 
congestion management plan, or is consistent with the capital improvement program 
adopted pursuant to MTC’s funding agreement with the countywide transportation 
agency; and be it further 

RESOLVED that APPLICANT is an eligible sponsor of REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING funded projects; and be it further 
 RESOLVED that APPLICANT is authorized to submit an application for 
REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT; and be it further 
 RESOLVED that there is no legal impediment to APPLICANT making 
applications for the funds; and be it further 
 RESOLVED that there is no pending or threatened litigation that might in any 
way adversely affect the proposed PROJECT, or the ability of APPLICANT to deliver 
such PROJECT; and be it further 

201



 RESOLVED that APPLICANT authorizes its Executive Director, General 
Manager, City Manager, or designee to execute and file an application with MTC for 
REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT as referenced in this 
resolution; and be it further 

RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution will be transmitted to the MTC in 
conjunction with the filing of the application; and be it further 

RESOLVED that the MTC is requested to support the application for the 
PROJECT described in the resolution, and if approved, to include the PROJECT in 
MTC's federal TIP upon submittal by the project sponsor for TIP programming 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the NVTA Board approves, and authorizes the 
filing of an application for funding assigned to MTC and committing any necessary 
matching funds and stating assurance to complete the project 
 
 
Passed and Adopted the 17th day of March, 2021. 
 
 
________________________ 
Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Chair         

Ayes: 
 
 
 
 
 
             
                 Nays: 
 
 
 
             
             Absent: 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 
 

202



ATTACHMENT 2 
Agenda Item 10.3 

March 17, 2021 
RESOLUTION No. 21-11 

 
Resolution of Local Support 

Authorizing the filing of an application for funding assigned to MTC and 
committing any necessary matching funds and stating assurance to complete the 

project 
 

WHEREAS,  NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (herein referred 
to as APPLICANT) is submitting an application to the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) for $100,000 in funding assigned to MTC for programming 
discretion, which includes federal funding administered by the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) and federal or state funding administered by the California 
Transportation Commission (CTC) such as Surface Transportation Block Grant 
Program (STP) funding, Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program 
(CMAQ) funding, Transportation Alternatives (TA) set-aside/Active Transportation 
Program (ATP) funding, and Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) 
funding (herein collectively referred to as REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING) for 
the NAPA COUNTY SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL PROGRAM (herein referred to as 
PROJECT) for the SEAMLESS MOBILITY QUICK STRIKE PROGRAM(herein referred 
to as PROGRAM); and 

WHEREAS, the United States Congress from time to time enacts and amends 
legislation to provide funding for various transportation needs and programs, 
(collectively, the FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ACT) including, but not limited to the 
Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STP) (23 U.S.C. § 133), the Congestion 
Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) (23 U.S.C. § 149) and the 
Transportation Alternatives (TA) set-aside (23 U.S.C. § 133); and 

WHEREAS, state statutes, including California Streets and Highways Code 
§182.6, §182.7, and §2381(a)(1), and California Government Code §14527, provide 
various funding programs for the programming discretion of the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) and the Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ACT, and any 
regulations promulgated thereunder, eligible project sponsors wishing to receive federal 
or state funds for a regionally-significant project shall submit an application first with the 
appropriate MPO, or RTPA, as applicable, for review and inclusion in the federal 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and 

WHEREAS, MTC is the MPO and RTPA for the nine counties of the 
San Francisco Bay region; and 
 WHEREAS, MTC has adopted a Regional Project Funding Delivery Policy (MTC 
Resolution No. 3606, revised) that sets out procedures governing the application and 
use of REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and 

WHEREAS, APPLICANT is an eligible sponsor for REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and 
 WHEREAS, as part of the application for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY 
FUNDING, MTC requires a resolution adopted by the responsible implementing agency 
stating the following: 

• the commitment of any required matching funds; and 
• that the sponsor understands that the REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY 

203



FUNDING is fixed at the programmed amount, and therefore any cost 
increase cannot be expected to be funded with additional REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and 

• that the PROJECT will comply with the procedures, delivery milestones and 
funding deadlines specified in the Regional Project Funding Delivery Policy 
(MTC Resolution No. 3606, revised); and 

• the assurance of the sponsor to complete the PROJECT as described in the 
application, subject to environmental clearance, and if approved, as included 
in MTC's federal Transportation Improvement Program (TIP); and 

• that the PROJECT will have adequate staffing resources to deliver and 
complete the PROJECT within the schedule submitted with the project 
application; and 

• that the PROJECT will comply with all project-specific requirements as set 
forth in the PROGRAM; and 

• that APPLICANT has assigned, and will maintain a single point of contact for 
all FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation projects to coordinate within the 
agency and with the respective Congestion Management Agency (CMA), 
MTC, Caltrans, FHWA, and CTC on all communications, inquires or issues 
that may arise during the federal programming and delivery process for all 
FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation and transit projects implemented by 
APPLICANT; and 

• in the case of a transit project, the PROJECT will comply with MTC 
Resolution No. 3866, revised, which sets forth the requirements of MTC’s 
Transit Coordination Implementation Plan to more efficiently deliver transit 
projects in the region; and 

• in the case of a highway project, the PROJECT will comply with MTC 
Resolution No. 4104, which sets forth MTC’s Traffic Operations System 
(TOS) Policy to install and activate TOS elements on new major freeway 
projects; and 

• in the case of an RTIP project, state law requires PROJECT be included in a 
local congestion management plan, or be consistent with the capital 
improvement program adopted pursuant to MTC’s funding agreement with the 
countywide transportation agency; and 

 WHEREAS, that APPLICANT is authorized to submit an application for 
REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT; and 
 WHEREAS, there is no legal impediment to APPLICANT making applications for 
the funds; and 
 WHEREAS, there is no pending or threatened litigation that might in any way 
adversely affect the proposed PROJECT, or the ability of APPLICANT to deliver such 
PROJECT; and 
 WHEREAS, APPLICANT authorizes its Executive Director, General Manager, or 
designee to execute and file an application with MTC for REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY 
FUNDING for the PROJECT as referenced in this resolution; and 

WHEREAS, MTC requires that a copy of this resolution be transmitted to the 
MTC in conjunction with the filing of the application. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the APPLICANT is authorized to 
execute and file an application for funding for the PROJECT for REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING under the FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION ACT or 
continued funding; and be it further  

204



RESOLVED that APPLICANT will provide any required matching funds; and be it 
further 

RESOLVED that APPLICANT understands that the REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the project is fixed at the MTC approved programmed 
amount, and that any cost increases must be funded by the APPLICANT from other 
funds, and that APPLICANT does not expect any cost increases to be funded with 
additional REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING; and be it further 

RESOLVED that APPLICANT understands the funding deadlines associated with 
these funds and will comply with the provisions and requirements of the Regional 
Project Funding Delivery Policy (MTC Resolution No. 3606, revised) and APPLICANT 
has, and will retain the expertise, knowledge and resources necessary to deliver 
federally-funded transportation and transit projects, and has assigned, and will maintain 
a single point of contact for all FHWA- and CTC-funded transportation projects to 
coordinate within the agency and with the respective Congestion Management Agency 
(CMA), MTC, Caltrans, FHWA, and CTC on all communications, inquires or issues that 
may arise during the federal programming and delivery process for all FHWA- and CTC-
funded transportation and transit projects implemented by APPLICANT; and be it further 

RESOLVED that PROJECT will be implemented as described in the complete 
application and in this resolution, subject to environmental clearance, and, if approved, 
for the amount approved by MTC and programmed in the federal TIP; and be it further 

RESOLVED that APPLICANT has reviewed the PROJECT and has adequate 
staffing resources to deliver and complete the PROJECT within the schedule submitted 
with the project application; and be it further 

RESOLVED that PROJECT will comply with the requirements as set forth in 
MTC programming guidelines and project selection procedures for the PROGRAM; and 
be it further 

RESOLVED that, in the case of a transit project, APPLICANT agrees to comply 
with the requirements of MTC’s Transit Coordination Implementation Plan as set forth in 
MTC Resolution No. 3866, revised; and be it further 

RESOLVED that, in the case of a highway project, APPLICANT agrees to 
comply with the requirements of MTC’s Traffic Operations System (TOS) Policy as set 
forth in MTC Resolution No. 4104; and be it further 

RESOLVED that, in the case of an RTIP project, PROJECT is included in a local 
congestion management plan, or is consistent with the capital improvement program 
adopted pursuant to MTC’s funding agreement with the countywide transportation 
agency; and be it further 

RESOLVED that APPLICANT is an eligible sponsor of REGIONAL 
DISCRETIONARY FUNDING funded projects; and be it further 
 RESOLVED that APPLICANT is authorized to submit an application for 
REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT; and be it further 
 RESOLVED that there is no legal impediment to APPLICANT making 
applications for the funds; and be it further 
 RESOLVED that there is no pending or threatened litigation that might in any 
way adversely affect the proposed PROJECT, or the ability of APPLICANT to deliver 
such PROJECT; and be it further 
 RESOLVED that APPLICANT authorizes its Executive Director, General 
Manager, City Manager, or designee to execute and file an application with MTC for 
REGIONAL DISCRETIONARY FUNDING for the PROJECT as referenced in this 
resolution; and be it further 

RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution will be transmitted to the MTC in 

205



conjunction with the filing of the application; and be it further 
RESOLVED that the MTC is requested to support the application for the 

PROJECT described in the resolution, and if approved, to include the PROJECT in 
MTC's federal TIP upon submittal by the project sponsor for TIP programming. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the NVTA Board approves, and authorizes the 
filing of an application for funding assigned to MTC and committing any necessary 
matching funds and stating assurance to complete the project 

 
 
Passed and Adopted the 17th day of March, 2021. 
 
 
________________________ 
Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Chair         

Ayes 
 
 
 
 
 
             
                 Nays: 
 
 
 
             
             Absent: 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 

206



March 3, 2021 

Therese McMillan 
Executive Director 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission  
375 Beale Street, Suite 800  
San Francisco, CA 94105-2066 
 
Attention:  Theresa Rommel  
 
RE: Napa County Nominations for the Safe and Seamless Mobility Quick-Strike Program  
 
Dear Ms. McMillan: 
  
Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is pleased to submit the following nominations for the Safe 
and Seamless Mobility Quick-Strike Program: 
 
Table 1. Project Nominations  

Project Title  Sponsor  Description  Funding Request 

Napa Forward SR 29 
Safety and Operational 
Improvements  

NVTA/MTC Mini-roundabouts at two 
intersections, SR 29/Rutherford 
Road and SR 29/Oakville Cross Road 

$11,000,000* 

Napa County Safe Routes 
to School Program  

NVTA/NCBC Napa County Safe Routes to School 
Program Activities in elementary 
and middle schools countywide  

$100,000  

*Project is scalable and can complete a portion of the project for less funding  
 
Napa Forward SR 29 Safety and Operational Improvements 
NVTA staff are working with MTC Design and Project Delivery Staff on the Napa Forward Program.  A 
component of the Napa Forward umbrella program includes quickstrike capital improvements along 
State Route 29 that would relieve traffic congestion and improve safety for Napa County’s residents, 
visitors and workers.  Near-term improvements include mini-roundabouts at the intersections of SR 
29/Oakville Cross Road and SR 29/Rutherford Road.  The roundabouts will not only provide signficant 
operational and safety improvements on the corridor but will minimize heavy traffic delays that occur 
during peak hour traffic and weekends.  The improvements will also enhance safety for bicyclists and 
pedestrians who use the corridor for commuting and for recreation.   
 
Napa County ranks 6th highest in the state for severe or fatal collisions out of 58 counties and 8th highest 
for bicycle fatalities and severe injuries.  Roundabouts have been proven to reduce severe collisions by 
80% and fatal collisions by over 90%.   The roundabouts will also provide additional access for bicyclists 
that navigate the intersection by slowing the speed of vehicle traffic.  Currently few bicyclists can 
maneuver southbound on SR 29 exiting from Oakville Cross Road or Rutherford intersections.   
 
The current intersections operate at a LOS F during peak hours and cause congestion in the corridor with 
average delays exceeding 6 minutes per vehicle traveling through the corridor.  The Vine Transit system 

207



also operates this corridor with over 20 runs a day passing through these intersections.  Improvements 
to traffic conditions will vastly improve running times of Regional Routes 10 and 10X.   
 
The Napa Forward roundabouts are within 2 miles of each other and within proximate access to two 
Communities of Concern (CoC) in Napa County; the Unincorporated Yountville CoC (census tract 
06055201200) and the South St. Helena CoC (census tract 06055201601).  Both of these CoCs were 
profiled in the Napa Community Based Transportation Plan approved in July 2020.  The Unincorporated 
Yountville area is a community of concern due to greater than average numbers of disabled seniors, age 
75 years or older, who speak English as a second language. Unincorporated Yountville residents are 
much older on average than other Napa county communities, with a median age of 52 years. The South 
St. Helena area is designated as a CoC because of its high percentage of severely rent burdened 
households living below the poverty line, including many residents over 75 years old. Nearly 40% of all 
households in the South St. Helena COC, live 200% below the poverty line. The median household 
income is $60,500, which is 23% less than the Napa County average. In the COC, 31% of households earn 
less than $35,000 per year.   
 
The intersection improvements are currently in preliminary design and Environmental Document/ Right-
of-Way Clearance (ROW) will be completed by spring 2022.   The projects are expected to be ready to 
construct by fall 2022.  The Napa Forward Roundabouts preliminary cost are listed in Table 2 below. 
 
Tables 2. Napa Forward Project Cost ($1,000s) 

Phase Rutherford Roundabout Oakville Roundabout  Total  
Project Approval & 
Environmental 
Document  

$750 $750 $1,500 

Final Design  450 450 900 
ROW Support  100 100 200 
ROW Capital 200 200 400 
Pre-construction  1,500 1,500 3,000 
    
Construction  3,100 4,000 7,100 
Construction support 400 500 900 
 $5,000 $6,000 $11,000 

 
 
Napa County Safe Routes to Schools 
NVTA in partnership with the Napa County Bicycle Coalition is also requesting funding for the Napa 
County Safe Routes to School Program for Fiscal Years 2021-2023.   Studies have shown that programs 
providing bicycle education and outreach have direct community benefits by increasing the percentage 
of children who walk or ride their bikes to school.  SRTS programs provides quality of life benefits such 
as lower transportation costs for families, cleaner air and less traffic congestion.  Students who walk and 
bike to school arrive ready to learn, and generally perform better academically.  The Napa County SRTS 
program will directly serve several low-income students and provide specific training and education to 
Spanish Speaking populations through 9 bilingual family biking workshops.  Additional program 
elements include: 

208



• Education and encouragement programming at elementary and middle school sites countywide 
($49,000). 

o Bike Rodeos at 14 school sites  
o Bike Month and Walk & Roll Day at 7 sites  

• Building a network of Parent Champions at targeted schools around youth walking and biking 
education ($8,000).  

o Safety Summits at 7 school sites  
• Conducting broad-based community encouragement and safety education programming 

including community rides and family biking workshops with specific focus on Spanish-Speaking 
populations ($43,000).  

o 9 bilingual family biking workshops  
o 6 community rides in local jurisdictions countywide  
o Safety education and encouragement for local workers  

 
Community Engagement and Process: 
The Napa Forward nominated projects have been identified in several planning efforts which have 
included extensive public engagement.   These plans include the Napa Countywide Transportation Plan: 
Advancing Mobility 2045, the Napa Countywide Bicycle Plan, Napa Countywide Pedestrian Plan and the 
Community Based Transportation Plan.  The projects are also included in the Regional Transportation 
Plan, Plan Bay Area 2050.  NVTA staff has taken information on the Call for Quick-Strike projects to 
several of NVTA’s committees including the Technical Advisory Committee, the Active Transportation 
Advisory Committee and the Citizens Advisory Committee to provide information on the program and 
solicit interests by local partners and community members.  NVTA has also been working with MTC staff 
on the Napa Forward initiative.  It was decided to put forth the Napa Forward project because of the 
multimodal benefits and regional coordination with MTC on the project.  The Safe Routes to School 
Project is ready to implement and will benefit a large expanse of the community through countywide 
programming.  
 
NVTA greatly appreciates MTC’s careful consideration of the above Quick-Strike project nominations for 
Napa County.  These projects are high priorities for Napa County and align with the connected mobility 
framework, goals and values.  Both projects are directly connected to a CoC, PDA or similar designation 
and provide mode choices other than driving alone.   
 
Please contact me (kmiller@nvta.ca.gov (707) 259-8634) should you have any questions of require 
additional information.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Kate Miller  
Executive Director Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
 

209

mailto:kmiller@nvta.ca.gov


210



CONCEPT FOR 
ILLUSTRATIVE 

PURPOSES ONLY 

OAKVILLE 
GROCERY 

Central Island is M
o

untable

-STA TE ROU-TE2-9--··-:__-=::::=--���;;;����
7' 

11' 

13' 

11' 

7' 

Existin
g 

Tracks
--- ··-· -··- ·-··- ·-·-··------- - - -- -- - -- -- -- - - --- ---- ----- - --

Kimley>>> Horn 

0 
w <( 

_J 0 
_J Cl=:: 
> (J)
� (J)
<( 00 Cl=::

u 

9' 11' 11' 8' 

w 
z 

::5 
I
::, 

z 
_J 

' 
' 
' 

AC-Grade Cro
ss

ing_ -- -----·---
-
--- --

-
--

___ 

L 
RR Ri

gh
t
-of-

Wa
y

·-- -·-· --··-··-··-· -··-· -- ---- - -- ------- - -- - --- - -

12' 

11' 

-------------------------

------ � -------------·---------------------
r----------- ! ----------------------------< 
' 
i 

i 
/ '
i 

! 
i 
i 
i 

/ 
f 

GENERAL NOTES: 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LIMITS ARE SHOWN FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY.
ACTUAL RIGHT-OF-WAY LIMITS MAY VARY. 
ACTUAL CROSSWALK CONFIGURATION MAY VARY DEPENDING ON PROJECT 
TIMING WITH THE FUTURE CONSTRUCTION OF THE RUTHERFORD SECTION 
OF THE VINE TRAIL. 0' 20' 

Figure 5 I EXHIBIT
Conceptual Design for Roundabout at SR-29 and Oakville Cross Road 111112020 

40' 

SCALE 
1" · 40' 211



February 28, 2021 

DRAFT MEMORANDUM 

MTC “Quick Strike” Program 
Safe Routes to School Proposal FY 2021-2023 

Conceptual Program Overview –  
Building upon past accomplishments of the Napa County Safe Routes to School program, this 
program aims to: 

• Conduct targeted education & encouragement programming at Elementary and Middle
Schools in American Canyon, Napa, and St. Helena

o Bike Rodeos at 14 school sites, $28,000

o “Bike Month” and “Walk & Roll Day” Programs at 7 sites - $21,000

• Build a network of Parent Champions at targeted schools to continue and expand
engagement around youth walking and biking safety

o Safety Summits @ 7 school sites, $8,000

• Conduct broad-based community encouragement and safety education programming,
including Community Rides and Family Biking Workshops, with specific focus on
Spanish-speaking populations and locally identified communities of concern

o 9 Bilingual Family Biking Workshops - $22,000

o 6 Community Rides in Local Jurisdictions - $12,000

o Safety Education & Encouragement for Local Workers - $9,000

Program Cost Estimate: $100,000 

Consistency with MTC Evaluation Criteria – 

• Align with Connected Mobility Framework Values and Goals

• Outcome of Community Engagement Process

• Within or directly connected to PDA, CoC, or similar local designation

• Demonstrate partnership among jurisdictions & counties

Additional Notes – 

• Incentives will be purchased with non-federal funds, or via in-kind donation

• Program costs are preliminary estimates, subject to change

• Need to confirm that there is no local match requirement

• Fully burdened rate sheet to be developed upon request

212



Attachment 1 
Attachment A, Appendix 11, MTC Resolution No. 4202 

January 27, 2021 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
OBAG 2 – One Bay Area Grant Program Page 1 
Project Selection Criteria and Programming Policy

Appendix A-11: Safe and Seamless Mobility Quick-Strike Program 

The Safe and Seamless Mobility Quick-Strike program is a one-time, competitive grant program 
within the One Bay Area Grant program (OBAG 2) framework. Federal funding is available to 
support local and regional projects that can be implemented quickly to benefit communities 
responding and adapting to the COVID-19 environment. 

Available funding includes a mix of Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STP), Congestion 
Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement (CMAQ) and Federal Highway Infrastructure Program (FHIP) 
funds, with FHIP funds exchanged with STP/CMAQ funds to the extent possible to meet federal other 
funding deadlines and requirements. CMAQ funds will be used for eligible projects that demonstrate 
air quality benefits and implement Plan Bay Area’s climate initiative goals and priorities.  

Project Eligibility & Focus Areas 
The program emphasizes bicycle/pedestrian safety and mobility, connections to transit, and 
projects that advance equitable mobility. Eligible project types include: 

 Quick-build bike, pedestrian, and transit improvements; including bike share
enhancements.

 Local safe and seamless mobility projects, including projects that advance equitable
mobility; invest in bicycle/pedestrian safety; improve connections to transit; or
implement seamless strategies within a corridor.

 In addition to capital projects, programs that support safe and seamless mobility or advance
equitable mobility are also eligible (ex. safe routes to school/transit programs); a limited
amount of funding, (up to $200,000 per county) may also be directed towards countywide
implementation of safe and seamless mobility planning and programming efforts).

 Other near-term implementation of strategies emerging from the Blue-Ribbon Transit
Recovery Task Force and Partnership Board’s Connected Mobility Subcommittee.

Fund commitments for specific focus areas include: 
 One-quarter of the total program is targeted for bicycle/pedestrian safety (including

local road safety).
 $5 million is set aside to support early implementation efforts anticipated from the Blue-

Ribbon Transit Recovery Task Force.

Evaluation Criteria 
MTC staff will evaluate nominated projects against the following program criteria.  
Nominated projects should: 

 Align with Connected Mobility Framework Values and Goals (see inset below)
 Be the direct result or outcome of a community engagement process
 Be within or directly connected to a Priority Development Area (PDA) or Transportation

Priority Area (TPA) and/or serve a Community of Concern (CoC), Community Air Risk
Evaluation (CARE) program area, or similar local designation. PDAs and TPAs may be
existing or recently designated as part of the Plan Bay Area 2050 growth framework.

 Addresses transit connectivity gaps, especially in areas significantly impacted from the
pandemic

213



Attachment A, Appendix A-11, MTC Resolution No. 4202 
January 27, 2021 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
OBAG 2 – One Bay Area Grant Program Page 2 
Project Selection Criteria and Programming Policy

 Demonstrate partnership among jurisdictions, transit agencies, and counties.
 Demonstrate ability to quickly deliver, and meet federal funding requirements, as funds

must be obligated by September 30, 2022.

To ensure consistency with the implementation of county and regional plans and priorities, as 
well as encourage discussion and coordination in developing investment proposals, projects co-
nominated by MTC and a CTA will be given extra consideration if meeting regional goals and 
priorities. 

Below are the regional connected mobility values and goals guiding these investments: 

Project Nominations 
To address local needs throughout the region, and encourage 
community-based project investments, each County 
Transportation Agency (CTA) will act on MTC’s behalf and 
submit project nominations for their county area. County 
targets have been provided as a guide, for each county (see 
table at right). However, final project selection by MTC will not 
necessarily adhere to these targets. Target amounts are based 
on the OBAG 2 county program distribution.  

In addition to county submissions, MTC may consider projects 
that would be implemented regionwide or in more than one 
county. Where applicable, MTC staff will work with CTAs to 
coordinate on co-nominations for regional projects.  

As the final program of projects must reflect regional or multi-
county priorities, in addition to local priorities within each 
county, the final programming per county will not correspond 
exactly to nomination targets. 

To ensure each county is provided sufficient funding to have a meaningful community impact, 
each county’s nomination target will be a minimum of $1 million. 

County Nomination Targets 
($ millions, rounded) 

% 
Alameda 19.9%
Contra Costa 14.6% 
Marin 2.8%
Napa 2.1%
San Francisco 12.5% 
San Mateo 8.4% 
Santa Clara 27.0% 
Solano 5.5%
Sonoma 7.2%

100.0% 
Note: Final project selection and 
fund programming will not 
correspond exactly to 
nomination targets. 

214



Attachment A, Appendix A-11, MTC Resolution No. 4202 
January 27, 2021 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
OBAG 2 – One Bay Area Grant Program Page 3 
Project Selection Criteria and Programming Policy

Project Selection Process 
The prioritization process is designed to quickly distribute funds to competitive and impactful 
investments throughout the region. 

 Letters of Interest: County Transportation Agencies (CTAs) submit Letters of Interest to
nominate projects within their counties. In addition to basic project information (project
description, sponsor, total cost, funding request), submittals should also describe how
the project meets the program eligibility requirements and evaluation criteria, and how
well the proposed project sponsor meets state and federal funding requirements.

 Evaluation: MTC staff evaluate CTA nominations as well as regional program
considerations to develop a recommended program of projects. Program
recommendations presented to Bay Area Partnership Board for review and discussion.

 Project Applications: MTC and CTA staff work with project sponsors to submit project
applications with a detailed scope, delivery schedule, and funding plan.

 Program Approval: MTC Commission consideration and approval of projects and fund
programming.

Programming Policies and Requirements 
Unless otherwise noted within these guidelines, OBAG 2 General Programming Policies (see 
MTC Resolution No. 4202, Attachment A, pages 6-11), and Regional Project Funding Delivery 
Policy (MTC Resolution No. 3606) apply. 

 Project sponsors: Eligible sponsors are those approved by Caltrans to receive FHWA
federal-aid funds (including cities, counties, transit agencies, CTAs, and MTC). Sponsors
must also have a demonstrated ability to meet timely use of funds deadlines and
requirements (see Project Delivery and Monitoring, below).

 Minimum Grant Size: Project nominations should be consistent with OBAG 2 minimum
grant size requirements per county ($500,000 grant minimum for counties with
population over 1 million, and $250,000 minimum for all other counties). Final funding
awards may deviate from grant minimums per county, should one or more grant awards
span multiple counties or regionwide.

Additionally, deviations from the OBAG 2 minimum grant size requirements for project
nominations may be considered on a project-by-project basis. However, grant awards
must be at least $100,000.

 Local Match: Toll credits may be requested in lieu of non-federal cash match.

 Supplanting of Funds Prohibited: Supplanting of existing funds on fully-funded
projects is prohibited, as the program is intended to infuse transportation investment
into communities responding and adapting to the COVID-19 environment. If funds are

215



Attachment A, Appendix A-11, MTC Resolution No. 4202 
January 27, 2021 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
OBAG 2 – One Bay Area Grant Program Page 4 
Project Selection Criteria and Programming Policy

requested to address a funding shortfall on a project due to reduced local revenues, 
CTAs must demonstrate why the project should be a priority for regional funding, if it 
was not the highest priority for available local funding. In their nomination, CTAs should 
describe how the county and local jurisdictions determined which projects are prioritized 
for reduced local revenues.  

 Project Phases: The Environmental (ENV), Plans, Specifications and Estimates (PS&E),
Preliminary Engineering (PE) and Right Of Way (ROW) phases are eligible for capital
projects as long as the construction (CON) phase of the project is delivered and funds
obligated by September 30, 2022.

 Project Delivery and Monitoring: Project sponsors must have a record of consistently
meeting state and federal timely use of funds deadlines and requirements, or
demonstrate/identify revised/new internal processes to ensure they will meet funding
deadlines and requirements moving forward at the time of project nomination.  In
addition to the provisions of the Regional Project Funding Delivery Policy (MTC
Resolution No. 3606), the following specific funding deadlines/requirements apply:

o Funds must be obligated (authorized in a federal E-76, or transferred to FTA) no
later than September 30, 2022.

o Funds must be encumbered or awarded in a contract within 6 months of federal
obligation.

o Funds must be invoiced against within 3 months of encumbrance/award and
invoiced against and receive a federal reimbursement quarterly thereafter.

o If there could be complications with invoicing against the construction phase
within 9 months of federal obligation, then the sponsor should consider including
Construction Engineering (CE) in the federal obligation so that eligible costs may
be invoiced in order to meet the invoicing deadline.

o Project sponsor must meet all other timely use of funds deadlines and
requirements, for all other state and federal transportation funds received by the
agency, during the duration of project implementation (such as, but not limited
to, project award, federal invoicing, and project reporting).

o To help ensure compliance with state and federal invoicing requirements, as part of
the application submittal, the Finance/Accounting Manager/Director for the agency
receiving the funds must provide written documentation on the agency’s internal
process and procedures for complying with FHWA federal-aid timely use of funds
requirements, especially with regards to meeting federal invoicing requirements.

o CTAs nominating successful projects must monitor the project sponsors within their
respective county in meeting the timely use of funds deadline requirements in MTC
Resolution No. 3606 and report quarterly to MTC on the agency’s status in meeting
regional, state, and federal timely use of funds deadlines and requirements.

 Additional Requirements Apply:
o Project sponsor must comply with MTC’s Complete Street Policy and submit a

Complete Streets Checklist for the project.

216



Attachment A, Appendix A-11, MTC Resolution No. 4202 
January 27, 2021 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
OBAG 2 – One Bay Area Grant Program Page 5 
Project Selection Criteria and Programming Policy

o Project sponsor must adopt a Resolution of Local Support prior to adding the
project into the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP).

o Project sponsor must satisfy the OBAG 2 housing policy requirements – have a
certified Housing Element, submit the Annual Progress Report for the Housing
Element, and have adopted a resolution affirming compliance with the California
Surplus Lands Act.

o CTAs must make each project’s Complete Streets Checklist available for review by
the appropriate Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) prior to MTC
Commission approval of projects and fund programming. Documentation this
has occurred must be included with the project application.

217



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
Agreement 21-07 with GMV Synchromatics to Acquire a Computer Aided 
Dispatch/Automatic Vehicle Location (CAD/AVL) System  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director to execute, and make minor modifications to a contract  with GMV 
Synchromatics for up to 5-years  for a new CAD/AVL System. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
A CAD/AVL system helps automate bus dispatch operations, allows staff to identify the 
location of buses wherever they may be in the system and provides location information 
to dispatchers and the public in real-time on both system displays, handheld 
devices/smart phones to provide greater predictability of bus arrival times.  The system 
also monitors and reports maintenance issues to minimize breakdowns and improve 
system dependability.  The system can also help track accident and crime incidents by 
recording where a vehicle is located when an incident occurs and synchronizing that 
information with system cameras.  This functionality has shown particularly useful during 
recent emergency fire evacuations so that all individuals being evacuated are accounted 
for and their final evacuation locations known.  The system also facilitates monitoring all 
key performance indicators and automates reporting.  
 
An evaluation committee comprised of staff members from four North Bay transit 
agencies, including NVTA, participated in a request for information (RFI) and short-listed 
six (6) vendors to participate in the Request for Proposals (RFP) process.  The reviewers 
collectively rated GMV Synchromatics higher in all areas.  Each transit operator will 
contract separately with one of the final vendors.  Table 1 below lists system costs and 
Table 2 below shows system funding. 
 

218



 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Table 1: System Costs 
Use of Funds Total Notes 
Base Price, with Voice Over Internet Protocol 
and Transit Signal Priority  

$606,409 For 61 vehicles 

Year 1: Service + Warranty $70,365  
Year 2: Service + Warranty $70,365  
Year 3: Service + Warranty $70,365  
Year 4: Service + Warranty $95,790  
Year 5: Service + Warranty $95,790  
Contingency (15%) $70,365  
TOTAL FUNDING $1,160,447 

 
 

 
 
Table 2:  Funding sources 
Source of Funds Total Funding Status 
Transportation Development Act Capital 
Budget 

$1,160,447 
 

Funds budgeted 

TOTAL FUNDING $1,160,447 
 

 

*Should Regional Measure 3 funds become available prior to the end of the CAD/AVL 
Contract, NVTA staff proposes to use North Bay Transit Access Funds to help defray 
costs in the outer years of the contract. 
 
 

219



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenck, Program Manager- Public Transit  

(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Agreement 21-07 with GMV Synchromatics to Acquire a Computer 
Aided Dispatch/Automatic Vehicle Location (CAD/AVL) System 

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director to execute, and make minor modifications to a contract  with GMV 
Synchromatics for up to 5-years for a new CAD/AVL System. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
A fully functioning CAD/AVL system is essential to the Vine public transportation service. 
A CAD/AVL System allows the location of buses to be tracked and for dispatchers and 
the public to see the location of the buses in real-time. NVTA first purchased a CAD/AVL 
system in November of 2014 in a joint procurement with Petaluma Transit and Solano 
County Transit (Soltrans). Only two proposals were received in 2014 and the selection 
committee recommended the Avail Technologies System. Avail Technologies installed its 
system on Vine buses in 2015 at a costs of $2,980,200 and NVTA has amended the 
contract twice to extend the expiration date.  
 
Advances in technology and the need to integrate with the new Clipper 2.0 prompted 
NVTA to consider updating its CAD/AVL system. The existing Clipper Card is a smart 
card fare payment system that is used by all Bay Area transit.  The current Clipper system 
was launched more than 12 years ago and is currently being updated to Clipper 2.0. 
Clipper 2.0 is a wholesale replacement with new features including: 
  

220

mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov


 open-payments and Apple, Android, and Samsung Pay  
 a robust mobile application  
 near real-time communication  
 expanded retail, online and mobile sales  
 new fare media options 

 
With this new CAD/AVL system, NVTA will be prepared to install and launch Clipper 2.0 
through an on-board connection along with other Bay Area transit providers in the latter 
part of 2021 early 2022. The new CAD/AVL system will be fully integrated with Clipper 2 
to both minimize onboard equipment and operator systems sign-in requirements.     
 
Over the last few years, many established technology firms and a number of new 
providers have entered the CAD/AVL market and the systems have become significantly 
more sophisticated.  Given the number of new vendors in the market and the complexities 
of such systems, NVTA partnered with Santa Rosa City Bus, Petaluma Transit and 
Fairfield -Suisun Transit (FAST) on a Request for Information (RFI) to better understand 
the systems’ advanced technology, capabilities, differences, and deficiencies.   In 
response to RFI 2020-07 for CAD/AVL services, twelve (12) information packets were 
received.   
 
An evaluation committee comprised of staff members from all four agencies short-listed 
six (6) vendors to participate in the Request for Proposals (RFP).  NVTA, Petaluma 
Transit and Santa Rosa City Bus (FAST decided to delay their procurement) released 
RFP 2020-08 on December 18, 2020. Only vendors that submitted information packets 
during the RFI process were invited to submit RFPs.  The agencies received a series of 
questions and requests for clarification and on January 25, 2021, five (5) responses were 
received.  Each of the agencies reviewed the responses and scored them based up the 
following factors: 
 
 Qualifications and Experience of Project Team  
 Project Methodology / Approach to Work 
 System Functionality / Technical Solution 
 Training and Support 
 Presentation & Demo 
 Cost / Cost Effectiveness 

 
 
While the reviewers collectively rated GMV Synchromatics higher in all areas, each transit 
operator will contract separately with one of the final vendors.  NVTA staff ranked GMV 
Synchromatics the highest and entered into best and final offer negotiations.  The draft 
agreement is for a period of up to three (3) years, with an option for two (2), one (1) year 
extensions at the discretion of staff is provided as Attachment 1.  
 
 

221



ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board could decide not to authorize the Executive Director to enter in to contract with 
the GMV Synchromatics, which would result in one of the following: 
 

1. Require the Vine system to continue to operate the existing CAD/AVL system and 
integrate it with Clipper 2.0 through the General Transit Feed Specification – Real 
Time (GTFS-RT), which is how other legacy CAD/AVL systems are integrating with 
Clipper 2.0 

2. Request that NVTA staff release a new RFP for a CAD/AVL system independent 
of other agencies 

 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 1 – Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, 
income, or ability 
 
The CAD/AVL system greatly improves the Vine system’s predictability, supports more 
efficient operations and monitoring. 
 
Goal 2 – Improve system safety in order to support all modes and serve all users 
 
The new CAD/AVL system allows the public, dispatchers and managers to know the 
location of Vine buses at all times.  The system also stores this information and allows it 
to be replayed so that all types of incidents can be properly investigated.  
 
Goal 5 – Minimize the energy and other resources required to move people and goods 
 
The CAD/AVL systems monitors vehicles performances. Monitoring bus performance 
reduces emissions caused by poor performing vehicles. 
 
Goal 6– Prioritize the maintenance and rehabilitation of the existing system 
 
When the New CAD/AVL system is installed it will be synced with NVTA’s existing 
technology including the camera system, automated passengers counters and fare 
boxes. The CAD/AVL systems monitors vehicles performances and reduces breakdowns.   
 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Draft CAD/AVL Agreement with GMV Synchromatics 
 

222



NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

AGREEMENT NO. 21-07 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this __ day of ___________ 
2021, by and between the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, a joint powers agency 
under the laws of the State of California, hereinafter referred to as “NVTA”, and GMV 
Syncromatics Corporation, whose mailing address is 523 W 6th Street, Suite 444, Los 
Angeles, CA 90014, hereinafter referred to as “CONTRACTOR”; 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, NVTA wishes to purchase and implement  Computer Aided dispatch 
(CAD) and Automated Vehicle Location (AVL) system for its transit operations; and  

WHEREAS, NVTA has authorized the NVTA Executive Director to enter into a 
contract for services at its March 17, 2021, meeting; and  

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR is willing and has been determined to be qualified to 
provide such specialized services to NVTA under the terms and conditions set forth 
herein; 

TERMS 

NOW, THEREFORE, NVTA hereby engages the services of CONTRACTOR, and 
CONTRACTOR agrees to serve NVTA in accordance with the terms and conditions set 
forth herein: 

(a) Term of the Agreement.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on
the date first above written and shall expire on December, 2026, unless earlier terminated 
as provided herein, except that the obligations of the parties under “Insurance” and 
“Indemnification” shall continue in full force and effect after said expiration date or early 
termination in relation to acts or omissions occurring prior to such dates during the term 
of the Agreement, and the obligations of CONTRACTOR to NVTA shall also continue 
after said expiration date or early termination in relation to the obligations prescribed by 
“Confidentiality,” “Taxes,” and  “Access to Records/Retention)”. 

(b) The term of this Agreement shall be to the date shown above with an option
for an additional two (2) one (1) year term subject to review and recommendation of 
NVTA, and the satisfactory negotiation of terms, including pricing structure. 

2. Scope of Services.  CONTRACTOR shall provide NVTA those services set forth
in CONTRACTOR’s proposal (EXHIBIT A), attached hereto and incorporated by

D R A F T 

223



reference herein.  EXHIBIT A is provided solely to describe the services to be provided.  
Any terms contained in EXHIBIT A that add to, vary or conflict with the terms of this 
Agreement are null and void.   

3. Compensation.
(a) Rates.  In consideration of CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of the promised

work, NVTA shall pay CONTRACTOR at the rate set forth in EXHIBIT B, attached hereto 
and incorporated by reference herein. 

(b) Expenses.  Unless explicitly agreed in writing, no direct expenses, including
travel or other expenses, will be reimbursed by NVTA. 

(c) Maximum Amount.  Notwithstanding subparagraphs (a) and (b), the 
maximum payments under this Agreement shall be a total of $1,009,084 for equipment, 
software, professional services and expenses; provided, however, that such amounts 
shall not be construed as guaranteed sums, and compensation shall be based upon 
services actually rendered. 

4. Method of Payment.
(a) Invoices.  All payments for compensation shall be made only upon

presentation by CONTRACTOR to NVTA of an itemized billing invoice in a form 
acceptable to the NVTA  Manager  of Finance which indicates, at a minimum, 
CONTRACTOR's name, address, Social Security or Taxpayer Identification Number, 
itemization of the hours worked or, where compensation is on a per-task basis, a 
description of the tasks completed during the billing period, the person(s) actually 
performing the services and the position(s) held by such person(s), and the approved 
hourly or task rate.   CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices not more often than every 30 
days to NVTA Accounts Payable at 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA 94559 or electronically 
to ap@nvta.ca.gov, who after review and approval as to form and content, shall submit 
the invoice to the NVTA Director Administration, Finance and Policy no later than fifteen 
(15) calendar days following receipt.

(b) Legal status. So that NVTA may properly comply with its reporting
obligations under federal and state laws pertaining to taxation, if CONTRACTOR is or 
becomes a corporation during the term of this Agreement, proof that such status is 
currently recognized by and complies with the laws of both the state of incorporation or 
organization and the State of California, if different, shall be maintained on file with the 
Secretary of  NVTA’s Board of Directors at all times during the term of this Agreement in 
a form satisfactory to the NVTA Manager of Finance.  Such proof shall include, but need 
not be limited to, a copy of any annual or other periodic filings or registrations required by 
the state of origin or California, the current address for service of process on the 
corporation or limited liability partnership, and the name of any agent designated for 
service of process by CONTRACTOR within the State of California. 

5. Independent Contractor.  CONTRACTOR shall perform this Agreement as an
independent contractor.  CONTRACTOR and the officers, agents and employees of

224

mailto:ap@nvta.ca.gov


CONTRACTOR are not, and shall not be deemed, NVTA employees for any purpose, 
including workers' compensation and employee benefits.  CONTRACTOR shall, at 
CONTRACTOR’s own risk and expense, determine the method and manner by which 
duties imposed on CONTRACTOR by this Agreement shall be performed; provided, 
however, that NVTA may monitor the work performed by CONTRACTOR.  NVTA shall 
not deduct or withhold any amounts whatsoever from the compensation paid to 
CONTRACTOR, including, but not limited to amounts required to be withheld for state 
and federal taxes.  As between the parties to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall be 
solely responsible for all such payments. 

6. Specific Performance.  It is agreed that CONTRACTOR, including the agents or
employees of CONTRACTOR, shall be the sole providers of the services required by this
Agreement.  Because the services to be performed by CONTRACTOR under the terms
of this Agreement are of a special, unique, unusual, extraordinary, and intellectual or time-
sensitive character which gives them a peculiar value, the loss of which cannot be
reasonably or adequately compensated in damages in an action of law, NVTA, in addition
to any other rights or remedies which NVTA may possess, shall be entitled to injunctive
and other equitable relief to prevent a breach of this Agreement by CONTRACTOR.

7. Insurance.  CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect
throughout the term of this Agreement, and thereafter as to matters occurring during the
term of this Agreement, the following insurance coverage:

(a) Workers' Compensation insurance.  CONTRACTOR will provide workers'
compensation insurance as required by law during the term of this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR shall provide workers’ compensation insurance for the performance of 
any of the CONTRACTOR’s duties under this Agreement; including but not limited to, 
coverage for workers’ compensation and employer's liability and a waiver of subrogation, 
and shall provide NVTA with certification of all such coverage’s upon request by NVTA’s 
Risk Manager. 

(b) Liability insurance. CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain in full force
and effect during the term of this Agreement the following liability insurance coverage’s, 
issued by a company licensed (admitted) to transact business in the State of California 
and/or having a A.M. Best rating of A VII or better. 

1. General Liability.  Commercial general liability [CGL] insurance
coverage (personal injury and property damage) of not less than ONE MILLION 
DOLLARS ($1,000,000) combined single limit per occurrence, covering liability or claims 
for any personal injury, including death, to any person and/or damage to the property of 
any person arising from the acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or any officer, agent, or 
employee of CONTRACTOR under this Agreement.  

2. Professional Liability/Errors and Omissions.  Professional 
liability/errors and omissions insurance for all activities of CONTRACTOR arising out of 

225



or in connection with this Agreement in an amount not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS 
($1,000,000) per claim. 

3. Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance.  Comprehensive
automobile liability insurance (Bodily Injury and Property Damage) on hired, leased and 
non-owned vehicles used in conjunction with CONTRACTOR's business of not less than 
ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) combined single limit per occurrence.  In the 
event that CONTRACTOR becomes the owner of any vehicles used in conjunction with 
CONTRACTOR’s business during the term of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall 
obtain and maintain in full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement 
comprehensive automobile liability insurance covering such owned vehicle or vehicles. 

(c) Certificates.  All insurance coverage’s referenced in 7(b), above, shall be
evidenced by one or more certificates of coverage or, with the consent of NVTA's  Risk 
Manager, demonstrated by other evidence of coverage acceptable to NVTA's Risk 
Manager, which shall be filed by CONTRACTOR with NVTA’s Deputy Executive Director 
prior to commencement of performance of any of CONTRACTOR's duties;  shall be kept 
current during the term of this Agreement;  shall provide that NVTA shall be given no less 
than thirty (30) days prior written notice of any non-renewal, cancellation, other 
termination, or material change, except that only ten (10) days prior written notice shall 
be required where the cause of non-renewal or cancellation is non-payment of premium; 
and shall provide that the inclusion of more than one insured shall not operate to impair 
the rights of one insured against another insured, the coverage afforded applying as 
though separate policies had been issued to each insured, but the inclusion of more than 
one insured shall not operate to increase the limits of the company's liability.  For the 
commercial general liability insurance coverage referenced in 7(b)(1) and, where the 
vehicles are covered by a commercial policy rather than a personal policy, for the 
comprehensive automobile liability insurance coverage referenced in 7(b)(3) 
CONTRACTOR shall also file with the evidence of coverage an endorsement from the 
insurance provider naming NVTA, its officers, employees, agents and volunteers as 
additional insureds and waiving subrogation, and the certificate or other evidence of 
coverage shall provide that if the same policy applies to activities of CONTRACTOR not 
covered by this Agreement then the limits in the applicable certificate relating to the 
additional insured coverage of NVTA shall pertain only to liability for activities of 
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement, and that the insurance provided is primary 
coverage to NVTA with respect to any insurance or self-insurance programs maintained 
by NVTA.   The additional insured endorsements for the general liability coverage shall 
use Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form No. CG 20 09 11 85 or CG 20 10 11 85, or 
equivalent, including (if used together) CG 2010 10 01 and CG 2037 10 01; but shall not 
use the following forms:  CG 20 10 10 93 or 03 94.  Upon request by NVTA’s Risk 
Manager, CONTRACTOR shall provide or arrange for the insurer to provide within thirty 
(30) days of the request, certified copies of the actual insurance policies or relevant
portions thereof.

(d) Deductibles/Retentions.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions shall be
declared to, and be subject to approval by, NVTA’s Risk Manager, which approval shall 

226



not be denied unless the NVTA's Risk Manager determines that the deductibles or self-
insured retentions are unreasonably large in relation to compensation payable under this 
Agreement and the risks of liability associated with the activities required of 
CONTRACTOR by this Agreement.  At the option of and upon request by NVTA’s Risk 
Manager if it is determined that such deductibles or retentions are unreasonably high, 
either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insurance retentions 
as respects NVTA, its officers, employees, agents and volunteers or CONTRACTOR shall 
procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claims 
administration and defense expenses. 

8. Hold Harmless/Defense/Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by
law, CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, defend at its own expense, and indemnify
NVTA and the officers, agents, employees and volunteers of NVTA from and against any
and all liability, claims, losses, damages or expenses, including reasonable attorney's
fees, for personal injury (including death) or damage to property, arising from     all acts
or omissions of CONTRACTOR or its officers, agents, employees, volunteers, contractors
and subcontractors in rendering services under this Agreement, excluding, however, such
liability, claims, losses, damages or expenses arising from the sole negligence or willful
acts of NVTA or its officers, agents, employees, volunteers, or other contractors or their
subcontractors.  Each party shall notify the other party immediately in writing of any claim
or damage related to activities performed under this Agreement.  The parties shall
cooperate with each other in the investigation and disposition of any claim arising out of
the activities under this Agreement.

9. Employee Character and Fitness.  CONTRACTOR accepts responsibility for
determining and approving the character and fitness of its employees (including
volunteers, agents or representatives) to provide the services required of CONTRACTOR
under this Agreement, including completion of a satisfactory criminal/background check
and period rechecks to the extent permitted by law.  Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary in this Paragraph, CONTRACTOR, shall hold NVTA and its officers, agents and
employees harmless from any liability for injuries or damages resulting from a breach of
this provision or CONTRACTOR’s actions in this regard.

10. Termination for Cause.  If either party shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper
manner that party's obligations under this Agreement or otherwise breach this Agreement
and fail to cure such failure or breach within twenty (20) days of receipt of written notice
from the other party describing the nature of the breach, the non-defaulting party may, in
addition to any other remedies it may have, terminate this Agreement by giving ten (10)
days written notice to the defaulting party in the manner set forth in Paragraph 13
(Notices).  NVTA hereby authorizes the NVTA Executive Director to make all decisions
and take all actions required under this Paragraph to terminate the Agreement on behalf
of NVTA for cause.

11. Termination for Convenience.  This Agreement may be terminated by NVTA for
any reason and at any time by giving no less than thirty (30) days written notice of such
termination and specifying the effective date thereof.  NVTA hereby authorizes the NVTA

227



Executive Director to make all decisions and take all actions required under this 
Paragraph to terminate the Agreement on behalf of NVTA. 

12. Disposition of, Title to and Payment for Work upon Expiration or
Termination.
(a) Upon expiration of this Agreement or earlier termination of Agreement, all

finished or unfinished documents and other materials, if any, and all rights therein shall 
become, at the option of NVTA, the property of and shall be promptly returned to NVTA, 
although CONTRACTOR may retain a copy of such work for its personal records only.  
Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any copyrightable or patentable 
work created by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement shall be deemed a “work made 
for hire” for purposes of copyright or patent law and only NVTA shall be entitled to claim 
or apply for the copyright or patent thereof. 

(b) CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to receive compensation for any
satisfactory work completed prior to receipt of the notice of termination or commenced 
prior to receipt of the notice and completed satisfactorily prior to the effective date of the 
termination;  except that CONTRACTOR shall not be relieved of liability to NVTA for 
damages sustained by NVTA by virtue of any breach of the Agreement by 
CONTRACTOR whether or not the Agreement expired or was otherwise terminated, and 
NVTA may withhold any payments not yet made to CONTRACTOR for purpose of setoff 
until such time as the exact amount of damages due to NVTA from CONTRACTOR is 
determined.  

13. No Waiver.  The waiver by either party of any breach or violation of any
requirement of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any such breach in
the future, or of the breach of any other requirement of this Agreement.

14. Notices.  All notices required or authorized by this Agreement shall be in writing
and shall be delivered in person or by deposit in the United States mail, by certified mail,
postage prepaid, return receipt requested.  Any mailed notice, demand, request, consent,
approval or communication that either party desires to give the other party shall be
addressed to the other party at the address set forth below. Either party may change its
address by notifying the other party of the change of address.  Any notice sent by mail in
the manner prescribed by this paragraph shall be deemed to have been received on the
date noted on the return receipt or five days following the date of deposit, whichever is
earlier.

NVTA  CONTRACTOR 
Kate Miller Richard Archuleta  
Executive Director Chief Executive Officer 
625 Burnell Street 523 W 6th Street, Suite 444 
Napa, CA. 94559 Los Angeles, CA 90014 

15. Compliance with NVTA Policies on Waste, Harassment, Drug/Alcohol-Free
Workplace, and Computer Use.  CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to comply, and require
its employees and subcontractors to comply, with the following policies, copies of which

228



are on file with the Board Secretary of NVTA and incorporated by reference herein. 
CONTRACTOR also agrees that it shall not engage in any activities, or permit its officers, 
agents and employees to do so, during the performance of any of the services required 
under this Agreement, which would interfere with compliance or induce violation of these 
policies by NVTA employees or contractors.  

(a) NVTA Policy for Maintaining a Harassment Free Work Environment
effective November 18, 2015. 

(b) NVTA Drug and Alcohol Policy adopted by resolution of the Board of
Directors on November 18, 2015. 

(c) Napa County Information Technology Use and Security Policy adopted by
resolution of the Napa County Board of Supervisors on April 14. 2005.  To this end, all 
employees and subcontractors of CONTRACTOR whose performance of services under 
this Agreement requires access to any portion of the NVTA computer network shall sign 
and have on file with NVTA prior to receiving such access the certification attached to 
said Policy. 

(d) NVTA System Safety Program Plan adopted by resolution of the Board of
Directors on November 18, 2015. 

16. Confidentiality.  Confidential information is defined as all information disclosed to
CONTRACTOR which relates to NVTA's past, present, and future activities, as well as
activities under this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR shall hold all such information as
CONTRACTOR may receive, if any, in trust and confidence, except with the prior written
approval of NVTA, expressed through its Executive Director.  Upon cancellation or
expiration of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall return to NVTA all written and
descriptive matter which contains any such confidential information, except that
CONTRACTOR may retain for its files a copy of CONTRACTOR’s work product if such
product has been made available to the public by NVTA.

17. No Assignments or Subcontracts.
(a) A consideration of this Agreement is the personal reputation of

CONTRACTOR; therefore, CONTRACTOR shall not assign any interest in this 
Agreement or subcontract any of the services CONTRACTOR is to perform hereunder 
without the prior written consent of NVTA, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  The 
inability of the assignee to provide personnel equivalent in experience, expertise, and 
numbers to those provided by CONTRACTOR, or to perform any of the remaining 
services required under this Agreement within the same time frame required of 
CONTRACTOR shall be deemed to be reasonable grounds for NVTA to withhold its 
consent to assignment.  For purposes of this subparagraph, the consent of NVTA may be 
given by its Executive Director. 

(b) Effect of Change in Status.   If CONTRACTOR changes its status during
the term of this Agreement from or to that of a corporation, limited liability partnership, 
limited liability company, general partnership, or sole proprietorship, such change in 

229



organizational status shall be viewed as an attempted assignment of this Agreement by 
CONTRACTOR.  Failure of CONTRACTOR to obtain approval of such assignment under 
this Paragraph shall be viewed as a material breach of this Agreement. 

18. Amendment/Modification.  Except as specifically provided herein, this
Agreement may be modified or amended only in writing signed by both Parties.  In
particular, only NVTA, through its Board of Directors in the form of an amendment of this
Agreement, may authorize extra and/or changed work beyond the scope of services
prescribed by Exhibit “A”.  Failure of CONTRACTOR to secure such authorization in
writing in advance of performing any of the extra or changed work shall constitute a waiver
of any and all rights to adjustment in the contract price or contract time and no
compensation shall be paid for such extra work.

19. Interpretation; Venue.
(a) Interpretation.  The headings used herein are for reference only. The terms

of the Agreement are set out in the text under the headings.  This Agreement shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of California without regard to the choice of law or 
conflicts.   

(b) Venue.  This Agreement is made in Napa County, California.  The venue
for any legal action in state court filed by either party to this Agreement for the purpose of 
interpreting or enforcing any provision of this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of 
California, County of Napa, a unified court.  The venue for any legal action in federal court 
filed by either party to this Agreement for the purpose of interpreting or enforcing any 
provision of this Agreement lying within the jurisdiction of the federal courts shall be the 
Northern District of California.  The appropriate venue for arbitration, mediation or similar 
legal proceedings under this Agreement shall be Napa County, California; however, 
nothing in this sentence shall obligate either party to submit to mediation or arbitration 
any dispute arising under this Agreement. 

20. Compliance with Laws.  CONTRACTOR shall observe and comply with all
currently applicable Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, and codes, including but
not limited to the Federal laws contained in Attachment 1, and as amended from time to
time.  Such laws shall include, but not be limited to, the following, except where prohibited
by law:

(a) Non-Discrimination.  During the performance of this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR and its subcontractor’s shall not deny the benefits thereof to any person 
on the basis of sex, race, color, ancestry, religion or religious creed, national origin or 
ethnic group identification, sexual orientation, marital status, age (over 40), mental 
disability, physical disability or medical condition (including cancer, HIV and AIDS), nor 
shall they discriminate unlawfully against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of sex, race, color, ancestry, religion or religious creed, national origin or ethnic 
group identification, sexual orientation, marital status, age (over 40), mental disability, 
physical disability or medical condition (including cancer, HIV and AIDS), or use of family 
care leave.  CONTRACTOR shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of employees 

230



and applicants for employment are free of such discrimination or harassment.  In addition 
to the foregoing general obligations, CONTRACTOR shall comply with the provisions of 
the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code section 12900, et seq.), the 
regulations promulgated there under (Title 2, California Code of Regulations, section 
7285.0, et seq.), the provisions of Article 9.5, Chapter 1, Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 of the 
Government Code (sections 11135-11139.5) and any state or local regulations adopted 
to implement any of the foregoing, as such statutes and regulations may be amended 
from time to time.  To the extent this Agreement subcontracts to CONTRACTOR services 
or works required of NVTA by the State of California pursuant to Agreement between 
NVTA and the State, the applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing 
Commission implementing Government Code section 12990 (a) through (f), set forth in 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations are expressly 
incorporated into this Agreement by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in 
full, and CONTRACTOR and any of its subcontractor’s shall give written notice of their 
obligations there under to labor organizations with which they have collective bargaining 
or other agreements. 

(b) Documentation of Right to Work.  CONTRACTOR agrees to abide by the
requirements of the Immigration and Control Reform Act pertaining to assuring that all 
newly-hired employees of CONTRACTOR performing any services under this Agreement 
have a legal right to work in the United States of America, that all required documentation 
of such right to work is inspected, and that INS Form 1-9 (as it may be amended from 
time to time) is completed and on file for each employee.  CONTRACTOR shall make the 
required documentation available upon request to NVTA for inspection. 

(c) Inclusion in Subcontracts.  To the extent any of the services required of
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement are subcontracted to a third party; CONTRACTOR 
shall include all of the provisions of this Section in all such subcontracts as obligations of 
the subcontractor. 

21. Taxes.  CONTRACTOR agrees to file federal and state tax returns or applicable
withholding documents and to pay all applicable taxes or make all required withholdings
on amounts paid pursuant to this Agreement and shall be solely liable and responsible to
make such withholdings and/or pay such taxes and other obligations including, without
limitation, state and federal income and FICA taxes.  CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify
and hold NVTA harmless from any liability it may incur to the United States or the State
of California as a consequence of CONTRACTOR’s failure to pay or withhold, when due,
all such taxes and obligations.  In the event that NVTA is audited for compliance regarding
any withholding or other applicable taxes or amounts, CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish
NVTA with proof of payment of taxes or withholdings on those earnings.

22. Access to Records/Retention.  NVTA, any federal or state grantor agency
funding all or part of the compensation payable hereunder, the State Controller, the
Comptroller General of the United States, or the duly authorized representatives of any
of the above, shall have access to any books, documents, papers and records of
CONTRACTOR which are directly pertinent to the subject matter of this Agreement for

231



the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions.  Except where 
longer retention is required by any federal or state law, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all 
required records for at least seven (7) years after NVTA makes final payment for any 
other work authorized hereunder and all pending matters are closed, whichever is later. 

23. Authority to Contract.  CONTRACTOR and NVTA each warrant hereby that they
are legally permitted and otherwise have the authority to enter into and perform this
Agreement.

24. Conflict of Interest.
(a) Covenant of No Undisclosed Conflict. The parties to the Agreement

acknowledge that they are aware of the provisions of Government Code section 1090, et 
seq., and section 87100, et seq., relating to conflict of interest of public officers and 
employees. CONTRACTOR hereby covenants that it presently has no interest not 
disclosed to NVTA and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would 
conflict in any material manner or degree with the performance of its services or 
confidentiality obligation hereunder, except as such as NVTA may consent to in writing 
prior to the acquisition by CONTRACTOR of such conflict.  CONTRACTOR further 
warrants that it is unaware of any financial or economic interest of any public officer or 
employee of NVTA relating to this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR agrees that if such 
financial interest does exist at the inception of this Agreement, NVTA may terminate this 
Agreement immediately upon giving written notice without further obligation by NVTA to 
CONTRACTOR under this Agreement.   

(b) Statements of Economic Interest.  CONTRACTOR acknowledges and
understands that NVTA has developed and approved a Conflict of Interest Code as 
required by state law which requires CONTRACTOR to file with the Elections Division of 
the Napa County Assessor-Clerk Recorder “assuming office”, “annual”, and “leaving 
office” Statements of Economic Interest as a “consultant”, as defined in  section 
18701(a)(2) of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, unless the NVTA Executive 
Director has determined in writing that CONTRACTOR, although holding a “designated” 
position as a consultant, has been hired to perform a range of duties so limited in scope 
as to not be required to fully comply with such disclosure obligation. CONTRACTOR 
agrees to timely comply with all filing obligations for a consultant under NVTA’s Conflict 
of Interest Code unless such a determination is on file on the filing dates for each of the 
required Statements of Economic Interest. 

25. Non-Solicitation of Employees.  Each party agrees not to solicit for employment
the employees of the other party who were directly involved in the performance of the
services hereunder for the term of this Agreement and a period of six (6) months after
termination of this Agreement except with the written permission of the other party, except
that nothing in this Paragraph shall preclude NVTA from publishing or otherwise
distributing applications and information regarding NVTA job openings where such
publication or distribution is directed to the general public.

232



26. Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be
construed to create any rights in third parties and the parties do not intend to create such
rights.

27. Attorney's Fees.  In the event that either party commences legal action of any
kind or character to either enforce the provisions of this Agreement or to obtain damages
for breach thereof, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to all costs and
reasonable attorney's fees incurred in connection with such action.

28. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement, or any portion thereof, is found
by any court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable or invalid for any reason, such
provision shall be severable and shall not in any way impair the enforceability of any other
provision of this Agreement.

29. Entirety of Contract.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between
the parties relating to the subject of this Agreement and supersedes all previous
agreements, promises, representations, understandings and negotiations, whether
written or oral, among the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.

30. Extensions Authorized.  The Executive Director is delegated authority to execute
amendments to extend the term of this Agreement, if needed from time to time.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement was executed by the parties hereto as 
of the date first above written. 

“NVTA” “CONTRACTOR” 
GMV Syncromatics Corporation 

By______________________________  By______________________________ 
    KATE MILLER, Executive Director    RICHARD ARCHULETA 

    Chief, Executive Officer  

ATTEST: 

By______________________________   By __________________________ 
    LAURA SANDERLIN, Board Secretary NAME, Position 

Approved as to Form: 

By______________________________ 
    NVTA General Counsel 

233



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

I. GENERAL.  CONTRACTOR shall assist NVTA in implementing a new CAD/AVL 
system that will advance NVTA’s ability to make safer, more reliable, and more 
timely transit service decisions. The objective is to provide better service 
management, performance, customer information, and better operational plans 
and schedules through a set of integrated technologies. The integration and 
installation of the CAD/AVL system will be performed as described in response to 
NVTA’s Request for Proposal No. 20-08 and will apply to 61 vehicles in NVTA’s 
fleet.

II. DELIVERABLE SERVICES.  CONTRACTOR shall provide NVTA at 
minimum,  but not limited to, with the following equipment/hardware, 
installation, software, system integration and other professional services as 
follows:

• Base System Components – Equipment/hardware (OpenMDT Plus) 
for fixed route CAD/AVL+RTPI and paratransit vehicles listed in 
the fleet list attached hereto.

• Optional Component/System Enhancements –
o VOIP – Voice Calling Central System Software License, 

workstation accessories, mobile smartphone handset, 
hardware and onboard components

o Clipper2 Integration – Software development, interface 
cabling

o TSP Integration – Development and testing, cabling kit

• Project Management – Scheduling and coordination with NVTA staff, 
document control, risk assessments, compliance

• Schedule and Implementation – Develop and implement 
system installation and integration timeline in coordination with staff

• Installation  - of all equipment/hardware, and software needed
for a fully functional CAD/AVL system

• Training – No cost to NVTA unlimited training to staff. Training 
curriculum will correspond to tool suites, i.e. dispatch, 
operations, rider communications, maintenance and 
diagnostics, etc.

• Maintenance and Support – Unlimited 24/7 customer support 
services, support call center, on-site technical and regional field 
technicians availability

• Software – Includes software update performance and 
documentation

• Technical Solution – Continuous software and solution 
development, hosting of software, data, and infrastructure

234



 Hardware – Mobile Data Terminal (Getac ZX70), 7” display,
touchscreen, GPS, Qualcomm Snapdragon 660 Octa-core
processor, 6 ft drop, MIL-STD810H and IP67 certified

 Testing and Acceptance – Installation and operational
validation, testing,  punchlist

III. TIMELINE/MILESTONES.

 April 1, 2021 - June 30, 2021  Design and Planning (software 
design/ programming, installation) 

 July 1, 2021 - August 31, 2021  Installation of Hardware & Testing 

 August 1 - 31, 2021      CAD/AVL system online, internal 

 September 1 - 30, 2021   Training and Documentation  

 October 1, 2021  Clipper 2.0 integration 

 October 1 - 31, 2021  Substantial Project Completion 

 November 1, 2021 - December 31, 2021   System Validation, Issue
Resolution 

 January 1, 2022  Live Operation and Project 
Completion  

IV. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 7550.  As required by
Government Code section 7550, each document or report prepared by
CONTRACTOR for or under the direction of NVTA pursuant to this Agreement
shall contain the numbers and dollar amounts of the Agreement and all
subcontracts under the Agreement relating to the preparation of the document or
written report.  The Agreement and subcontract dollar amounts shall be contained
in a separate section of the document or written report.  If multiple documents or
written reports are the subject of the Agreement or subcontracts, the disclosure
section may also contain a statement indicating that the total contract amount
represents compensation for multiple documents or written report

235



  Napa Valley Transportation Authority – FLEET  LIST 

Vehicles Automatic 
Passenger 
Counters 
(APC) 

Automatic Voice 
Annunciators 
(AVA) 

Farebox Headsign Cameras/DVR 

Qty Make Model 
Year 

Model System 
Installed? 

Microphone/ 
PA System 

AVA 
Installed? 

Make/Model Make/Model Make/Model 

6 Gillig 2002, 2003 Phantom UTA model 30 Yes Yes Genfare 
Odyssey 

Luminator TSI-CAM-00007/ 
TSI-XDMR Series 

11 El Dorado 2013, 2016 40’ diesel UTA model 30 Yes Yes Genfare 
Odyssey 

4 Luminator 
7 Hanover 

TSI-CAM-00007/ 
TSI-XDMR Series 

8 El Dorado 2013, 2016 35’ diesel UTA model 30 Yes Yes Genfare 
Odyssey 

6 Luminator 
2 Hanover 

TSI-CAM-00007/ 
TSI-XDMR Series 

5 El Dorado 2013 35’ CNG UTA model 30 Yes Yes Genfare 
Odyssey 

Luminator TSI-CAM-00007/ 
TSI-XDMR Series 

6 Chevy 2011, 2012 28’ Arboc UTA model 30 Yes Yes Genfare 
Odyssey 

Luminator TSI-CAM 
TSI-XDMR8 

5 BYD* 2021 30’ electric UTA model 30 Yes Yes Genfare 
Odyssey 

I/O Controls TSI-CAM-00007/ 
TSI-XDMR Series 

20 Ford** 2004, 2007, 
2008, 2011, 
2012, 2014, 
2016 

Paratransi
t Cutaway 

N/A No, except 
for six Glavals 

Yes Genfare 
Odyssey 

19 
Luminato
r 3 
Hanover 

TSI-CAM-00007/ 
TSI-XDMR Series 

61 
*- on order, expected late 2021-2022 

** - Due to low spare ratio, cutaways are occasionally used in fixed route 
service Voice Communications: Motorola XTL 2500 radio 
Data Communications: Digi/Transport WR64 cellular modem 
MDC/VLU GPS receiver: Garmin/Can310 

236



EXHIBIT B 

COST SHEET 
  Summary 

CONTRACTOR’s cost for equipment/hardware, installation, software, system 
integration, and other professional services to be provided as described in EXHIBIT A 
are: 

Description AMOUNT 

$  536,900 

included in 

 Base Price 

Base Price – One-time cost for 61 vehicles          
(including Clipper 2.0 - Option) 

VOIP – Optional Component 

TSP – Optional Component $   69,429 

Annual Fee & Warranty – Year 1 $     70,365 
Annual Fee & Warranty – Year 2 $   70,365 
Annual Fee & Warranty – Year 3 $   70,365 
Annual Fee & Warranty – Year 4 $   95,790 
Annual Fee & Warranty – Year 5 $   95,790 

TOTAL AMOUNT $1,009,084 

The total amount to be paid to the CONTRACTOR for the scope of work defined under 
EXHIBIT shall not exceed the amount shown under EXHIBIT B of $1,009,084.  Maximum 
payments under this Agreement shall not be construed as guaranteed sums. 

Subject to Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall periodically invoice NVTA based on progress 
and actually services performed towards completion of the project. 

Warranty 

CONTRACTOR shall warrant all hardware and installation to be free from defects 

during the warranty period and assume sole responsibility for the performance of 

all equipment, materials, and labor provided by the contractor and sub-contractors. 

The base period warranty shall be for a minimum of three (3) years for parts and 

labor with an extended warranty period of two (2) additional one (1) year periods. 

Base warranty shall not begin until acceptance testing has successfully completed 

and the agency Project Manager signs off on acceptance and completion of the 

project. 

 

237



1 of 6

NVTA

Base System Components
LN Item Description Unit Cost Taxable Qty Subtotal Tax Amount Subtotal w/ Tax

Hardware, OpenMDT Plus 2,150 Y 45 96,750 7,498 104,248 
Labor, OpenMDT Installation on Bus 535 45 24,075 - 24,075
CAD/AVL System and Vehicle Licenses 750 45 33,750 - 33,750
*Discount For Initial Deployment -600 45 -27,000 - (27,000)
Mobile App for Passengers (iOS and Android), Agency Branded 14,500 1 14,500 - 14,500
Pre-Trip Inspection - Initial configuration 45 Y 45 2,025 157 2,182 

Removal of Previous ITS Equipment
(available service, not incuded in RFP requirements) 195 0 0 -                                           -   
Project Management, Training and Travel (Complete Base System) varies 1 26,200 - 26,200

Total 170,300 7,655 177,955

Hardware, OpenMDT Plus 2,411 Y 16 38,570 2,989 41,559 
Labor, OpenMDT Installation on Bus 535 16 8,560 - 8,560
CAD/AVL System and Vehicle Licenses 750 16 12,000 - 12,000
*Discount For Initial Deployment 0 16 0 -                                         -
Pre-Trip Inspection - Initial configuration 45 Y 0 0 -                                         -

Total 59,130 2,989 62,119

LN Item Description Unit Cost Qty Subtotal
Central System + Non Revenue Vehicles

Central System Software License 5,000 1 5,000 - 5,000

Mobile  Smartphone Handset for Non-Revenue Vehicles 950 0 0 -                                           -   

Central System Workstation Accessories, Installation, and Configuration, 
per workstation 1,000 1 1,000 - 1,000

Fixed Route

Hardware,  Onboard Components (Handset, Audio Processing) 850 45 38,250 - 38,250
Installation and Configuration 450 45 20,250 - 20,250

Total 64,500 -   64,500

Ethernet Expansion Switch (8-port) 265 45 11,925 - 11,925

Total Capital 11,925 11,925

Cabling for on-board Integration of APC Sensors to CAD/AVL 35 Y 45 1,575 122 1,697 
Installation of on-board integration with APC Sensors 450 45 20,250 - 20,250
APC Vehicle and System Licenses 325 45 14,625 - 14,625

Total 36,450 122 36,572

Covert alarm button and cabling 295 Y 45 13,275 1,029 14,304 

Installation labor on Bus 275 45 12,375 - 12,375

Total 25,650 1,029 26,679

Fixed Route CAD/AVL + RTPI

Voice Calling

Automatic Passenger Counting - Re-use existing 

Integrate Existing Router

Covert Alarm

Paratransit Vehicles Operating in Fixed Route Mode

238



2 of 6

LN Item Description Unit Cost Taxable Qty Subtotal Tax Amount Subtotal w/ Tax

Hardware, Audio (Base System) 1,450                  Y 45 65,250 5,057 70,307 
AVA Base System Installation on Bus 565 45 25,425 - 25,425
Annunciator System and Vehicle Licenses 1,010                  45 45,450 - 45,450
*Discount For Initial Deployment -606 45 -27,270 - (27,270)
New Interior LED Sign 1,150 0 0 -                                         -
Install New Interior LED Sign 225 0 0 -                                         -
Integrate with Existing Interior LED Sign 225 0 0 -                                         -
Replace Non-Functional Bus Speakers, only if needed based on survey 775 0 0 -                                         -
Total 108,855 5,057 113,912

J1708 integration cabling kit 195 Y 45 8,775 680 9,455 

Installation labor 175 45 7,875 - 7,875

Total 16,650 680 17,330

Option 3 - Server based integration via GTFS-RT (no charge) - Y 0 0 -                                           -   

Option 2 - Local onboard integration from MDT to validator 0 -                                           -   

Software Development for Integration 17,500 1 17,500 - 17,500

Interface Cabling 65 45 2,925 - 2,925

Installation labor 85 45 3,825 - 3,825

Total 24,250 -   24,250

Integration cabling kit 165 Y 45 7,425 575 8,000 

Installation labor 145 45 6,525 - 6,525

Total 13,950 575 14,525

Rugged Tablet, Dock, and Mount for Mobile Dispatching 2,345 0 0 -                                           -   

Mobile VOIP Handset 950 0 0 -                                           -   

Basic AVL (GPS Tracking) Device 575 0 0 -                                           -   

Labor, Installation on Mobile Supervisor Vehicle 390 0 0 -                                           -   

Removal of Previous ITS Equipment 95 0 0 -                                           -   

VOIP Mobile Supervisor Application 650 0 0 -                                           -   

AVL Only Software License 350 0 0 -                                           -   

Total 0 -   0

Fixed Route
Hardware, OpenMDT Plus 2,150 2 4,300 - 4,300

Hardware, Annunciator (Base System) 1,450 2 2,900 - 2,900

Covert Alarm 295 2 590 - 590

Hardware, VOIP Onboard Components (Handset, Audio Processing) 850 2 1,700 - 1,700
0 -                                         -

Total Capital 9,490 9,490

Automatic Voice Annunciator

Farebox Integration - Single Sign On

Headsign Integration

Non-Revenue Vehicles

Clipper 2 Integration

Spare Parts

239



3 of 6

LN Item Description Unit Cost Taxable Qty Subtotal Tax Amount Subtotal w/ Tax

LN Item Description Unit Qty Subtotal

-   
OpenMDT Plus 65 45 2,925 - 2,925
Annunciator 85 45 3,825 - 3,825
VOIP Hardware - Fixed Route 95 45 4,275 - 4,275
This section excludes consumer grade devices (Supervisor Tablets, 
Mobile VOIP Smartphone Handsets) 0 -                                           -   

Total for First 3 Years after System Acceptance 11,025 -   11,025

Total Base System 552,175 18,108 570,283

The 1st year of warranty coverage on all hardware and installation is included at no 
charge, the first 2 years are included for the OpenMDT Plus.

Base Period  Warranty -  Year 1-3

240



4 of 6

LN Item Description Unit Cost Taxable Qty Subtotal Tax Amount Subtotal w/ Tax

Annual Service Fees

LN Item Description Unit Cost Qty Subtotal

Fixed Route CAD/AVL + RTPI - Annual License 645 61 39,345 - 39,345

Non Revenue AVL - Annual License 295 0 0 -                                           -   

VOIP Radio System - Fixed Route 75 45 3,375 - 3,375

VOIP Radio System - Paratransit / NRV /  Supervisors 75 16 1,200 - 1,200

Mobile App, Agency Branded, Annual Service Fee 3,450 1 3,450 - 3,450
SMS Usage Fees (Mass Notification and Arrival Predictions)
-- includes 5,000 outbound messages per month (60K per year), 
additional messages are billed monthly and charged based on actual 
usage ($.025 each)
- no charge for inbound messages 1,320 1 1,320 - 1,320

Annunciator, Annual Service Fee 95 45 4,275 - 4,275
Automated Passenger Counting, Annual Service Fee 95 45 4,275 - 4,275

Live Streaming Video to Dispatch Software - Fixed Route 25 45 1,125 - 1,125
Pre-Trip Inspection, Annual Service Fee - Fixed Route 185 45 8,325 - 8,325

0 -                                         -

Total per year 66,690 -   66,690

Base Service Fees

241



5 of 6

LN Item Description Unit Cost Taxable Qty Subtotal Tax Amount Subtotal w/ Tax

Optional Components

Sensor and cabling 195 Y 188 36,660 2,841 39,501 

Installation labor on Bus 145 188 27,260 - 27,260

Total 63,920 2,841 66,761

**'Qty estimates below assume a "Beconless" deployment**

Beacon Hardware and Configuration 85 Y 0 0 -                                           -   

Beacon Installation 75 0

Total 0 -   0

Annual Service Fee - FAR Integration (does not include beacon support) 8,500 1 8,500 - 8,500
Annual Support for Beacon-less deployment, per stop
(min $7,500 per year) 22 373 8,206 - 8,206
Annual Support for Beacons; 1-50 units 9,500 0 -                                         -
Annual Support for Beacons; 51-100 units 14,500 0 -                                         -
Annual Support for Beacons; 101-200 units 28,500 0 -                                         -
Annual Support for Beacons; 201-400 units 41,000 0 -                                         -
Annual Support for Beacons; 400-1,000 units 49,000 0 -                                         -

Total, Annual 16,706 -   16,706

LN Item Description Unit Qty Subtotal
OpenMDT Plus 235 45 10,575 - 10,575
Annunciator 155 45 6,975 - 6,975
VOIP Hardware - Fixed Route 175 45 7,875 - 7,875

0 -                                         -
** Extended warranty excludes consumer grade devices like VOIP 
mobile smartphone handsets, etc 0 -                                           -   

Total, per year (years 4-5) 25,425 -   25,425

Wheelchair Deployment Sensor

Extended Warranty - Year 4-5

Foresight Augmented Reality 
Beacons and Mobile App

242



6 of 6

LN Item Description Unit Cost Taxable Qty Subtotal Tax Amount Subtotal w/ Tax

Item Description Unit Cost Qty Subtotal
Fixed Route Bus in a Box

15,000 Y 1 15,000 1,163 16,163 

Total 15,000 1,163 16,163

Integration Development and Testing 45,000 1 45,000 - 45,000

Integration cabling kit 295 Y 45 13,275 1,029 14,304

Installation labor 225 45 10,125 - 10,125

Total 68,400 1,029 69,429

Voice Call Logging and Recording Service, per year 29 45 1,305 - 1,305

Total, Annual 1,305 -   1,305

Bike Rack Occupancy Sensor Harness 675 45 30,375 - 30,375
Installation labor 250 45 11,250 - 11,250

Total, Capital 41,625 (11,250) 30,375

Includes a dedicated FTE technician to provide  on site maintenance and 
support.  (Partial FTE  is negotiable with client based on anticipated 
need).  

This ESP is above and beyond the standard...
A)  maintenance and support package (software configurations, training, 
remote support)  and
B)  extended warranty coverage for hardware only (with pull and replace
expectation of customer)

Qty = # of FTE Technicians assigned to the project. 135,200 0.25 33,800 - 33,800

Total, Annual 33,800 -   33,800

Hardware, Media Player
(assumes 1 per bus) 1,450 Y 45 65,250 5,057 70,307 
Hardware, Cabling 150 Y 45 6,750 523 7,273 
Hardware, 27" LCD Monitor + Surface Mount Kit 1,525 Y 45 68,625 5,318 73,943 
Labor, Installation 465 45 20,925 - 20,925

Project Management, Infotainment 24,500               1 24,500 - 24,500

Total Capital 186,050 196,948
Infotainment License and Maintenance 275 45 12,375 - 12,375

Optional Extended Warranty, Infotainment
(provides coverage beyond basic 1 year standard warranty) 160 

N
0 0 -                                           -   

Total Annual 12,375 12,375

APC Hardware, 2 Door Bus 3,850 Y 45 173,250 13,427 186,677 

Installation labor
(can substitute for labor charge to integrate with existing sensors) 785 1 785 - 785

Total 174,035 13,427 187,462

Infotainment Screens and Content Management 
System

Install New Iris APC Sensors to Replace Existing 

 TSP Integration

Bus in a Box

VOIP Voice Call Logging and Recording

Bike Rack Counter Integration

Equipment Service Plan for Addl On-Site Tech Support

243



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.5 

Continued From: February 17, 2021 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
Loan Agreement with the Bank of Marin 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 21-06 
authorizing the Executive Director to negotiate and execute a Loan Agreement with the 
Bank of Marin in the amount of $5,000,000, plus fees. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
As a component of the financing structure for the Vine Bus Maintenance Facility project, 
NVTA staff is requesting the Board authorize the Executive Director to execute an 
agreement with the Bank of Marin as part of the comprehensive funding package for the 
Maintenance Facility.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
$5,000,000 plus interest.  However, to mitigate borrowing costs, NVTA will draw funds 
from the loan if needed and intends to redeem the loan as soon as possible. 

 

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

LTF Debt Service

244



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.5 

Continued From: February 17, 2021 
Action Requested: APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director of Administration, Finance and Policy 

(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT:   Loan Agreement with the Bank of Marin 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 21-06 
authorizing the Executive Director to negotiate and execute a Loan Agreement with the 
Bank of Marin in the amount of $5,000,000. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
At its February 17, 2021 meeting, the Board amended the budget and approved the 
conceptual financing plan for the Vine Bus Maintenance Facility. Included in that approval 
was the need to secure a $5 million loan from a private banking institution.   At the time, 
NVTA staff were still negotiating with two banks: US Bank and Bank of Marin, for the 
secondary loan. After careful consideration and negotiations, staff is recommending 
executing a loan agreement with the Bank of Marin as the preferred lender.    Attachment 
1 are the loan terms from the Bank of Marin.  
 
 
  

245

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
Delays originating from the Regional Measure 3 litigation has prompted staff to seek 
alternative funding options through a private secondary bank.  NVTA has been in 
discussion with U.S. Bank and Bank of Marin for a $5 million bridge loan.  After analysis 
of proposed terms, staff selected Bank of Marin as the preferred lender primarily because 
the 12-year payback term provided a more favorable cash flow scenario than U.S. Bank’s 
6-year payback terms.  The terms of the Bank of Marin and US Bank loan are included 
as Attachment 2 and Attachment 3 respectively.  NVTA staff will file a letter of no prejudice 
with MTC so that if and when the RM3 funds become available, NVTA will be able to pay 
back the private loan with no prepayment penalty.   
 
Both U.S. Bank and Bank of Marin have pre-existing relationships with NVTA. Although 
US Bank offers more competitive interest rates, its covenants would further restrict 
NVTA’s liquidity position.  Bank of Marin has no such restrictions, but has slightly higher 
borrowing costs.  With a two-year drawdown period, both bank’s amortization period are 
effectively twelve years.  Although NVTA intends to pay back any loans as quickly as 
possible, a 10-year payback period provides NVTA maximum flexibility for cash flow 
purposes if RM3 funds fail to materialize. Table 3 shows the fully amortization schedule 
if all the loan proceeds were used. 
 
Table 3:  Loan Payback Comparison 

Year* Bank of Marin US Bank 
Year 0 $ 0             $ 0  
Year 1             131,060              $142,500  
Year 2             672,465              637,685  
Year 3             672,465              637,685  
Year 4             672,465              637,685  
Year 5             672,465              637,685  
Year 6             672,465              637,685  
Year 7             672,465              637,685  
Year 8             672,465              637,685  
Year 9             672,465              637,685  
Year 10             672,465              637,685  
Total        $6,183,245       $ 5,881,668  

• Start year is for illustrative purposes only 
 
US Bank is requiring a $3 million supplementary liquidity covenant in addition to the debt 
service reserve that would be held with the collateral agent which would not be available 
for NVTA’s use for the life of the loan.  NVTA cannot commit to the covenant since it 
would restrict the agency’s access to its LFT funds for operations and capital projects. 
Bank of Marin doesn’t require the same restrictions. 
 
Although Bank of Marin has a higher interest rate, staff considers Bank Marin’s term sheet 
as the preferred lender for the secondary bank loan primarily due to the less restrictive 
terms than the U.S. Bank proposed. The current business operational relationship NVTA 

246



has with Bank of Marin includes: an operating account for online pass sales, a $5M Line 
of Credit, and several Certificates of Deposits.  Bank of Marin has shown a strong interest 
and commitment to the Project.  The Bank of Marin Terms Sheet presented to the Board 
for approval accomplishes two key objectives of the financing process: 
 

1. Line of Credit – Provides access to funds over a two-year “draw down” or 
construction period for the total available borrowing amount of $5 million, if needed. 
NVTA is only required to pay the interest portion of the funds used during the drawdown 
period.   

 
2. Permanent Loan – Secures permanent Project funding needs of $5 million that 
together with the TIFIA Loan (which is capped under Federal statutes) will close the 
total Project funding gap. 

 
The Bank of Marin loan can be prepaid and redeemed at any time without penalty.  
 
Project Funding and Financing  
As a reminder, the current budget of project stands at $40,650,000, which includes 
$4,903,000 of costs already incurred—purchase of real estate, architectural and 
engineering documents, and environmental impact reports (EIR).  The project is at 100% 
design and shovel ready. The construction phase can commence when the financing 
package is approved.   
 
Table 1 provides a summary project budget and fund sources.  Attachment 4 provides a 
more detailed project budget and funding sources.  
 
 
Table 1:  Project Budget and Fund Sources (in ‘000) 

  Local Grants State Grants Federal Federal Non-Federal 
 BUDGET TDA SGR, SB1 

LPP 
FTA Grants TIFIA Loan Bank Loan 

Pre- 
Construction 

$4,903 $4,903     

       
Construction 
Costs 

$35,747 $4,413 $1,163 $5,253 $19,918 $5,000 

Totals $40,650 $9,316 $1,163 $5,253 $19,918 $5,000 
       
Interest 
Expense- 
TIFIA 

 
 
$4,431 

 
 
$5,504 

    

Interest 
Expense- 
BofM 

 
 
$1,064 

 
 
$1,183 

    

Total Project 
Cost 

 
$46,145 

 
$6,687 

    

 
 

247



The Bank of Marin loan will be secondary, and will only be used when the TIFIA funds 
have been fully drawn down. As previously noted, RM 3 funds will nominalize borrowing 
should MTC prevail in the litigation.  
 
The Loan Repayment and Security Structure 
Table 4 presents the expected annual debt service payments for the combined loans. 
The proposed loan repayment structure aims to achieve fixed level annual payments to 
support ongoing budget certainty. Following an interest-only payment period for the first 
five years of the TIFIA loan.  As noted, the Bank of Marin loan is expected to fully 
amortize in 2026 if the full $5M is drawn.  The Bank of Marin loan will be paid off using 
RM 3 funds if they become available.  It should be noted that loan approval for either 
loan is subject to the RM 3 funds becoming available.   
 
Chart 1 illustrates the level of debt service compared to LTF revenue generations.  
Table 2 provides the estimated annual debt service for both loans. 
 
Chart 1:  LTF Revenues compared to Debt Service 

 
  

248



 
Table 2:  Loan Payment Amortization Schedule (based on fully amortized loans) 

Year TIFIA Bank of Marin Total Debt Service 
2022             103,106  $ 0             103,106  
2023             226,649              131,060              357,709  
2024             229,050              672,465              901,515  
2025             229,050              672,465              901,515  
2026             229,050              672,465              901,515  
2027             229,050              672,465              901,515  
2028             229,050              672,465              901,515  
2029             229,050              672,465              901,515  
2030             229,050              672,465              901,515  
2031             229,050              672,465              901,515  
2032             229,050              672,465              901,515  
2033             921,242                         -                921,242  
2034             921,242                         -                921,242  
2035             921,242                         -                921,242  
2036             921,242                         -                921,242  
2037             921,242                         -                921,242  
2038             921,242                         -                921,242  
2039             921,242                         -                921,242  
2040             921,242                         -                921,242  
2041             921,242                         -                921,242  
2042             921,242                         -                921,242  
2043             921,242                         -                921,242  
2044             921,242                         -                921,242  
2045             921,242                         -                921,242  
2046             921,242                         -                921,242  
2047             921,242                         -                921,242  
2048             921,242                         -                921,242  
2049             921,242                         -                921,242  
2050             921,242                         -                921,242  
2051             921,242                         -                921,242  
2052             921,242                         -                921,242  
2053             921,242                         -                921,242  
2054             921,242                         -                921,242  
2055             921,242                         -                921,242  
2056             921,242                         -                921,242  
2057 (Last Year) 0                        -    0 
    

Totals 
                                                                                                                                       

$25,422,263          $6,183,245  
                                   

$31,605,507 
 
 
 
  

249



Based on the secured Bank of Marin Loan rate of 3.5% during draw period and 4% during 
repayment, and a TIFIA Loan rate of 1.15%, estimated aggregate annual debt service 
payments equate to between $103,106 to $901,515 for the first five years and $901,515 
to $921,242 for years 6 to 35.  The TIFIA loan provides additional liquidity flexibility by 
allowing interest only payments for the first five years. 
 
SB450 Required Disclosures 
SB450 mandates certain disclosures to the public regarding the assumption of financing 
instruments such as a loan.  In compliance with Section 5852.1 of the California 
Government Code and based on current market conditions at the time of this report, the 
good faith estimates of the following are: 
 
1. True interest cost of the bonds: This is the rate necessary to discount the amounts 

payable on the respective principal and interest payment dates to the purchase price 
received for the new issue of bonds.  The true interest cost is 4%. 
 

2. Finance charge of the bonds: This is the sum of all fees and charges paid to all third 
parties including Bank of Marin’s attorney fees, origination fees, third party collateral 
agent fees, and fees from KNN and Nossaman for their potion of costs related to this 
loan.  The total finance charge is $100,000. 
 

3. Amount of proceeds received by the public body for sale of the bonds: This is 
the proceeds of the loan net of the fees and charges paid to third parties and any 
reserves or capitalized interest paid or funded with proceeds of the loan.  The Net 
Proceeds is $5,000,000. 
 

4. Total payment amount: This is the sum total of all debt service payments on the loan 
calculated to the final maturity of the loan plus the fees and charges paid to third 
parties not paid with the proceeds of the loan.  The total amount is $6,283,245. 

 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
NVTA could forego the loan and wait for RM3 or other grant funding to become available.  
There is no guarantee grant funds will become available but further delays in constructing 
the facility will result in signficant project cost escalation – estimated at between 2.5-5% 
per year. Other costs may be associated with a delay in TIFIA financing, including higher 
interest rates, fees to update indicative rating letters and additional consultant fees. 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently. 
 
Financing to complete the project funding package and begin the construction phase will 
significantly offset the cost associated with construction escalation delays.   
 

250



ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) Resolution 21-06 
(2) Bank of Marin Letter of Interest 
(3) US Bank Term Sheet 

251



 
RESOLUTION No. 21-06 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 
APPROVING A TERM SHEET FROM BANK OF MARIN TO PROVIDE FINANCING 

FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE VINE BUS MAINTENANCE FACILITY 
 
  WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (“NVTA”) is developing a new 
bus maintenance facility project in Napa County (“Project”); and 

 
  WHEREAS, based on current cost estimates and a preliminary funding plan as 
described to this Board, the NVTA will need to finance a portion of the cost of the Project; 
and;  

 
  WHEREAS, the NVTA received a term sheet from Bank of Marin to provide a loan 
to the NVTA in the amount of up to $5,000,000; and 

 
  WHEREAS, the Bank of Marin loan will complete the financing of the Project which 
will produce significant public benefits; and  

 
  WHEREAS, the NVTA Board desires to delegate to the Executive Director the 
authority to execute a loan agreement with the Bank of Marin on the terms, conditions 
and fees as set forth in the Term Sheet, attached hereto as Attachment A; 

 
    NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Napa 
Valley Transportation Authority that: 
 
  1.  The term sheet with the Bank of Marin to finance a portion of the cost of the 
Project is hereby approved, attached hereto as Attachment A; and 
 
  2. The Executive Director or designee is authorized to negotiate and execute the 
financing agreement with the Bank of Marin on the terms, conditions and fees as set forth 
in the Term Sheet,  
 
Passed and adopted this 17th day of March, 2021. 
 
 
________________________ 
Alfredo Pedroza, NVTA Chair       Ayes: 
 
 
 
 
 
                 Nays: 

252



 
 
 
                 Absent: 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
______________________________ 
DeeAnne Gillick, NVTA Legal Counsel 

253



600 Trancas St. 
Napa CA, 94558 

Phone: 707-265-2000 
Fax: 707-265-2090 

Rev. 3/2017 

 

 
March 10, 2021 
 
Kate Miller, Executive Director  
Antonio Onorato, Director of Administration, Finance, and Policy 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority  
625 Burnell Street  
Napa CA 94559 
 
Dear Kate & Antonio  
 
In response to your request, Bank of Marin (“Bank”) is pleased to express our interest in pursuing 
loans based upon the following primary terms, it being understood that some additional terms 
and/or conditions may be required by us before a formal commitment is extended: 
 

1. Credit   Facility: 
 

 Non-Revolving Line of Credit to Term Loan 
 
 

2. 
 

Borrower: 
 

The Napa Valley Transportation Authority, a joint powers authority created 
under the laws of the State of California (the “Borrower”) 
 

3. Purpose/Project: Financing for a new transit vehicle maintenance and administration facility 
to be constructed and owned by the Borrower and located in the City of Napa, 
California (the “Project”). 
 
Loan will bridge the financing needs for the construction of the Project until 
designated funding of Regional Measure 3 is released. In the event the release 
of the Measure 3 funds is delayed or denied, the outstanding balance may be 
converted to a Term Loan. 
 

4. Proposed Loan 
Amount: 
 

A maximum principal amount not to exceed $5,000,000. 
 
This Credit Facility is conditioned upon the following: 

 Approval of the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation 
Act (the “TIFIA Loan”) to be entered into by the Borrower and 
United States Department of Transportation (the “TIFIA Lender”) 
acting by and through the Executive Director of the Build America 
Bureau in an amount no less than 49% of the total project cost 
(currently estimated at $19,917,401) with final terms acceptable to 
Bank. 

 Approval of all grants in an amount no less than 38% of the total 
project cost (currently estimated at $15,732,421). 

 
5. Loan Term: Up to twelve years (“Maturity”) as detailed below. However, loan will 

become due and payable in full the earlier of the Maturity or the release of 
Measure 3 funds.  
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: D533B1C4-A490-486E-9CDB-D2DF3270BD74

254



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
3/10/2021 
Page 2 
 

Draw Period: Funds may be advanced during the first two years. Borrower 
may make one draw per month subject to, but not limited to the following: 

 All grants must be secured and the TIFIA loan must be funded in full 
prior to the first advance. 

 Borrower to be in compliance with all loan agreements 
 Borrower to provide monthly draw reports (which must include the 

updated percent to completion) to verify that the remaining funding 
sources are sufficient to complete the project. If there is a short fall, 
then borrower will be required to provide proof of additional funding 
sources needed to complete project prior to disbursement of Bank 
funds.   

 Borrower to provide invoices and following each draw, proof of 
payment for work invoiced. 

 Bank will reserve the right to require inspection prior to 
disbursement to verify percent of completion.  

 
Term Loan:  Ten Years fully amortizing 
 
 

6. Interest Rate: Draw Period: The loan shall be priced at the current Prime Rate during the 
two year draw period.  Prime Rate shall mean the Prime Rate published in 
the Wall Street Journal, as such rate may change from time to time.  The 
current Prime Rate is 3.25%.  
 
Term loan:  At conversion to a term facility the borrower will have the 
option to fix the rate. If borrower executes that option the rate will be fixed 
at the to the then most current month’s 10-year Treasury Constant Maturity 
(TCM) plus 2.5%.  Rate floor: 3.50%.  
 
Interest will accrue daily on the simple interest basis of a 365/360 day year. 
 

7. Repayment  Draw Period: Interest payable semiannually. Principal may be repaid at any 
time during the Draw Period but amounts repaid may not be reborrowed.  
 
Term Loan: Principal and Interest payments will be payable in semiannual 
installments based on a 10 year amortization. Principal and Interest payment 
amount will be based on the prevailing rate at the time of conversion as 
detailed in Section 6. above. Assuming the floor rate of 3.50%, the 
semiannual payment is estimated at $299,165 at 3.5%. 
 
The Bank loan will be repaid from a  Dedicated Repayment Source (as 
described in Section 8. Payment performance will be administered and 
enforced by a third party Collateral Agent acting for the benefit of the 
Secured Parties (Bank and TIFIA Lender). The Collateral Agent assigned 
must be acceptable to Bank.  
 
The Bank Loan will be a senior obligation of the Borrower in right of 
payment from (and claim on) all Dedicated Repayment Sources, pari passu 
with the secured loan pursuant to the TIFIA Loan. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D533B1C4-A490-486E-9CDB-D2DF3270BD74

255



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
3/10/2021 
Page 3 
 

 
 

8. Dedicated 
Repayment 
Source: 

The Borrower shall deposit (or cause to be deposited) the following revenues 
to an account administered by the Collateral Agent through the following 
Dedicated Repayment Sources “Revenue Account”.  
 LTF Funds:  Borrower will issue an irrevocable direction letter to the 

County of Napa, in form and substance satisfactory to the Bank Lender 
and TIFIA Lender, directing the County of Napa to send all LTF Funds 
allocated to the Borrower directly to the Revenue Account when received 
by the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration.  

 Farebox Revenues: As the pledged revenue source for the Bank Loan, 
the Borrower shall cause all Farebox Revenues to be deposited to the 
Revenue Account. Borrower will issue an irrevocable direction letter to 
the Farebox Bank, directing the Bank to send all Farebox Revenues 
directly to the Revenue Account on a monthly basis.  

Funds deposited into the Revenue Account will then be directed to the 
respective secured parties Debt Service Accounts and Reserve Accounts as 
defined in section 9 to meet the balance requirements of each secured party. 
Funding of the accounts will be administered in the following order of 
priority:   
 First, on a pari passu basis, deposits to the Bank Debt Service Account 

and the TIFIA Debt Service Account required balance 
 Second, on a pari passu basis deposits to fund the Bank Debt Service 

Reserve Account and the TIFIA Debt Service Reserve Account.  
 Third, any remaining amounts after items first and second will be 

transferred to the Borrower. 
 
*If at any time LTF Funds and Farebox Revenues deposited to the Revenue 
Account will not be sufficient to fund the Debt Service Accounts and Reserve 
Accounts the Borrower shall deposit (or cause to be deposited) amounts 
sufficient to fund the respective Accounts through other revenue sources  
(other revenues include STA Revenues, Membership Fees, and Other 
Revenues). 
 

9. Bank Loan 
Account 
Balance 
Requirements:  
 

Debt Service Accounts: 
Borrower must maintain at all times an amount equal to the semiannual 
contractual principal and interest payments. The account shall be assigned 
exclusively to the Bank Lender. 
 
Reserve Account:  
Borrower must maintain at all times an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) 
of the principal and interest payments on the Bank Loan due and payable 
during the then-current Borrower Fiscal Year. The account shall be assigned 
exclusively to the Bank Lender.  
 

10. Loan Fee: 0.50% of the loan amount or $25,000. Attorney fees for the preparation and 
review of loan documents will be billed separately. Attorney fee cap is 
pending a final quote from legal counsel.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: D533B1C4-A490-486E-9CDB-D2DF3270BD74

256



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
3/10/2021 
Page 4 
 

 
11. Prepayment 

Penalty 
 

None 

12. Collateral:  The Loan will be secured by the following and will be subject to the terms 
and conditions outlined in the Collateral and Security Agreement: 
 
 A direct pledge of all Farebox Revenues  
 A security interest in each of the accounts established 

under the Collateral Accounts and Security Agreement for 
the transaction (the “CASA”), to be entered into by the 
Borrower, the Lender, U.S. Bank N.A., acting as collateral 
agent (other than those sub-accounts of the senior debt 
service account that exclusively secure any obligations of 
the Borrower on parity with the Bank Loan, including, but 
not limited to, the expected TIFIA Loan), including an 
exclusive security interest in the Bank Loan debt service 
sub-account of the senior debt service account established 
under the CASA (and collaterally assigned exclusively to the 
Lender) (the “Bank Loan Debt Service Sub-Account”) and 
the Bank Loan Debt Service Reserve Account, and the 
amounts on deposit in each such account.  

 
13. Additional Debt: 

 
The Borrower shall not issue or incur additional indebtedness unless the LTF 
Funds allocated to the Borrower and deposited into the Revenue Account and 
Farebox Revenues received by or on behalf of the Borrower, in the aggregate, 
during any twelve (12) consecutive months during the eighteen (18) months 
prior are at least equal to 2.0x the maximum amount of all of the Borrower’s 
obligations in aggregate, during any year while the TIFIA Loan or any such 
Pari Passu Obligations are (or are scheduled to be) outstanding. 
 

14. 
 
 
 
 

Reporting 
Requirements 
 

Standard conditions and covenants including: 
 Borrower to provide annual CPA Audited financial statements within 180 

days of the fiscal year end. 
 Borrower shall provide interim financial statements within 45 days of 

each quarter-end. 
 Borrower shall provide Annual Allocation letters/Funding Availability 

Notices. 
 Borrower shall provide Annual Cash Flow Projections. 
 Borrower shall provide MTC reports including the Local Transportation 

Fund Activity Statement; unpaid Allocations; Administrative Fee 
Schedule within 45 days of each quarter-end. 

 Borrower shall provide updated information regarding the status of the 
pending litigation of Measure 3.   

 
15. Additional 

Requirements: 
 Borrower to provide a copy of fixed-price construction contract 

satisfactory to bank. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D533B1C4-A490-486E-9CDB-D2DF3270BD74

257



Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
3/10/2021 
Page 5 
 

 
THIS LETTER OF INTEREST IS FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT AN 
OFFER OR COMMITMENT TO LEND. THIS LETTER OF INTEREST REFLECTS THE 
BANK’S PRELIMINARY INTEREST IN EXPLORING A CREDIT ARRANGEMENT AND 
WILL NOT BE BINDING ON THE BANK OR THE ADDRESSEE.  The terms proposed herein 
including rates and margins are subject to revision at Bank of Marin’s discretion.  Should Bank of 
Marin enter into a credit relationship with the borrower, documents may contain additional or 
different terms, covenants and conditions.  This letter of interest may not be contradicted by 
evidence or any alleged oral agreement, may not be disclosed, and may not be relied upon for any 
purpose without Bank of Marin’s prior written consent. 
 
If these proposed terms and conditions are acceptable to you, please indicate by signing and 
returning a copy of this letter to us. 
 
Thank you for providing us the opportunity to be of service to you.  Please call Scott McAdams at 
707-265-2022 or Christina Perez at 707-265-2021 if you have any questions or we can be of 
additional assistance. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Scott McAdams 
SVP, Regional Manager 
ScottMcAdams@BankofMarin.com 

Christina Perez  
Commercial Banking Officer 
ChristinaPerez@BankofMarin.com 

    
 
 
Acknowledged: ______________________________     Date: ______________ 

 Borrower to provide evidence of construction insurance (subject to 
satisfactory review of bank). 

 Cross default to all current and future credit agreements. 
 Modifications to the TIFIA loan may require Bank consent. 
 Borrower to maintain primary operating accounts at Bank of Marin. 
 Modifications to the existing Business Loan Agreement dated 8/15/2017 

for the Borrower’s revolving line of credit shall include but not be limited 
to permitted liens for the Collateral securing this proposed facility, 
consent for the additional financing with TIFIA and a requirement that 
should the Borrower choose to refinance the revolving line of credit with 
another lender, the proposed Credit Facility shall also  be refinanced.    
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: D533B1C4-A490-486E-9CDB-D2DF3270BD74

258



DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY 
PROPOSAL 

AND 

TERM SHEET 

(“PROPOSAL”) 

CREDIT FACILITY IN THE FORM OF AN UP TO 

$5,000,000 DIRECT PURCHASE LOAN OR  

DRAWDOWN FACILITY 

PROVIDED BY  

U.S. Bank N.A. 

ISSUED ON BEHALF OF THE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

NOTE: The proposed terms and conditions outlined in this Summary of Terms and Conditions are provided for discussion 

purposes only and do not constitute an offer, agreement, or commitment to lend.  This Summary of Terms and Conditions 

is intended as an outline only and does not purport to summarize all the terms, conditions, covenants, representations, 

warranties or other provisions which would be contained in definitive legal documentation of the financing transaction 

contemplated herein. The actual terms and conditions upon which the Lenders might extend credit to the Borrower are 

subject to further due diligence, formal credit approval, satisfactory review of documentation, and such other terms and 

conditions as may be determined by the Bank and its counsel. 

259



DISCUSSION PURPOSES TERM SHEET  Page 2 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Confidential  February 1012, 2021 

Credit Facility 
Provider: 
  

U.S. Bank N.A. (USB) 
JEFF KAJISA, VICE PRESIDENT AND  
PORTFOLIO MANAGER 
Ph: (415) 244-6753 
Email: jeffrey.kajisa@usbank.com 
 

DON RAUGHT,  VICE PRESIDENT AND 

RELATIONSHIP MANAGER 
Ph: (916) 531-3092 
Email : donald.raught@usbank.com 

SCOTT NAGELSON, MANAGING DIRECTOR 
MUNICIPAL PRODUCTS GROUP 
Ph: (415) 677-3685 
Email: scott.nagelson@usbank.com 

 

  

 

Bank: U.S. Bank N.A. (the “Bank”), a member of FDIC. 
 
Issuer:  Napa Valley Transportation Authority (the “Issuer” or the “Authority”) 
 
Type of Credit  
Facility:   Option 1):  A Federally taxable or tax-exempt fixed-rate direct purchase loan  
  (the “DP Loan”).  
 Option 2):  A Federally taxable or tax-exempt Drawdown Facility 
   (the “Drawdown Facility”) 

 
Principal Amount: Not to exceed $5,000,000 
 
Term: The term of the credit facility shall not exceed ten years.   
 

The credit facility will not be subject to extension without the express written 
request of the Agency and subsequent express written consent of the Bank in 
its sole discretion; see Renewal below.  

   
Purpose: Proceeds of the Loan shall be utilized for partial financing of the Bus 

Maintenance Facility Project. 
 
Security:  1) 1st lien pledge on Farebox revenues and member contributions.; Pari passu 
with the expected TIFIA  

 Loan. 
2) Irrevocable direction by the Authority to Napa County to direct LTF to a 

Trustee.  Trustee shall be directed to pay debt service on a parity basis 
between the U.S. Bank Loan and the TIFIA loan before transfer to the 
County for deposit into the LTF Trust Account. 

3) Any future Measure 3 funds shall be used to prepay the Bank Loan. 
 
Amortization:  DP Loan:  Interest payable semiannually, principal annually based on equal 

amortization with first principal payment due at the end of the second year. 

260



DISCUSSION PURPOSES TERM SHEET  Page 3 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Confidential  February 1012, 2021 

 Drawdown Facility: Draws available up to the second anniversary of the 
closing date.  Interest and Unused Fee due quarterly during a two-year drawn 
down periodsemi-annually.  Principal due annually based on equal 
amortization with the first principal payment due at the second anniversary of 
the closing date. 

 
Pricing: All fees and interest charges shall be on an actual over 360-day basis. The 

following terms and fees (the “Loan Fees”) set forth below shall apply to the 
credit facility.  The credit facility shall bear interest at a per annum rate of 
interest as stated below so long as no Event of Default has occurred and is 
continuing. 

 
 DP Loan:  Taxable:  2.88% per annum Fixed-Rate.  
  Tax Exempt:  2.45% per annum Fixed-Rate. 
 
 Pre-payable subject to Early Repayment Fees described below. 
 
 The DP Loan rate is an indicative rate based on a closing as of the date of this 

proposal and therefore subject to change.  The rate has not been held.  We are 
happy to discuss rate holds when a closing date has been determined.   

 
 Drawdown Facility:   

• Unused Fee: 75 bps per annum based on the unused portion of  
 the commitment. 

• Drawn Pricing:  
o Taxable:  Daily Floating Index based on 1-month LIBOR 
 + 185 bps, per annum. 
o Tax Exempt:  85% of Daily Floating Index based on 

 1-month LIBOR + 155 bps, per annum. 

• Fixed Rate:  A fixed rate option shall be available for draws, but will 
be priced by the Bank at the time of the draw request. 

   
Default Rate:  DP Loan:  Default Rate means the fixed rate plus 3.0% from and after the 

occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default.   

 Drawdown Facility:  Default Rate means the Base Rate plus 3.0% from and 
after the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default. 

From and after the occurrence of an Event of Default, interest on advances 
and other amounts due and owing under the Facility shall accrue daily on 
such amounts at the Default Rate and is payable on demand. 

“Base Rate” means the higher of the overnight federal funds rate plus 3.0%, 
the Bank’s Prime Rate plus 1.5%, or 7.5%.  

 

261



DISCUSSION PURPOSES TERM SHEET  Page 4 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Confidential  February 1012, 2021 

Early Repayment: DP Loan:  Credit facilities are pre-payable at any time.  However, early repayment 
shall be subject to a make-whole fee if prepaid before the second anniversary from 
closing.  The Fee shall be based on 75 bps per annum accrued on $5,000,000 over 
the number of days from the date of prepayment to the second anniversary.  

 
 Drawdown Facility:  Any prepayment of the Drawdown Facility on a date before 

the second anniversary shall be subject to a two-year make whole payment based 
on the Unused Fee. 

 
Upfront Fees: Payment of any legal fees incurred by the Bank, including the documentation 

of the facility.  See below for details.  
 
Condition to  
Draws:  A draw certificate shall be submitted three business days preceding the 

funding date.   The certificate shall be signed by an authorized signor 
confirming no events of default and all reps and warranties are in 
compliance. 

 
Collateral Accounts 
And Security 
Agreement: The Bank loan will be repaid from a Dedicated Repayment Source defined as 

(a) all LTF Funds allocated to the Borrower and (b) all Farebox Revenues 
and contract service revenues received by or on behalf of the Borrower in 
connection with the operation of transit vehicles owned or leased by the 
Borrower, and (c) all Other Revenues received by or on behalf of the 
Borrower.  Payment performance will be administered and enforced by a 
third-party Collateral Agent acting for the benefit of the Bank and TIFIA 
Lender (the “Secured Parties”) to be detailed in the Collateral Accounts and 
Security Agreement for the transaction (the “CASA”) to be entered into by 
the Borrower, the Bank, the TIFIA Lender 

 
Bank Counsel:  

Nathan Odem 
Chapman and Cutler LLP 
111 West Monroe Street 
Chicago, Illinois 60603 
Tel: 312.845.3782 
Fax: 312.516-1982 
odem@chapman.com 

Legal Fees/ 
Expenses: Depending on final structure, estimated between $20,000, and capped at 

$25,000, plus disbursements.  Fees and expenses payable to Bank Counsel may 
be increased if the security and/or structure of the transaction changes 
materially, or if other complexities develop once documentation has 
commenced. 

 

262



DISCUSSION PURPOSES TERM SHEET  Page 5 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Confidential  February 1012, 2021 

Credit Approval: The Bank has received preliminary credit approval based on these terms 
subject to final documentation and due diligence.  The Bank will endeavor to 
provide formal credit approval within 15 business days after acceptance of 
this proposal by the Authority.   

Required prior to  
closing:  Normal and customary closing conditions for transactions of this nature 

including, but not limited to, the following: execution and delivery of the 
Agreement, which will be prepared by Bank Counsel.  Documentation will 
include an appropriate authorizing resolution or ordinance, and Bond 
Counsel opinion that (i) the Direct Purchase Loan is a legal, valid binding, 
enforceable and properly authorized obligation of the Authority and that the 
security has been properly pledged and established, and (ii) interest on the 
Loan is not includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes.  

 
Representations 
and Warranties: Standard for facilities of this type, including but not limited to, the following: 

due authorization and organization; validity and enforceability of Financing 
Documents; accuracy of financial statements; security; compliance with 
laws; accuracy of disclosure; no litigation; no default; no violation of 
applicable usury restrictions; no margin stock; no proposed legal changes; 
environmental matters; status of trustee; no immunity with respect to 
contractual obligations under the Facility; and incorporation of 
representations and warranties from Financing Documents. 

 
Reporting  
Requirements:  

• Annual audited financial statements and budgets. 

• Quarterly reporting of farebox and sales tax revenues.   
 

Covenants:  Customary for transactions of this nature including, but not limited to, the 
following: 

• Minimum Debt Service Coverage Ratio: 

o• The Authority NVTA shall maintain current year budget and apply for 
LTF, plus farebox revenues, plus member contributions Funds in each 
Fiscal Year in amounts at least sufficient to Maximum Annual pay 2.0x 
(A) all Bank Loan and TIFIA Debt Service coverage of 2.0xdue and 
payable during such Fiscal Year plus (B) all debt service due and payable 
under the Other Financing Documents during such Fiscal Year. 

• Additional Debt Test:  With the exception of the TIFIA loan, no 
o The Borrower shall not issue indebtedness for borrowed money that is 

senior to the Bank Loan and TIFIA Loan in right of payment from 
any Revenues. 

o The Borrower shall not issue additional debt securedindebtedness that 
is on parity with the Bank Loan and TIFIA Loan unless the Revenues 
received by the Borrower from LTF shall be allowedFunds and 
Farebox Revenues, in the aggregate, during any twelve (12) 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5"

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font color: Black

263



DISCUSSION PURPOSES TERM SHEET  Page 6 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Confidential  February 1012, 2021 

consecutive months during the eighteen (18) months prior to the date 
of the issuance of such additional indebtedness are at least equal to 
2.0x MADS for all outstanding senior obligations of the Borrower 
(including the TIFIA Loan) during any year while such senior 
obligations are outstanding. 

•o Following the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Bank  
Loan Agreement, the Borrower shall not incur any indebtedness for 
borrowed money payable from Revenues without Bank the prior 
written consent. of the Bank Lender." 

• Minimum LTF funds:  Maintain cash balance within the County LTF of 
at least $23.5 million. 

• Minimum Ratings:  Maintain minimum Baa2/BBB (or the equivalent) 
from at least two rating agencies with respect to any long-term, 
unenhanced issuer credit rating,  any long-term unenhanced rating of any 
general obligation of the Authority, any lease revenue or similar 
obligation (e.g., certificates of participation) of the Authority, any 
obligation secured by or payable from the general fund of the Authority, 
or any such rating on any similar obligation, in each case if such ratings 
are then maintained by any rating agency.  

• Negative pledge on all member contributions. 

• Debt Service Reserve consistent with TIFIA loan:  Maintain an 
amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of the principal and interest 
payments on the bank loan payable during the then-current fiscal year. 

 

Events of Default: Those usual and customary for a transaction of this nature, including: payment 
default; breach of covenants; bankruptcy or insolvency; invalidity or 
misrepresentation; long-term debt rating below Baa2/BBB by any agency; 
judgment affecting the general fund in excess of $5MM that is not insured with 
coverage in writing. 

Remedies: Those customary for transactions of this nature including, but not limited to, 
the following: reduce the available commitment to zero, impose the default 
rate, set off amount held by the Bank, and payment acceleration.  

Increased Costs,  
Capital Adequacy  
and Taxes, Excess 
Interest: The applicable Financing document shall also contain the Bank’s Capital 

Adequacy/Yield Protection Indemnity, withholding and tax indemnification; 
waiver of jury and submission to judicial reference; customary interest rate 
recapture (clawback) and LIBOR succession (if applicable) language; 
indemnification; redaction; jurisdiction/ venue; tax gross up provisions, 
assignment and participation; document imaging and electronic transactions; 
and the Bank’s other standard provisions customary for a Loan Facility of 
this nature. 
 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.75", Don't adjust space between
Latin and Asian text, Don't adjust space between Asian text
and numbers

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Font color: Black

Formatted: Normal

264



DISCUSSION PURPOSES TERM SHEET  Page 7 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

Confidential  February 1012, 2021 

Indemnification: To the extent permitted by law, the Authority shall indemnify the Bank, 
including tax indemnity, for all circumstances except those caused by the gross 
negligence or willful misconduct of the Bank.  

Jurisdiction and  
Venue:  To be mutually agreed. 
 
OFAC: The Authority shall provide documentary and other evidence as may be 

reasonably requested by the Bank at any time to enable the Bank to verify the 
Authority’s compliance with applicable law or regulation, including, without 
limitation, regulations of Office of Foreign Asset Control (OFAC). 

 
Participation: The Bank shall have the right to sell risk participations in the Credit Facility. 

However, the sale of such risk participations shall not limit the Bank’s 
obligation to make Loans under the Credit Facility. 

 
No Advisory or  
Fiduciary Role:  The Authority acknowledges and agrees that: (i) the Bank has not assumed 

any advisory or fiduciary responsibility to the Authority with respect to the 
transaction contemplated hereby and the discussions, undertakings and 
procedures leading thereto (irrespective of whether the Bank or any of its 
affiliates has provided other services or is currently providing other  services 
to the Authority on other matters); (ii) the only obligations the Bank has to 
the Authority with respect to the transaction contemplated hereby are 
expressly set forth in this term sheet; and (iii) the Authority has consulted its 
own legal, accounting, tax, financial and other advisors, as applicable, to the 
extent it has deemed appropriate. 
 

 

NOTE: As we obtain more information, additional substantive conditions will be required, 

and terms may be changed or be supplemented.  In addition, upon completion of our 

analysis and due diligence and if we obtain credit approval of this proposal, we will 

prepare loan documentation which will include terms and conditions customary to 

U.S. Bank, as well as warranties and covenants specific to this transaction.   

 

To that end, this letter is an expression of interest only.  Except with respect to your 

obligation to reimburse U.S. Bank for expenses as provided below and not to disclose 

the contents of this letter except as permitted below, this letter is not a contract, 

commitment nor intent to be bound, and U.S. Bank does not intend that this letter or 

discussions relative to the terms of this letter create any legal rights, implicit or 

explicit, in your favor, nor is it intended to create any obligations on the part of U.S. 

Bank.  Also, no oral discussions and/or written agreements shall be in place of or 

supersede written loan agreements executed by your business and accepted by U.S. 

Bank. 

 

Please note that this proposal is for your review only.  You may not disclose this letter 

or any of the terms contained in this letter to any third party other than your attorney, 

accountant and authorized agents representing you. 

265



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.6 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVAL 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Federal and State Legislative Update 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the State Legislative 
update prepared by Platinum Advisors (Attachment 1) and approve the board position 
recommendations for five bills, on the State Bill Matrix (Attachment 2). 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The memos attached will provide the Board with federal and state legislative updates. 

The U.S. House of Representatives passed H.R. 1319, the “American Rescue Plan Act 
of 2021” a $1.9 trillion stimulus bill that includes $30.5 billion in COVID relief funding for 
public transit agencies.  With signficant modifications to the bill, the Senate passed the 
bill on a 50/49 party line vote.  The House approved Senate changes on March 10th and 
the bill now heads to the President for signature.  The $30.5 billion to maintain transit 
systems around the country stayed in the bill, however fewer individuals will qualify for 
the $1,400 stimulus payment and the $15 minimum wage provisions was dropped. 

The State Legislative memo provides an overview the December and January tax receipts 
that exceeded projections by $10.3 billion as well as a summary of the elements of the 
$9.5 billion Golden Gate Stimulus package the Governor signed on February 23rd  that 
provides additional relief for low income individuals and small businesses. The stimulus 
package also includes restoration of budget cuts made in the current fiscal year for the 
University of California, California State University, Judicial Branch, Child Support 
Services and moderate-income housing.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

266



March 17, 2021 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.6 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVAL 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM:   Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Kate Miller, Executive Director 

(707) 259-8634 / Email: kmiller@nvta.ca.gov

SUBJECT: Federal and State Legislative Update 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the State Legislative 
update prepared by Platinum Advisors (Attachment 1) and approve five board position 
recommendations on the State Bill Matrix (Attachment 2). 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Federal Update:  
On February 27, the U.S. House of Representatives passed H.R. 1319, the “American 
Rescue Plan Act of 2021”. On March 6, the Senate passed a modified version of the bill.  
On March 10th, the House voted to approve the Senate changes along party lines.  The 
bill now heads to the President for signature. 

The bill provides $30.5 billion in critical COVID-19 emergency funding to help public 
transit agencies continue to provide a lifeline to essential workers, ensure Americans 
can get to vaccine distribution sites, and advance communities’ efforts across the 
country to rebuild our nation’s economy. Bay Area Transit systems sent Bay Area 
Congressional leaders a letter in support of the bill (Attachments 3 and 4).  

Specifically for transit, the bill includes: 

$30.5 billion in relief funding to transit agencies nationwide and $1.5 billion to Amtrak. 

California’s transit agencies are expected to receive approximately $4 billion in relief 
funding from the package.  

The transit funding included in the bill would flow as follows: 

267

mailto:kmiller@nvta.ca.gov


• $26.086 billion for grants to urbanized areas (FTA 5307) 

o Initially, the funding amounts made available for these grants, when 
combined with the CARES Act and CRRSAA, shall ensure that urbanized 
areas receive 132 percent of their transit agencies’ 2018 operating costs.  

o After making these apportionments, excess funds would flow to urbanized 
areas that did not receive apportionments initially, because they had 
received grants in excess of the 132 percent threshold between the 
CARES Act and CRRSAA. These urbanized areas shall receive 25 
percent of their transit agencies’ 2018 operating costs. 

o Finally, urbanized areas that received CARES Act and CRRSAA grants 
totaling 130 to 132 percent of their agencies’ 2018 operating costs, shall 
receive from excess funds an additional 10 percent of their transit 
agencies’ 2018 operating costs.  

• $50 million for grants for seniors and persons with disabilities (FTA 5310)  

• $280.858 million for grants to rural areas (FTA 5311) 

o States shall receive allocations on a sliding scale of 5 to 20 percent of 
2018 rural operating costs, depending on the level of CARES Act and 
CRRSAA grants received.  

• $100 million for grants to (FTA 5311(F))  

• $2.207 billion for additional assistance to maintain operations (through 
application to DOT Secretary) 

o The Secretary shall evaluate grant requests based on the level of financial 
need demonstrated. The demonstrated need includes future financial 
need to maintain service as a percentage of 2018 operating costs that has 
not been replaced by the funds made available by the other grants of the 
Title, CARES Act or CRRSAA. 

• $1.675 billion for additional CIG support (FTA 5309)  

 
 
State Update:   
 Attached is the State legislative update (Attachment 1) and the State Bill Matrix 
(Attachment 2) recommending five bills for board action: 
 

• AB 117 (Boerner Horvath D) would establish an electric bicycle rebate pilot 
project to promote the use of electric bicycles. Staff is recommending that the 
Board take a support position on this bill. 

268



• AB 122 (Boerner Horvath D) would amend existing law to allow bicyclists to enter
an intersection without coming to a complete stop provided specific conditions
are met.  Staff is recommending that the board take a watch position on this bill.

• AB 339 (Lee D) would require all public meetings using teleconference
technology to provide closed caption service options and translation services for
the top ten languages used in California.  Staff is recommending that the board
take a watch position on this bill.

• AB 361 (Rivas Robert D) would allow a local agency to use teleconference
technology when holding a meeting for the purpose of declaring or ratifying a
local emergency during a declared state or local emergency without complying
with the teleconferencing requirements imposed by the Brown Act.  Staff is
recommending that the board take a watch position on this bill.

• AB 1157 (Lee D) would change the regional transportation planning agency
deadline for submitting State Transit Assistance (STA) eligibility report to the
State Controller’s Office (SCO) to within seven months of the end of each fiscal
year.  It would also require the SCO to publish and post on its website the data
and information on all transit operator financial transactions reports on or before
November 1 of each year.  Staff is recommending that the board take a watch
position on this bill.

PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Staff Report
2. Public Comments

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact? No 

ATTACHMENTS 

(1) March 2, 2021 State Legislative Update (Platinum Advisors)
(2) March 2, 2021 State Budget Update (Platinum Advisors)
(3) MTC Regional Letter to Bay Area Members of the House Committee on

Transportation Infrastructure
(4) MTC Regional Letter to Speaker Pelosi and Bay Area Representatives

269



ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.6 

March 17, 2021 

March 2, 2021 

TO: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

FR: Steve Wallauch 
Platinum Advisors 

RE: Legislative Update  

Introduction Deadline:  With continued restraints on the use of committee hearing rooms 
there was pressure to limit the number of bills a member can move this year.  However, 
that has not put a damper on the number of bills introduced.  The total number of bills 
introduced is 2,489 – Assembly members introduced 1642 measures, and the Senators 
introduced 847 measures.  That is roughly 20 bills per member, which is not far off the 
traditional pace.  For example, in 2019 total bills introduced reached 2,576. 

Rules in both houses require all new legislation to be in-print for 30 days before amending 
or hearing a new bill in committee.  This results in multiple marathon committee hearings 
being held in the rush to meet the first hearing deadline on April 30th.  In an effort to 
provide policy committees more time to hold hearings while complying with the COVID 
operating restrictions, the Senate approved suspending the 30 day in-print rule, which 
required a ¾ vote on the Senate.  This was a bipartisan agreement reached between Pro 
Tem Toni Atkins and Minority Leader Scott Wilk.  There are no plans at this time for the 
Assembly to waive the 30-day rule. 

Winter Windfall:  The cash report from the Department of Finance announced that tax 
receipts for December and January exceeded projections by $10.3 billion.  With the 
January budget proposal already incorporating a $15 billion surplus, this winter bump puts 
the budget surplus on par with the LAO’s projection of $26 billion.  According to Finance, 
January cash receipts surpassed projections by $7.45 billion, and December topped 
projections by nearly $3 billion.  The funds in the following chart use the January 2021 
revenue estimates as the base. 

Tax 
Revenues 

DOF January DOF Fiscal YTD 
Controller Fiscal 
YTD

Corporation  $273 million above 
forecast 

$493 million above 
forecast 

$483.017 million 
above forecast  

270

https://www.dof.ca.gov/Forecasting/Economics/Economic_and_Revenue_Updates/documents/2021/Feb-21.pdf
https://sco.ca.gov/Files-ARD/CASH/January2021StatementofGeneralFundCashReceiptsandDisbursements.pdf
https://sco.ca.gov/Files-ARD/CASH/January2021StatementofGeneralFundCashReceiptsandDisbursements.pdf


Personal 
Income 

$7.389 billion above 
forecast.  

$9.803 billion above 
forecast 

$9.523 billion above 
forecast  

Sales and 
Use   

$151 million below 
forecast 

$167 million above 
forecast 

$672.262 million 
above forecast 

Total 
Revenues  

$7.453 billion above 
forecast 

$10.539 billion above 
forecast 

$10.517 billion above 
forecast 

 
Early Action Agreement:  The growing revenues made it easier for the Governor and 
Legislature to reach a deal on a package of early action budget items.  Governor Newsom 
signed the early action agreement last week. Not included in this package was an 
agreement to reopen schools, which is in AB 86/SB 86, and the paid sick leave legislation 
contained in AB 89, that will be considered this week.   
 
The stimulus package totals $9.5 billion in current year spending.  The package focuses 
on low-income state stimulus and small business relief, and includes the following 
elements: 

• One-time $600 checks to low-income individuals through a Golden State 
Stimulus, including those low-wage workers eligible for earned income tax 
credits. 

• An additional $2 billion to the California Small Business COVID-19 Relief 
Grant program, with a maximum grant size of $25,000 per business.  

• A deduction for small businesses up to $150,000 in expenses covered by the 
federal Paycheck Protection Program and federal Economic Injury Disaster 
Loan funds.  

• Two years of fee relief for 59,000 restaurants and bars licensed through 
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control. The agreement also reflects fee 
relief for more than 600,000 barbering and cosmetology individuals and 
businesses licensed through the Department of Consumer Affairs. 

• Additional emergency financial aid for low-income community college 
students ($100 million) and farm workers required to quarantine ($24 million). 

• Allocation of $400 million in federal aid approved by Congress in late 
December for state-subsidized childcare and preschool providers.  

• Restoration of cuts made in the current fiscal year for the University of 
California, California State University, the Judicial Branch, Child Support 
Services, and for moderate-income housing.  

 
 

271



 
 

March 2, 2021 

BOARD ACTION ITEMS 
 

Bills 
Subject Status Client 

Positions 

AB 117 
(Boerner 
Horvath D) 
Air Quality 
Improvement 
Program: 
electric 
bicycles. 

AB 117 directs CARB to establish an Electric 
Bicycle Rebate Pilot Project.  This project 
builds upon existing rebate programs for 
zero emission vehicles in an effort to 
promote the use of electric bicycles and 
expand the ability to purchase electric 
bicycles.  Similar programs have been 
established at the local level and in other 
states and counties. 
 

ASSEMBLY    
TRANS. 

Recommended 
Position: 
SUPPORT 

AB 122 
(Boerner 
Horvath D) 
Vehicles: 
required 
stops: 
bicycles. 

AB 122 would amend existing law to allow 
bicyclists to enter an intersection without 
coming to a complete stop if specified 
conditions are met.   
Specifically, AB 122 would require a bicyclist 
when approaching a stop sign at an 
intersection to yield the right-of-way to any 
vehicles that have stopped at the entrance of 
the intersection, have entered the 
intersection, or that are approaching on the 
intersecting highway close enough to 
constitute an immediate hazard, and shall 
continue to yield the right-of-way to those 
vehicles until reasonably safe to proceed. 
 

ASSEMBLY    
TRANS. 

Recommended 
Position: 
WATCH 

AB 339 
(Lee D) 
State and 
local 
government: 
open 
meetings. 
 
 

AB 339 would require all meetings, including 
gatherings using teleconference technology, 
to include an opportunity for all persons to 
attend via a call-in option or an internet-
based service option that provides closed 
captioning services and requires both a call-
in and an internet-based service option to be 
provided to the public. 

ASSEMBLY    
PRINT 

Recommended 
Position: 
WATCH 

ATTACHMENT 2 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.6 

March 17, 2021 
 

272

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20117');
https://a76.asmdc.org/
https://a76.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20122');
https://a76.asmdc.org/
https://a76.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20339');
https://a25.asmdc.org/


AB 339 
(continued) 

The bill would also require closed captioning 
services for all state legislative hearings, 
require all interested persons are provided 
the ability to testify at state hearings, and 
require the availability of translation services 
for the 10 most spoken languages in 
California. 
 

AB 361 
(Rivas, 
Robert  D) 
Open 
meetings: 
local 
agencies: 
teleconferenc
es. 

This bill would authorize a local agency to 
use teleconferencing without complying with 
the teleconferencing requirements imposed 
by the Brown Act when a legislative body of 
a local agency holds a meeting for the 
purpose of declaring or ratifying a local 
emergency, during a declared state or local 
emergency. 
 

ASSEMBLY    
L. GOV. 

Recommended 
Position: 
WATCH 

AB 1157 
(Lee D) 
Local 
transportatio
n funds: 
State Transit 
Assistance 
Program: 
reports. 

AB 1157 is the reintroduction of AB 2542 
from last year.  This bill would make the 
following changes to the STA reporting 
requirements. 

• Shifts the deadline for when a 
regional transportation planning 
agency (RTPA) must submit an STA 
eligibility report to the State 
Controller’s Office (SCO) to within 
seven months of the end of each 
fiscal year. 

• Requires SCO to compile, publish, 
and make publicly available on its 
website the data and information of all 
transit operator financial transaction 
reports (FTRs) on or before 
November 1 of each year. 
 

ASSEMBLY    
PRINT 

Recommended 
Position: 
WATCH 

 
 
BOARD POSITION ITEMS are on the next page 
 
 
 

273

javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20339');
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%20361');
https://a30.asmdc.org/
https://a30.asmdc.org/
javascript:OpenBillInfo('AB%201157');
https://a25.asmdc.org/


 
 
BOARD POSITION ITEMS 
 

 
Bills 

Subject Status Client 
Positions 

ACA 1 
(Aguiar-
Curry D) 
Local 
government 
financing: 
affordable 
housing and 
public 
infrastructure: 
voter 
approval. 

Identical to last session’s proposal, which 
NVTA supported, ACA 1 would lower the 
voter threshold for property tax increases, 
parcel taxes and sales taxes to 55% if the 
funds are used for affordable housing and 
infrastructure projects.  This includes capital 
improvements to transit and streets and 
highways.   
However, ACA 1 does not allow for the 55% 
local measure to use the tax revenue for 
transit operations. 
 

ASSEMBLY    
PRINT 

Support 

 

274

javascript:OpenBillInfo('ACA%201');
https://a04.asmdc.org/
https://a04.asmdc.org/


February 9, 2021 

The Honorable Mark DeSaulnier The Honorable John Garamendi  
U.S. House of Representatives  U.S. House of Representatives  
503 Cannon House Office Building 2368 Rayburn House Office Building 
Washington, D.C. 20515 Washington, D.C. 20515 

The Honorable Jared Huffman 
U.S. House of Representatives 
1527 Longworth House Office Building 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

Dear Congressmen DeSaulnier, Garamendi and Huffman, 

On behalf of the undersigned Bay Area public transportation operators and the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission, we are writing to request your continued advocacy on behalf of public 
transit in your role as members of the House Transportation & Infrastructure Committee. We strongly 
support the $30 billion included in the House budget reconciliation proposal, which would provide 
the Bay Area with an approximately $1.7 billion in formula funding, an estimated $200 million to 
keep the Bay Area’s transit expansion and modernization projects on track, and the opportunity to 
apply for other emergency relief funds. These funds will help Bay Area transit operators provide 
lifeline connections while the COVID-19 pandemic persists and support a reliable, convenient and 
affordable transit system for riders to return to when the pandemic is finally in our rear-view mirror.  

As you well know, the Bay Area’s transit operators are continuing to connect nurses, social 
service workers and grocery store employees to their jobs and connect residents to essential services, 
despite sustaining heavy revenue losses resulting from the prolonged COVID-19 crisis. While we are 
hopeful that the nation is on the road to recovery, transit agencies are expected to be challenged with 
severe COVID-19-related fiscal constraints through 2023.  

The transit resources secured for the region in 2020 helped address transit agencies’ immediate needs, 
staving off the worst-case scenarios of draconian layoffs and complete service shutdowns that, 
without this relief, would have been at near term risk of occurring. This additional funding will 
protect good-paying jobs and help ensure Bay Area transit operators are poised to support an 
equitable and sustainable economic recovery that reduces our climate footprint once we reach the 
other side of the pandemic.  

If we can answer any questions or be of assistance in any way, please contact MTC’s Associate Manager 
of Government Relations, Georgia Gann Dohrmann (gganndohrmann@bayareametro.gov or 202-257-
8801). 

Sincerely, 

_____________________ ___________________ 
Therese W. McMillan  Robert Powers  
Executive Director, MTC  General Manager, BART 

ATTACHMENT 3  
NVTA Agenda Item 10.6  

March 17, 2021

275

mailto:gganndohrmann@bayareametro.gov


 

 

 

 
 
______________________     _____________________ 
Jeffrey Tumlin        Evelynn Tran 
Director of Transportation, SFMTA    Acting General Manager, Santa Clara VTA 
 
_____________________     ______________________ 
Jim Hartnett       Michael Hursh 
General Manager/CEO/Executive Director   General Manager, AC Transit 
Caltrain/Samtrans       
 
________________________     _________________________ 
Denis Mulligan       Rick Ramacier 
General Manager, Golden Gate     General Manager, County Connection 
Bridge, Highway & Transportation District 
  
 
______________________     ______________________ 
Seamus Murphy       Charles Anderson 
Executive Director, Water Emergency     General Manager, WestCAT 
Transportation Authority 
 
 
______________________     ______________________ 
Diane Feinstein      Jared Hall 
Interim Transportation Manager, FAST   Transit Manager, Petaluma Transit 
 
 
________________________     _________________________ 
Daryl Halls       Beth Kranda  
Executive Director, Solano Transportation    Executive Director, Soltrans  
Authority (Solano Express) 
 
______________________     ______________________ 
Jeanne Krieg       Joan Malloy   
Chief Executive Officer, Tri Delta Transit   City Manager, Union City  
 
 
______________________     ______________________ 
Farhad Mansourian       Sean McGlynn  
General Manager, SMART  City Manager, Santa Rosa CityBus 
 
 
________________________     _________________________ 
Kate Miller       Stacey Mortensen 
Executive Director, Napa Valley     Executive Director, San Joaquin 
Transportation Authority (VINE)    Regional Rail Commission 
 
  

  

 

 

 

 
 

 

276



 
______________________     ______________________ 
Michael Tree       Nila Gonzales 
Executive Director, Wheels      Interim Executive Director, Transbay  
        Joint Powers Authority   
 
__________________________ 
Nancy Whelan 
General Manager, Marin Transit 

277



February 9, 2021 

The Honorable Nancy Pelosi 
Speaker of the U.S. House of Representatives 
1236 Longworth House Office Building 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

Dear Speaker Pelosi & Bay Area Congressional Delegation, 

On behalf of the undersigned Bay Area public transportation operators and the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission, we are writing to thank you again for your continued advocacy on behalf 
of public transit in the ongoing COVID-19 relief negotiations. We strongly support the $30 billion 
included in the House budget reconciliation proposal, which would provide the Bay Area with an 
approximately $1.7 billion in formula funding, an estimated $200 million to keep the Bay Area’s 
ongoing transit expansion and modernization projects on track, and the opportunity to apply for other 
emergency relief funds. These funds will help Bay Area transit operators provide lifeline connections 
while the COVID-19 pandemic persists and support a reliable, convenient and affordable transit 
system for riders to return to when the pandemic is finally in our rear-view mirror.  

As you well know, the Bay Area’s transit operators are continuing to connect nurses, social 
service workers and grocery store employees to their jobs and connect residents to essential services, 
despite sustaining heavy revenue losses resulting from the prolonged COVID-19 crisis. While we are 
hopeful that the nation is on the road to recovery, transit agencies are expected to be challenged with 
severe COVID-19-related fiscal constraints through 2023.  

The transit resources you secured for the region in 2020 helped address transit agencies’ immediate 
needs, staving off the worst-case scenarios of draconian layoffs and complete service shutdowns that, 
without this relief, would have been at near term risk of occurring. This additional funding will 
protect good-paying jobs and help ensure Bay Area transit operators are poised to support an 
equitable and sustainable economic recovery that reduces our climate footprint once we reach the 
other side of the pandemic. 

If we can answer any questions or be of assistance in any way, please contact MTC’s Associate Manager 
of Government Relations, Georgia Gann Dohrmann (gganndohrmann@bayareametro.gov or 202-257-
8801). 

Sincerely, 

_____________________ ___________________ 
Therese W. McMillan  Robert Powers  
Executive Director, MTC  General Manager, BART 

______________________  _____________________ 
Jeffrey Tumlin   Evelynn Tran 
Director of Transportation, SFMTA Acting General Manager, Santa Clara VTA 
_____________________ ______________________ 

ATTACHMENT 4  
NVTA Agenda Item 10.6   

March 17, 2021

278

mailto:gganndohrmann@bayareametro.gov


Jim Hartnett Michael Hursh, General Manage 
General Manager/CEO/Executive Director AC Transit 
Caltrain/Samtrans  

________________________  _________________________ 
Denis Mulligan  Rick Ramacier 
General Manager, Golden Gate Bridge, General Manager, County Connection 
Highway & Transportation District 

______________________ ______________________ 
Seamus Murphy  Charles Anderson 
Executive Director, Water Emergency General Manager, WestCAT 
Transportation Authority 

______________________ ______________________ 
Diane Feinstein Jared Hall 
Interim Transportation Manager, FAST Transit Manager, Petaluma Transit 

________________________ _________________________ 
Daryl Halls  Beth Kranda  
Executive Director, Solano Transportation Executive Director, Soltrans  
Authority (Solano Express) 

______________________  ______________________ 
Jeanne Krieg  Joan Malloy  
Chief Executive Officer, Tri Delta Transit City Manager, Union City  

______________________ ______________________ 
Farhad Mansourian   Sean McGlynn  
General Manager, SMART  City Manager, Santa Rosa CityBus 

________________________  _________________________ 
Kate Miller  Stacey Mortensen 
Executive Director, Napa Valley  Executive Director, San Joaquin 
Transportation Authority (VINE) Regional Rail Commission 

______________________ ______________________ 
Michael Tree  Nila Gonzales 
Executive Director, Wheels Interim Executive Director, Transbay 

Joint Powers Authority  

__________________________ 
Nancy Whelan 
General Manager, Marin Transit 

 

 

 
 

 

279


	0000_Agenda
	0.0_Glossary of Acronyms Updated 05-2020
	0001_1_Draft Minutes
	0002_1_Staff Report
	9.2_CAC Member appointment cover-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointment
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.2_CAC Member Appointment memo-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION



	0003_1_Staff Report
	9.3_Review & Approve PCC Bylaws.Cover-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve the revised Paratransit Coordinating Council bylaws.
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.3_Review & Approve PCC Bylaws.memo-NEED TO SUMMARIZE CHANGES
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.3_Attach 1_Draft Resolution 21-08 PCC BylawsNEED REDLINED VERSION for the board packet
	9.3 PCC Bylaws Attch 2 - redlined Changes 
	BYLAWS FOR THE PARATRANSIT COORDINATING COUNCILParatransit Coordinating Council


	0004_1_Staff Report
	9.4_NVTA JPA Amend No. 12 Adopt_Cover_ao-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.4_Amend No. 12 Adopt_memo ao-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.4_NVTA JPA Amend No. 12 Adopt_Attch 1 Resolution 21-04, Revised-KM no changes
	RESOLUTION No. 21-04, REVISED

	9.4_NVTA JPA Amend No 12 Attach2-KM no changes

	0005_1_Staff Report
	9.5_Kimley Horn Amend_Cover-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive Director to execute, and make minor modifications, to the Third Amendment to NVTA Agreement No. 17-15 with Kimley-Horn Associates Inc. to extend the term.
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.5_Kimley Horn Amend_Memo_KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive Director to execute, and make minor modifications, to the Third Amendment to NVTA Agreement No. 17-15 with Kimley-Horn Associates Inc. to extend the term.

	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.5_Attch 1_Kimley-Horn_Amend 3

	0006_1_Staff Report
	9.6_ NapaWater_Reimburse_ROE_cover-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	9.6_NapaWater_Reimburse_ROE_Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION


	9.6_Att1_NVTA_CityNapa_ReimburseAgreement
	9.6_Att2_NVTA_NapaWater_ROE

	0007_1_Staff Report
	9.8_LCTOP FY 20-21 LCTOP Grant Application_Cover-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY



	9.8_LCTOP FY 20-21 Grant Application_Board-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.8_LCTOP FY 20-21 Grant Application Attch 1 Resolution 21-09
	RESOLUTION No. 21-09


	0008_1_Staff Report
	9.9 TDA-3 Call for Projects Cover Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.9 TDA-3 Call for Projects Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.9_TDA-3 Attach 1Call for Projects FY 2021-22 through 2023-24 Program Guide
	Basic Eligibility for TDA-3 Funding
	TDA-3 Project Selection Criteria for Napa County
	For Bicycle Projects

	Contact Information

	9.9 TDA-3 Attach 2  Fund Estimate 2021-22

	0009_1_Staff Report
	9.10_OWP_Cover_KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	Overall Work Program (OWP) for Fiscal Year 2020-21 and Fiscal Year 2021-22
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.10_OWP_Board_KM chages
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	9.10_OWP- FY21 and FY22 Master Draft_ FINAL Attach 1

	0010_1_Staff Report
	10.1 Proposed Org Restructure Cover-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.1_Proposed Organizational Restructure_board-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.1_Proposed Org Restructure Attch 1 Org Chartx
	10.1_Proposed Org Restructure Attch 2 Measure T Administrative Analyst Proposed Job Description-KM changes

	0011_1_Staff Report
	10.2_CTP_Cover Public Draft-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	______________________________________________________________________
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.2_CTP_Public Draft_Memo-Alberto TO MAKE REVISIONS
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT: Countywide Transportation Plan – Advancing Mobility 2045: Public Draft Release
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND



	0012_1_Staff Report
	10.3_Safe and Seamless Quick Strike_cover-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	______________________________________________________________________
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolutions 21-10 and 21-11 and authorize the Executive Director to submit a Nomination Letter and supporting documentation for the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s (MTC) Safe ...
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.3_Safe and Seamless_Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolutions 21-10 and 21-11 and authorize the Executive Director to submit a Nomination Letter and supporting documentation for the Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s (MTC) Safe ...
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.3_ Safe and Seamless Attch 1. Resolution_Local_Support 21-10-KM no changes
	ATTACHMENT 1 Agenda Item 10.3
	RESOLUTION No. 21-10
	Resolution of Local Support

	10.3_ Safe and Seamless Attch 2. Resolution_Local_Support 21-11-KM no changes
	ATTACHMENT 2
	RESOLUTION No. 21-11
	Resolution of Local Support

	10.3_Safe and Seamless Attch 3 Draft Nomination Letter-KM_PK
	10.3_Safe and Seamless Attch 4 Roundabout Renderings
	2021.01.20_SR29_Rutherford_RAB_Alt09b_E_Optimized
	Napa County SR-29 and Silveradvements - Final Technical Memo 15

	10.3_Safe and Seamless Attch 5 Draft SRTS Memo - MTC Quick Strike SRTS v3
	10.3_Safe and Seamless Quick Strike Attch 6_AppendixA-11 Guidelines

	0013_1_Staff Report
	10.4_CAD AVL_Cover-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	______________________________________________________________________
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.4_CAD AVL_Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive Director to execute, and make minor modifications to a contract  with GMV Synchromatics for up to 5-years for a new CAD/AVL System.
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	10.4_Attch 1_CAD AVL_Agreement No. 21-07
	07_GMV (D)
	NVTA FLEET LIST
	07_GMV (D)
	GMV Sync_Price Proposal_Napa


	0014_1_Staff Report
	10.5_Loan Agreement with Bank of Marin $5M_cover-KM change
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY



	10.5_Loan Agreement with Bank of Marin $5M_Board-KM changes
	Action Requested: APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION


	10.5_Bank of Marin Loan Attach 1 - Resolution 21-06 - Term Sheet with Bank of Marin
	Passed and adopted this 17th day of March, 2021.

	10.5_Bank of Marin Loan Attach 2 - Bank of Marin Updated LOI term sheet- UPDATED
	10.5_Bank of Marin Loan - Attach 3_Term Sheet_US Bank

	0015_1_Staff Report
	10.6 00 Legislative Update_Cover_kaa-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVAL
	SUBJECT
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.6 01 Legislative Update memo-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVAL
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.6 Legislative Update - Attch 1 NVTA Report
	10.6 Legislative Update-Attch 2 NVTA State Matrix 3-2
	10.6_Legislative Update Attch 3 Transit Funding Bay Area Support_Feb 2021_T&I Committee
	10.6 Legislative Update - Attch 4 Transit GM Letter_Feb 2021




